3
k " Inland Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

AGENDA

MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 16, 2016
10:00 A.M.

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*
AGENCY HEADQUARTERS
6075 KIMVBALL AVENUE, BUILDING A
CHINO, CALIFORNIA 91708

CALL TO ORDER

OF THE INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

FLAG SALUTE

PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public may address the Board on any item that Is within the Jurisdiction of the Board;
however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action Is
otherwise autherized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code. Those persons
wishing to address the Board on any matter, whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to
complete and submit to the Board Secretary a “Request to Speak” form which are available on the table

in the Board Room. Comments will be limited to five minutes per speaker. Thank you.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

R

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda i
require two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a
unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the
need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted.

FISCAL YEAR 2016/17 BUDGET UPDATE WORKSHOP

2. CONSENT CALENDAR

NOTICE: All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial and will be acted upon by the Board by one motion in the form listed below. There will be
no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Board votes unless any Board members,

staff or the public requests specific items be discussed and/or remaved from the Consent Calendar for
separate action.




MINUTES

The Board will be asked to approve the minutes from the February 17,
2016, Board mesting.

REPORT ON GENERAL DISBURSEMENTS
it is recommended that the Board approve the total disbursements for the
month of January 2016, in the amount of $8,807,661.98.

ADOPTION OF RESOLUTIONS FOR A SMALL COMMUNITY GRANT
APPLICATION
it is recommended that the Board:

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-3-1, authorizing the General Manager
to sign a Financial Assistance Agreement with the State Water
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) for a Planning Grant
application through the Small Community Wastewater Grant
Program; and

2. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-3-2, dedicating certain revenues in
connection with the Small Community Wastewater Grant Program
and associated State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan financing.

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3-3, FOR SGMA BASIN BOUNDARY
MODIFICATION

it is recommended that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2016-3-3, for the
Agency to initiate a SGMA boundary change request to the Califomia
Department of Water Resources recommending that the Bulletin 118
Basin Boundary of the Chino Basin be conformed to the adjudicated Chino
Basin boundary throughout the majority of the Chino Basin.

ADOPTION OF RESOLUTIONS FOR DESIGN-BUILD PROJECTS AND
CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

It is recommended that the Board adopt, pursuant to California Senate Bill
785:

1. Resolution No. 2016-3-4, approving use of the design-build method
for project delivery; and

2. Resolution No. 2016-3-5, approving a Conflict of Interest Policy for
design-build projects.

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3-8, AUTHORIZING AGENCY ORGANIZATION
MEMBERSHIPS AND AFFILIATIONS
It is recommended that the Board:

1. Approve the Agency-wide memberships and affiliations for FY
2016/17, in the amount of $238,250 (includes 5% contingency); and

2. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-3-8, authorizing Agency organizational
memberships and affiliations.



G.

EXTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES
It is recommended that the Board:

1. Approve Contract No. 46000002079, in the amount of $172,160
with Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP, Ceriified Public Accountants
(LSL), to provide annual financial audit services for the Inland
Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA or Agency) for an initial 3-year term
and two single-year options to extend, beginning in Fiscal Year
(FY) 2015/16;

2. Approve Contract No. 46000002081, in the amount of $21,160 to
LSL to provide financial statement preparation services for the
Chino Basin Regional Financing Authority (CBRFA) for an initial 3-
year term and two single-year options to extend, beginning in FY
2015/16; and

3. Authorize the General Manager or his designee to execute the
contracts.

RESIDENTIAL EDUCATION, SURVEY, AND CONTROLLER UPGRADE
PROGRAM
It is recommended that the Board:

1. Award a 15-month contract to ConServ Construction, Inc., for a not-
to-exceed amount of $300,000 to implement the Program; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract.
CONTRACT AWARD FOR MIDGE FLY SAMPLING AND CONTROL

INVESTIGATION
It is recommended that the Board:

1. Approve Contract No. 4600002068 to West Valley Mosquito and
Vector Control District (WVMVCD) establishing a two-year contract
for midge fly sampling and control investigation services at various

groundwater recharge sites for a not-to-exceed amount of
$280,000; and

2. Authorize the General Manager, or his designee, to execute the
contract,

MASTER CONTRACT AWARDS FOR ASPHALT SERVICES

It is recommended that the Board:

1. Approve the contract award of four 5-year Master Contracts for
asphalt services, for all of the Agency’s structures and facilities in
the not-to-exceed amount of $100,000 each, to the following:

e EBS General Engineering, [nc. (Contract No.
4600002077)



e G.M. Sager Construction Company, Inc. (Contract No.
4600002075)

e Medina construction (Contract No. 4600002076)
e Terra Pave, Inc. (Contract No. 4600002067); and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contracts.

K. MASTER CONTRACT AWARDS FOR ROOFING SERVICES
It is recommended that the Board:

1. Approve the contract award of four 5-year Master Contracts for
roofing services, for all of the Agency’s structures and facilities in
the not-to-exceed amount of $100,000 each, to the following:

e Best Contracting Services, Inc. (Contract No.
4600002074)

e Exbon Development, Inc. (Contract No. 4600002078)

e Right-Way Roof Corporation (Contract No.
4600002065)

e Tecta America Southern California, Inc. (Contract No.
4600002073); and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contracts.

L. MASTER CONTRACT AWARDS FOR FENCING SERVICES
It is recommended that the Board:

1. Approve the contract award of four 5-year Master Contracts for
fencing services, for all of the Agency’s structures and facilities in
the not-to-exceed amount of $100,000 each, to the following:

e Ace Fence Company (Contract No. 4600002071)

e Ferreira Construction Company, Inc. (Contract No.
4600002070)

e Harris Steel Fence Company, Inc. (Contract No.
4600002069)

e Moore Fence Company, Inc. (Contract No.
4600002066); and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contracts.

ACTION ITEMS
(Action Items B and C will continue following Closed Session)

A. RECYCLED WATER POLICY PRINCIPLES
IS recommended that the Board:

1. Adopt the Recycled Water Policy Principles; and



2. Direct staff to develop a Regional Contract amendment based on
the Recycled Water Policy Principles.

A.

4. INFORMATION ITEMS
A. MWD UPDATE AND DROUGHT UPDATE (ORAL)
B. PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES UPDATE (ORAL)
RECEIVE AND FILE INFORMATION ITEMS
C. TREASURER'S _REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS (WRITTEN/

POWERPOINT)
D. EY 2
E. BUBLIC QUTREACH AND COMNUNICATION (WRITTEN)
- B S B BEBBSB B\ .-,y
(WRITTEN)

G. LEGISLATIVE REPORT FROM WEST COAST ADVISORS (WRITTEN)
H. LEGISLATIVE __REPORT _FROM__AGRICULTURAL RESOURCES
l. CALIFORNIA STRATEGIES! LLC MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT
J.  EEDERAL LEGISLATIVE TRACKING MATRIC(WRITTEN)
K. SIAIELEGISLATIVE TRACKING MATRIX (WRITTEN)
L. ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PROJECT
M. RECYCIED WAIER SEMLANNUAL UPDATE (POQWERPOINT)
N. INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT !WRITTEN;
0. FOLLOW-UP REVIEW — INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (WRITTEN)

é Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Agency, after distribution of the agenda

| packet, are available for public inspection at the Agency’s office located at 6075 Kimball Avenue, Chino,

| Californla during normal business hours.

I

5. AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES’ REPORTS

SAWPA REPORT (WRITTEN)




C.

D.

MWD REPORT (WRITTEN)

REGIONAL SEWERAGE PROGRAM POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER REPORT {(WRITTEN]

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (WRITTEN)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS

A.

CONFERENCE REPORTS

This is the time and place for the Members of the Board to report on prescheduled Committee/District
Representative Assignment meetings, which were held since the last regular Board meeting, and/or any
other items of interest.

CLOSED SESSION

A.

PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(a) -

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION

1. Chino Basin Municipal Water District vs. City of Chino, Case No.
RCV51010

2. Martin vs. IEUA, Case No. CIVRS 1000767
3. Mwembu vs. IEUA, Case No. CIVDS 1415762

PURSUANT TO_ _GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.8 -
CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR
1. Supplemental Water Transfer/Purchase
Negotiating Party: General Manager P. Joseph Grindstaff
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Purchase

PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
1. Two (2) Cases

PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957 — PERSONNEL
MATTERS

1. Various Positions ~ Compensation Study

2. Various Positions.

PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957 — PERSONNEL
MATTERS — PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
1. General Manager




3. ACTION ITEMS - continued

B. RESOL -3
Is recommended that the Board:

1. Approve and adopt the recently completed classification and
compensation study for all General Unit employees;

2. Approve the modification of various positions titles for all General
Unit employees, as a result of the adoption of the classification and
compensation study; and

3. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-3-6, to amend the 2013 through 2018
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the General Unit with a
new salary matrix and classification plan based on the results of a
classification and compensation study.

C. RESOLUTION __ NO. =3-
! RY UNIT, OPERATORS’

ASSOCIATION, PROFESSIONAL UNIT AND GENERAL UNIT
It is recommended that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2016-3-7,
amending the salary schedule/matrix for the Unrepresented, Executive

Management, Laboratory Unit, Operators’ Association, Professional Unit,
and General Unit employees.

10. ADJOURN

*A Municipal Water District

In compliance with the Amerlcans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in
this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary (909) 993-1736, 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting
so that the Agency can make reasonable arrangements.

Proofed by: ﬂ Q

Declaration of Posting

o ]
I, April Woodruff, Board Secretary of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, A Municipal Water District, hereby certify

that a copy of this agenda has been posted by 5:30 p.m. at the Agency's main office, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building
, Chino Thursday, March 10, 2016.




CONSENT
CALENDAR
ITEM

2L



N
k Inland Empire Utilities Agency
i A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: March 16, 2016
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Finance, Legal and Administration Committee (3/9/16)
From: P. Joseph Grindst§ ‘
General Manager
Submitted b Christina Valencia

Chief Financial Officer/Assistant General Manager

Warren T. Green
Manager of Contracts and Facilities Services

Subject: Master Contract Awards for Fencing Services

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1. Approve the contract award of four 5-year term Master Contracts for fencing
services, for the Agency’s structures and facilities in the not-to-exceed amount of
$100,000 each, to the following:

Ace Fence Company (Contract No. 4600002071)

Ferreira Construction Company, Inc. (Contract No. 4600002070)
Harris Steel Fence Company, Inc. (Contract No. 4600002069)
Moore Fence Company, Inc. (Contract No. 4600002066); and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contracts.

BACKGROUND

The Agency owns numerous facilities and process structures that require functional fencing (both
for perimeter protection as well as aesthetic area designation within facilities). Maintaining the
aesthetic and structural integrity of the Agency’s fences is a key element of providing operational
security and safeguarding buildings, communications, and equipment. On a routine basis, these
fences require maintenance and repair services to preserve the integrity of the perimeters, the
value of the investment, and the operational reliability of the facilities. Contracting with highly
qualified fencing companies ensures that the contract terms and conditions (e.g., rates, insurance,



Master Fencing Contractors
March 16, 2016
Page 2 of 2

indemnification, DIR registration, etc.) are established and documented, which will expedite
services when needed. Utilization of Master Fencing Contracts ensures we can address any
damage from exposure to environmental elements or vandalism in a timely manner. On an as-
needed basis, staff will solicit the Master Fencing contractors for specific jobs, conduct job
walks, evaluate the proposals, and award Task Orders typically to the lowest bidder.

Staff issued a Request for Proposal (RFP-HD-16-003) offering a five-year contract to qualifying
companies through Planet Bids, the Agency’s on-line solicitation system. Additionally, staff
ensured the solicitation was sent to small businesses within the IEUA service area.

A review of the responsive proposals focused on the proposed labor categories, as well as
individual company qualifications. Additionally, references were called, contractor licenses
were checked, and DIR registration was verified. Staff determined that the four proposed
contractors were qualified, competent, and all capable of handling the task order assignments
currently anticipated by the Agency’s Maintenance Department.

These use of master contracts to expedite recurring maintenance requirements supports the IEUA
Business Goals and Objectives to promote efficiency and effectiveness in all Agency business
practices and processes.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

In 2010, The Board approved three Master Fencing Contractors; Moore Fence Company, Inc. -
4600000620, Harris Steel Fence Company, Inc. — 4600000621, and All Cities Fence &
Construction - 4600000622. The three contracts were issued to these contractors implementing
an on-call/as-needed basis. The Agency received good service and competitive pricing due to
the individual Master Contract solicitation process.

IMPACT ON BUDGET
If approved, sufficient funds are available in Fiscal Year 2015/16 and FY 2016/17 under
Regional Operations and Maintenance (RO) fund, Professional Fees and Services Budget, to

safeguard the Agency’s buildings, structures, and facilities by engaging the services of the
recommended contractors.

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16064 RFP-HD-16-003 Board Letter for Fencing Master Contracts.doc



Iriiarid Emplie Utilities Agency

h - A SUNECIPAL WATER DISTRICT

CONTRACT NUMBER: 4600002066

FOR
MASTER FENCING CONTRACTOR SERVICES
THIS CONTRACT (the "Contract"), is made and entered into this day of

, 2016, by and between the Inland Empire Utilites Agency, a Municipal
Water District, organized and existing in the County of San Bernardino under and by virtue
of the laws of the State of California (hereinafter referred to as "Agency"), and Moore
Fence Company, Inc., of Perris, California (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor”), for the
procurement and instailation of various fencing materials, gates, and products; related to
providing fences (where needed) arid maintaining existing fences for both security and an
improved appearance for facilities and structures Agency-wide.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and obligations set forth
herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. PROJECT MANAGER ASSIGNMENT: All technical direction related to this
Contract shall come from the designated Project Manager. Details of the Agency's
assignment are listed below.

Project Manager:  Harlan Delzer
Address. 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A
Chino, California, 91708

Telephone:  {909) 993-1707
Facsimile:  (909) 947-1987
Email: hdelzer@ieua.org

2. CONTRACTOR ASSIGNMENT: Special inquiries related to this Contract and the
effects of this Contract shali be referred to the following:

Contractor:  Carl L Ross, Jr.
Address: 280 E. 18t Street
Perris, California 92572

Telephone:  (888) 718-9777
Facsimile:  (951) 940-0429
Cell:  (951) 840-8615

Email:  lenny@moorefence.net

4600002066 HD Page 1 of 12
3M6/2016



a ORDER OF PRECEDENCE: The documents referenced below represent the
Contract Documents. Where any conflicts exist between the General Terms and
Conditions, or addenda attached, then the goveming order of precedence shall be
as follows:

A. Amendments to Contract Number 4600002066.

B. Contract Number 4600002066 General Terms and Conditions.

C. Agency's RFP-HD-16-003, dated January 28, 2016, Attachment A
D. Contractor's proposal, dated February 11, 2016, Attachment B

4, SCOPE OF WORK AND SERVICES: Contractor's services and responsibilities
shall include, but shall not be limited to:

A. Contractor will provide all manpower, equipment, vehicles, and supplies
needed to complete the work, in accordance with the Agency’'s RFP-HD-16-
003, dated January 28, 2016 (Attachment A) and Contractor’'s proposal dated
February 11, 2016, (Attachment B); which are both incorporated herein and
made a part hereof with this reference.

B. Contractor shall, when awarded a task order, prepare a Schedule of Work
and Services for review and approval by the Project Manager. The mutually
agreed Schedule of Work and Services shall be the basis of coordination
between the Contractor and the Agency.

C. More specifically, the work for this contract shall include the procurement and
application of various fencing materials to Agency structures and/or facilities,
as directed by the Project Manager.

D. Through the duration of this contract, the Agency will offer opportunities for the
Contractor to bid on Task Orders and; should the Contractor be awarded the
Task Order will be authorized to complete the work of that specific Task Order.

5. TERM: The term of this Contract shall extend from the date of the Notice-to-
Proceed until June 30, 2021, unless agreed to by both parties, reduced to writing,
and amended to this Contract.

6. COMPENSATION: Agency shall pay Contractor's properly executed invoices,
which have been approved by the Project Manager, within thirty (30) days following
receipt of the invoice. Payment will be withheld for any service that does not meet
the Agency requirements or has proven to be unacceptable until such service is
revised, the invoice resubmitted, and accepted by the Project Manager.
Additionally, to qualify for payment, the Contractor shall prominently display, on
the first page of the invoice, both:

A. The Contract Number — 4600002066, and
B. The Contract Release Purchase Order Number — 45000

4600002066 HD Page 2 of 12
3Mei20186



Contractor shall provide, with their invoice, certified payroll documentation to verify
that Contractor has paid prevailing wage in accordance with the California
Department of Industrial Relations requirements, as stipulated in SB-854. See:
(http:/imww.dir.ca.gov/DIRNews/2014/2014-55.pdf)

Contractor’s invoices shall be submitted, if by mail, as follows:

Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Re: Contract Number: 4600002066
P.O. Box 9020

Chino Hills, CA 91709

Contractor's invoices shall be submitted, if by e-mail, as follows:

To: APGroup@ieua.org
1. Scan the invoice as a PDF file
2. Attach the scanned file to an email
3. A/P staff will acknowledge receipt of the invoice.

Concurrent with the submittal of the onginal invoice to the Accounts Payable
Department, the Contractor shall forward (mail, fax, or email) a copy of said invoice
to the designated Project Manager, identified on Page 1 of this Contract;
referencing Contract Number 4600002066. The Project Manager will review the
submitted invoice in a timely manner.

As compensation for the completion of the work represented by this Contract, the
Agency shall pay Contractor’s invoices up to the NOT-TO-EXCEED total authorized
amount of each Task Order for all services provided throughout the term of this
Contract. The Contractor shall not be paid for any amount exceeding the NOT-TO-
EXCEED amount, or for work completed beyond the expiration date of the Task
Order, without an Amendment to the Task Order or this Contract.

Compensation for the satisfactory completion of the work represented by this
Contract, Agency shall pay Contractor's invoices up to a NOT-TO-EXCEED total
authorized amount of $100,000 for all services provided throughout the term of this
Contract. The Contractor shall not be paid for any amount exceeding the NOT-TO-
EXCEED amount, nor for work completed beyond the expiration date without an
Amendment to the Contract.

Agency may, at any time, make changes to the Scope of Work within an assigned
Task Order, including additions, reductions, andfor changes to any or all of the
Work, as directed in writing by the Agency. Such changes shall be made by an
Amendment to the Task Order and incorporated into this Contract. The Total
Authorized Amount and Term of the Task Order shall be equitably adjusted, if
required, to account for such changes, and shall be set forth in the written
Amendment, agreed to and signed by both parties, prior to becoming effective.

4600002066 HD Page 3 of 12
3/18/2016



CONTROL OF THE WORK: The Contractor shall perform the Work in compliance

with the Schedule of Work and Services. If performance of the Work falls behind
schedule, the Contractor shall accelerate the performance of the Work to comply
with the Schedule of Work and Services as directed by the Project Manager. If the
nature of the Work is such that Contractor is unable to accelerate the Work,
Contractor shall promptly notify the Project Manager of the delay, the causes of the
delay, and submit a proposed revised Schedule of Work and Services.

8. FITNESS FOR DUTY:
A. Fitness: Contractor on the Jobsite:

1. Shall report for work in a manner fit to do their job; and

2. Shall not be under the influence of or in possession of any alcoholic
beverages or of any controlled substance (except a controlled
substance as prescribed by a physician so long as the performance
or safety of the Work is not affected therebyy); and

3. Shall not have been convicted of any serious criminal offense which,

by its nature, may have a discemible adverse impact on the business
or reputation of Agency.

9. INSURANCE: During the term of this Contract, the Contractor shall maintain at its
sole expense, the following insurance.

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance:

1.

General Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence
for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. Coverage
shall be at least as broad as insurance Services Office form number
CG 00 01 10 01, covering Comprehensive General Liability. If
Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with a general
aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply
separately to this project/location, or the general aggregate limit shall
be twice the required occurrence limit.

Automobile Liability: Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 combined
single limit per accident for bodily injury and property damage.
Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office
form number CA 00 01 10 01, covering Automobile Liability, including
"any auto."

Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability: Workers'
compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of
California and employers Liability limits .of $1,000,000 per accident.
Contractor shall submit a Waiver of Subrogation associated with the
Contractor's Workers Compensation Policy.

4600002066 HD
3/16/2016

Page 4 of 12



B. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention: Any deductibles or self-insured

retention must be declared to and approved by the Agency. At the option of
the Agency, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or
self-insured retention as respects the Agency, its officers, officials,
employees and volunteers.

C. Other Insurance Provisions: The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to

contain, the following provisions:

1. General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverage

a.

The Agency, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to
be covered as insureds, endorsement GL 2010 11 85, as
respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or on
behalf of the Contractor, products and completed operations of
the Contractor, premises owned, occupied or used by the
Contractor, or automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by
the Contractor. The coverage shall contain no special limitations
on the scope of protection afforded to the Agency, its officers,
officials, employees, or volunteers. If Form CG 2010 10 93 or CG
2010 03 97 are issued in place of the CG 2010 11 85, then it is
also necessary to issue a Form CG 2037 10 01 in addition to
Form CG 2010 10 93 or CG 2010 03 97.

The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance
as respects the Agency, its officer, officials, employees and
volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the
Agency, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be
excess of the Contractor's insurance and shall not contribute with
it.

Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shalll
not affect coverage provided to the Agency, its officers, officials,
employees or volunteers.

The Contractor's insurance shall apply separately to each insured
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with
respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

The Contractor may satisfy the limit requirements in a single
policy or multiple policies. Any Such additional policies written as
excess insurance shall not provide any less coverage than that
provided by the first or primary policy.

2. Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage

The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the
Agency, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers for losses
arising from work performed by the Contractor for the Agency.

4600002066 HD
3/16/2016

Page 5 of 12



3. All Coverages

Each insurance policy required by this contract shall be endorsed to
state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by
either party, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30)
days' prior written notice has been given to the Agency.

Acceptability of Insurers: With the exception of Professional Liability
Insurance, all insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of
no less than A:VIl, and who are admitted insurers in the State of California.
Professional Liability Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's
rating of no less than B:VIl, and who are admitted insurers in the State of
California.

Verification of Coverage: Contractor shall furnish the Agency with
certificates of insurance and with original endorsements effecting coverage
required by the Agency for themseives and all subcontractors prior to
commencing work or allowing any subcontractor to commence work under
any subcontract. The certificates and endorsements for each insurance
policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind
coverage on its behalf. All certificates and endorsements are to be
approved by the Agency before work commences. The Agency reserves
the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance
policies, at any time

10.  Submittal of Certificates: Contractor shall submit all required certificates and
endorsements to the following:

Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Attn. Manager of Safety and Risk Management
P.O. Box 9020

Chino Hills, Californta 91709

11. LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

A

Professional Responsibility: The Contractor shall be responsible, to the level
of competency presently maintained by other practicing professionals
performing the same or similar type of work.

Status of Contractor: The Contractor is retained as an independent
Contractor only, for the sole purpose of rendering the services described
herein, and is not an employee of the Agency.

Observing Laws and Ordinances: The Contractor shall keep itself fully
informed of existing and future state and federal laws and county and city
ordinances and regulations which in any manner affect the conduct of any
services or tasks performed under this Contract, and of such orders and
decrees of bodies or tribunals having any jurisdiction or authority over the
same. The Contractor shall at all times observe and comply with such

4600002066 HD Page 6 of 12

3/16/2018



existing, at the time services are rendered, laws, ordinances, regulations,
orders and decrees, and shall protect and indemnify, as required herein, the
Agency, its officers, employees and agents against any claim or liability
arising from or based on the violation of any such law, ordinance, regulation,
order or decree, in effect at the time the services are performed, whether by
the Contractor or its employees. Effective July 1, 2014, all Contractors
must be registered with the California Department of Industrial
Relation, as required by (law) SB-854 for public works projects.

Prevailing Wage Requirements: Pursuant to Section 1770 and following,
of the California Labor Code, the Contractor shall not pay less that the
general prevailing wage rates, as determined by the Director of the State
of California Department of Industrial Relations for the locality in which the
work is fo be performed and for each craft or type of worker needed to
execute the work contemplated under the Contract. The Contractor or any
subcontractor performing part of said work shall strictly adhere to all
provisicns of the Labor Code, including, but not limited to, minimum
wages, work days, nondiscrimination, apprentices, maintenance and
availability of accurate payroll records and any other matters required
under all Federal, State and local laws related to labor.

Subcontract Services: Any subcontracts for the performance of any services
under this Contract shail be subject to the written approval of the Project
Manager.

Conflict of Interest: No official of the Agency who is authorized in such
capacity and on behalf of the Agency to negotiate, make, accept or approve,
or to take part in negotiating, making, accepting or approving this Contract,
or any subcontract relating to services or tasks to be performed pursuant to
this Contract, shall become directly or indirectly personally interested in this
Contract.

Equal Opportunity and Unlawful Discrimination: During the petformance of
this Contract, the Contractor shall not unlawfully discriminate against any
employee or employment applicant because of race, color, religion, sex,
age, marital status, ancestry, physical or mental disability, sexual orientation,
veteran status or national origin. The Agency is committed to creating and
maintaining an environment free from harassment and discrimination.
Please be assured that any possible infraction will be thoroughly
investigated by the Agency.

Disputes:

ik All disputes arising out of or in relation to this Contract shall be
determined in accordance with this section. The Contractor shail
pursue the work to completion in accordance with the instruction of
the Agency's Project Manager notwithstanding the existence of
dispute. By entering into this Contract, both parties are obligated,

4600002066 HD Page 7 of 12

3/16/2016



and hereby agree, to submit all disputes arising under or relating to
the Contract, which remain unresolved after the exhaustion of the
procedures provided herein, to independent arbitration. Except as
otherwise provided herein, arbitration shall be conducted under
California Code of Civil Procedure Sections 1280, et. seq, or their
SUCCEeSSOr.

Any and all disputes during the pendency of the work shall be subject
to resolution by the Agency Project Manager and the Contractor shall
comply, pursuant to the Agency Project Manager instructions. If the
Contractor is not satisfied with any such resolution by the Agency
Project Manager, they may file a written protest with the Agency
Project Manager within seven (7) calendar days after receiving
written notice of the Agency's decision. Failure by Contractor to file a
written protest within seven (7) calendar days shall constitute waiver
of protest, and acceptance of the Agency Project Manager's
resolution. The Agency's Project Manager shall submit the
Contractor's written protests to the General Manager, together with a
copy of the Agency Project Manager's written decision, for his or her
consideration within seven (7) calendar days after receipt of said
protest(s). The General Manager shall make his or her determination
with respect to each protest filed with the Agency Project Manager
within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of said protest(s). If
Contractor is not satisfied with any such resolution by the General
Manager, they may file a written request for mediation with the
Project Manager within seven (7) calendar days after receiving
written notice of the General Manager's decision

In the event of arbitration, the parties hereto agree that there shall be
a single neutral Arbitrator who shall be selected in the following
manner:

a. The Demand for Arbitration shall include a list of five names of
persons acceptable to the Contractor to be appointed as
Arbitrator. The Agency shall determine if any of the names
submitted by Contractor are acceptable and, if so, such
person will be designated as Arbitrator.

b. in the event that none of the names submitted by Contractor
are acceptable to Agency, or if for any reason the Arbitrator
selected in Step (a) is unable to serve, the Agency shall
submit to Contractor a list of five names of persons acceptable
to Agency for appointment as Arbitrator. The Contractor shall,
in turn, have seven (7) calendar days in which to determine if
one such person is acceptable.

4600002066 HD
3/16/2016

Page 8 of 12



12.

13.

14.

C. If after Steps (a) and (b), the parties are unable to mutually
agree upon a neutral Arbitrator, the matter of selection of an
Arbitrator shall be submitted to the San Bernardino County
Superior Court pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section
1281.6, or its successor. The costs of arbitration shall be
recoverable by the party prevailing in the arbitration. If this
arbitration is appealed to a court pursuant to the procedure
under California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1284, et.
seq., or their successor, the costs of arbitration shall also
include court costs associated with such appeals, which shall
be recoverable by the prevailing party.

4. Joinder in Mediation/Arbitration: The Agency may join the Contractor
in mediation or arbitration commenced by a contractor on the Project
pursuant to Public Contracts Code Sections 20104 et seq. Such
joinder shall be initiated by written notice from the Agency's
representative to the Contractor.

INDEMNIFICATION: To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall
indemnify the Agency, its directors, employees, and assigns, and shall defend and
hold them harmless for all liabilities, demands, actions, claims, losses, and
expenses, which arise out of or are related to the negligence, recklessness, or
willful misconduct of the Contractor, its directors, employees, agents and assigns
in the performance of the work under this contract.

OWNERSHIP OF WORK MATERIALS: The Work materials (drawings,
specifications, field notes, exhibits, site surveys, site-specific information, and other
documents) related to this scope of work shall remain the property of the Agency.
The Agency acknowledge that the Contractor's project reports, field data, notes,
calculations, estimates, and other similar work materials; are instruments that
support the services provided under this Contract, and are not “work products.”
The Agency understands that the Contractor may retain a copy of all work materials
for the purpose of documenting the Contractor's participation in this project. The
Agency recognizes that there shall be no unauthorized re-use of any project
documents unless authorization of such re-use is reduced to writing and signed by
both parties. Ownership of all work materials shall remain the property of the
Agency.

TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS:

A Documentation: Title to the Documentation shall pass to Agency when
prepared; however, a copy may be retained by Contractor for its records and
internal use. Contractor shall retain such Documentation in a controlled
access file, and shall not reveal, display or disclose the contents of the
Documentation to others without the prior written authorization of Agency or
for the performance of Work related to the Scope of Work described herein.

4600002066 HD Page 9 of 12
3/16/2016



15.

. Material: Title to all Material, field or research equipment, and laboratory

models, procured or fabricated under the Contract shall pass to Agency when
procured or fabricated, and such title shall be free and clear of any and all
encumbrances. Contractor shall have risk of loss of any Material or Agency-
owned equipment of which it has custody.

C. Disposition: Contractor shall dispose of items to which Agency has title as

directed in writing by the Project Manager and/or a designated Agency
representative.

PROPRIETARY RIGHTS:

A. Rights and Ownership: Agency's rights to inventions, discoveries, trade

secrets, patents, copyrights, and other intellectual property, including the
Information and Documentation, and revisions thereto (hereinafter collectively
referred to as "Proprietary Righis"), used or developed by Contractor in the
performance of the Work, shall be governed by the following provisions:

1. Proprietary Rights conceived, developed, or reduced to practice by
Contractor in the performance of the Work shall be the property of
Agency, and Contractor shall cooperate with all appropriate requests to
assign and transfer same to Agency

2. If Proprietary Rights conceived, developed, or reduced to practice by
Contractor prior to the performance of the Work are used in and become
integral with the Work or Documentation, or are necessary for Agency to
have complete enjoyment of the Work or Documentation, Contractor
shall grant to Agency a non-exclusive, irrevocable, royalty-free license,
as may be required by Agency for the complete enjoyment of the Work
and Documentation, including the right to reproduce, correct, repair,
replace, maintain, translate, publish, use, modify, copy or dispose of any
or all of the Work and Documentation and grant sublicenses to others
with respect to the Work and Documentation.

3. If the Work or Documentation includes the Proprietary Rights of others,
Contractor shall procure, at no additional cost to Agency, all necessary
licenses regarding such Proprietary Rights so as to allow Agency the
complete enjoyment of the Work and Documentation, including the right
to reproduce, correct, repair, replace, maintain, translate, publish, use,
modify, copy or dispose of any or all of the Work and Documentation and
grant sublicenses to others with respect to the Work and Documentation.
All such licenses shall be in writing and shall be irrevocable and royalty-
free to Agency.

B. No Additional Compensation. Nothing set forth in this Contract shall be deemed

to require payment by Agency to Contractor of any compensation specifically for
the assignments and assurances required hereby, other than the payment of
expenses as may be actually incurred by Contractor in complying with this
Contract.

4600002066 HD Page 10 of 12

3/16/2016



16. LIENS:. Contractor represents that the Work and Documentation shall be free of

any claim of trade secret, trade mark, trade name, copyright, or patent infringement
or other violations of any Proprietary Rights of any person.
Contractor shall pay all sums of money that become due for any labor, services,
materials, or equipment furnished to Contractor on account of said services to be
rendered or said materials to be furnished under this contract and that may be
secured by any lien against the Agency. Contractor shall fully discharge each such
lien at the time performance of the obligation secured matures and becomes due.

17 NOTICES: Any notice may be served upon either party by delivering it in person,
or by depositing it in a United States Mail deposit box with the postage thereon fully
prepaid, and addressed to the party at the address set forth below:

Agency: Warren T. Green, Manager of Contracts and
Facilities Services
inland Empire Utilities Agency
P.O. Box 9020
Chino Hills, California 91709

Contractor: Adam Schuman, Operations Manager
U.S. National Corp.
14416 Chase Street #4929
Panorama City, California 91412

Any notice given hereunder shall be deemed effective in the case of personal
delivery, upon receipt thereof, or, in the case of mailing, at the moment of deposit in
the course of transmigsion with the United States Postal Service.

18. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: All of the terms, conditions and provisions of this
Contract shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Agency, the
Contractor, and their respective successors and assigns. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, no assignment of the duties or benefits of the Contractor under this
Contract may be assigned, transferred or otherwise disposed of without the prior
written consent of the Agency; and any such purported or attempted assignment,
transfer or disposal without the prior written consent of the Agency shall be null,
void and of no legal effect whatsoever.

19. PUBLIC RECORDS POLICY: Information made available to the Agency may be
subject to the California Public Records Act (Government Code Section 6230 et
seq.) The Agency’s use and disclosure of its records are govemed by this Act.
The Agency shall use its best efforts to notify Contractor of any requests for
disclosure of any documents pertaining to this work.

In the event of litigation concerning disclosure of information Contractor considers
exempt from disclosure; (e.g., Trade Secret, Confidential, or Proprietary) Agency
shall act as a stakeholder only, holding the information until otherwise ordered by a
court or other legal process. If Agency is required to defend an action arising out of
a Public Records Act request for any of the information Contractor has marked
“Confidential,” “Proprietary,” or “Trade Secret, “ Contractor shall defend and

4600002066 HD Page 11 of 12
3/16/2016



indemnify Agency from all liability, damages, costs, and expenses, in any action or
proceeding arising under the Public Records Act.

20. RIGHT TO AUDIT: The Agency reserves the right to review and/or audit all
Contractor's records related to the Work. The option to review and/or audit may be
exercised during the term of the Contract, upon termination, upon completion of the
Contract, or at any time thereafter up to twelve (12) months after final payment has
been made to Contractor. The Contractor shall make all records and related
documentation available within three (3) working days after said records are
requested by the Agency.

21. INTEGRATION: The Contract Documents represent the entire Contract of the
Agency and the Contractor as to those matters contained herein. No prior oral or
written understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect to those matters
covered by the Contract Documents. This Contract may not be modified, altered or
amended except by written mutual agreement by the Agency and the Contractor.

22. GOVERNING LAW: This Contract is to be governed by and constructed in
accordance with the laws of the State of California, County of San Bernardino.

23.  TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE: The Agency reserves and has the right to
immediately suspend, cancel or terminate this Contract at any time upon written
notice to the Contractor. In the event of such termination, the Agency shall pay
Contractor for all authorized and Contractor-invoiced services up to the date of
such termination

24. FORCE MAJEURE: Neither party shall hold the other responsible for the effects of
acts occurring beyond their control; e.g., war, riots, strikes, natural disasters,
etcetera.

25. NOTICE TO PROCEED: No services shall be performed or furnished under this
Contract unless and until this document has been properly signed by all responsible
parties and a Notice to Proceed order has been issued to the Contractor.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused the Contract to be entered as of
the day and year written above.

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: MOORE FENCE COMPANY, INC.:
(A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT)

P. Joseph Grindstaff (Date) Carl L. Ross (Date)
General Manager Project Manager
4600002066 HD Page 12 of 12

3M6f2016



REVISED 3/15/16

ACTION
ITEM

3A



m REVISED 3/15/16

H "\ inland Empire Utilities Agency

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: March 16, 2016

To: The Honorable Board of Directors

Through: Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee (03/09/16)
Finance, Legal & Adm) 'stra’;ion Committee (03/09/16)

From: P. Joseph Grindstg d

General Manager ¥
Submitted by: Chris Berch%
Executive Manager of Engineering/Assistant General Manager
Sylvie Lee
Manager of Planning and Environmental Resources
Subject: Recycled Water Policy Principles
RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors:
1. Adopt the Recycled Water Policy Principles; and

2. Initiate development of a Regional Contract amendment based on the Recycled Water
Policy Principles.

BACKGROUND

The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) and its contracting agencies have developed a
successful regional Recycled Water Program for both direct use and groundwater recharge. In
2000, the region identified that recycled water use was a critical component in drought-proofing
and maintaining its economic growth. With imported water rates increasing and long-term
imported supply reliability in decline, the region committed to aggressively and proactively
develop local water supplies to offsct these impacts. This set the path for the development of a
regional recycled water distribution system.

While the foundational commitment to beneficial reuse of recycled water has remained
unchanged, some fundamental concepts have been questioned over the past few years,
particularly since 2011. This has resulted in the region working together to develop Recycled
Water Policy Principles to address the changes since the inception of the program. The region’s
goal to maximize the beneficial use of recycled water has not changed. However, the



Recycled Water Policy Principles
March 16, 2016
Page 2 of 4

commitment to connect additional recycled water users has stagnated over the past few years. At
this time, several contracting agencies are struggling with the inherent conflict between use in
excess of “base entitlement” (as defined by the Regional Sewage Service Contract) and the
prioritization of direct use over groundwater recharge. The struggle has led some contracting
agencies to be concerned about their local benefit and perceived inequities.

In order to move forward together as a region, it is appropriate to reevaluate and affirm the
regional Recycled Water (RW) Policy Principles prior to implementing any remaining
significant system improvements to the Recycled Water Program and to clarify how these
principles will govern the future benefits received by all IEUA contracting agencies.

IEUA has been meeting with the contracting agencies for the last few years to develop
modifications to the foundational principles. Subsequent to the Regional Technical Commiitee
Meetings and Special Technical Committee Workshops held between July 2015 and January
2016, the agencies collectively provided input and guidance to finalize recommendations on the
RW Policy Principles.

The proposed RW Policy Principles resulting from these discussions are summarized below and.
provided in the attachment in detail.

Recycled Water Policy Principles

1. IEUA will continue the development of the Regional Recycled Water
infrastructure by providing equitable access for the contracting agencies to achieve
reuse of 50,000 AF/year by 2025.

2. IEUA will pursue the long term acquisition of recycled water from out of service
area sources to supplement the regional supply.

3. TEUA will pursue the long term transfer of recycled water from IEUA service area
in exchange for supplemental water supply.

4. The parties acknowledge that IEUA is currently meeting the SAR Judgment
obligation with recycled water.

1. Ensure efficient use of recycled water at the point of use, consistent with rules and
expectations of responsible potable water use and laws governing the use of
recycled water.

G:\Board-Rec\2016116059 Recycled Water Policy Principles Board Letter 3-16-16.docx



Recycled Water Policy Principles
March 16, 2016
Page 3 of 4

3. The regional recycled water entitlement will be based on the following:

4.

1. Contracting agency entitlement based on wastewater contribution, future external
supplies and any acquisition of another contracting agency’s unused entitlement.

i. This entitlement may be used for Santa Ana River discharge obligations,
direct use or regional recharge.

2. Contracting agency use above entitlement, as described in 3.1, will require
replacement water (i.e., Stored water, surcharge, etc., acquisition of another
contracting agency’s unused entitlement, etc.), collected by IEUA, and passed on
to contracting agencies with surplus entitlement.

i. This entitlement may be used for Santa Ana River discharge obligations,
direct use or regional recharge.

ii. If a contracting agency’s current direct use exceeds entitlement, current
direct use corresponding to existing customers will be temporarily
substituted for entitlement until June 30, 2023, as defined in section 3.1.
In addition, groundwater recharge allocations will be curtailed and
redistributed to the other agencies under entitlement during the temporary
period. Any new connections that require additional supplies above an
agency’s entitlement and the current grandfathered amount will require
replacement water.

The regional recycled water system will be operated based on the following
priorities for recycled water deliveries:

1. Minimal operational discharges (instrumentation, environmental obligations, etc.)
2. Contracting agency deliveries
3. Regional groundwater recharge

Meet peak recycled water direct demands through coordinated demand
management of recycled water deliveries,
1. Large users will have pressure sustaining valves to ensure that overall regional
demands are reliably met.

Maintain a financially viable recycled water program with rates that incentivize use
of ali available recycled water and that provides funding to achieve full cost-of-
service for the recycled water program.

1. Set recycled water rates that cover the full cost of Operations & Maintenance
(O&M) and Rehabilitation & Replacement (R&R) for the system.

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16059 Recycled Water Policy Principles Board Letter 3-16-16.docx



Recycled Water Policy Principles
March 16, 2016
Page 4 of 4

7. \liill".ilui.-'l. I'etey I'i!'l_!. [| | \

coniraciing agencies with recycled water use within the region.

I. Retail contracting agencies shall substantially fulfill prior recycled water
connection commitments for all existing infrastructure.

2. Firm contracting agency commitments for recycled water use will drive new
regional investments.

The item was unanimously approved by the Regional Technical Committee on February 25,
2016, and will be presented to the Regional Policy Committee on March 3, 2016, for their
consideration and recommendation to the IEUA Board.

Once direction from the ITEUA Board on the RW Policy Principles is received, staff will work
towards amending the sections of the Regional Contract consistent with the adopted RW Policy
Principles. In addition to the RW Policy Principles, changes that were approved in the past, such
as the agreement between Jurupa Community Services District and IEUA on the recycled water
groundwater recharge allocation from Management Zone 3, will also be memorialized in the
contract amendment language for clarity. It is anticipated that a Notice of Resolution for
Contract Amendment will be presented to the IEUA Board in April 2016 for consideration, with
a final action to be taken by June 2016.

The development of the Recycled Water Policy Principles is consistent with the Agency’s
Business Goal of increasing Water Reliability by meeting the region’s need to develop reliable,
drought-proof and diverse local water resources in order to reduce dependence on imported

water supplies.
PRIOR BOARD ACTION

None.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

There is no direct impact on the budget as a result of the adoption of the Recycled Water Policy
Principles.

Attachments: RW Policy Principles

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16059 Recycled Water Policy Principles Board Letter 3-16-16.docx



h Y
‘Ik Inland Empire Utilities Agency

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT REVISED 3/15/16

RECYCLED WATER POLICY PRINCIPLES

Introduction

The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) and its contracting agencies have developed a successful regicnal
Recycled Water Program for both direct use and groundwater recharge. As the Program continues to advance,
it is important to summarize and update the history, operating philosophies, and policy principles on which the
Program was founded.

In 2000, the region identified that recycled water use was a critical component in drought-proofing and
maintaining its economic growth. With imported water rates increasing and long-term imported supply
reliability in decline, the region committed to aggressively and proactively develop local water supplies to offset
these impacts. This set the path for the development of a regicnal recycled water distribution system and a
Recycled Water Implementation Plan.

The use of recycled water presented several advantages to the region: it is one of the most significant and
underutilized sources of local water supply; it is reliable during drought and climate change conditions; and it
requires significantly less energy than imported water to deliver to customers thus reduces greenhouse gas
emissions. The development of recycled water is the cornerstone of a larger regional initiative to improve water
supply reliability through enhanced local supplies. IEUA, in partnership with its contracting agencies and Chino
Basin Watermaster {CBWM), invested over $600 million over the last fifteen years in water recycling,
conservation, recharge improvements, the MWD groundwater storage and recovery project, the Chino Desalter,
and other water management programs. These programs collectively reduce the region’s need for imported
water especially during drought or conditions when imported water supplies are not available. in addition to
the region switching large potable water users to recycled water, IEUA and CBWM obtained a landmark permit
in 2005 for groundwater recharge using IEUA’s high-quality recycled water.

By 2007, Southern California was experiencing one of its driest years with the potential for entering an extended
drought period. The State of California subsequently made water recycling an important element of California’s
water supply policy and adopted a statewide goal of achieving 1,000,000 acre-feet (AF} of reuse by 2010. In
response, in November 2007 IEUA and its contracting agencies unanimously adopted and committed to
implement the Three Year Recycled Water Business Plan which laid out a focused and cost-effective approach to
rapidly expand the availability and use of recycled water within IEUA’s service area.

By 2014, over $250 million had been invested into the implementation of a robust Recycled Water Program.
The region has achieved Program success by leveraging heavily on grant funding and ioans. With unanimous
regional support, annual recycled water use grew from approximately 5,000 AF in FY 04/05 to over 38,500 AF in
FY 13/14. Critical to the economical and efficient operation of the system, each centracting agency made
commitments to complete initiatives with the goal to increase direct reuse within their service areas. While
some contracting agencies accomplished or far exceeded their local goals, some contracting agencies have not
been abie to fully achieve their original commitments.

February 25, 2016 Pagelof3



S

Inland Empire Utilities Agency

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT REVIS ED 3/15/16

The region’s goal to maximize the beneficial use of recycled water has not changed. However, the commitment
to connect additional recycled water users has stagnated over the past few years. At this time, several
contracting agencies are struggling with the inherent confict between use in excess of "base entittement” (as
defined by the Regional Sewage Service Contract] and the prioritization of direct use over groundwater

recharge. The struggle has led some contracting agencies to be concerned about their local benefit and
perceived inequities.

In order to move forward together as a region, it is appropriate that we reevaluate and affirm the regional
Recycled Water Policy Principles, in order to guide the updates to the Regional Sewer Service Contract, prior to
implementing any remaining significant system improvements to the Recycled Water Program and to clarify how
these principles will govern the future benefits received by all IEUA contracting agencies.

These principles are not binding. These principles are intended to be o framework for the development of
regional contract amendment.

Recycled Water Policy Principles

1. Maximize the beneficial use of recycled water to enhance local water resource availability and reduce
reliance on imporied water.

1. IEUA will continue the development of the Regional Recycled Water infrastructure by providing
equitable access for the contracting agencies to achieve reuse of 50,000 AF/year by 2025.

2. IEUA will pursue the long term acquisition of recycled water from out of service area sources to
supplement the regional supply.

3. |EUA will pursue the long term transfer of recycled water from IEUA service area in exchange for
supplemental water supply.

4. The parties acknowledge that IEUA is currently meeting the SAR Judgment obligation with
recycled water.

2. Promote efficient application and use of recycled water as a reliable and fundamental component of
drought-proofing the IEUA service area.

1. Ensure efficient use of recycled water at the point of use, consistent with rules and expectations
of responsible potable water use and laws governing the use of recycled water.

3. The regional recycled water entitlement will be based on the following:

1. Contracting agency entitlement based on wastewater contribution, future external supplies and
any acquisition of another contracting agency’s unused entitiement.

i. This entitlement may be used for Santa Ana River discharge obligations, direct use or
regional recharge.

February 25, 2016 Page2cof3



\

& Inlgnd Empire Utilities Agency

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT REVISED 3/15/16

4.

2. Contracting agency use above entitlement, as described in 3.1, will require replacement water
(ie, Stored water, surcharge, etc, acquisition of another contracting agency’s unused
entitlement, etc.), collected by IEUA, and passed on to contracting agencies with surplus
entitlement.

i. This entitlement may be used for Santa Ana River discharge obligations, direct use or
regional recharge.

ii. If a contracting agency’s current direct use exceeds entitlement, current direct use
corresponding to existing customers will be temporarily substituted for entitlement until
June 30, 2023, as defined in section 3.1. In addition, groundwater recharge allocations
will be curtailed and redistributed to the other agencies under entitlement during the
temporary period. Any new connections that require additional supplies above an
agency’s entitlement and the current grandfathered amount will require replacement
water.

The regional recycled water system will be operated based on the following priorities for recycled
water deliveries:

1. Minimal operational discharges (instrumentation, environmental obligations, etc.)

2. Contracting agency deliveries

3. Regional groundwater recharge

Meet peak recycled water direct demands through coordinated demand management of recycled
water deliveries.

1. Large users will have pressure sustaining valves to ensure that overall regional demands are
reliably met.

Maintain a financially viable recycled water program with rates that incentivize use of all available
recycled water and that provides funding to achieve full cost-of-service for the recycled water
program.

1. Set recycled water rates that cover the full cost of Operations & Maintenance (O&M) and
Rehabilitation & Replacement {R&R) for the system.

Maximize the use of recycled water capital investments made by IEUA and its contracting agencies
with recycled water use within the region.

1. Retail contracting agencies shall substantially fulfill prior recycled water connection
commitments for all existing infrastructure.

2. Firm contracting agency commitments for recycled water use will drive new regional
investments.

February 25, 2016 Page 3of 3



QL0 Y21BwW
Buioswy siopeaig jo pirog vN3I 12RASIA F3LIVM TVAIDINNW V

Aouaby saginf a41dwi3 pupjuj ’d

SR -
—

so|didulld Ad1j0d J231BAN PRJDAdoY




910C Y>1PW
LINBASIC) UARVAL TYDIDINGTAN ¥

Buyssyy siofpaliq jo pirog yN3l i0¢ TouBbYy sapfa dusg puojuy /.d

9L0T ‘€ UDJBIA :UOIIDE — 22IUWWOD Ad1|0d |eUOISDY «

910z ue[ :paroidde Ajsnowiueun 93110 [BIIUYDD) |BUOISDY =
GLOT AON/I0 :S921WIWO) [euol3ay 01 pajuasald SeMm WY =
GLOT N[ :poUINSDI SUOISSNISIA =

bLOT D9 12930 AD1|0d 34} 03 pIuUdsdId Sem WD)| =

ZL0T :S21DUSBE JOqUIDW YIIM SUOISSNDSIP uesaq VN3l =

sa|dpuLd £3110d MY




0 P O N —.._ 2d UE ADIRISIA HZAVAAL TVAIDIENNW ¥V

o€ : :
Buyssyy siojosai( jo pivog vl . KSUSDY spij) Siidus3 puou) ;d

SIURWISIAUI [euded ayl azjwixew L
9DIAJDS JO 3SOD [[N} ALY 9
Juswiadeue |y puewisg MY °S

uonesodo wialsAs MY ‘P

syydu uonedloje My ‘€

MY JO SN JUBPDIYD 2J0WO0ld T
9SN MY |eDIJaUSq SZILIXBW  °L

sa|dipuld A3110d MY




Q10T Y24PW 9407 LOTULEIGE WALYAL TYAIANIIA ¥
Buysow siopali] Jo pavog yNIi Kouaby safy sAidws puojuy /.d

‘€z07 ‘0€ aun( [IUN pajilexnd
5q [IIM SUCIIEDO[[B HAD PUB JUSWIS[IIUS J0) paInIiasqns Ajuelodus)
2q [JIM 95N 103D JUSLIND ‘JUSID[HIUD SPIBIXD SN II3UIP JUDIND §| —
*191BM
juawasejdau aunbau pm Juswsaue aaoqe asn Ao>uade Sudenuod) -
-58.1eydad jeuoiSa4 1o/ pue asn 3P ‘suoneSl|qo 334eydsip JSAIY
euy ejues s AouaSe Suildesiuod Yyoes o) pasn aq [|IM JUSWSHIUS SIYL —
‘UsWIBIRUS pasnun s,A>uase
Sunpesuod syjoue Jo uonisinboe Aue pue sajjddns jeutaixe aining
‘UoIINQLIIUOD 121BMBISEM UO Paseq juswapiua Aousse Supoesjuody —

:3UIMO]|0}
9[33Ud J21eM pa[>£d3. |euoiSai YL =

so|dipulad Ad1j0d MY



Q@ LOC Yoiow LIIR1SIA BAIVA TVIEHNAW ¥

Bulesw s1opadi( jo pavog yndl 9408 Aouaby sagifian ayduig puojuy /‘y

MY 10} JUSWIpUSLWY JDBIIUO) [euoj3ay jo uondopy
pieog vN3l :910T d3UN( =

[eAO.1ddy JO} UOIEPUILILLIOIDY JDBIUOD [EUOISY .
293Wwo) Adijod/|ediuyddl 9102 Aey - jLdyY =

MY 10} 10BIIUOD [BUOIZDY JO JUSWPUDWY 40} UOINOSAY
pieog yn3i 910 [dy «

sa|dpulid £31j0d MY paAodddy :way| uopdy -
9913WIWIO) [edIuyd] [euoi3aY 9102 A1eniqa «

sdo1S IxoN




910¢ Y24PW
Buyssy siopali(] o pavog va|

sajdiuLld £21104 A\d 243 U0 paseq
JUSWIPUSLLE JDB1IUOD) |BUOISDY B Jo juatidojpAa@ 23eiiu|

sa|dipuild £2110d 121BAA PRRAday ayl aA0iddy 'L
sa|diputld £31|0d 193BAA PRJ24AdSY

UOI}EPUSLILLOIDY




ACTION
ITEM

3B



k B inland Empire Utilities Agency
e A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: March 16, 2016
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
From: . Joseph Grindstaff

General Manager

Submitted by: J Christina Valencia
C) Chief Financial Officer/Assistant General Manager

Sharmeen Bhojani
Manager of Human Resources

Subject: Adopt Resolution No. 2016-3-6, for the General Unit

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1. Approve and adopt the recently completed classification and compensation study for all
General Unit employees;

2. Approve the modification of various position titles for all General Unit employees, as a
result of the adoption of the classification and compensation study; and

3. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-3-6 to amend the 2013 through 2018 Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) for the General Unit with a new salary matrix and classification
plan based on the results of a classification and compensation study.

BACKGROUND

In November 2013, the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (the Agency) retained the services of an
independent consultant Reward Strategy Group (RSG) to conduct an Agency-wide classification and
compensation study (the Study). The last time a comprehensive study was conducted was in 1998.
Since then, the Agency has made some modifications to classifications and salary schedules/matrixes;
however, a comprehensive review and update of the classification plan has not been completed.

The Agency’s objective in retaining RSG to conduct the Study included the following: 1) ensure
class specifications appropriately define core job responsibilities, level of complexity, accountability,
performance expectations and essential qualifications, 2) provide salaries commensurate with
assigned duties, 3) outline promotional opportunities, 4) provide reasonable and justifiable pay



Adoption of Resolution No. 2016-3-6, Amending the MOU, Salary Matrix and Classification Plan
for All General Unit Employees

March 16, 2016

Page 2

differential between classes to ensure internal equity 5) maintain currency with relevant labor markets,
and 6) consolidation of seven salary matrixes into a single matrix for all Agency employees.

The Study provided a recommendation for a revised classification structure including new class
specifications, job tifles, and salaries along with revised Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA)
designations (i.e. exempt vs. non-exempt status). This report only addresses the proposed changes
for the General Unit. The Board of Directors (the Board) previously adopted the changes for all
Unrepresented and Executive Management employecs at its Board meeting on Januvary 21, 2015, for
all Laboratory Unit employees at its Board meeting on February 18, 2015 and for all Operators’
Association and Professional Unit employees at its Board meeting on July 15, 2015.

As part of the analysis, RSG reviewed all existing class specifications and all position description
questionnaires completed by each individual employee, along with their supervisor’s supplemental
questionnaire. In some cases, RSG also interviewed the employee and supervisor individually to
obtain clarification on duties performed. A total of 147 employees were interviewed. RSG utilized
this information to submit draft class specifications for all positions along with recommended
allocations of current positions into the new classifications. The draft class specifications were then
distributed to all employees and their respective managers. All employees were given an opportunity
to provide their feedback on the proposed class specifications and submit a request for reconsideration
if they felt that they were improperly classified. A total of 120 reconsideration requests were
submitted. The feedback was then reviewed by RSG, the Executive Managers, and Human Resources
in order to determine if any changes were warranted. The new class specifications for all General
Unit employees will be posted on the Agency’s intranet website upon the Board’s adoption of
Resolution No. 2016-3-6.

Once the class specifications were finalized, RSG conducted a survey using 19 comparable agencies
(including cities and municipal water agencies) and 54 benchmark positions; 13 positions from the
General Unit employee group were benchmarked. RSG then made recommendations for salaries
based on the following criteria: benchmark data comparison (labor market survey), complexity of the
job, internal/external value of the job (i.e. recruitment and retention value), internal equity,
educational and certification requirements. A key objective of the Study was to consolidate the
various salary matrixes for the represented and unrepresented groups. The new consolidated salary
schedule/matrix for all Unrepresented, Executive Management, Laboratory Unit, Operators’
Association, Professional Unit, and General Unit employees, is included as “Exhibit 1” of Resolution
No. 2016-3-6. Exhibit 1 of Resolution No. 2016-3-6 also includes a listing of the hourly, bi-weekly,
monthly and annual amounts by step (1-9) for each of the proposed salary ranges.

The salary analysis portion of the Study resulted in recommended increases for all positions. To the
extent any classifications within the General Unit were below the average for comparable agencies
pursuant to the Study, a recommendation is being made to provide to employees in such
classifications a one-time pay increase sufficient to place the employee at the salary step closest to,
and not to exceed, 5.0% of the employee’s current base salary. This is consistent with the
methodology negotiated with the General Unit, and what was implemented for the Unrepresented
employees, Executive Management, Laboratory Unit, Operators’ Association, and the Professional



Adoption of Resolution No. 2016-3-6, Amending the MOU, Salary Matrix and Classification Plan
for All General Unit Employees

March 16, 2016

Page 3

Unit. Per the Study and the negotiations process with the General Unit, no positions in the General
Unit were identified as being above the average.

Since the Study encompassed a review of total compensation (wages and benefits), RSG also
collected market survey data on employee benefits from the 19 comparable agencies to ensure that
the Agency’s benefit package is comparable. RSG’s survey found the Agency’s benefit plan to be
competitive in the labor market; therefore, no recommendation was made to enhance the Agency’s
benefit plan.

The following is a list of other relevant terms that were negotiated as part of the Study’s
implementation:

» Reclassify the Electrical and Instrumentation Technician III currently assigned to the
Unrepresented Unit as a Maintenance Specialist to remain in the Unrepresented Unit.

» Current incumbents in the Plant Maintenance Technician II position who are being
reclassified to Mechanic I shall be placed at salary range 173. If at the end of 2 years, the
incumbent is not successful in progressing to the next level, the incumbent will be placed at
salary range 172 for Mechanic I.

» Training proficiency requirements for advancement in the combined Electrical and
Instrumentation series and the combined Mechanic series.

If approved, all the proposed changes as outlined in this report shall be effective retroactively to
November 1, 2014.

The approval of the results of the class and comp study is consistent with the Agency’s Workplace
Environment business goal to be committed to providing a positive workplace environment by
recruiting, retaining and developing a highly skilled team dedicated to the Agency’s Mission, Vision,
and Values.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

On July 15, 2015, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2015-7-1 amending the MOU,

Salary Matrix, and Classification Plan for all Operators’ Association and Professional Unit
employees.

On February 18, 2015, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2015-2-3 amending the MOU,
Salary Matrix, and Classification Plan for all Laboratory Unit employees.

On January 21, 2015, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2015-1-4 amending the
Personnel Manual, Salary Matrix, and Classification Plan for all Unrepresented employees, including
Executive Management.

IMPACT ON BUDGET




Adoption of Resolution No. 2016-3-6, Amending the MOU, Salary Matrix and Classification Plan
for All General Unit Employees

March 16, 2016

Page 4

The one-time salary adjustment retroactive to November 1, 2014 for the General Unit employees is
estimated to be approximately $700,000. Funding for the class and comp study is appropriated under
the Administrative Services (GG) fund.

Attachments:
Attachment 1 — General Unit Class and Comp Summary
Resolution No. 2016-3-6



%S
9ES
%T'9T
%1'9T
%39'0T
HED
o
$%08E
%08
%S0T
HED
%907
%90r
%90t
%50T
%E'S
%L TR
%901
%00
%00
%00
%00
%00
%00
%9°0T
%901
%E0Q
%9'0T
'S
9%E'S
HE'S
%E0
%197
%907
%2'0T
%P0
%E0
%E0
%0'TT
%3'0T
%ES
WE'G
%19T
%1°9T
%E0
HED
%S

66965
16576
B3T'38
681'88
ZTTL6
zZT'L6
£30°20T
[a4i]
£€80°70T
£18'59
L1859
066'6L
£0T'69
£18'59
£18'59
£80'Z0T
669'65
£8L'9Y
ors 18
DEEE
OIT'6E
D96'EL
099°LL
09645
6192
6L1'9f
TET'LE
6L19L
669'65
691’88
066'6L
0BE'6L
ESEEL
881'88
62188
£B0°20T
L6526
L6526
98979
95E'9S
£0T69
£0T°69
€55'CL
€0T'69
669'65
B69°65
958°95

Boudegq  des dey,

o
afusany

ELT
ELT

TLT
99T
8Ll
18T
8T
9LT
LLT
T
T
9LT
T8T
LT
TLT
6LT
LLT
LLT
SLT
6Ll
6L1

08T
081
[£3]
0LY
LT
i1
L1
LT
141
T4
QLT

apRig
fay posodosg posodord

Say

£59°95
0812
SE6'SL
GEG'SL
0628
¥16'96
00£°T0T
SE6'SL
TEL'6L
Ler'6s
865'99
ozeTL
TV
L6b'65
Lev'es
Y16'96
S8T'el
SETTY

889
vL8'89
Y1696
v28'89
ce9'as
81'c8
SEE'SL
zeL'sl
wuy'ee
CEL'6L
ZEL'BL
00101
66Z°26
662°C5
B6E'TS
66E'TS
865'59
86559
£ a4
L6V'6S
16¥'65
£6V'65
996'E5
dags
doj
uny
3y

ne
ne
ne
no
ne
ne
no
ne
ne
ne
no
ns
no
no
no
ne
ne
ne
ne
ne
no
no
no
no
no
ne
ne
no
ns
ne
ne
n®
no
no
no
no
no
no
n9
ns
ns
na
no
no
n9
ng
no
Hun
Surwesieg

ON
oN
oN
OoN
ON
OoN
OoN
oN
Jospuadng
oN
oN
ON
opN
oN
oN
oN
oN
oN
©oN
oN

oN
oN
oN
oN

ON
OoN
oN
ON
ON
oN
aN
oN
ON
o
ON
ON
OoN
ON
oN
oN
oN
oN
ON
|euojssajold
oN
oN
on
yup) Sumedieg

w gSusyy

YN
YN
YN
¥N
YN
N
YN
YN
1duraxa
VN
YN
VYN
N
¥N
VN
Vi
¥N
¥N
¥N
YN
YN
YN
¥N
VN
YN
¥N
YN
YN
YN
VN
YN
YN
YN
¥N
VN
YN
YN
¥N
¥N
N
N
YN
YN
YN
¥N
N
VN

5a),
©N
sa)
oN
s9p
sap
oN
oN
ON
sap
sa)
saA
s34
53
oN
oN
sap
sap
oN
oN
oN
oN
oN
oN
58\
oN
saA
EET
sa),
53,
ON
N
53A
sap
oN
L7
EET
ON
s9A
ON
S
ON
ON
OoN
535
o
EETY

2222222 Z EXTZTZ2ZZZZZ

= Z ZZEZEE T2 2

SMIDIS ¥S1d  (MONRISUCOT  PR¥RM Au

ur efvioy)

UM [BIAUID

=

Z e »>> = > ZZ -

Z 23y ZZZ = 2>

2 Z > Z > Z >

>

A
A

N/A
payRILIYDUSY

UBP[IPE) SSNOYSIEM
1l 3siEpads ASojouydn),

1l ueydapy

UBpIULPAL A '8 O 150dWo) Jojuas
113 awiug [epIsnpu|
HiyRLIga

uenuysa] N 7§ O 1sodwoy Jomag
Jospuadng waisAs uoaa|e)

1l UBPUYIRL JUNCITY

¥s||epads usnmieuepy sproday
Jadsu| [oNIU0) SN0 1P JUILIEEL-21d
33dsu| [0JIUO0T BMNOS T JUBLLIRIN-3id

| Jjueylain

111 3s1jerads 1sidojouyday,
13UEIS|SSY 2AQRIIS|UIWpPY
JuelsIssY 2030

§1sifepads Adojouya)

Al WEyIapy

AlYyaaLyad

14331191

111 JojesdQ wiaisis uodalod
| Jogesadp wansis uo(pano)

1 NUBLIBA

J3UUE|4 SIUBLIIUIEA
11 Juean

UREHULIRL ISNOYIIeA,
liyxaLigd

1 ueRIUY3Ia) e[ 13SnpU]
uBuYIal JYAH
ueriuipa} Supasuidug

nw=a11e3
11 35AeuY SstwR1sAs [onuo)

13sAjewy swaasAs jonuo)
13uBy3aly
Fayuopp 150duso)

soreiadg 3sodwe)
11 J03esRdp WASAS UONI3|jo]
11 WEIS[SSY IMENSIUILPY

FIUBISISSY SARRNSIVILPY
| uepluLa] JUNOTY
WOREIISSED) MayN

(nv)
(v}
(v}

GBjajuyza], Areyuaan g um._;m._!u?w
T 7 nwRpeds Afojouys

JUBYIRN JOjUAS

uRPYPRL 1Ry JOIUaS
3y, suyug [eLASNpLY JOLL3S

T T yeiigasoss
“10zedQ 1sodwioy Jouas
101esadg waasiks uopa|[0) 10RIRS
uepjpal, JUPUNOY Jojuas
103RU|PIOC) WRURIRUElY SpIoIaY

" |1 039dsU] [o4UCY N0 g JaLIED-BLd
| J630dE U] [CUAUCD 33uN0G ¥ JUBUIRE.I-21d

1| UEDIUNID] INEUILIEN JUB]

" aoyenSuWpY JI0MIAN/Id
JURLSISSY 3MHO

JUEISISEY 20

1351jenads ASOpOULID) JUBIEA ‘MIN
Al S|URIIOLA JUEIRA MBN

" AL 4391 |77 3 WRIRA AN
Y31 9 3 3uBdRA ‘MAN
|11 J03e3dQ wajsks UORIAJO] JUEIRA ‘MaN
1 101e13dQ Wayshs UORIBYO] JUEIEA "MaN

11 DjeLya

JU1EUIPHM0T) JOUUR)] SIUBLISIUIREY
e asitigew

uEpUE3) |04Ue] Alajuaau)

11 429 L JuRwna3st]

uBj3|uy3eL |BHISTIPY]

UERURL JVAH
ueppuyoa] Jupaamduy

il Y2l jealnnagy
JOlENSIUWPY SW1sAS [00UCD

Ha._m.._q wansAg jonuody

Jaaops 1sodwio)
JoyesadQ 1sodwiod
“iojesadg waysis Uoa)ol

Alela1ag dANROSIULUpY
uepyupa) Suunooy
UOREIISSED WMD)

[9n} MaN
wiag
uoIsIg



RESOLUTION NQO. 2016-3-6

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*  SAN
BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING, SALARY
MATRIX/SCHEDULE AND CLASSIFICATION PLAN FOR
ALL GENERAL UNIT EMPLOYEES

WHEREAS, the Agency has classification and compensation changes for the General Unit
employees as a result of an agency-wide classification and compensation study, and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to update the salary and classification information
to comply with the California Code of Regulations (CCR) §570.5, and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Memorandum of Understanding for
the General Unit employees, and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency™ does
hereby RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER as follows:

Section 1: The salary schedule/matrix is hereby adopted and set forth in Exhibit “1” and
Exhibit “2” of this resolution.

Section 2: The salary information contained in Exhibit “1” shall be effective as of
November 1, 2014.

Section 3: The salary information contained in Exhibit “2” shall be effective as of March
15, 2015.



Resolution No. 2016-3-6
Page 2

ADOPTED the 16" day of March, 20186.

ATTEST:

Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire
Utilities Agency* and of the
Board of Directors thereof

President of the Inland Empire
Utilities Agency* and of the
Board of Directors thereof



Resolution No. 2016-3-6
Page 3

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF ) SS
SAN BERNARDINO )

I, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO HEREBY
CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2016-3-6, was adopted at a regular Board

Meeting on March 16, 2016, of said Agency by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Secretary/Treasurer



Salary Matrix
Effective November 1, 2014

CLASSIFICATION TITLE

Accountant !

Accountant [i

Accounting Technician |

Accounting Technician |

Accounting Technician ||

Administrative Assistant |
Administrative Assistant | (confidential)
Administrative Assistant |l (confidential)
Assistant Engineer

Associate Engineer

Biologist1

Board Secretary/Office Manager
Budget Officer

CAD Designer

Chemist

Chief Financial Officer/Assistant General Manager
Collection System Operator |

Collection System Operator Il
Collection System Operator Il|
Collection System Supervisor

Compost Operator

Compost Sales Representative
Compost Worker

Construction Project Inspector

Control Systems Analyst |

Control Systems Analyst |l

Deputy Manager of Construction Management
Deputy Manager of Engineering

Deputy Manager of Human Resources
Deputy Manager of Integrated Systems Services
Deputy Manager of Maintenance
Deputy Manager of Operations

Deputy Manager of Planning & Environmental Resources

Electrical & Instrumentation Technictan |
Electrical & Instrumentation Technician Il
Electrical & Instrumentation Technician Il
Electrical & Instrumentation Technician i1
Electrical & Instrumentation Technician IV
Engineering Technician

Environmental Resources Planner II
Executive Assistant

Executive Manager of Engineering/Assistant General Manager
Executive Manager of Operations/Assistant General Manager

[

Salary Range

173
175
169
170
173
171
171
174
179
182
181
188
186
178
181
196
171
175
177
182
174
181
170
180
180
182
188
189
188
188
188
188
189
176
179
181
182
182
175
182
178
196
196

Unit

UN
UN
UN
GU
GU
GU
UN
UN
UN
UN

LB
UN
UN
UN
LB
EX
GU
GuU
GU
GU
GU
UN
GU
UN
GU
Gy
UN
UN
UN
UN
UN
UN
UN
GU
GU
GU

GU
GU
GU
UN
UN
EX
EX

EXHIBIT 1

FLSA

Exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Exempt

Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Nan-exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt



Salary Matrix EXHIBIT 1
Effective November 1, 2014

CLASSIFICATION TITLE Salary Range Unit FLSA
Executive Manager of Policy Develepment/Assistant General Manager 196, EX Exempt
Externa! Affairs Specialist | 171 UN Exempt
External Affairs Specialist | (Y-Rated)3 202 UN Exempt
Facilities Specialist - Landscape 177 UN Exempt
General Manager 203 EX Exempt
GIS Specialist 178 UN Exempt
Grants Officer 186 UN Exempt
Human Resources Analyst | 177 UN Exempt
Human Resources Analyst || 179 UN Exempt
Human Resources Officer 183 UN Exempt
Human Resources Technician 171 UN Non-exempt
HVAC Technician 177 GuU Non-exempt
Industrial Engine Technician | 177 GU Non-exempt
Industrial Engine Technician [l 181 GuU Non-exempt
Internal Auditor 179 UN Exempt
Laboratory Assistant 172 LB Non-exempt
Laboratory Scientist | 177 LB Non-exempt
Laboratory Scientist Il 179 LB Non-exempt
Maintenance Planner 181 GU Non-exempt
Maintenance Specialist 201 UN Exempt
Manager of Business Information Services 190 UN Exempt
Manager of Contracts & Facility Services 190 UN Exempt
Manager of Engineering 192 UN Exempt
Manager of External Affairs 190 UN Exempt
Manager of Finance & Accounting 190 UN Exempt
Manager of Human Resources 190 UN Exempt
Manager of Internal Audit 190 UN Exempt
Manager of Laboratories 130 UN Exempt
Manager of Maintenance 192 UN Exempt
Manager of Operations 192 UN Exempt
Manager of Planning & Environmental Resources 192 UN Exempt
Manager of Regional Compost Authority 190 UN Exempt
Manager of Technical Services 190 UN Exempt
Mechanic | 172 GU Non-exempt
Mechanic [* 173 GU Non-exempt
Mechanic |l 176 GU Non-exempt
Mechanic Il 179 GU Non-exempt
Mechanic IV 181 GU Non-exempt
Office Assistant 166 UN Non-exempt
Office Assistant 166 GU Non-exempt
Operations Specialist 179 UN Exempt
Pre-treatment & Source Control Inspector ! 174 GU Non-exempt
Pre-treatment & Source Control Inspector i 177 GU Non-exempt



CLASSIFICATION TITLE

Records Specialist

Salary Matrix
Effective November 1, 2014

Recycled/Groundwater Recharge Operations & Maintenance Specialist

Risk Specialist
Safety Officer

Senior Associate Engineer

Senior Associate Engineer - PE

Senior Compost O & M Technician
Senior Engineer

Senior Environmental Resources Planner
Senior External Affairs Speclalist

Senior Internal Auditor

Senior Operations Specialist

Senior Pre-treatment & Source Control Inspector

Technology Specialist |
Technology Specialist 11
Technology Specialist 11l
Warehouse Technician

Notes:

1. Incumbent Biologist in this position prior to 7/1/01 shall be non-exempt.
2. Salary range for incumbent Senior Electrical & instrumentation Tech employee reclassified to Electricai & Instrumentation Techniclan 11l .
3. The Y-Rated salary for this position is reflective of the incumbent In the position effective 11/1/14 formerly classified as CIP Coordinator.

4, Salary range for Incumbent Plant Malntenance Technician [| employees reclassified to Mechanic 1.

Salary Range

173
179
174
183
184
185
181
187
184
180
182
184
180
178
180
182
171

Unit

GU
UN
UN
UN
UN
UN
GU
UN
UN
UN
UN
UN
GU
GU
Gu
GU
GU

EXHIBIT 1

FLSA

Non-exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt



Range/Step
165

=

W e~ Y U1 = W N

166

W o~ U= W=

167

L oo~ O AW N

168

(TR - M- B - B S

169

W N =

Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, and Laboratory Unit

Hourly

17.0700
17.4967
17.9341
18.3825
18.8420
19.3131
19.7959
20.2308
20.7981

17.9223
18.3703
18.8296
15.3003
19.7828
20.2774
20.7843
21.3039
21.8365

18.8180
19.2884
19.7706
20.2649
20.7715
21.2508
21.8231
22.3687
22.9279

19.7571
20.2510
20.7573
21.2762
21.8081
22,3534
22.9122
23.4850
24.0721

20.7436
21.2622
21.7937
22.3386

Salary Matrix
Effective November 1, 2014

Bi-Weekly

1,365.60
1,399.74
1,434.73
1,470.60
1,507.36
1,545.05
1,583.67
1,623.26
1,663.85

1,433.78
1,469.63
1,506.37
1,544.03
1,582.63
1,622.19
1,662.75
1,704.32
1,746.92

1,505.44
1,543.07
1,581.65
1,621.19
1,661.72
1,703.27
1,745.85
1,789.49
1,834.23

1,580.57
1,620.08
1,660.58
1,702.10
1,744.65
1,788.27
1,832.97
1,878.80
1,925.77

1,659.49
1,700.97
1,743.50
1,787.09

Page 1

Monthly

2,958.79
3,032.76
3,108.58
3,186.29
3,265.95
3,347.60
3,431.29
3,517.07
3,605.00

3,106.53
3,184.19
3,263.79
3,345.39
3,429.02
3,514.75
3,602.62
3,692.68
3,785.00

3,261.78
3,343.33
3,426.91
3,512.58
3,600.40
3,690.41
3,782.67
3,877.24
3,974.17

3,424.57
3,510.18
3,597.93
3,687.88
3,780.08
3,874.58
3,971.45
4,070.73
4,172.50

3,595.55
3,685.44
3,777.58
3,872.02

Annually

35,505
36,393
37,303
38,236
39,181
40,171
41,175
42,205
43,260

37,278
38,210
39,166
40,145
41,148
42,177
43,231
44,312
45,420

39,141
40,120
41,123
42,151
43,205
44,285
45,392
46,527
47,690

41,095
42,122
43,175
44,255
45,361
46,495
47,657
48,849
50,070

43,147
44,225
45,331
46,464

EXHIBIT 1



Range/Step
5
)

w 0o~

170

W N kW=

171

W oo~ U W

172

W o o bW N

173

W oo~ o 1 AWM

Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, and Laboratory Unit

Hourly
22.8970
23.4695
24.0562
24.6576
25.2740

21.7814
22.3259
22.8340
23.4561
24.0425
24.6436
25.2597
25.8912
26.5385

22.8704
23.4422
24.0282
24.6289
25.2447
25.8758
26,5227
27.1857
27.8654

24.0147
24,6151
25.2305
25.8612
26.5078
27.1705
27.8497
28.5460
29.2596

25.2143
25.8446
26.4908
27.1530
27.8318
28.5276
29.2408
29.9719
30.7212

Salary Matrix
Effective November 1, 2014

Bi-Weekly
1,831.76
1,877.56
1,924.50
1,972.61
2,021.92

1,742.51
1,786.07
1,830.72
1,876.49
1,923.40
1,971.49
2,020.78
2,071.29
2,123.08

1,829.63
1,875.37
1,922.26
1,970.32
2,019.57
2,070.06
2,121.81
2,174.86
2,229.23

1,921.18
1,969.21
2,018.44
2,068.50
2,120.62
2,173.64
2,227.98
2,283.68
2,340.77

2,017.14
2,067.57
2,119.26
2,172.24
2,226.55
2,282.21
2,339.27
2,397.75
2,457.69

Page 2

Monthly
3,968.82
4,068.04
4,169.74
4,273.98
4,380.83

3,775.43
3,869.82
3,966.57
4,065.73
4,167.37
4,271.56
4,378.35
4,487.80
4,600.00

3,964.21
4,063.31
4,164.89
4,269.02
4,375.74
4,485.14
4,597.26
4,712.20
4,830.00

4,162.55
4,266.62
4,373.28
4,482.61
4,594.68
4,709.55
4,827.29
4,947.97
5,071.67

4,370.48
4,479.74
4,591.73
4,706.52
4,824.19
4,944.79
5,068.41
5,195.12
5,325.00

Annually
47,626
48,816
50,037
51,288
52,570

45,305
46,438
47,599
48,789
50,008
51,259
52,540
53,854
55,200

47,570
48,760
49,979
51,228
52,509
53,822
55,167
56,546
57,960

49,951
51,199
52,479
53,791
55,136
56,515
57,927
59,376
60,860

52,446
53,757
55,101
56,478
57,890
59,338
60,821
62,341
63,200

EXHIBIT 1



Range/Step
174

[y

W oo N AW

175

W e~ U B W NP

176

W o~ G kWM

177

W oo~ s N

178

B WN

Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, and Laboratory Unit

Hourly

26.4730
27.1348
27.8132
28.5086
29.2213
29.5518
30.7006
31.4681
32.2548

27.7949
28.4808
29.2020
29.9321
30.6804
31.4474
32.2336
33.0394
33.8654

29.1839
29.9135
30,6613
31.4278
32.2135
33.0189
33.8443
34.6904
35.5577

30.64338
31.4099
32,1952
33.co01
33.8251
34.6707
35.5375
36.4259
37.3365

32,1748
32.9792
33.8037
34.6488

Salary Matrix
Effective November 1, 2014

Bi-Weekly

2,117.84
2,170.79
2,225.06
2,280.68
2,337.70
2,396.14
2,456.05
2,517.45
2,580.38

2,223.59
2,279.18
2,336.16
2,394.57
2,454.43
2,515.79
2,578.68
2,643.15
2,709.23

2,334.71
2,393.08
2,452.90
2,514.23
2,577.08
2,641.51
2,707.55
2,775.23
2,844.62

2,451.51
2,512.78
2,575.61
2,640.00
2,706.00
2,773.,66
2,843.00
2,914.07
2,986.92

2,573.99
2,638.34
2,704.30
2,771.90

Page 3

Monthly

4,588.66
4,703.37
4,820.96
4,941.48
5,065.02
5,191.64
5,321.44
5,454.47
5,590.83

4,817.78
4,938.23
5,061.68
5,188.22
5,317.93
5,450.88
5,587.15
5,726.83
5,870.00

5,058.53
5,185.00
5,314.62
5,447.49
5,583.68
5,723.27
5,866.35
6,013.01
6,163.33

5,311.60
5,444.39
5,580.50
5,720.01
5,863.01
6,009.59
6,159.83
6,313.82
6,471.67

5,576.97
5,716.40
5,858.31
6,005.79

Annually

55,064
56,440
57,851
59,298
60,780
62,300
63,857
65,454
67,090

57,813
59,259
60,740
62,259
63,815
65,411
67,046
68,722
70,440

60,702
62,220
63,775
65,370
67,004
68,679
70,396
72,156
73,960

63,739
65,333
66,966
68,640
70,356
72,115
73,918
75,766
77,660

66,924
68,597
70,312
72,069

EXHIBIT 1



Range/Step
5
6

w0 00 ~

179

W~ RWN

180

Woo ~NO W W N R

181

W oo~ & WN =

182

W o SN Oy W=

Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, and Laboratory Unit

Hourly
35.5150
36.4029
37.3130
38.2458
39.2019

33.7848
34.6294
35.4951
36.3825
37.2921
38.2244
39.1800
40.1595
41.1635

35.4736
36.3605
37.2695
38.2012
39.1562
40.1351
41,1385
42.1670
43,2212

37.2453
38.1765
35.1309
40.1091
41.1119
42.1397
43.1932
44,2730
45.3798

39.1078
40.0855
41.0876
42.1148
43.1677
44.2469
45.3530
46.4869
47.6490

Salary Matrix
Effective November 1, 2014

Bi-Weekly
2,841.20
2,912.23
2,985.04
3,059.66
3,136.15

2,702.78
2,770.35
2,839.61
2,910.60
2,983.37
3,057.95
3,134.40
3,212.76
3,293.08

2,837.89
2,908.84
2,981.56
3,056.10
3,132.50
3,210.81
3,291.08
3,373.36
3,457.69

2,979.63
3,054.12
3,130.47
3,208.73
3,288.95
3,371.17
3,455.45
3,541.84
3,630.38

3,128.62
3,206.84
3,287.01
3,369.18
3,453.41
3,539.75
3,628.24
3,718.95
3,811.92

Page 4

Monthly
6,155.93
6,309.83
6,467.58
6,629.27
6,795.00

5,856.03
6,002.43
6,152.49
6,306.30
6,463.96
6,625.56
6,791.20
6,960.98
7,135.00

6,148.76
6,302.48
6,460.04
6,621.54
6,787.08
6,956.76
7,130.68
7,308.94
7,491.67

6,455.86
6,617.25
6,782.68
6,952.25
7,126.06
7,304.21
7,486.81
7,673.98
7,865.83

6,778.68
6,948.15
7,121.85
7,299.90
7,482.40
7,669.46
7,861.19
8,057.72
8,259.17

Annually
73,871
75,718
77,611
79,551
81,540

70,272
72,029
73,830
75,676
77,567
79,507
81,494
83,532
85,620

73,785
75,630
77,520
79,459
81,445
33,481
85,568
87,707
89,900

77,470
79,407
81,392
83,427
85,513
87,650
89,842
92,088
94,390

81,344
83,378
85,462
87,599
89,789
92,033
94,334
96,693
99,110

EXHIBIT 1



Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, and Laboratory Unit EXHIBIT 1
Salary Matrix
Effective November 1, 2014

Range/Step Hourly Bi-Weekly Monthly Annually
183
1 41.0649 3,285.20 7,117.92 85,415
2 42.0916 3,367.33 7,295.87 87,550
3 43.1439 3,451.51 7,478.27 89,739
4 44.2225 3,537.80 7,665.23 91,983
5 45.3280 3,626.24 7,856.86 94,282
6 46.4612 3,716.90 8,053.28 96,639
7 47.6228 3,809.82 8,254.61 99,055
8 43.8133 3,905.07 8,460.98 101,532
9 50.0337 4,002.69 8,672.50 104,070
184
1 43.1168 3,449.35 7,473.58 89,683
2 44,1947 3,535.58 7,660.42 91,925
3 45,2996 3,623.97 7,851.93 94,223
i 46.4321 3,714.57 8,048.23 96,579
5 47.5929 3,807.43 8,249.44 98,993
6 48.7827 3,902.62 8,455.67 101,468
7 50.0023 4,000.18 8,667.06 104,005
8 51.2523 4,100.19 8,823.74 106,605
9 52.5337 4,202.69 9,105.83 109,270
185
1 45.2713 3,621.70 7,847.02 94,164
2 46.4031 3,712.24 8,043.20 96,518
3 47.5631 3,805.05 8,244.28 98,931
4 48.7522 3,900.18 8,450.38 101,405
5 49.9710 3,897.68 8,661.64 103,940
6 51.2203 4,097.62 8,878.18 106,538
7 52.5008 4,200.06 9,100.14 109,202
8 53.8133 4,305.07 9,327.64 111,932
9 55.1587 4,412.69 9,560.83 114,730
186
1 47.5362 3,802.90 8,239.61 98,875
2 48.7246 3,897.97 8,445.60 101,347
3 499427 3,995.42 8,656.74 103,881
4 51.1913 4,085.30 8,873.16 106,478
5 524711 4,197.69 9,094.,99 109,140
[ 53.7829 4,302.63 9,322.36 111,868
7 55.1274 4,410.20 9,555.42 114,665
8 56.5056 4,520,45 9,794.31 117,532
9 57.0183 4,633.46 10,039.17 120,470
187
1 499117 3,992.93 8,651.35 103,816
2 51.1594 4,092.76 8,867.64 106,412
3 52.4384 4,195.07 9,089.33 109,072
4 53.7494 4,299.95 9,316.56 111,799

Page 5



Range/Step
5
6

w o~

188

W oo~ bW N

139

[V - B S I« B U B N & S B

190

W oo~ ;W W N R

191

W oo~y bW N

Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, and Laboratory Unit
Salary Matrix
Effective November 1, 2014

Hourly
55.0931
56.4705
57.8822
59.3293
60.8125

52.4055
53.7156
55.0585
56.4349
57.8458
59.2920
60.7743
62.2936
63.8510

55.0255
56.4012
57.8112
59.2565
60.7379
62.2563
63.8127
65.4081
67.0423

57.7758
59.2202
60.7007
62.2182
63,7737
65.3680
67.0022
68.6773
70.3942

60.6642
62.1808
63.7353
65.3287
66.9619
68.6360
70.3519
72.1107
73.9135

Bi-Weekly
4,407.45
4,517.64
4,630.58
4,746.34
4,865.00

4,192.44
4,297.25
4,404.68
4,514.80
4,627.67
4,743.36
4,861.94
4,983.49
5,108.08

4,402.04
4,512.09
4,624.50
4,740.52
4,859.03
4,980.51
5,105.02
5,232.65
5,363.46

4,622.07
4,737.62
4,856.06
4,977.46
5,101.50
5,229.44
5,360.18
5,484.18
5,631.54

4,853.14
4,974.47
5,098.83
5,226.30
5,356.96
5,490.88
5,628.15
5,768.86
5,813.08

Page 6

Monthly
9,549.47
9,788.21
10,032.92
10,283.74
10,540.83

9,083.61
9,310.70
9,543.47
9,782.06
10,026.61
10,277.27
10,534.21
10,797.56
11,067.50

9,537.76
8,776.20
10,020.61
10,271.12
10,527.90
10,791.10
11,060.88
11,337.40
11,620.83

10,014.48
10,264.84
10,521.46
10,784.50
11,054.11
11,330.46
11,613.72
11,904.07
12,201.67

10,515.13
10,778.01
11,047.46
11,323.65
11,606.74
11,896.91
12,194.33
12,499.19
12,811.67

Annually
114,594
117,459
120,395
123,405
126,450

109,003
111,728
114,522
117,385
120,319
123,327
126,410
129,571
132,810

114,453
117,314
120,247
123,253
126,335
129,493
132,731
136,049
139,450

120,174
123,178
126,258
129,414
132,649
135,966
139,365
142,849
145,420

126,182
129,336
132,570
135,884
139,281
142,763
146,332
149,990
153,740

EXHIBIT 1



Range/Step

192

=

W o NG N

193

W eo s~ v oW N

194

W e~ h WM

195

W oo~ g PN

196

W N

Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, and Laboratory Unit
Salary Matrix
Effective November 1, 2014

Bi-Weekly

Hourly

63.6986
65.2911
66.9234
68.5964
70.3114
72.0691
73.8709
75.7176
77.6106

66.8830
68.5550
70.2689

72.0256

73.8263
75.6719
77.5637
79.5028
81.4904

70.2251
71.9848
73,7844
75.6290
77.5198
79.4578
81.4442
83.4803
85.5673

73.7409
75.5844
77.4741
79.4109
81.3962
83.4311
85.5169
87.6548
89.8462

77.4264
79.3621
81.3461
83.3798

5,095.89
5,223.29
5,353.87
5,487.72
5,624.91
5,765.53
5,909.67
6,057.41
6,208.85

5,350.64
5,484.40
5,621.51
5,762.05
5,906.10
6,053.75
6,205.10
6,360.23
6,519.23

5,618.33
5,758.78
5,902.75
6,050.32
6,201.58
6,356.62
6,515.54
6,678.42
6,845.38

5,899.27
6,046.76
6,197.92
6,352.87
6,511.69
6,674.49
6,841.35
7,012.38
7,187.69

6,194.11
6,348.96
6,507.69
6,670.38

Page 7

Monthly

11,041.09
11,317.12
11,600.05
11,890.05
12,187.30
12,491.98
12,804.28
13,124.39
13,452.50

11,593.05
11,882.87
12,179.94
12,484.44
12,796.55
13,116.47
13,444.38
13,780.49
14,125.00

12,173.04
12,477.37
12,789.30
13,109.03
13,426.76
13,772.68
14,116.99
14,469.92
14,831.67

12,781.76
13,101.30
13,428.84
13,764.56
14,108.67
14,461.39
14,822.92
15,193.50
15,573.33

13,420.57
13,756.09
14,099.99
14,452.49

Annually

132,493
135,805
139,201
142,681
146,248
149,904
153,651
157,493
161,430

139,117
142,594
146,159
149,813
153,559
157,398
161,333
165,366
169,500

146,076
149,728
153,472
157,308
161,241
165,272
169,404
173,639
177,980

153,381
157,216
161,146
165,175
169,304
173,537
177,875
182,322
186,880

161,047
165,073
169,200
173,430

EXHIBIT 1



Range/Step

5
6

W 00~

197

W oSN u b wWNR

198

D oo~ o bt AWM

199

WO~ B WwN R

200

W oo~ U AWM

Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, and Laboratory Unit
Salary Matrix
Effective November 1, 2014

Bi-Weekly

Hourly
85.4642
87.6009
89.7908
92.0356
94.3365

81.2973
83.3297
85.4130
87.5483
89.7370
91.9805
94.2800
96.6370
99.0529

85.3616
87.4956
89.6830
91.9251
94.2232
96.5788
98.9933
101.4681
104.0048

91.7658
94.0599
96.4114
98.8217
101.2823
103.8246
106.4202
109.0807
111.8077

98.6474
101.1136
103.6415
106.2325
108.8883
111.6105
114.4008
117.2608
120.1923

6,837.14
7,008.07
7,183.27
7,362.85
7,546.92

6,503.79
6,666.38
6,833.04
7,003.87
7,178.96
7,358.44
7,542.40
7,730.96
7,924.23

6,828.93
6,999.65
7,174.64
7,354.01
7,537.86
7,726.30
7,819.46
8,117.45
8,320.28

7,341.26
7,524.79
7,712.91
7,905.74
8,103.38
8,305.96
8,513.61
8,726.45
8,944.62

7,891.79
8,089.09
8,291.32
8,498.60
8,711.06
8,928.84
9,152.06
9,380.86
9,615.38

Page 8

Monthly
14,813.80
15,184.15
15,563.75
15,952.85
16,351.67

14,091.53
14,443.82
14,804.92
15,175.04
15,554.42
15,943.28
16,341.86
16,750.41
17,169.17

14,796.01
15,165.91
15,545.06
15,933.68
16,332.03
16,740.33
17,158.83
17,587.80
18,027.50

15,906.07
16,303.72
16,711.31
17,129.10
17,557.32
17,996.26
18,446.16
18,907.32
19,380.00

17,098.89
17,526.36
17,964.52
18,413.63
18,873.97
19,345.82
19,829.47
20,325.20
20,833.33

Annually
177,766
182,210
186,765
191,434
196,220

169,098
173,326
177,659
182,100
186,653
191,319
196,102
201,005
206,030

177,552
181,991
186,541
191,204
195,984
200,884
205,906
211,054
216,330

190,873
195,645
200,536
205,549
210,688
215,955
221,354
226,888
232,560

205,187
210,316
215,574
220,964
226,488
232,150
237,954
243,902
250,000

EXHIBIT 1



Range/Step
201
1
202
1
203

Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, and Laboratory Unit

Hourly
52.245
42.9806

131.2260

Salary Matrix

Effective November 1, 2014
Bi-Weekly Monthly
4,179.60 9,055.80
3,438.45 7,449.97
10,498.08 22,745.83

Page 9

EXHIBIT 1

Annually
108,670
89,400

272,950



Salary Matrix
Effective March 15, 2015

CLASSIFICATION TITLE

Accountant

Accountant [l

Accounting Technician |

Accounting Technician |

Accounting Technician Il

Administrative Assistant |

Administrative Assistant | {confidential)
Administrative Assistant Il

Administrative Assistant Il {confidential)
Assistant Engineer

Associate Engineer

Biologist™

Board Secretary/Office Manager

Budget Officer

Business System Analyst |

Business System Analyst I

CAD Designer

Chemist

Chief Financial Officer/Assistant General Manager
Collection System QOperator |

Collection System Operator |l

Collection System Operator il

Collection System Supervisor

Compost Operator

Compost Sales Representative

Compost Warker

Construction Project Inspector

Contracts Administrator |

Contracts Administrator Il

Control Systems Analyst |

Control Systems Analyst Il

Deputy Manager of Construction Management
Deputy Manager of Engineering

Deputy Manager of Human Resources
Deputy Manager of Integrated Systems Services
Deputy Manager of Maintenance

Deputy Manager of Operations

Deputy Manager of Planning & Environmental Resources
Electrical & Instrumentation Technician |
Electrical & Instrumentation Technician Il
Electrical & Instrumentation Technician Ili
Electrical & Instrumentation Technician 1112
Electrical & Instrumentation Technician iV

Salary Range

173
175
169
170
173
171
171
174
174
179
182

181
188
186
179
181
178
181
196
171
175
177
182
174
181
170
180
177
180
180
182
188
189
188
188
188
188
189
176
179
181
182
182

Unit

UN
PR
UN
GY
GU
GU
UN
PR
UN
UN
UN
LB
UN
UN
PR
PR
UN
LB
EX
GU
GU
GU
GU
GuU
PR
GU
UN
PR
PR
GU
GU
UN
UN
UN
UN
UN
UN
UN
GU
GU
GU

GU
GU

EXHIBIT 2

FLSA

Exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Exempt

Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Naon-exempt



Salary Matrix EXHIBIT 2
Effective March 15, 2015

CLASSIFICATION TITLE Salary Range  Unit FLSA
Engineering Services Analyst 182 PR Exempt
Engineering Technician 175 GU Nonh-exempt
Environmental Resources Planner I! 182 UN Exempt
Executive Assistant 178 UN Exempt
Executive Manager of Engineering/Assistant General Manager 196 EX Exempt
Executive Manager of Operations/Assistant General Manager 196 EX Exempt
Executive Manager of Policy Develepment/Assistant General Manager 196 EX Exempt
External Affairs Specialist | 171 UN Exempt
External Affairs Specialist | (Y-Rated)® 202 UN Exempt
Facilities Specialist 177 PR Exempt
Facilities Specialist - Landscape 177 UN Exempt
Facitities Program Supervisor 183 PR Exempt
Financial Analyst | 179 PR Exempt
Financial Analyst Il 181 PR Exempt
General Manager 203 EX Exempt
GIS Specialist 178 UN Exempt
Grants Administrator 179 PR Exempt
Grants Officer 186 UN Exempt
Human Resources Analyst | 177 UN Exempt
Human Resources Analyst Il 179 UN Exempt
Human Resources Officer 183 UN Exempt
Human Resources Technician 171 UN Non-éxempt
HVAC Technician 177 GU Non-exempt
Industrial Engine Technician | 177 GU Non-exempt
Industrial Engine Technician || 181 GuU Non-exempt
Information Systems Analyst | 179 PR Exempt
Information Systems Analyst Il 181 PR Exempt
Internal Auditor 179 UN Exempt
Laboratory Assistant 172 LB Non-exempt
Laboratory Scientist | 177 LB Non-exempt
Laboratory Scientist Il 179 1B Non-exempt
Maintenance Planner 181 GU Non-exempt
Maintenance Specialist 201 UN Exempt
Manager of Business Information Services 190 UN Exempt
Manager of Contracts & Facility Services 190 UN Exempt
Manager of Engineering 192 UN Exempt
Manager of External Affairs 190 UN Exempt
Manager of Finance & Accounting 190 UN Exempt
Manager of Human Resources 190 UN Exempt
Manager of Internal Audit 150 UN Exempt
Manager of Laboratories 190 UN Exempt
Manager of Maintenance 192 UN Exempt
Manager of Operations 192 UN Exempt



Salary Matrix EXHIBIT 2
Effective March 15, 2015

CLASSIFICATION TITLE Salary Range Unit FLSA
Manager of Planning & Environmental Resources 192 UN Exempt
Manager of Regional Compost Authority 190 UN Exempt
Manager of Technical Services 190 UN Exempt
Mechanic | 172 GU Non-exempt
Mechanic I* 173 GU Non-exempt
Mechanic i 176 GU Non-exempt
Mechanic lil 179 GU Non-exempt
Mechanic IV 181 GuU Non-exempt
Network Administrator 183 PR Exempt
Office Assistant 166 UN Non-exempt
Office Assistant 166 GU Non-exempt
Operations Specialist 179 UN Exempt
Pre-treatment & Source Control Inspector | 174 GU Non-exempt
Pre-treatment & Source Control Inspector || 177 GU Non-exempt
Procurement Specialist | 174 PR Non-exempt
Procurement Specialist || 175 PR Non-exempt
Records Specialist 173 GU Non-exempt
Recycled Water Distribution Operator 179 op Non-exempt
Risk Specialist 174 UN Non-exempt
RW/Groundwater Recharge Operations & Maintenance Specialist 179 UN Exempt
Safety Analyst 178 UN Exempt
Safety Officer 183 UN Exempt
Senior Accountant 179 PR Exempt
Senior Associate Engineer 184 UN Exempt
Senior Associate Engineer - PE 185 UN Exempt
Senior Compost O & M Technician 181 GU Non-exempt
Senior Engineer 187 PR Exempt
Senior Environmental Resources Planner 184 UN Exempt
Senior External Affairs Specialist 180 UN Exempt
Senior Financial Analyst 183 PR Exempt
Senior Information Systems Analyst 182 PR Exempt
Senior Internal Auditor 182 UN Exempt
Senior Operations Specialist 184 UN Exempt
Senior Pre-treatment & Source Control Inspector 180 GU Non-exempt
Senior Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator 181 oP Non-exempt
Senior Water Plant Operator 181 OP Non-exempt
Senior Water Resources Analyst 182 PR Exempt
Supervisor-Environmental Compliance & Energy 188 PR Exempt
Systems Adminstrator 181 PR Exempt
Technology Specialist | 178 GU Non-exempt
Technology Specialist |1 180 GuU Non-exempt
Technology Specialist il 182 GU Non-exempt
Warehouse Technician 171 GU Noan-exempt



Salary Matrix EXHIBIT 2
Effective March 15, 2015

CLASSIFICATION TITLE Salary Range  Unit FLSA
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator | 174 op Non-exempt
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator I 176 op Non-exempt
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator HlI 178 oP Non-exempt
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator IV, V 180 oP Non-exempt
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator-in-Training 171 opP Non-exempt
Water Plant Operator | 174 or Non-exempt
Water Plant Operator | 176 OP Non-exempt
Water Plant Operator lll 178 opP Non-exempt
Water Plant Operator IV, V 180 oP Non-exempt
Notes:

1. Incumbent Biologist in this pasition prior te 7/1/01 shall be non-exempt.
2. Sa'ary range for incumbent Senior Electrical & instrumentation Tech employes reclassified to Electrical & instrumentation Techniciar: il .
3, The Y-Rated salary for this position is reflective of the incumbent in the position effective 21/1/14 farmerly classified as CIP Coordinatar.

4. Salary range for incumbent Plant Maintenance Technician !l employees reclassified to Mechanic 1.



Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, Laboratory Unit, Operators' Association,

Range/Step
165

-

W e NG N

166

W oo~ O WP

1

7

W oo SN hRWN e

168

w o~ oW

169

B oW N o

and Professional Unit

Salary Matrix Effective March 15, 2015

Hourly

17.0700
17.4967
17.9341
18.3825
18.8420
19.3131
19.7959
20.2908
20.7981

17.9223
18.3703
18.8256
19.3003
19,7828
20.2774
20.7843
21.3039
21.8365

18.8180
19.2884
19.7706
20.2649
20.7715
21.2908
21.8231
22,3687
22,9279

19.7571
20.2510
20.7573
21.2762
21.8081
22.3534
229122
23.4850
24.0721

20.7436
21.2622
21.7937
22.3386

Bi-Weekly

1,365.60
1,399.74
1,434.73
1,470.60
1,507.36
1,545.05
1,583.67
1,623.26
1,663.85

1,433.78
1,469.63
1,506.37
1,544.03
1,582.63
1,622,19
1,662.75
1,704.32
1,746.92

1,505.44
1,543.07
1,581.65
1,621.19
1,661.72
1,703.27
1,745.85
1,789.49
1,834.23

1,580.57
1,620.08
1,660.58
1,702.10
1,744.65
1,788.27
1,832.97
1,878.80
1,925.77

1,659.49
1,700.97
1,743.50
1,787.09

Page 1

Monthly

2,958.79
3,032.76
3,108.58
3,186.29
3,265.95
3,347.60
3,431.29
3,517.07
3,605.00

3,106.53
3,184.19
3,263.79
3,345.39
3,429.02
3,514.75
3,602.62
3,692.68
3,785.00

3,261.78
3,343.33
3,426.91
3,512.58
3,600.40
3,690.41
3,782.67
3,877.24
3,974.17

3,424.57
3,510.18
3,597.93
3,687.88
3,780.08
3,874.58
3,971.45
4,070.73
4,172.50

3,595.55
3,685.44
3,777.58
3,872.02

Annually

35,505
36,393
37,303
38,236
39,191
40,171
41,175
42,205
43,260

37,278
38,210
39,166
40,145
41,148
42,177
43,231
44,312
45,420

39,141
40,120
41,123
42,151
43,205
44,285
45,392
46,527
47,690

41,095
42,122
43,175
44,255
45,361
46,4595
47,657
48,849
50,070

43,147
44,225
45,331
46,464

EXHIBIT 2



Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, Laboratory Unit, Operators' Assoclation,

Range/Step
5
6

o 0 ~

170

Lo~ W

171

Do~ N bW

172

W~ hwN PR

173

W o~ N W N

and Professional Unit

Salary Matrix Effective March 15, 2015

Hourly
22.8970
23.4695
24.0562
24.6576
25.2740

217814
22,3259
22.8840
23.4561
24.0425
24.6436
25.2597
25.8912
26.5385

22.8704
23.4422
24.0282
24.6289
25.2447

'25.8758

26.5227
27.1857
27.8654

24.0147
24,6151
25.2305
25.8612
26.5078
27.1705
27.8497
28.5460
29.2596

25.2143
25.8446
26.4908
27.1530
27.8318
28.5276
29.2408
29.5719
30.7212

Bl-Weekly
1,831.76
1,877.56
1,924.50
1,972.61
2,021.92

1,742.51
1,786.07
1,830.72
1,876.49
1,923.40
1,971.49
2,020.78
2,071.29
2,123.08

1,829.63
1,875.37
1,922.26
1,970.32
2,019.57
2,070.06
2,121.81
2,174.86
2,229.23

1,521.18
1,969.21
2,018.44
2,068.90
2,120.62
2,173.64
2,227.98
2,283.68
2,340.77

2,017.14
2,067.57
2,119.26
2,172.24
2,226.55
2,282.21
2,339.27
2,397.75
2,457.69

Page 2

Monthly
3,968.82
4,068.04
4,169.74
4,273.98
4,380.83

3,775.43
3,869.82
3,966.57
4,065.73
4,167.37
4,271.56
4,378.35
4,487.80
4,600.00

3,964.21
4,063.31
4,164.89
4,269.02
4,375.74
4,485.14
4,597.26
4,712.20
4,830.00

4,162.55
4,266.62
4,373.28
4,482.61
4,594.68
4,709.55
4,827.29
4,947.97
5,071.67

4,370.48
4,479.74
4,591.73
4,706.52
4,824,19
4,944.79
5,068.41
5,195.12
5,325.00

Annually
47,626
48,816
50,037
51,288
52,570

45,305
46,438
47,599
48,789
50,008
51,259
52,540
53,854
55,200

47,570
48,760
49,979
51,228
52,509
53,822
55,167
56,546
57,960

49,951
51,199
52,479
53,791
55,136
56,515
57,927
59,376
60,860

52,446
53,757
55,101
56,478
57,890
59,338
60,821
62,341
63,900

EXHIBIT 2



Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, Laboratory Unit, Operators' Association,

Range/Step
174

=

0L NN U A wWwN

175

W 0o~ oy AW

176

D 00~ o I W N

177

W e ok W=

178

2 W NP

and Professional Unit

Salary Matrix Effective March 15, 2015

Hourly

26.4730
27.1348
27.8132
28.5086
29.2213
29.8518
30.7006
31.4681
32.2548

27.7949
28.4898
28.2020
29.9321
30.6804
31.4474
32,2336
33.0394
33.8654

29.1839
29.9135
30.6613
31.4278
32.2135
33.0189
33.8443
34.6904
35.5577

30.6438
31.4099
32.1952

33.0001

33.8251
34.6707
35.5375
36.4259
37.3365

32.1748
32.8792
33.8037
34.6488

Bi-Weekly

2,117.84
2,170.79
2,225.06
2,280.68
2,337.70
2,396.14
2,456.05
2,517.45
2,580.38

2,223,589
2,279.18
2,336.16
2,394.57
2,454.43
2,515.79
2,578.68
2,643.15
2,709.23

2,334.71
2,393.08
2,452.90
2,514.23
2,577.08
2,641.51
2,707.55
2,775.23
2,844.62

245151
2,512.79
2,575.61
2,640.00
2,706.00
2,773.66
2,843.00
2,914.07
2,986.92

2,573.99
2,638.34
2,704.30
2,771.90

Page 3

Monthly

4,588.66
4,703.37
4,820.96
4,941.48
5,065.02
5,191.64
5,321.44
5,454.47
5,590.83

4,817.78
4,938.23
5,061.68
5,188.22
5,317.93
5,450.88
5,587.15
5,726.83
5,870.00

5,058.53
5,185.00
5,314.62
5,447.49
5,583.68
5,723.27
5,866.35
6,013.01
6,163.33

5,311.60
5,444.39
5,580.50
5,720.01
5,863.01
6,009.59
6,159.83
6,213.82
6,471.67

5,576.97
5,716.40
5,859.31
6,005.79

Annually

55,064
56,440
57,851
59,298
60,780
62,300
63,857
65,454
67,090

57,813
59,259
60,740
62,259
63,815
65,411
67,046
68,722
70,440

60,702
62,220
63,775
65,370
67,004
68,679
70,396
72,156
73,960

63,739
65,333
66,966
68,640
70,356
72,115
73,918
75,766
77,660

66,924
68,597
70,312
72,069

EXHIBIT 2



Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, Laboratory Unit, Operators' Association,

Range/Step
5
6

W 0o~

179

[f-2- - BN - B I B

180

W N R WwN R

181

W oo ~ G Wk wNe R

182

W0 0o~ ;W N

and Professional Unit

Salary Matrix Effective March 15, 2015

Hourly
35.5150
36.4029
37.3130
38.2458
39.2019

33.7848
34.6294
35.4951
36.3825
37,2921
38.2244
39.1800
40.1595
41.1635

35.4736
36.3605
37.2695
38.2012
39.1562
40.1351
41.1385
42.1670
43.2212

37.2453
38.1765
35.1309
40.1091
41.111%
42.1397
43.1932
44.2730
45,3798

39.1078
40.0855
41.0876
42.1148
43.1677
44.2469
45.3530
46.4869
47.6490

Bi-Weekly
2,841.20
2,912.23
2,585.04
3,059.66
3,136.15

2,702.78
2,770.35
2,839.61
2,910.60
2,983.37
3,057.95
3,134.40
3,212.76
3,293.08

2,837.89
2,908.84
2,981.56
3,056.10
3,132.50
3,210.81
3,291.08
3,373.36
3,457.69

2,979.63
3,054.12
3,130.47
3,208.73
3,288.95
3,371.17
3,455.45
3,541.84
3,630.38

3,128.62
3,206.84
3,287.01
3,369.18
3,453.41
3,538.75
3,628.24
3,718.55
3,811.92

Page 4

Monthly
6,155.93
6,309.83
6,467.58
6,629.27
6,795.00

5,856.03
6,002.43
6,152.49
6,306.30
6,463.96
6,625.56
6,791.20
6,960.98
7,135.00

6,148.76
6,302.48
6,460.04
6,621.54
6,787.08
6,956.76
7,130.68
7,308.94
7,491.67

6,455.86
6,617.25
6,782.68
6,952.25
7,126.06
7,304.21
7,486.81
7,673.98
7,865.83

6,778.68
6,948.15
7,121.85
7,299.90
7,482.40
7,669.46
7,861.19
8,057.72
8,259.17

Annually
73,871
75,718
77,611
79,551
81,540

70,272
72,029
73,830
75,676
77,567
79,507
81,494
83,532
85,620

73,785
75,630
77,520
79,459
81,445
83,481
85,568
87,707
89,900

77,470
79,407
81,392
83,427
85,513
87,650
89,842
92,088
94,390

81,344
83,378
85,462
87,599
89,789
92,033
94,334
96,693
99,110

EXHIBIT 2



Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, Laboratory Unit, Operators’ Association,

Range/Step
183

[

O e~k WN

184

W 00~ Y U B W N

185

O e ~ h i W=

186

W oo~ o W NP

187

$a WM

and Professional Unit

Salary Matrix Effective March 15, 2015

Hourly

41.0649
42.0916
43.1439
44,2225
45.3280
46.4612
47.6228
48.8133
50.0337

43.1168
44.1947
45.2996
46.4321
47.5929
48,7827
50.0023
51.2523
52.5337

45.2713
46.4031
47.5631
48.7522
49.9710
51.2203
52.5008
53.8133
55.1587

47.5362
48.7246
45.9427
51.1913
52.4711
53.7829
55.1274
56.5056
57.9183

49.9117
51.1594
52.4384
53.7494

Bi-Weekly

3,285.20
3,367.33
3,451.51
3,537.80
3,626.24
3,716.90
3,809.82
3,905.07
4,002.69

3,449.35
3,535.58
3,623.97
3,714.57
3,807.43
3,902.62
4,000.18
4,100.19
4,202.69

3,621.70
3,712.24
3,805.05
3,900.18
3,997.68
4,097.62
4,200.06
4,305.07
4,412.69

3,802.90
3,897.97
3,995.42
4,095.30
4,197.65
4,302.63
4,410.20
4,520.45
4,633.46

3,992.93
4,092.76
4,195.07
4,293.95

Page 5

Manthly

7,117.92
7,295.87
7,478.27
7,665.23
7,856.86
8,053.28
8,254.61
8,460.98
8,672.50

7,473.58
7,660.42
7,851.93
8,048.23
8,249.44
8,455.67
8,667.06
8,883.74
9,105.83

7,847.02
8,043.20
8,244.28
8,450.38
8,661.64
8,878.18
9,100.14
9,327.64
9,560.83

8,239.61
8,445.60
8,656.74
8,873.16
9,094.99
9,322.36
9,555.42
9,794.31
10,039.17

8,651.35
8,867.64
9,089.33
9,316.56

Annually

85,415
87,550
89,739
91,983
94,282
96,639
99,055
101,532
104,070

89,683
91,925
94,223
96,579
98,993
101,468
104,005
106,605
109,270

94,164
96,518
93,931
101,405
103,940
106,538
109,202
111,932
114,730

98,875
101,347
103,881
106,478
108,140
111,868
114,665
117,532
120,470

103,816
106,412
105,072
111,799

EXHIBIT 2



Range/Step

5
6

W 0o~

Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, Laboratory Unit, Operators’ Association,

188

WD 00~ oW N

189

W o~ WwN R

190

1

W YO~k wWwNNR

=y

W o~ A u b Wk

and Professional Unit

Salary Matrix Effective March 15, 2015

Hourly
55.0931
56.4705
57.8822
59.3293
60.8125

52.4055
53.7156
55.0585
56.4349
57.8458
59.2920
60.7743
62.2936
63.8510

55.0255
56.4012
57.8112
59.2565
60.7379
62.2563
63.8127
65.4081
67.0433

57.7758
59.2202
60.7007
62.2182
63.7737
65.3680
67.0022
68.6773
70.3942

60.6642
62.1808
63.7353
65.3287
66.9619
68.6360
70.3519
72,1107
73.9135

Bi-Weekly
4,407.45
4,517.64
4,630.58
4,746.34
4,865.00

4,192.44
4,297.25
4,404.68
4,514.80
4,627.67
4,743.36
4,861.94
4,983.49
5,108.08

4,402.04
4,512.09
4,624.50
4,740.52
4,859.03
4,980.51
5,105.02
5,232.65
5,363.46

4,622.07
4,737.62
4,856.06
4,977.46
5,101.90
5,229.44
5,360.18
5,494.18
5,631.54

4,853.14
4,874.47
5,098.82
5,226.30
5,356.96
5,490.88
5,628.15
5,768.86
5,513.08

Page 6

Monthly
9,549.47
9,788.21
10,032.92
10,283.74
10,540.33

9,083.61
9,310.70
9,543.47
9,782.06
10,026.61
10,277.27
10,534.21
10,797.56
11,067.50

9,537.76
9,776.20
10,020.61
10,271.12
10,527.90
10,751.10
11,060.88
11,337.40
11,620.83

10,014.48
10,264.84
10,521.46
10,784.50
11,054.11
11,330.46
11,613.72
11,904.07
12,201.67

10,515.13
10,778.01
11,047.46
11,323.65
11,606.74
11,896.91
12,194.33
12,489.19
12,811.67

Annually
114,594
117,459
120,395
123,405
126,490

109,003
111,728
114,522
117,385
120,319
123,327
126,410
129,571
132,810

114,453
117,314
120,247
123,253
126,335
129,493
132,731
136,049
139,450

120,174
123,178
126,258
129,414
132,649
135,966
139,365
142,849
146,420

126,182
129,336
132,570
135,884
139,281
142,763
146,332
149,990
153,740

EXHIBIT 2



Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, Laboratory Unit, Operators' Association,

Range/Step

192

[

W e ~ o tn W

193

W oo~ n kW N

194

W00~ N W N

195

Lo~k W R

196

Ja W N

and Professional Unit

Salary Matrix Effective March 15, 2015

Hourly

63.6986
65.2911
66.9234
68,5964
70.3114
72.0691
73.8709
75.7176
77.6106

66.8830
68.5550
70.2689
72.0256
73.8263
75.6719
77.5637
79.5028
81.4904

70.2291
71.9848
73.7844
75.6290
77.5198
79.4578
81.4442
83.4803
85.5673

73.7409
75.5844
77.4741
79.4109
81.3962
83.4311
85.5169
87.6548
89.8462

77.4264
79.3621
81.3461
83.3798

Bi-Weekly

5,095.89
5,223.29
5,353.87
5,487.72
5,624.91
5,765.53
5,909.67
6,057.41
6,208.85

5,350.64
5,484.40
5,621.51
5,762.05
5,906.10
6,053.75
6,205.10
6,360.23
6,519.23

5,618.33
5,758.78
5,902.75
6,050.32
6,201.58
6,356.62
6,515.54
6,678.42
6,845,38

5,899.27
6,046.76
6,197.92
6,352.87
6,511.69
6,674.49
6,841.35
7,012.38
7,187.69

6,194.11
6,348.96
6,507.69
6,670.38

Page 7

Monthly

11,041.09
11,317.12
11,600.05
11,890.05
12,187.30
12,491.98
12,804.28
13,124.39
13,452.50

11,593.05
11,882.87
12,179.94
12,484.44
12,796.55
13,116.47
13,444.38
13,780.49
14,125.00

12,173.04
12,477.37
12,789.30
13,109.03
13,436.76
13,772.68
14,116.99
14,469.92
14,831.67

12,781.76
13,101.30
13,428.84
13,764.56
14,108.67
14,461.39
14,822.92
15,193.50
15,573.33

13,420.57
13,756.09
14,099.99
14,452.49

Annually

132,493
135,805
139,201
142,681
146,248
149,904
153,651
157,493
161,430

139,117
142,594
146,159
149,813
153,559
157,398
161,333
165,366
169,500

146,076
149,728
153,472
157,308
161,241
165,272
169,404
173,639
177,980

153,381
157,216
161,146
165,175
165,304
173,537
177,875
182,322
186,880

161,047
165,073
169,200
173,430

EXHIBIT 2



Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, Laboratory Unit, Operators' Association,

Range/Step

5
6

0 0o~

197

O o~ WU RWN =

198

Lo ~"OU kWM R

199

000~ G WP W N

200

Woo ~N o Ul MR

and Professional Unit

Salary Matrix Effective March 15, 2015

Hourly
85.4642
87.6009
89.7909
92.0356
94.3365

81.2973
83.3297
85.4130
87.5483
89.7370
91.9805
94.2800
96.6370
99.0529

85.3616

87.4956

89.6830

91.9251

94.2232

96.5788

08.9933
101.4681
104.0048

91.7658
94.0598
56.4114
98.8217
101.2923
103.8246
106.4202
109.0807
111.8077

98.6474

101.1136
103.6415
106.2325
108.8883
111.6105
114.4008
117.2608
120.1923

Bi-Weekly

6,837.14
7,008.07
7,183.27
7,362.85
7,546.92

6,503.79
6,666.38
6,833.04
7,003.87
7,178.96
7,358.44
7,542.40
7,730.96
7,924.23

6,828.93
6,999.65
7,174.64
7,354.01
7,537.86
7,726.30
7,919.46
8,117.45
8,320.38

7,341.26
7,524.79
7,712.91
7,905.74
8,103.38
8,305.96
8,513.61
8,726.45
8,944.62

7,891.79
8,085.09
8,291.32
8,498.60
8,711.06
2,028.84
9,152.06
9,380.86
5,615.38

Page 8

Monthly
14,813.80
15,184.15
15,563.75
15,952.85
16,351.67

14,091.53
14,443.82
14,804.92
15,175.04
15,554,42
15,943.28
16,341.86
16,750.41
17,169.17

14,796.01
15,165.91
15,545.06
15,933.68
16,332.03
16,740.33
17,158.83
17,587.80
18,027.50

15,906.07
16,303.72
16,711.31
17,129.10
17,557.32
17,996.26
18,446.16
18,907.32
19,380.00

17,098.89
17,526.36
17,964.52
18,413.63
18,873.97
19,345.82
19,829.47
20,325.20
20,833.33

Annually
177,766
182,210
186,765
191,434
196,220

169,098
173,326
177,659
182,100
186,653
191,319
156,102
201,005
206,030

177,552
181,991
186,541
191,204
195,984
200,884
205,906
211,054
216,330

190,873
195,645
200,536
205,549
210,688
215,955
221,354
226,888
232,560

205,187
210,316
215,574
220,964
226,488
232,150
237,954
243,302
250,000

EXHIBIT 2



Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, Laboratory Unit, Operators' Association, EXHIBIT 2

Range/Step
201
1
202
1
203

and Professional Unit
Salary Matrix Effective March 15, 2015

Hourly Bi-Weekly Monthly
52.245 4,179.60 9,055.80
42.9806 3,438.45 7,445.97
131.2260 10,493.08 22,745.83

Page 9

Annually
108,670
89,400

272,950



ACTION
ITEM

3C



‘ \ Infand Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: March 16, 2016

A
M\ P. Joseph Grindstaff
4 “ General Manager

To: e Honorable Board of Directors

From:

Submitted by: Christina Valencia
® Chief Financial Officer/Assistant General Manager

Sharmeen Bhojani
Manager of Human Resources

Subject: Adoption of Resolution No. 2016-3-7, for the Unrepresented, Executive
Management, Laboratory Unit, Operators’ Association, Professional Unit,
and General Unit

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors, adopt Resolution No. 2016-3-7, amending the salary
schedule/matrix for the Unrepresented, Executive Management, Laboratory Unit, Operators’
Association, Professional Unit, and General Unit employees.

BACKGROUND

Maintenance of the Agency’s salary schedules/matrixes falls under the responsibility of the Human
Resources Department, including presenting a comprehensive salary resolution incorporating
changes to the Board of Directors as changes occur in accordance with the California Code of
Regulations (CCR) §570.5 [Requirement for a Publicly Available Pay Schedulel].

The Agency entered into 5 year contracts with the five represented groups in FY 2013/14. The five
Memorandums of Understanding (MOUSs) include a 3% Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA)
effective July 1, 2015. Similarly, the Executive Management and the Unrepresented Personnel
Manuals also include a 3% COLA. As a result of the agreed upon COLA increases, the Salary
Schedules/Matrixes for all groups was amended by the Board on July 15, 2015. Since then
Management reached a tentative agreement with the General Unit to implement the results of the
classification and compensation study. Upon approval by the Board, the results of the study will

be implemented retroactive to November 1, 2014 requiring an amendment to the COLA amount
effective July 1, 2015.

Additionally, as part of the classification and compensation study, the Agency’s goal is to



Adoption of Resolution No. 2016-3-7 Amending the Salary Schedule/Matrix for the Unrepresented,

Executive Management, Laboratory Unit, Operators’ Association, Professional Unit and General Unit
March 16, 2016

Page 2

implement a single consolidated salary schedule/matrix for all employees. A recommendation is
being made to add the updated salaries for the General Unit to the Unrepresented, Executive

Management, Laboratory Unit, Operators’ Association, and Professional Unit salary
schedule/matrix.

The California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) employers may only report
payrates, that meet the definition of a Publicly Available Salary Schedule as defined by CCR 570.5,
for the purposes of calculating retirement benefits. The code states in part:

“(a) For purposes of determining the amount of “compensation earnable” pursuant
to Government Code Sections 20630, 20636, and 20636.1, payrate shall be limited
to the amount listed on a pay schedule that meets all of the following requirements:

(1) Has been duly approved and adopted by the employer’s governing body
in accordance with requirements of applicable public meeting laws;

(2) Identifies the position title for every employee position;

(3) Shows the payrate for each identified position, which may be stated as
a single amount or as multiple amounts within a range;

(4) Indicates the time base, including, but not limited to, whether the time
base is hourly, daily, bi-weekly, monthly, bi-monthly, or annually;

(5) Is posted at the office of the employer or immediately accessible and
available for public review from the employer during normal business
hours or posted on the employer’s internet website;

(6) Indicates an effective date and date of any revisions;

(7) Is retained by the employer and available for public inspection for not
less than five years; and

(8) Does not reference another document in lieu of disclosing the payrate.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

On July 15, 2015, the Board of Directors approved Resolutions amending the salary schedule
matrix for the Unrepresented, Executive Management, Laboratory Unit, Operators’ Association,
Professional Unit, and General Unit employees

IMPACT ON BUDGET

Adjustments to the salary schedule/matrix are budgeted in the Administrative Services (GG) fund.



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3-7

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY,
CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE SALARY SCHEDULE/MATRIX FOR
THE UNREPRESENTED, EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT, LABORATORY
UNIT, OPERATORS’ ASSOCIATION, PROFESSIONAL UNIT, AND
GENERAL UNIT

WHEREAS, the Agency has compensation changes as a result of an agreed upon Cost of
Living Adjustment (COLA), and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to update the salary and classification information
to comply with the California Code of Regulations (CCR) §570.5, and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* does
hereby RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER as follows:

SECTION 1: The Unrepresented, Executive Management, Laboratory Unit, Operators’

Association, Professional Unit, and General Unit salary schedule/matrix is hereby adopted
and set forth in Exhibit “1” of this resolution.

SECTION 2: The salary information contained in Exhibit “1” shall be effective as of July

1,2015.

ADOPTED the 16" day of March, 2016.

Terry Catlin

President of the Inland Empire

Utilities Agency* and of the

Board of Directors thereof
ATTEST:

Steven J. Elie

Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire
Utilities Agency* and of the

Board of Directors thereof

* A Murnicipal Water Disfrict



Resolution No. 2016-3-7
Page 2

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF ) SS
SAN BERNARDINO )

I, Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2016-3-7, was adopted at a regular

Board Meeting on March 16, 2016, of said Agency by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Steven J. Elie
Secretary/Treasurer



Salary Matrix
Effective July 1, 2015

CLASSIFICATION TITLE

Accountant |

Accountant il

Accounting Technician |

Accounting Technician |

Accounting Technician ||

Administrative Assistant |

Administrative Assistant ! {confidential}
Administrative Assistant ||

Administrative Assistant |l (confidential)
Assistant Engineer

Associate Engineer

Biologistl

Board Secretary/Office Manager

Budget Officer

Business System Analyst |

Business System Analyst Il

CAD Designer

Chemist

Chief Financial Officer/Assistant General Manager
Collection System Operator |

Collection System Operator ||

Collection System Operator Il|

Collection System Supervisor

Compost Operator

Compost Sales Representative

Compost Worker

Construction Project Inspector

Contracts Administrator |

Contracts Administrator Il

Control Systems Analyst |

Control Systems Analyst ||

Deputy Manager of Construction Management
Deputy Manager of Engineering

Deputy Manager of Human Resources
Deputy Manager of Integrated Systems Services
Deputy Manager of Maintenance

Deputy Manager of Operations

Deputy Manager of Planning & Environmental Resources
Electrical & Instrumentation Technician |
Electrical & Instrumentation Technician I|
Electrical & Instrumentation Technician 1l

Electrical & Instrumentation Technician il
Electrical & Instrumentation Techniclan IV

Salary Range

173
175
169
170
173
171
171
174
174
179
182
181
188
186
179
181
178
181
196
171
175
177
182
174
181
170
180
177
180
180
182
188
189
128
188
188
188
189
176
178
181

182
182

Unit

UN
PR
UN
GU
GU
GU
UN
PR
UN
UN
UN
LB
UN
UN
PR
PR
UN
LB
EX
GU
GU
GU
GU
GU
PR
GU
UN
PR
PR
GU
GU
UN
UN
UN
UN
UN
UN
UN
GuU
GU
GU

GU
GU

EXHIBIT 1

FLSA

Exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt

Non-exempt
Non-exempt



Salary Matrix
Effective July 1, 2015

CLASSIFICATION TITLE

Engineering Services Analyst
Engineering Technician

Environmental Resources Planner |l
Executive Assistant

Executive Manager of Engineering/Assistant General Manager
Executive Manager of Operations/Assistant General Manager
Executive Manager of Policy Develepment/Assistant General Manager
External Affairs Specialist |

External Affairs Specialist | (Y-Rated)3
Facilities Specialist

Facilities Specialist - Landscape
Facitities Program Supervisor

Financial Analyst |

Financial Analyst I

General Manager

GIS Specialist

Grants Administrator

Grants Officer

Human Resources Analyst |

Human Resources Analyst Il

Human Resources Officer

Human Resources Technician

HVAC Technician

Industrial Engine Technician |

Industrial Engine Technician !
Information Systems Analyst |
Information Systems Analyst ||

Internal Auditor

Laboratory Assistant

Laboratory Scientist |

Laboratory Scientist Il

Maintenance Planner

Maintenance Specialist

Manager of Business Information Services
Manager of Contracts & Facility Services
Manager of Engineering

Manager of External Affairs

Manager of Finance & Accounting
Manager of Human Resources

Manager of Interna! Audit

Manager of Laboratories

Manager of Maintenance

Manager of Operations

Salary Range

182
175
182
178
196
196
196
171
202
177
177
183
179
181
203
178
179
186
177
179
183
171
177
177
181
179
181
179
172
177
179
181
201
190
190
192
190
190
1%0
190
190
192
192

Unit

PR
GU
UN
UN
EX
EX
EX
UN

UN
PR
UN
PR
PR
PR
EX
UN
PR
UN
UN
UN
UN
UN
GU
GU
GU
PR
PR
UN
LB
LB
LB
GuU
UN
UN
UN
UN
UN
UN
UN
UN
UN
UN
UN

EXHIBIT 1

FLSA

Exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt

Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt



Salary Matrix

Effective July 1, 2015

CLASSIFICATION TITLE

Manager of Planning & Environmental Resources
Manager of Regional Compost Authority
Manager of Technical Services

Mechanic |

Mechanic [*

Mechanic Il

Mechanic il

Mechanic IV

Network Administrator

Office Assistant

Office Assistant

Operations Specialist

Pre-treatment & Source Control Inspector |
Pre-treatment & Source Control Inspector ||
Procurement Specialist |

Procurement Specialist ||

Records Specialist

Recycled Water Distribution Operator

Risk Specialist

RW/Groundwater Recharge Operations & Maintenance Specialist
Safety Analyst

Safety Officer

Senior Accountant

Senior Associate Engineer

Senior Associate Engineer - PE

Senior Compost O & M Technician

Senior Engineer

Senior Environmental Resources Planner
Senior External Affairs Specialist

Senior Financial Analyst

Senior Information Systems Analyst

Senior Internal Auditor

Senior Operations Specialist

Senior Pre-treatment & Source Control Inspector
Senior Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator
Senior Water Plant Operator

Senior Water Resources Analyst
Supervisor-Environmental Compliance & Energy
Systems Adminstrator

Technology Specialist |

Technology Specialist li

Technology Specialist 1!

Warehouse Technician

Salary Range

192
190
190
172
173
176
179
181
183
166
166
179
174
177
174
175
173
179
174
179
178
183
179
184
185
181
187
184
180
183
182
182
184
180
181
181
182
188
181
178
180
182
171

Unit

UN
UN
UN
GuU

GU
GU
GU
GU
PR
UN
GU
UN
GU
GU
PR
PR
GU
oP
UN
UN
UN
UN
PR
UN
UN
GU
PR
UN
UN
PR
PR
UN
UN
GuY
oP
op
PR
PR
PR
GU
GU
GU
GU

EXHIBIT 1

FLSA

Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt
Non-exempt



Salary Matrix EXHIBIT 1

Effective July 1, 2015

CLASSIFICATION TITLE Salary Range  Unit FLSA

Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator | 174 or Non-exempt
Wastewater Treatment Plant QOperator || 176 opP Non-exempt
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator | 178 opP Non-exempt
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator IV, V 180 "OP Non-exempt
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator-in-Training 171 OP Non-exempt
Water Plant Operator | 174 op Non-exempt
Water Plant Operator I} 176 or Non-exempt
Water Plant Operator Il 178 CP Non-exempt
Water Plant Operator iV, V 180 OP Non-exempt

Notes:

1. Incumbent Blologist In this position prior to 7/1/01 shall be non-exempt.

2. Saiary range for incumbent Sen’cr Electrical & Instrumentatian Tech employee reclassified to Electrical & |nstrumentation Technician Il .
3. The Y-Rated satary for this position is reflective of the incurmbent in the position effective 11/1/14 formerly c'assified as CiP Coordinator.
4, Sa'ary range for incumbent Plant Maintenance Technician Ll employees reclassified to Mechanic 1.



Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, Laboratory Unit, Operators' Association,

Range/Step
165

=

W e~ = WN

166

W oo~ BN

167

Voo~ AW

168

W 0o~ 1B W

169

WM

Hourly

17.5821
18.0216
18.4721
18.9340
19.4073
19.8925
20.3898
20.8995
21,4220

18.4600
18.9214
19.3945
19.8793
20.3763
20.8857
21,4078
21.9430
22.4916

19.3825
19.8671
20.3627
20.8728
21.3946
21.9295
224778
23.0398
23.6157

20.3498
20.8585
21.3800
21.9145
22.4623
23.0240
23,5996
24.1896
24.7943

21.3659
21.9001
22.4475
23.0088

and Profressional Unit

Salary Matrix Effective July 1, 2015

Bi-Weekly

1,406.57
1,441.73
1,477.77
1,514.72
1,552.58
1,591.40
1,631.18
1,671.96
1,713.76

1,476.80
1,513.71
1,551.56
1,590.34
1,630.10
1,670.86
1,712.63
1,755.44
1,799.33

1,550.60
1,589.36
1,629.10
1,669.83
1,711.57
1,754.36
1,798.22
1,843.18
1,889.26

1,627.99
1,668.68
1,710.40
1,753.16
1,796.99
1,841.92
1,887.97
1,835.16
1,883.54

1,709.27
1,752.01
1,795.80
1,840.70

Page 1

Monthly

3,047.56
3,123.74
3,201.83
3,281.89
3,363.93
3,448.03
3,534.23
3,622.58
3,713.15

3,199.73
3,279.71
3,361.71
3,445.75
3,531.89
3,620.19
3,710.69
3,803.46
3,898.54

3,359.64
3,443.62
3,529.71
3,617.96
3,708.41
3,801.12
3,896.15
3,993.56
4,093.39

3,527.30
3,615.48
3,705.87
3,798.51
3,893.47
3,950.83
4,090.59
4,192.86
4,297.67

3,703.42
3,756.01
3,890.90
3,988.18

Annually

36,571
37,485
38,422
39,383
40,367
41,376
42,411
43,471
44,558

38,397
39,357
40,341
41,349
42,383
43,442
44,528
45,641
46,783

40,316
41,323
42,357
43,416
44,501
45,613
46,754
47,923
49,121

42,328
43,386
44,470
45,582
46,722
47,890
49,087
50,314
51,572

44,441
45,552
46,691
47,858

EXHIBIT 1



Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, Laboratory Unit, Operators' Association,

Range/Step
5
6

w00~

170

W ol U Wwa

171

W oo~ kWM

172

[T LI - T O B I B

173

W0~ W Rk WK

Hourly
23,5839
24.1736
24.7779
25.3573
26.0322

22.4348
22.9957
23.5705
24,1598
24.7638
25.3829
26.0175
26.6679
27.3347

23,5565
24.1455
24.7490
25.3678
26.0020
26.6521
27.3184
28.0013
28.7014

24.7351
25.3536
259874
26.6370
27.3030
27.9856
28.6852
29.4024
30.1374

25.9707
26.6199
27.2855
27.9676
28.6668
29,3834
30.1180
30.8711
31.6428

and Prefressional Unit

Salary Matrix Effective July 1, 2015

Bi-Weekly
1,886.71
1,933.89
1,982.23
2,031.79
2,082.58

1,794.79
1,839.65
1,885.64
1,932.78
1,981.10
2,030.63
2,081.40
2,133.43
2,186.77

1,884.52
1,931.64
1,979.92
2,029.42
2,080.16
2,132.17
2,185.47
2,240.10
2,296.11

1,978.81
2,028.28
2,078.99
2,130.96
2,184.24
2,238.85
2,294.82
2,352.19
2,410.99

2,077.66
2,129.60
2,182.84
2,237.41
2,293.34
2,350.67
2,409.44
2,469.68
2,531.43

Page 2

Monthly
4,087.88
4,190.09
4,294.83
4,402.20
4,512.25

3,888.71
3,985.92
4,085.56
4,187.70
4,292.39
4,399.70
4,509.70
4,622.44
4,738.01

4,083.13
4,185.21
4,289.83
4,397.08
4,507.02
4,619.69
4,735.19
4,853,55
4,974.90

4,287.42
4,394.62
4,504.49
4,617.09
4,732.53
4,850.84
4,972.10
5,096.41
5,223.81

4,501.59
4,614.12
4,725.49
4,847.72
4,968.90
5,093.13
5,220.46
5,350.58
5,484.76

Annually
49,055
50,281
51,538
52,826
54,147

46,664
47,831
49,027
50,252
51,509
52,796
54,116
55,469
56,856

48,998
50,223
51,478
52,765
54,084
55,436
56,822
58,243
59,699

51,449
52,735
54,054
55,405
56,790
58,210
59,665
61,157
62,686

54,019
55,369
56,754
58,173
59,627
61,118
62,645
64,212
65,817

EXHIBIT 1



Range/Step

Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, Laboratory Unit, Operators' Association,

174

= WON s

0 o~ Y U1

175

O e~ U AW N

176

Woo~ W MR

177

1

W oo~ W N

~J

oW N e

Hourly

27.2672
27.9488
28.6476
29.3639
30.0979
30.8504
31.6216
324121
33.2224

28.6287
29.3445
30.0781
30.8301
31.6008
32,3908
33.2006
34.0306
34.8814

30.0554
30.8109
31.5811
32.3706
33.1799
34.0095
34.8596
35.7311
36.6244

31.5621
32.3522
33.1611
33.9901
34.8399
35.7108
36.6036
37.5187
38.4566

33.1400
33.9686
34.8178
35.6883

and Profressional Unit

Salary Matrix Effective July 1, 2015

Bi-Weekily

2,181.38
2,235.91
2,291.81
2,349.11
2,407.84
2,468.03
2,529.73
2,592.97
2,657.80

2,290.30
2,347.56
2,406.24
2,466.41
2,528.06
2,591.27
2,656.05
2,722.45
2,790.51

2,404.75
2,464.87
2,526.49
2,589.65
2,654.39
2,720.76
2,788.77
2,858.49
2,929.95

2,525.05
2,588.18
2,652.88
2,719,21
2,787.19
2,856.87
2,928.25
3,001.49
3,076.53

2,651.20
2,717.49
2,785.42
2,855.06

Page 3

Maonthly

4,726.31
4,844.47
4,965.58
5,089.74
5,216.98
5,347.39
5,481.08
5,618.10
5,758.56

4,962.32
5,086.38
5,213.53
5,343.88
5,477.47
5,614.41
5,754.77
5,898.63
6,046.10

5,210.30
5,340.56
5,474.06
5,610.91
5,751.18
5,894.97
6,042.34
6,193.39
6,348.23

5,470.94
5,607.71
5,747.92
5,891.62
6,038.91
6,189.88
6,344.63
6,503.24
6,665.81

5,744.27
5,887.89
6,035.09
6,185.97

Annually

56,716
58,134
59,587
61,077
62,604
64,169
65,773
67,417
69,103

59,548
61,037
62,562
64,127
65,730
67,373
69,057
70,784
72,553

62,524
64,087
65,689
67,331
69,014
70,740
72,508
74,321
76,179

65,651
67,293
68,975
70,699
72,467
74,279
76,136
78,039
79,990

68,931
70,655
72,421
74,232

EXHIBIT 1



Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, Laboratory Unit, Operators' Association,

Range/Step
5
6

O o0 ~d

179

W oo~ AWM

180

D oo~ O U BN

181

W oo~ o W N e

182

W o ~ o kN

Hourly
36.5805
37.4950
38.4324
39,3932
40.3780

34.7983
35.6683
36.5600
37.4740
38.4109
39.3711
40.3554
41.3643
42.3984

36.5378
37.4513
38.3876
39.3472
40.3309
41.33892
42,3727
43.4320
44.5178

38.3627
39.3218
40.3048
41.3124
42.3453
43.4039
44,4890
45.6012
46.7412

40.2810
41.2881
42.3202
43.3782
44,4627
45.5743
46.7136
47.8815
49.0785

and Profressional Unit

Salary Matrix Effective luiy 1, 2015

Bi-Weekly
2,926.44
2,999.60
3,074.59
3,151.45
3,230.24

2,783.87
2,853.46
2,924.80
2,997.92
3,072.87
3,149.69
3,228.43
3,309.14
3,391.87

2,923.02
2,996.11
3,071.01
3,147.78
3,226.47
3,307.13
3,389.81
3,474.56
3,561.43

3,065.01
3,145.74
3,224.39
3,304.98
3,387.62
3,472.31
3,559.12
3,648.10
3,739.30

3,222.48
3,303.05
3,385.62
3,470.26
3,557.02
3,645.94
3,737.09
3,830.52
3,926.28

Page 4

Monthly
6,340.61
6,499.13
6,661.61
6,828.15
6,998.85

6,031.71
6,182.50
6,337.06
6,495.49
6,657.88
6,824.33
6,994.94
7,169.81
7,345.06

6,333.22
6,491.56
6,653.85
6,820.19
6,990.69
7,165.45
7,344.59
7,528.22
7,716.42

6,649.53
6,815.78
6,986.17
7,160.81
7,339.84
7,523.34
7,711.43
7,904.21
8,101.81

6,982.05
7,156.60
7,335.51
7,518.90
7,706.87
7,899.55
8,097.02
8,299.46
8,506.93

Annually
76,087
77,990
792,939
81,938
83,986

72,381
74,190
76,045
77,946
79,895
81,892
83,939
86,038
88,189

75,999
77,898
79,846
81,842
83,888
85,985
88,135
90,339
92,597

79,794
81,789
83,834
85,930
88,078
90,280
92,537
94,850
97,222

83,785
85,879
88,026
90,227
92,482
94,795
97,164
899,594
102,083

EXHIBIT 1



Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, Laboratory Unit, Operators' Association,

Range/Step
183

=3
(Yo I N N o T N - Y I S I

LﬂOO‘-lG\U"I-I'-'-WNI—‘g

185

W e~V R WN =

186

W ee ~ 5wt o WN=

187

£ N =

Hourly

42.2968
43.3543
44,4382
45.5492
46.6878
47.8550
49.0515
50.2777
51.5347

44.4103
45.5205
46.6586
47.8251
49.0207
50.2462
51,5024
52.7899
54.1097

46.6294
47.7952
48.9900
50.2143
51.4701
52.7569
54.0758
55.4277
56.8135

48.9623
50.1863
51.4410
52.7270
54,0452
55.3964
56.7812
58.2008
59.6558

51.4091
52.6942
54.0116
55.3619

and Profressional Unit

Salary Matrix Effective July 1, 2015

Bi-Weekly

3,383.75
3,468.35
3,555.06
3,643.93
3,735.03
3,828.40
3,924.12
4,022.22
4,122.78

3,552.82
3,641.64
3,732.69
3,826.01
3,921.65
4,019.69
4,120.19
4,223.19
4,328.78

3,730.36
3,823.62
3,919.20
4,017.18
4,117.61
4,220.55
4,326.07
4,434.22
4,545.08

3,916.98
4,014.21
4,115.28
4,218.16
4,323.62
4,431.71
4,542.50
4,656.06
4,772.47

4,112.72
4,215.53
4,320.92
4,428.95

Page 5

Monthly

7,331.45
7,514.75
7,702.62
7,895.19
8,092.56
8,294.87
8,502.26
8,714.80
8,932.68

7,697.79
7,890.23
8,087.49
8,289.68
8,496.92
8,709.34
8,927.08
9,150.24
9,379.02

3,082.44
8,284.50
8,491.60
8,703.89
8,921.49
9,144.53
9,373.14
9,607.47
9,847.67

8,486.80
3,6988.97
8,916.44
9,139.35
9,367.84
9,602.04
9,842.08
10,088.13
10,340.35

8,910.90
9,133.66
9,362.00
9,596.06

Annually

87,977
20,177
92,431
94,742
97,111
99,538
102,027
104,578
107,192

92,373
94,683
97,050
99,476
101,963
104,512
107,125
109,803
112,548

96,989
89,414
101,899
104,447
107,058
109,734
112,478
115,290
118,172

101,842
104,388
106,597
109,672
112,414
115,224
118,105
121,058
124,084

106,931
109,604
112,344
115,153

EXHIBIT 1



Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, Laboratory Unit, Cperators' Association,

Range/Step

5
6

W oo~

188

D00~ Oy U1 o W N

189

W oo~ U WM

190

LU~ - I NI I P - S I

191

(V=T I I+ T U B T 7 S R

Hourly
56.7459
58.1646
59.6187
61.1092
62.6369

53.9777
55.3271
56.7103
58.1279
59.5812
61.0708
62.5975
64.1624
65.7665

56.6763
58.0932
59.5455
61.0342
62.5600
64.1240
65.7271
67.3703
69.0546

59.5091
60.9968
62.5217
64,0847
65.6869
67.3290
69.0123
70.7376
72.5060

62.4841
64.0462
65.6474
67.2886
68.9708
70.6951
72.4625
74.2740
76.1309

and Profressional Unit

Salary Matrix Effective July 1, 2015

Bi-Weekly

4,539.67
4,653.17
4,769.49
4,888.73
5,010.95

4,318.21
4,426.17
4,536.82
4,650.24
4,766.49
4,885.66
5,007.80
5,132.99
5,261.32

4,534,10
4,647.46
4,763.64
4,882.74
5,004.80
5,129.92
5,258.17
5,389.63
5,524.37

4,760.73
4,879.74
5,001.74
5,126.78
5,254.95
5,386.32
5,520.98
5,659.01
5,800.48

4,998.73
5,123.70
5,251.79
5,383.08
5,517.66
5,655.61
5,797.00
5,941.92
6,090.47

Page 6

Monthly
9,835.95
10,081.87
10,333.80
10,592.26
10,857.06

9,356.13
9,590.03
9,825.78
10,075.51
10,327.40
10,585.60
10,850.24
11,121.48
11,399.53

9,823.89

10,069.49
10,321.23
10,579.26
10,843.74
11,114.82
11,392.68
11,677.53
11,969.46

10,314.91
10,572.78
10,837.10
11,108.02
11,385.73
11,670.37
11,962.13
12,261.19
12,567.71

10,830.58
11,101.35
11,378.88
11,663.35
11,954.93
12,253.81
12,560.16
12,874.16
13,196.02

Annually
118,031
120,982
124,007
127,107
130,285

112,274
115,080
117,957
120,906
123,929
127,027
130,203
133,458
136,794

117,887
120,834
123,855
126,951
130,125
133,378
136,712
140,130
143,634

123,779
126,873
130,045
133,296
136,629
140,044
143,546
147,134
150,813

129,967
133,216
136,547
139,560
143,459
147,046
150,722
154,490
158,352

EXHIBIT 1



Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, Laboratory Unit, Operators' Association,

Range/Step

192

[7-I - NI B B

193

W o~ kW N

194

0o~ kW N e

195

0 oo ~ G U1 B N e

196

h W N R

Hourly

65.6096
67.2498
68.5311
70.6543
72.4207
74.2312
76.0870
77.9891
79.9389

68.8895
70.6117
72.3770
74.1864
76.0411
77.9421
79.8906
81.8879
33.9351

72.3360
74.1443
75.9979
77.8979
79.8454
81.8415
83.8875
85.9847
88.1343

75.9531
77.8519
79.7983
B81.7932
83.8381
85.9340
88.0824
90.2844
92.5416

79.7492

'81.7430

83.7865
85.8812

and Profressional Unit

Salary Matrix Effective July 1, 2015

Bi-Weekly

5,248.76
5,379.99
5,514.49
5,652.34
5,793.66
5,938.49
6,086.96
6,239.13
6,395.11

5,511.16
5,648.93
5,790.16
5,934.91
6,083.29
6,235.36
6,391.25
6,551.03
6,714.81

5,786.88
5,931.55
6,079.83
6,231.83
6,387.63
6,547.32
6,711.00
6,878.78
7,050.75

6,076.25
6,228.15
6,383.87
6,543.46
6,707.05
6,874.72
7,046.59
7,222.76
7,403.33

6,379.94
6,539.44
6,702.92
6,870.50

Page 7

Monthly

11,372.32
11,656.64
11,948.06
12,246.74
12,552.93
12,866.74
13,188.42
13,518.12
13,856.08

11,940.84
12,239.35
12,545.34
12,858.97
13,180.46
13,509.96
13,847.71
14,193.90
14,548.75

12,538.24
12,851.69
13,172.97
13,502.30
13,839.87
14,185.87
14,540.50
14,904.02
15,276.62

13,165.21
13,494.33
13,831.71
14,177.49
14,531.93
14,895.23
15,267.62
15,649.30
16,040.54

13,823.19
14,168.78
14,522.99
14,886.07

Annually

136,468
139,880
143,377
146,961
150,635
154,401
158,261
162,217
166,273

143,290
146,872
150,544
154,308
158,165
162,119
166,172
170,327
174,585

150,459
154,220
158,076
162,028
166,078
170,230
174,486
178,848
183,319

157,983
161,932
165,981
170,130
174,383
178,743
183,211
187,792
152,486

165,878
170,025
174,276
178,633

EXHIBIT 1



Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, Laboratory Unit, Operators' Association,

Range/Step

5
6

W0 00~

1

7

W0~ WM

198

W o~ n ol W

199

W oo ~ th U1 & W N

200

W oo~ Bl W

Hourly
88.0281
90.2289
92.4846
94.7967
97.1666

0.0000
83.7362
85.8296
87.9754
90.1747
92.4291
94.7399
97.1084
99.5361

102.0245

87.9224
90.1205
92.3735
94.6829
97.0499
99.4762
101.9631
104.5121
107.1249

94.5188
56.8817
99.3037
101.7864
104.3311
106.9393
109.6123
112.3531
115.1619

101.6068
104.1470
106.7507
109.4195
112.1549
114.9588
117.8328
120.7786
123.7981

and Profressional Unit

Salary Matrix Effective July 1, 2015

Bi-Weekly

7,042.25
7,218.31
7,398.77
7,583.73
7,773.33
0.00
6,698.90
6,866.37
7,038.03
7,213.98
7,394.33
7,579.19
7,768.67
7,962.89
8,161.96

7,033.80
7,209.64
7,389.88
7,574.63
7,763.99
7,958.09
8,157.05
8,360.97
8,570.00

7,561.50
7,750.54
7,944.30
8,142.91
8,346.49
8,555.15
8,769.02
8,988.25
9,212.95

§,128.55
8,331.76
8,540.06
8,753.56
8,972.40
9,196.71
9,426.63
8,662.29
9,903.85

Page 8

Monthly
15,258.21
15,639.68
16,030.67
16,431.42
16,842.21

.00
14,514.28
14,877.13
15,249.07
15,630.29
16,021.05
16,421.59

16,832.12
17,252.93
17,684.24

15,239.89
15,620.88
16,011.40
16,411.69
16,821.98
17,242.54
17,673.60
18,115.44
18,568.32

16,383.25
16,792.83
17,212.65
17,642.97
18,084.05
18,536.15
18,999.55
19,474.54
19,961.40

17,611.85
18,052.15
18,503.46
18,966.04
19,440.19
19,926.19
20,424.36
20,934.96
21,458.33

Annually
183,099
187,676
192,368
187,177
202,107

0
174,171
178,526
182,989
187,563
192,253
197,059

201,985
207,035
212,211

182,879
187,451
192,137
196,540
201,864
206,910
212,083
217,385
222,820

196,599
201,514
206,552
211,716
217,009
222,434
227,995
233,694
239,537

211,242
216,626
222,042
227,593
233,282
235,114
245,092
251,220
257,500

EXHIBIT 1



Unrepresented, Executive, General Unit, Laboratory Unit, Qperators' Association, EXHIBIT 1

Range/Step
201
1
202
1
203

and Profressional Unit
Salary Matrix Effective July 1, 2015

Hourly Bi-Weekly Monthly
53.8124 4,304.99 9,327.47
42.9806 3,438.45 7,449.97
135.1628 10,813.02 23,428.22

Page 9

Annually
111,930
89,400

281,139



INFORMATION
ITEM

4C



“ Inland Empire Utilities Agency
e A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: March 16, 2016
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee (03/9/16)
From: P. Joseph Grindsta
General Manager

Christina Valencia
Chief Financial Officer/ Assistant General Manager

Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro
Manager of Finance and Accounting

Subject: Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

RECOMMENDATION

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended January 31, 2016, is an
informational item for the Board of Director’s review.

BACKGROUND

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended January 31, 2016, is submitted in
a format consistent with State requirements. The monthly report denotes investment transactions
that have been exccuted in accordance with the criteria stated in the Agency's Investment Policy
(Resolution No. 2015-6-3).

Total cash, investments, and restricted deposits of $163,950,513 reflect an increase 0of $11,992,362
compared to the total reported for December 2015. The increase was primarily due to the property
tax receipts and wastewater connection fees reported by contracting agencies.

The average days of cash on hand for the month ended January 31, 2016, increased from 209 days
to 227 days. Average days of cash on hand is calculated using the monthly ending balance of
unrestricted cash and cash equivalents divided by disbursements associated with operating
expenses, debt service, and capital expenditures as recorded in the Agency’s cash flow. New

connection fees collected and held by member agencies is excluded from the days of cash on hand
calculation.



Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs
March 16, 2016
Page 2 of 2

The Agency’s investment portfolio average rate of return in January 2016 was 0.748%, an increase
of 0.113% compared to the average yield of 0.635% reported in December 2015. The increase is
the result of investing available resources within the three to five year term which offers higher
rate of return and change in our portfolio duration.

The Financial Affairs report is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goal of Fiscal Responsibility
in providing financial reporting that accounts for cash and investment activities to fund operating
requirements and to optimize investment eamings.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

The Board reviewed the Financial Affairs Report for the month of December 2015 on February
17, 2016.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

The interest earned on the Agency’s investment portfolio increases the Agency’s reserves.

Attachment: January 2016 Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16056 Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs



Buijosay paeog
9102 Y24eN

9L02Z ‘L€ Altenuep J0j
silejjy |eloueuly

JO }aodoy s .Ja2inseadldl

LIIAESIA YILVM TVdIDINOW ¥V

Aouaby saqinn aiidwg pubju) ’4‘




%ST %OLT 6 V1S B/u $I1INJ2S JUBLUUIBAOD S

%L %9ET 805 %0E s paJsajoig SIBBA € 190
%9 %LTT 168 %0T S9I0N WIS WNIpajAl
%8 %IC'T 0'8s efu S9I}1JNJIS JUIWUIZAOEL) SN

%z %EE'T ves %0€E 5D paJavolg ISIESAE O} T
%T %I0T 0TS %0T SBION WS WNIPa
%T %8E O 0es gfu SINLINZIS JUSLLIBAOD) S
%1 %t9°0 0TS efu 210N Adnseall sn
%1 %C8 0 805 %0€E $QD paJayolg
%IT %0E0 L1TS %0t daams — ssauisng suazil)
%! %950 CLS 0z$ 15N} [e)

%SE %0¥°0 6 vES 595 V1 11ETA T 43PUN ‘W] MoYyS

% Ofjojod PIStA {uonw $) (uopjw $) uondinsag wiay
ITETT]s Y anjeA JUBWISAAU| PIOYysaJyL 3|qemopy

81 60¢ LTT {sAep) pueH uo yse) s8esany

Y20 SL0 660 (s1eaA) uoiieing aBesany palySiom

%ETT O %SET0 %87L°0 PISIA DIJOJIO JUBWISSAU|

L'sS AT T T0TS 01]0J1J0d JUBWIISAAU] [e10]

6TTS 0'7515 6 £91% susodaq pa1oii1say pue ‘SJUBWILSIAU] ‘UYseD |e1oL

(uogijw §) {uoyiw §) {uojipw §)
{aseasa(]) aseatou) STOZ J3qwadaq 910z Adenuer vondiiasaq

N o o ey S g g )
sliejjy jeisueulq jo j3ioday



Po1ILISSY »  SIUBWISIAUI =  YsSeD m

gT-uer ST-93Q SI-AON ST-PO  §T-d9s  GI-8ny  ST-nf  gT-unf ST-AeN  ST-Jdy  ST-JelN  ST-G94

i ] LI | i OW

- 028
- ovs
- 09%
- 088 2
- - 00T$ m
- - 0ZT$

sjIsodaq padlIsSay pue SJUBLWISIAU] ‘Yse)

s}isodag
Pa)o11)SaYy pue SjUdWISIAU] ‘yse)



pueH uo ysed sheq

o e

05 -

00T -

0sT -

002 -

0s¢ -

dx3 99eJ3AY SO ZT - PUBH UO Yse) sAeg-— S1UBLIBSINGSI [B10] sjuapeanbl Yses pue yse) paraiisasun

g1-uer ST-28Q ST-AON

§T-10 gi-des  gr-3ny ST-In[ gT-unf  ST-ABN  sT-dy gy ST-q@d
- 0s

I

oL TP ¥ 2} = L

21

602
Lze

- 05%
- 001$
. .. = B | o013
L Sl . ¥l i
B I
ST e oct Bk

i

ST
- 00Z$

SUO[JIAI U]

- 0SS

Suijjoy SO ZT - pueH uo yse) sheq

obelaAy buijjoy SYyuoln Z1
pueH ug ysen Aeq



ajey puog 93007~ PISIA AIUSBY ==

l‘l —
II'9-1 SYIUO 9=>é= PI3IA JIV1

o o o e & o

& & & 8 4 &
%0100 %0TC 0 %0100 %0100

%01 0
%ELT O
%8020
- p— %0ZE®  %ogep  70CED

%0ZP 0

%8rL'0

%L5€°0

%029°0

%ECI'0

%8t9°0

o o s o0 2>
mor\o .‘..?\4 ﬁv.,« ov.» o.v.P
_ — 1 %0000
%0TO'0  %ELOO
%00T 0 Iﬂ\i\ .
. %090 0 =y
%800  %ZL00 %5800 %5900 |
%S0T 0
" © %0ST0
R £8Z°0 . %9920 m
%6620 %0670  © E5EC0 _
- %0050
%EGS'0
%845°0
_
- %0SL0
- %000°T

uosriedwon pISIA
01]0§3.10d PuU3 Y3uoln



Aypiqisuodsad (pastf
Jo [poB ssaujisng s,Aouaby 3yl y3m 1ua3sisuod si SHDLY [pioupuld o 1i0day s,4ainspail 3y ]

h ﬁml-l |

3
i
-
e -

Al




PLOsI] e [edpjunK ¢

‘portad a1y SuLinp saanpuadxs UIISII0] [[& 133Ul 0) JUSDLYNS
94 03 papadxa ate pouad Yuow-x1s 3xau o4} Sunnp ajqepiear aq 03 pajedionue spunj ay],

'§T0Z “£T aunf uo pray Suneaw remSad sy SuLmp s1o3al( Jo pleod s AousBy saniy)
andurg puequj ay3 £q paidope (£-9-ST0Z "ON UODN[0s3Y) A3][0d JUDUISIAY] S, Aouady 3y}
Ul paieds BLILILID 21 YAIM 30UEPIODDE U PINIaXa U9a( aABY SUOHIESURL] JUDWISIAUI [V

IDRRISIA ¥1LVM TVAIDINNW V

S TR T,

Aouaby saninn aadwz pubjuj

9T0Z ‘I€ Arenue( papug YIuo| oy 1og
SHIVAAV TVIDNVNIA 40 LY0dTY S.dTdNSYTIL




TST'8S6'TISTS E1S°0S6'€9T$
0LT'EHZ'95$ " LYT'Z9819%
£05°S "TL68T
91.'1Z8' ZT¥'8SL9
LIT'TLE'9Y 09Z'906'TS
YELYFS TS rot8LT'ES
I86FLLS6$ 99£'880°Z01S
018'66L76$ . 66ZT80'TOTS
$59'666 81 0£6'7L6%2
828'666 £¥8'666
£ZL'000°E ¥£9F0T L
000'PL8'E 000'7£8'€
60¥¥hSY LLOTSS'L
ZSTELBYE 8L0'L68'FE
¥r6'L0S'8TSE LELTBY'TTS
TLT'ST6$ T L90°L00°T$
JIqUIdA( Axenue{

s31s0da(f pa1oLIsay pup ‘Spusawisaal] ysn) (prof

susodaq paLnsay [e10],
sysoda(] moJasyg
juney (Laddd) 4940
sapualy saquisl £q pleH susedaq V42D
SJUNO029Y 831AISS 1q2(]

Ss0a9q PIPTHSTY

£ouafy o) 01 I[qE[IEAY SIUIUNISIAU] PUR YSE) [EJ0L

SHUIUNSIAT] [EI0L
sanjuy padosuods JUaWILIaA0n "'

sajoN Amsead], s

S910N ULIS ], WNIPa|

ysodaq Jo ss1edynIan

ISNILRD

(41v1) puny 3uaunssau] A Uady (8307

(daamg) aseypanday (ggD) ued Ssauisng SUIZID

SINSUSIAT]

SOy TUSUISS AU YUey pue STsodo( ueq Yse)y



000'FL8'E$

0cevLa'ES

LLO'1SS'LS

LLOTSS'LS

8L0'L6B'VES

5Z8'2Z6'S
£SZ¥L6'82%

LELTBITZS

LEL'TBI'TZS

L90°LOO'TS
Th16L$

008'TS$

0szZ'z$

0522

SLBELBS

18095
61L'8S
P19
1994695

wsoda Jo S31L2Y[IS) [EI0IGNS

usoda( Jo sajeaynday) paleyalg
msodag] Jo sareaynIa)

ISTIL[E) [E103QNS
uLIa |, WIoYS
ISTILTED

pun,j Juaunsaau] £3usdy [e207 [E103qnS
pun,] Supjul§ aJUBINSU] ATY']
pun,] pawinsay-ucN JIv']
(A1v1) pung yusunsaauj Huady (€30

{doams) aseyoanday gd) [e103qns
UEQT 9WOH [elapag
sjusumnsaAn] (deams) ssegoanday gd)

SUSUNSAT]
SIUNOIIY NUDY Pup Ysu) [vIog

JUNO02OY J3MIey £IUO0 K JUIUSIAT]-a1] HUEH SN
JUN000Y 1IN ASUop 1SIM ) JO jueg

yse) JIPQ [e103qNS
yseD £nagd
SMNO0JIIY Juey pue yse) JI0

syusodag puewa g [ejolqns
UNo22Y saxe] [[oifed vjogd

WModay [[o14ed (y7og) BaLIBUIy JO jueyg
Juno3sy uonesuadmor SI9RICM G497

(soueieg daamg ggd £9 319SHQ) N0V prewa(d 4D

STUNOT5Y TUSUNSaAU] SUEH Pe STEodaq UEH se)

910z "1& Aenirer
popu3 (juop

TEUIUNG WBUISeAU | pUE UseD)
AONIDV SIILITILN ¥ NS ONVINT




Pe¥8LIES

SLL'EET
6TLVYS'T
i}3

662'T80'T0TS

0£6'2L6'YTS

S8E'7L60T
000°000°E
£¥0'100°E
Z05'666L$

£¥8'666%$

£¥8'666$

¥EIFOT'LE

£959£0C
BYELTOT
§91'666
08%'T00'T
8L0°000T$

9102 'Lt Amnuer

BIIUING JUSLUJSOAU | pUE (5D
AONIOV SITILITILN R IdiNT ONVYINT

SaAIasaY 9I1AI3S 1q2( [E300qNS

SJUNO2DY IDIAIAS 3G9 VOT

SIUN020Y 901A13S o 480

SJUNODJY 3I1AI3S 193¢ V30
SIAIISIY IIAIIS 109

SIEodsq PaRIIETY

SIUSULSIAU] [DIO],

sappuy palosuods JUSWUIIACY "§'[] [E303qNS
JUueg UBQT SUIOH [B19pa]
yueg pal) ULIE [BIapad
Hueq e s1ppald
Jueq SBp SIUUE,]
sannuy parosuods yIUILIdACY “§ ()

sajoN Amseal] 'S [eeqns
210N AInseald],

sajoN Amseall ‘SN

SON WLIa], WAIPS| fEIeqns
JOSOIITN
uosutyo[ % vosuyo[
00 ) asey) uesiop d[
dioy renden axesg uyo|
sanLInseg uedopn J[
SO]0N ULID I WINIPOy

PenuOUo} SIUSUOSSAU]




Z9E'766'TTS

1ST'856TST
£15°056'€91%

£15°056'S91$

L¥1'298'19%

ZT¥'85L'9%

ZT¥'8SL9%

09Z'906'155

¥5S'61S°E
9LLSTH'E
1522106
819°C7L¥T
1£1'96£'8
££9°65Y'ZT
L6L'6ZIZTS

{aspa.naq) asna.ruj Apyruopy [pjo]

S1/1£/2Z1 Jo se susoda( paloLlsay pue ‘SIUSULSSAU] “USED €10, 1S53
91/1€/1 Jo se syisodag] paldLnsay PUE ‘SIUSUNSIAU] YSED [EI0 L,

9107 ‘15 £innupf fo sp spsodad paraLISay pup ‘SIUUNSIAU] YSD] [DIOL

spsodaq papoLISay (Do

SYMO20Y SYHd[ED [€0IqnS

ooy (LaYaD) 9340
SHAd[ED

sapualy Jaquialy Aq pjaH suseda(q WD) [e303qns
puerdn jo An3
SITH oury) jo A1
oLIEjuQ Jo A1)
IE[IU0 Jo AN
BUEIUG Jo A1)
LSy Ja1ep £a[eA eSuoweon)
oury) jo 4413
sapualy Jaquialy Aq paH sasodaq vi))

810z ‘L€ Atenuer
Papuz YIoN

TeWING JRULSoAU | pUE UsED)
AONIOVSIILITILN I IdINT ONV'INI




LLOESS'LE %090 LLOISS'L LLOISS LS LEDTSSLS $JUNDIIY ISTLIL[ED [E30K|NS
LLOTSSL$ /N %090 IIDISS L3 ViIN ViIN TLLOTISSZS LIOTSS LS i3] -410yg
SIMOXY ISTHLTYD
BLO'L68FES %0 BL'Z68FES BLO'LEBPES BLYLEBYES RUNGDY A1y [E03IhG
SZBLLES v/N KoY SZETL6 S V/N V/N TSe8TEe’s SZETI6S pun] Sunjums ATV
ESZFL6DLS v/N %OFH0 ESTFLE'RTS Y/N v/N  €5Z'%L6'82% £STVLE'BES SpUny pa1210say-ucy
SINMOARY IV
LEL'IBYIZS HOED LELTRI'TZS LELTBS'TZS LELTS9'1ZS RuUNeIY aserp.ndsy g4 [e3039ng
LELTBOTES V/N %0ED IELT89TES vIN V/N LELTRYTIS LELTARYTES uecT] JWOH [eJapag
squnesy (daams) aswifaanday A)eg 94
ENBIIESA]
aoup|pg uncDY (dsams) asoyaunday Aiod sy 44 Jaskjo 5] a3up|pg Bupjsayo p P 2ANEN,
L90°L00°TS L90LOOTS L90°'L00TS I90°L00TS SMOIIY Jammsasn] Yuey
pue sysodag yuey ‘e [E10L
0572s v/N V/N [ 473 ¥/N v/N T0SZTE 05228 use) Anad
THTGLY %10'0 ZHT6LS ZhT6LS ZHT'6LS WMV GS{] [\IqnS
TFT6LS v/N %300 F2347713 ¥/N V/N TebTeis THT6LS VN PHEWOINY pajeiapay
{asn) xed sn
DO8I5% %810 008'15$ [ 4 008'T5% UMDY IF3A4 SIA JO e [R01qNS
008715 v/N %810 008'15§ /N v/N T O0BTSE 00815 Juno20Yy Ss3ufsng - Shid JaNLep Lauojy
IS 21 Jo Hueg
008FLT /N 08I 00BFTITS O0R'F1L SINOIY ¥ J0 g [23034NS
18095 v/N V/N 18095 V/IN v/N 18095 180°9S Suppagxey, [joudvd
51854 ViN v/N 61.°85% ¥/N V/N  61L'85$ 61L85% Suppoary [[elded
(viof) eaprowny Jo Hueg
SLO6SLS SLO'6SLS SLO'6SLS SLO'6SLS SUN0XY G4 [E10MNS
PIREED v/N V/N FIVP95 Y/N V/IN FTEPOS FIFF9 1oy unpesuaduroy siaxiopm
199%694 /N V/N 199'%69% ¥/N V/IN  T99%60% 199'69% SHUNO2Y puEwlaq
(g4aD) yueg ssaujsng sUZNLD
an[Ep EFLE] AME | todne) SA[EA UOREZNJOUIY _ sXeq) IUNOURY Ny sApoop | d%sS u.wmgz _ EEH _
PR e | BPERR % ZTenae| RIenne ey, SI5Eg 3500 Tog “_.Hnnz WD | eEplng @
% _ NISHONVED | Bumeyaipasn
9102 'L¢ Alenuer
pepuz yiuop

AONIOV SSLLITILN IMIdNT ONYINI



(d%s £q 3upey +vv o3 papeaBumop uaaq 24y 5,350 SN 118 TEOZ 1SNSNY Jo 5Y)

OFA'7I05ZE WELE'T DEG'ZLE'HZS gpes BZLZL6FES 000'000'52$ sanpuy palostods 3,400 ') [E103qTS
00E°000°T sT/TZ/0T %I %IFT  0OUDOOY I9%'T  000°000°T 000'000'T VWV VY yueg YpPaL) ULE] [B18pag
000'000"t 61/80/0T  %EYT %OPT  6LO'GE6 1z 1977 000666 000°000'T VVY YV YUeg UeOT JWOH [2iapag
0T9°200'c 61/20/0T  %OST WETT  9OE'ELET BLE 6SE'T  GZ6'ZLET 000'000'€ VWV WY queg ueor] Sio} felapa]
0T8'T00T 6T/6Z/L0  %OD'E %00'T  DOU'000'T 19T 0000007 000'000" L S 4 buog 38 81ppay
opPLYTOE 61/v2/90  %IST %0ST  000DO0Z 09%'T  000'000Z 000°000'2 VWV VY MU WP UL [EI9DIA
080'600°% 6T/¥Z/S0 %051 %05T  Z0S'666E €T 9Pl 00be66'E 000'000% VU WY puog PEp aNIuR]
098°L00'E 61/9Z/40 %os'T %0S'T  ODO'000'E 98T'T  0O0'000'E 000000'€ VYV YV HuBg UE0T WK [RIapa,
OPE'EI0E BL/8Z/TT %9 %I9T  000°0007 6SH'T 0000007 000'000'z VWV VY puog SEp SIUUE]
009'Z00" BL/8Z/TT  %OLT %0ZT'T  000'000°Z L60°T  00000DT goo'c00’z VYV WY puog sEp BIUUE]
091°000'Z 81/6Z/90  %OT1 %OTT  ODO'DODZ 00I'T  000°000°Z 0000002 VYV VY HUE] UBO] JWCH [R4apad
oF¥000z L1/91/90 %180 %GO  EFO'TOOT (o) 2L 00STOOT 000'000°2 VWV YWY puog IE 31ppaid
00¥'666TS 91/0Z/90  %8Ee %8ED  000'000°2% SS€  000000°Z$ 000'000°2$ vww /N NUEg Uuo*] JWOH [RISPS,
sappuy 15-0* WLI2405) "S'
096'6663 %90 EF8'666% ST £oF666$ 000°000'T$ ssumseal], s [Feaqns
096'666% ST/ST/ZT %90 %ETD  EFA'GEES ST 60l  E9F'666% 000°000°T$ Wy V/N ajoN Amseal], 50
0N L£mseas], Sf
600'2L8°ES BT 000 LE'ES 0% 000 LIS 0O0PLES S0 paidjosg [e10Iqng
LEITHZ 0Z/20/0T  WMSTT  %ETZ D04'D¥E £z81 000'0¥Z 000°0FE ¥/N yueg AueanpAg
TS 0Z/1E/L0  WIET  %STT 000'E LZB1 000%+Z 000FFZ ¥/N dang YN aseuyD Wdl
06T%¥2 0Z/6Z/L0  WISZ  %ST'T 000'%FZ LZ81 000'FFEZ 000%H2 v/N dmg VN VSN jued DESH
TE0'0VE ar/et/i0  WOLT  %OL'T 000'0FE 4601 000°0%Z 00002 ¥/N uounua) $Sa1dyy ueIjIay
1£0°0¥2 BI/OT/L0 %OLT  %OLT 000'0¥Z £60T 000°0¥Z 00004 v/N yueg ssazdxg ueasuY
T50%2 T/LT/T0 %OVT  %OFI 000'0¥2 ST6 000072 000'0%2 V/N EJLIBUY LN Jo Jued MG
£25°0h2 8r/9t/T0  %OFT  %0¥1 000°0F2 916 000042 000°0F2 V/IN VS YUeg SYIEg Uewpjon
£6Z0FZ 8T/9L/T0 %SET  %HSE'T 000'04Z 914 000042 000'0F2 V/N jueg aug [wpdes
826°L¥E LUEL/TT %O1T %OTT o00'eFz ZEL 000'8%2 000'8F2 /N uopE[essy [euonep ueg 433
1Z6'L¥2 LI/90/TT  WSTT  %STT 000°8¥FZ £FL 0o0'8¥e 000'BVZ v/N Nueg e J[[eS
£89°6EZ LULT/L0 SHOZT  %OZT 000042 £EL 000'0¥E 000'0%2 VIN Hueq voiepap
£89°6£2 LULT/L0 WSTT  %ST'T DOACHE 785 000'0%e 000'0¥Z v/N yureg Jaaoosig
9EL6EL LU/EL/L0  %STT  %STT 000'0¥E €L 000°0%Z 000042 v/N yueg [eide) Ajuswen
2oLFYE LI/LT/T0 %E8'0  %E8D 000'SHT 255 000'S¥Z 000582 v/N yueg ssedutes
1916527 LU/LT/10 %080 %080 000'0FZ 75§ 000°0¥Z 000'0bzZ ¥/N UOREI0S5Y [RUONEN aug [ende]
9L%rZ$ LU0 %080 %080 000'5FZS 155 000'5%Z% 000'sFZ$ v/N yueg A
(sap) asodaq jo saEIPPI) pasayoIg
(PRI STUSUESAM]
anfep ELT] [umey | vodno) INEA UonEZpJomWy | (5A8q) JUNCULY UNoWy SAPOON ]| d¥S |SAPOOH | 495 L
AR Tumey | MPRR % RTenue] ST e T 3j5eg 1907 Tid UHEY YpodD | sseypang
% NISEDNVHD | Supeyapag
9402 ‘L& Arentiep
papuT YU

BIING JUSLASSA0] pUE [JSeD
ADNIOV SILILN SYIdNT GN'YINI



SOBLE0FILS £1S'0S6'E9LE 9F9'SeTPOTS PRIFITHILS 9102 1€ C1onubffo sb s)sodsq pa1oLisay pup SIUGREGFPAU] YSD] [0I0L,
L¥T 98198 L¥Z9819% GZLEOL'C9%  SCLEOLEZY sysodog passpnssy [e0L
TL6'8TS 1/6'01% 1L6'8T§ 1L6°8T$ syjsoda(] moIsg [M03qng
TL6'8T$ VIN v/N | #4321 ¥/N V/N  1L6%8TS 1L6'8TS MOI3SE UOPRIOEUCD S[S3USD
ssodag molsa
ZT¥BSL9% TZ¥'BEL0% 000°000°L8 000'000't$ sysodad SYAd{eD [=omns
ZZ¥'85L95 Y¥/N viN TZV8SL 0% ¥IN v/N 00000078 0007000°ZE unoy (LAYED) 9340
sysodad SYAJIED
{ST0Z 'T€ daquIasa(] Jo s [pym parieday)
092'906'15$ 09Z°906'T54 09Z2'906'TS$ 097'906'75% sapualiy Jaquiap Aq pley sipedad VHI2 103039NS
“FETEISE v/N v/N ¥SSBISE ¥/N ¥/N ¥S56ISE PS56LSE pueidn jo Ao
9LLSTHE ¥/N viN SLLSTHE v/N VIN  9LLSTHE 9LLSTH'E STIH oupp Jo A0
1SL2T0% ¥IN v/N 1SL'210°6 ¥/N vIN  ISETIO IS£T10'6 aLEuQ JO O
a19'2i¥'e VIN v/N BI9'ZLYT ¥/N ¥IN  BT92FT 8I9'2LYT Irepquoiy Jo A3
TET'96E'S VIN v/N 1ET'96E'8 VIN ¥/IN  TET'96E'8 TET'96E'8 ruwguod Jo 213
£€9°65¥F°2T VIN viN £E9'65FZT v/IN VN £E9'6SHLT EE9BSHTI 190|483 A3][EA ESUOWEIN]
L6L'6Z9CTS L7 v/N LGL'BZYITS v/N VIN  L6L6ZYTTS LeL'629'2T oupy jo a1
sspwaily 1aquialy £q pleg sytsoda( YAD)
FEVBLT ES FEVRLTES PeVALTES FE¥BLT 5 S1UNOI0Y S0JAJSS 193 [$10L
SLLEEY %000 SLLEED v/N V/IN TSLPEES SLLEE SIUNOIIY 80IAI8E 109 V0T
STLYYST %000 STLWHS'T ¥/N ¥/IN  BTLHST 6TLTPS'E s|unoaay 321133 193 480
S3UN0osY RNV PUE S0{AT8Y 1930
RSN PIRLESY
(5jung §11 -anIDA Jo%I0pY JUBLRSIAL] o 200N08)
T6T 89T LOTS 66ZTRO'LOTS PSEFROTOIS  Z6HESO'TOTS SIUSUMSIAT] [E30 L,
168'660'L$ %Izt YEIROT'LS (8%) TL990T LS 000'050°2$ S230N WIS ], WP [E303qNS
TO6'LL0T BL/90/Z1  HeTT %09T  £95'9L0°7 SHO'T 1699L0°T 000'050'2 VWY VWV Yoselofp
09Z'aL0C 81/50/2Z1  %OTT %EGT  BFELZOT 0T 08FL20'T 000'000'Z YW VWY uosuyof g uosuyof
06666 BI/ST/S0 %991 %EYT  SIT'666 113 LEO'T 000’666 000'000'T e B 0D i3 aseny ueiopy 4f
06+'966 tt/ot/ot %ITT %OTT  08F'T00T (11 ¥5LT 0009001 000°000'T v v dio7y earde) azas(] uyo(
OFEDOOTS or/ez/z0  %i0T %ETT  BLO0OOTS (e¥) ¥60'T  00S'TOOTS 0a0'000'T$ 334 34 v sapuniag uefioy 4(
TN W) WP
NEA ared ADunel | uedna) BN[EA UORBZpoWY | (EABQ) nolly FUT T S APOOH EE a%S
T Owmaem | MPELA % TiEnie] IS SEeg 1500 TEd SUHEg ypedy | esepand @
% NI ssoNvHD | Supeyapan
9102 ‘L& Arenuer
Popu3 YJuoK

BWIWNG JUsunsaAl] pue |sed
AINIFOV SILLITLLN FHIdNZ ONVINI



S3ps ¥ SIIDJ ‘S3LINIOW FOIOL

JUON
AUmERN 03 pRIL  PIos/paanden AINDag JUBunsaAu] Uonyesuer], ajeq ‘ON
JUSUGSIAU] unoury Ied
Sa[es B S[[B) ‘SepLImey yIaunsaau] Lrenuef
00005001 § sasoyaind [P0l
%SEY'T 000°050°7 $ puog 81e10d.107) 1JOSOLT paseaing 910Z/9z/T ¥
%059'T 000000  § puog s1e1odio) uosuyof 3 uosuyof peseoing  9T0Z/9Z/1 €
%05T 000000 § Jueg UeoT SWOH [BI9P3Y peseypand  9102/9Z/1 T
%SZT 000000 $ Huey UBOT JWCH [RIIPa,] paseyaang 910Z/Z1/T 1
PI=1A paseyaangd AL1023g JUDUISIALU] UOTDesuer], Neq "ON
JUIUWLS3AU] unowy Ied
sasepang Lrenuef

PWIING JUSW]SOAU| pUE [[SED)

910¢ 't Ausnuep
Pepu3 HiuoW

AONTOV SILLITILN FHIdNT ONVINI



ZFSTEL'EOTS
%000°0
EEP86L°298
Y/N 0S0°L1T
V/N N 244y
%0100 Z¥1'6L
%0000 SLLEEY
V/N 199%69
%0000 6TLFFST
¥/N ZZ¥'8SL9
V/N 092'906'T5$
PIRIA PaIsAU] JUDOWY
%8¥ELO
660°CET'TOIS
%O0THT 008'SZ6's$
%0870 008718
%9Z¥'T 000'FLB'E
%IZL0 66Z'L0Z2L6%
WELET — 0£6'7L6'PT
%0¥%9°0 ~ E¥8666
%ZIZT YEOFOT L
%0090 . LLOTISS'Z
%OY¥0 - . BLOLGBYE
2%00£°0 | LEL'TRYTZS
PRIA T Pa1seAl] Junomy

53010125 3upq 10f S32upbq Buppsuaduiod sp pasn spsodaq jjoadng PIISWY fo yubg 10N .

sysodaq paypalj( Huady [e10L

STUROIIY 13410 Jo pIaLL dBniaAy

SPUNOIIY J3FQ [DIO,
+SIUNOD2Y 13110
Juno30y uonesuadwor) SINION - JUEH SSAUISNE SUIZNID
JUNOIY J(IE ASUOW JUSUIISAAUL-21d - NUeg SN
SIUN0IY 901AI3S 1490 VOTOZ -Mied 5N
JUNO22Y PUBWIS(] - JUed SSAuISny SUIZnID)
SJUNODY 3014135 102 8007 - Ued SN
ymoany (LAyH)} 4940 SHAIED
sapuady Jaquiapy Aq p[sH snsodaq vy
a3 X

1LIn3ay fo 10y ofjofiio0d JuauIsIAuy
01]0f1.104 JUSUIISIAL] [DIO]

JUNOJISY JIE ASUO] 1S9 910 JO ueyg
ysodag Jo SaIBIYILISY PAISNOIF - SHUBH SNOLIEA

SIUNO0IY WSunsaAl] pue jsodaq Jueqg

sannuy patosuods TUAUILIaA0D 'S’
sxjoN Amseal] S

SI0N ULIA L WnIpaW

snLI[eD

dIv

(daamg) aseyzandey gg

AT0331e) TUSIISoAU] PR3 11d

gL02 'LE Aienuer
Pspus YiuoW

KeWWNg JuauljSaAl] pue Yysey
AONIOV SIILITILN SHIdINT ONV'INI



ol

%8¢
SIUNOCIIY PAILISIY
%12z

%¥
%ET S3)0N NLIIL, WINIPIA]
(daamg) i
aseyqpandoy gg) I %€
/. nsoda( Jo sajeaynIa)
sne) %S1
sannuy patosuodg
%1 JUIWNLIIAOY) *S'()
sajoN Aseall, sn
ZVS'TIE6'E9T$

(sysodap Mo.1sa Jo 191) of[oJ1I0 Judun)saau] Loualy
9107 ‘1€ Arenue( papug QIUOW 93 10
sIre)Jy [epueur] jo Jodoy s, o0nseal],

Aouaby sannn a.1dug pubpuj




L

%ZT
spuog e[y JIppal]

%¥¥
spuog yueg
ueo] JWOoH [e1apad

%ZE
spuog sy Suue]

%ZT
yueq uLIe] [R1apag

0£6'7L6'VZS
O[[0J3104 Sauy palosucds JUIWUIIACY) "ST)
9102 ‘1€ Arenue| papui qIuop 3y3 104
SITEJJY [eIdDUeUlY Jo 110day s, 1a1nseal],

Aduaby sannnn a41dwg pubjuy




¢l

%1
SaLINSeal], SN

%SZ
sannuy paJosuods

JUSUIWLISACY) "§™()

%12
{doomg)
asegranday agD
%Y
nsoda jo saEYNII)
%L
S3)0N ULIDJ, WINIP3

|
%SE
pun,j JUIUISIAU]
£oualy Jeroq

660'CET'101$
o1j0J1104 Juaumnsasu] Aoualdy pajdrnsarun

9107 ‘1§ Arenue[ papug UOW Y3 10
sIreyy [epueul] jo yoday s, Jaanseal],

Aduaby sannnn aa1dwg puojuj



€l

660°CEL'IOIS

uopnqLSIa Ao oljofitod Jusuiisasu Huaby
9102 ‘1€ Arenue| papuq Yuop 33 104

sIreyy rerueuly jo 1roday s Jaansealnt,

Auaby sann a.nduy puvjuy

— ___ _ — I Y __
%SGl %St L1 %88t %LL'E %86°L %9 9 usdledO
21988'689'G1 9.0'c8s'LL £25'9¢6'Y ev8'6zL LS 000°000°2$ 8.0'000°L% INNW+NLW+dD+3500
282'189°12¢ deamg+Bunjpayp
856861 P8 jsnulje)d + 4lvia

SIA € 4800 S8le8A €0} € sheq 0£l-pa¢ sheq cot-181 sAeq 08l-1L€ sAeq 00 08

\ 000°000°0L$

\ 000°000°02%

\ 000'000°'0£$

\ 000°000'0¥$

\ 000°000'05%

\ 000°'000'09%

000°'000°'02%




14

I'g-L SYIUOW 9=¢= P|BIA IV aley puog 98007 == PISIA AuaSy=e=—
3 > il o s & o iy o 2
o 22 A8 2 ¥ af £ E £ & Jx:
{ o Al o ] Al @ & N & o o o
. . - . - . . %8700 2 : :
————————r
%0700 %890 0 _
%0T0 0 %0100 %0T0 0 %0100 %0100 , ®0Z0 0 KELO'0
%00T 0
%090 0 I\
%800 %ZLOO %5800 —_—
%TIT 0 %S0T 0
HELL O i
%802 0 =
%EFTO %870 %9920
) . %662'0 %0620
faoz0 %00t°0 : %0ZED P %0260
: g %LSE'D
.(/\ %rLEQ
%0ZY 0 n e
%Z8Y 0 -
= .
A %EOS0 %680
P R, ¢ %E6S0
) - M %0790 %EZI0 %BLG0
%SESD aHCH0 %5¥9°0 %gH9'0
A*IWL 0

%0000

%0520

%005°0

%0820

%000°T

B

uospivduoy) pyayf oijofriod rounsasuj LHuaby
SIeyy [epueuly jo tcnoﬁ S I9.INSEIL],

Auaby saunnn a.qydusy pubjuy



INFORMATION
ITEM

4D



-

C

) Inland Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: March 16, 2016
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee (03/09/16)
From P. Joseph Grindsta

General Manager ,
Submitted by: hristina Valencia

Chief Financial Officer/Assistant General Manager

Oﬁ"' Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro
A ¥ ¥ Manager of Finance and Accounting

Subject: FY 2015/16 Second Quarter Budget Variance Report
RECOMMENDATION

This is an informational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.

BACKGROUND

The Budget Variance Report presents the Agency’s financial performance through the second
quarter ending December 31, 2015, includes various analyses in the following attachments:

Exhibit A provides a comparison of actual revenues and expenses against the current FY
2015/16 amended budget including a discussion of major categories with the most
significant variances.

Exhibit B provides a progress status of Division and Department Goals and Objectives as
established in the FY 2015/16 adopted budget.

Exhibit C-1 presents a summary of Operations and Maintenance (O&M) budget transfers
approved by management during the second quarter.

Exhibit C-2 presents a summary of the GM contingency account activity.

Exhibit D lists Board approved budget amendments and management approved budget
transfers for capital and O&M projects.

Attachment A provides a FY 2015/16 financial overview of each of the Agency’s programs,

TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FUNDING SOURCES

Overall, the Agency received total revenues and other funding sources during the second quarter
of FY 2015/16 of $84.7 million, or 38.0% of the amended budget (Exhibit A detail). The following
section highlights key variances:



Budget Variance and Report for Second Quarter Ending December 31, 2015
March 16, 2016
Page 2 of 7

User Charges — User charges were $32.6 million or 48.6% of amended budget. This
category includes $24.7 million from equivalent dwelling unit (EDU) volumetric charges,
$5.3 million for non-reclaimable wastewater fees, $2.6 million for imported potable water
meter service charges, and associated surcharge and other fees.

Recycled Water Sales — Recycled water sales at the end of second quarter were $6.1
million, or 51.4% of the amended budget. Direct sales were $3.9 million at 11,689 acre feet
(AF) and groundwater recharge sales were $2.2 million at 5,997 AF. Total year to date
deliveries of 17,686 AF compared to the 35,150 AF projected for the fiscal year accounts
for the favorable variance. A wet winter season may impact future deliveries due to
reduced demand for recycled water and limit the recharge deliveries to groundwater basins.

MWD Imported Water Sales — Total MWD pass-through imported water revenue was $8.9
million or 21.6% of amended budget. The variance is due to continuous response to the
drought condition and public outreach efforts aimed at reducing water demand. If dry
weather persists, MWD may initiate water supply allocation plan to its member agencies.
In addition, formation of an El Nifio weather pattern could result in normal to above normal
precipitation which could further suppress water demand.

MWD LPP Rebate — Direct recycled water sales in excess of 3,500 AF and up to 17,000
AF are eligible for the Metropolitan Water District (MWD) Local Project Program (LPP)
rebate at a rate of $154/AF, for a maximum amount of $2.1 million per fiscal year. At the
end of the second quarter, the total rebate was $1.3 million for 8,557 AF of credit or 63.4%
of budget.

Property Taxes — Tax receipts at the end of the second quarter were $18.0 million or 43.8%
of the amended budget. General ad-valorem property tax receipts from the San Bernardino
County Tax Assessor (County) was $15.3 million and “pass-through” incremental RDA
taxes received was $2.7 million. Taxes received from the county are estimated to be 12%
higher than taxes received in December of last year. Tax revenue stream is anticipated to
stabilize due to the housing market rebound and increase in the County's property assessed
valuation.

Wastewater Connection Fees — Total wastewater connection fee receipts reported through
the second quarter were $13.1 million or 56.3% of the budget. A total of 2,571 new EDU
connections was reported through December 2015, compared to the 4,330 new EDU
connections budgeted for this fiscal year.

Grants & Loans — Total receipts of $0.8 million or 3.7% of the amended budget were
received during the second quarter. Amended budget is comprised of $8.9 miltion of grants
and $12.3 million of SRF loan proceeds. Grants and loans receipts are cyclical in nature
due to the capital projects spending trend and the multi-year funding for large projects.

Cost Reimbursements — Total cost reimbursements were $2.6 million, or 48.0% of the
amended budget. Reimbursements include $1.7 million from the Inland Empire Regional
Composting Authority (IERCA), $0.6 million from Chino Basin Desalter Authority
(CDA), and $0.3 million from Chino Basin Watermaster (CBWM). Total cost

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16067 FY 2015/16 Board Letter 2Q Budget Variance



Budget Variance and Report for Second Quarter Ending December 31, 2015
March 16, 2016
Page 3 of 7

reimbursement budget of $5.5 million includes; $3.4 million from IERCA, $1.4 million
from CDA, and $0.7 million from CBWM.

s (Other Revenues — Total other revenues were $0.8 million, or 10.7% of the amended
budget, include cost reimbursable projects that are still in the early design phase and lease
revenue for the RP-5 Solids Handling Facility that is on track.

TOTAL EXPENSES AND USES OF FUNDS

The Agency’s total expenses and uses of funds through the second quarter were $76.9 million, or
32.6% of the amended budget.

The amended budget includes $15.6 million of encumbrances and commitments carried forward
from FY 2014/15; $8.3 million for capital projects and $7.3 million of operating (O&M) expenses,
including O&M and reimbursable projects. In accordance with Agency Policy A-81 (Fiscal Year-
End Carry Forward of Encumbrances and Related Budget), carry forward encumbrances,
commitments and related budget not expended by December 31, 2015, are subject to cancellation
unless otherwise approved by Executive Management. At the end of the second quarter, unspent
carry forward was $7,186,071, of which $6,779,109 was extended and $406,962 was returned, as
shown in Table 1.

Table 1: FY 2014/15 Enrcumbrance Carry Forward Status

Specinl Projects

Carried Forward — September 2015 $14,087,352 $1,558,648 $15,646,000
Remaining Carry Forward subject to Reversal $6,643.432 $542,639 $7,186,071
Carry Forward Requested for Extension $6.339,013 $440,096 $6,779,109
Encumbrance Returned — January 2016 $304,419 $102,543 $406,962

Key expense variance highlights are:

e Employment Expenses — Employment expenses were $20.1 million or 49.4% of amended
budget. Higher than anticipated vacancy factor of 12.4%, equivalent to 36 full-time (FTE)
positions, compared to budgeted vacancy rate of 4% (12 FTEs), provide savings in wages
and benefits. Savings were partially offset by a $3 million payment towards pension
unfunded liabilities and other post-empioyment (OPEB) benefits.

o Professional Fees & Services — Total expenses were $3.1 million, or 28.8% of the
amended budget. The positive variance can be attributed to the timing of contracts and
services that are anticipated to be executed in the subsequent months for:

= Contract labor & contract materials for dig alerts, troubleshooting secondary
system evaluation, treatment process improvements, and asset management;

* Deferral of consultant services to perform analyses; research and studies for
Planning & Environmental Compliance Department related to new water, recycled
water, and regional wastewater capital function; earthwork and debris removal at
the basins; and financial services to address taxes and LAFCO issues.

o Chemicals — Chemicals through the second quarter were $1.9 million, or 41.6% of the
amended budget.

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16067 FY 2015/16 Board Letter 2Q Budget Variance



Budget Variance and Report for Second Quarter Ending December 31, 2015
March 16, 2016
Page 4 of 7

= Sodium Hypochlorite — favorable variance is a result of the actual price per unit at
$0.55 per gallon lower than the budgeted costs of $0.587 per gallon coupled with
low actual flows. It is anticipated that the consumption of this category will increase
during the winter months as flows increase and the metabolism of microorganisms
slows down.

* Ferric Chloride - The reduced amount of raw waste water treated due to critical
aeration equipment rehabilitation resulted to lower spending at this category. Year
to date raw waste treated is 292,744 pounds at $0.18 per pound.

While most chemicals were very close to targeted costs, others such as the buffers and
chemical solutions used for maintenance instrumentation and calibration, and the
continued monitoring of chemical usage and process optimization contribute to the overall
favorable category variance.

Utilities — Expenses in this category were $4.9 million or 44.4% of the amended budget.

* Electricity costs were higher than budgeted due to peak rate at $0.137/kWh incurred
between July and September. The current average rate of imported electricity of
$0.119/kWh is lower than the budgeted rate of $0.125/kWh. Mid-year usage was
measured at 35,084,262 kWh, or 50% of annual agency average of 70,000,000
kWh.

* Natural gas was favorable due to a lower gas rate averaging $0.45/therm compared
to the budgeted rate of $0.80/therm. Average usage was measured at 446,096
therms, or 36% of annual agency average of 1,200,000 therms.

* Fuel cell is only operating at half rated capacity and producing electricity lower
than the expected output.

= Solar energy is slightly lower than the budgeted amount for the second quarter.
Electricity generated from solar power is directly related to the amount of sunlight
experienced during the year.

MWD Imported Water Purchases — Total MWD pass-through imported water purchases
were $8.9 million for 15,345 AF or 21.6% of 50,000 AF budgeted for the fiscal year. Based
on the volume year-to-date, the amended budget will be reduced to $29.6 million, from
$41.4 million. The MWD imported water pass-through sales revenue will be reduced
respectively.

Special and Reimbursable Projects — O&M project expenditures were $2.5 million or
8.8% of the amended budget. The Chino Basin Groundwater Wells and Raw Water
Pipeline project budgeted for this fiscal year at $9.0 million, or 32% of the amended budget,
has been delayed due to the ongoing discussions. The CDA has initiated project
management with Michael Baker International, but design and construction will not begin
until ongoing discussions and terms are completed.

Capital Projects—Total capital project expenditures were $13.2 million or 25.6% of the
amended budget of $51.4 million, amended budget includes a net of $8.0 million carry
forward from prior fiscal year. Regional Wastewater projects account for approximately
56.0% of total capital project costs through the second quarter, and 36% were related to
Recycled water projects.

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16067 FY 2015/16 Board Letter 2Q Budget Variance



Budget Variance and Report for Second Quarter Ending December 31, 2015
March 16, 2016
Page 5 of 7

As of December 31, 20135, there were fifteen (15) projects identified as eligible for closure
which total to approximately $4.6 million.

Table 2 below identifies projects with project budget over $500,000 which are not
projected to be expended in the current fiscal year. These projects account for
approximately $7.7 million, or 15% of the amended budget. Spending levels are largely
driven by changes in project scope and schedule, construction bid results, regulatory issues,
and available resources associated with such undertakings.

Table 2: Project Budget Not Planned to be Expended in FY 2015/16

s Debt Service — Total principal, interest, financial expenses and inter-fund loan for the
second quarter were $12.1 million or 51.8% of the amended budget. The 2008B Variable
Rate Demand Bonds interest rate continues to stay below the budgeted 1% rate, with the
actual rate averaging 0.013% year to date, resulting to $0.4 million in savings.

A detailed explanation of significant revenue and expenses are included in the attached Exhibit A.
FUND BALANCES AND RESERVES

The net result through the end of the second quarter indicated an increase of $7.8 million in total
fund balance, resulted in an ending fund balance of $153.9 million. Change in the level of
revenues, such as; the timing of receipts and expenditures, staff’s continuous effort to improve and
identify opportunities to reduce expenditures and timing or deferred execution of projects
accounted for the increase. Table 3 provides an overview of the second quarter budget variance
in revenue, expense, and fund balance.

3 Winerille £t Recy Wir Fipeline Seg A 1106242 Z135,354 1029112 Completed under budget with 2 4% change arder fatio,

ENL3001  San Savaine Besin Improvements 2535342 3,300,000 974,658  Comatroction slated to begin later in the fiecal year. Major portion of budget toal to
carvied foeward o FY 201516,
ENI345  Winevilie RW Pxteasion Sepnent B 1,639,135 2,508,255 867,120  Nearly complete and projectsd to finich beler the FY tudget.
ENIIHE  EP-1930-Zone R Pump Station Load 19,516 1,000,006 780484  Anexiensive anabysic of the RP-1 existing inad is eaquired prior to Lzwnching the
Analysis dexign. The matority of the budget will be convumed in FY16:17.
EN13016  SCADA Frterpriss System 3,190,282 400,000 1009718 Project is progressing with less than antictpated mannowver and with mirml change
anders. Contract nagotiation resulted in $400,000 of savings. Additionaly, work on
Phase 2 requires upfront as-bailding prior tn design.
ENIS008  New Water Quality Laboratory 854,301 1,700,000 845,690  Based on original TYCIP allocation, some of the FY15/16 budget belougs to e
consruction phace which will begin i FY18:17,
EN11031  BP-5 Flow Eqpualization and Effivent 142857 1,255,263 [,112406  The project scope was modified o meet Agency operating requirements. Conract
Moattocing modifications are underway and renlted in detays.
ENI401¢  RP-l Eeadwotks Gate Replacement 185,558 00000 51444)  The project evatnation period was extended based on review of project expeptatioms
and Stakeholder requireraents.
EN16024  RP-1Mixed Liquor Retura Pumpe 3978714 1,000,000 602,126  The project evalation perind was exented based on review of project expecttions
and Stakeholder requirernemts.
Total 10261107 17996472 5,148

Sowrce: ZCM project Status-GM Report Fabruzry 2016

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16067 FY 2015/16 Board Letter 2Q Budget Variance



Budget Variance and Report for Second Quarter Ending December 31, 2015
March 16, 2016
Page 6 of 7

Table 3: Second Quarter Revenues, Expenses, and Fund Balance {($Millions)
Second

FY 201516 o Actual %
Amended Quarier ol Amended
Rud Ended Budo
Meged 1231/15 uEgEt
Operating Revenue $1310 $52.7 402 %
Operating Expense $160.5 $513 31.9%
Operating Net Increase/(Decrease) ($29.5) $1.4
Non- Operating T e e
Non-Operating Revenue $91.6 $320 34.9%
Non-Operating Expense $752 $25.6 34.0%
Non-Operating Net Increase/(Decrease) $16.4 $6.4
FY 2015/16 "ﬁ‘;‘;’;‘ff Actual %
Consolidated Amended s of Amended
Budget ) 1' 3115 Budget
Total Sources of Funds $2226 $84.7 380%
Total Uses of Funds $2357 $76.9 326%
Total Net Increase/(Decrease) ($13.1) $7.8
Beginning Fund Balance $146 1 $14611
Ending Fund Balance $133.0 $153.9
GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

Exhibit B provides information on division and related department goals and objectives and the
status of each through the end of the fiscal year. The goals and objective indicators are used to
track the volume and complexity of work by type and to track the effort invested to accomplish
that work. Staff will use the indicators to track productivity and to justify current resource
allocations, re-allocation and requests for additional staff.

BUDGET TRANSFERS AND AMENDMENTS

O&M budget transfers for this quarter accounted for $27,506 as detailed in Exhibit C-1.

General Manager (GM) Contingency Account budget for $500,000 includes $400,000 in the
Regional Wastewater Operations & Maintenance (RO) Fund and $100,000 in the Administrative
Services (GG) Fund. At the end of the second quarter, $70,000 from the GG Fund was utilized to
support the unexpected and necessary expenscs as listed in Exhibit C-2.

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16067 FY 2015/16 Board Letter 2 Budget Variance



Budget Variance and Report for Second Quarter Ending December 31, 2015
March 16, 2016
Page 7 of 7

Capital and O&M projects budget transfers accounted for approximately $2.0 million, including
changes in total project budget of approximately $0.5 million approved by management during the
second quarter as listed in Exhibit D.

The budget variance analysis report is consistent with the Agency’s business goal of Fiscal
Responsibility: to demonstrate the Agency appropriately funded operational, maintenance, and capital
costs.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

None.
IMPACT ON BUDGET

The net increase in total revenues over total expenses in the amount of $7.8 million resulted in a
total estimated fund balance of $153.9 million, for the second quarter ended December 31, 2015.

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16067 FY 2015/16 Board Letter 2} Budget Variance



Afttachment A
Firancial Overview of Agency’s Programs
FY 2015/16 Second Quarter ended December 31, 2015
Total Revenues, Expenses, and Fund Balance

Regional Wastewater Capital Improvement (RC) Fund

e The fund balance indicated an increase of $3.6 million compared to the amended budget due to low capital

spending and debt service payments.
Total Revenues Total Expenses Total Reserves
¥TD Actual to Amended: 49.9% YD Actual to Amended: 35.1% ¥TD Actual to Amended
560 . Fund Balance: 106.2%
! 560 $70
E o s g 1 $61.6
3% Eso s 59 $3@ s smo
0 | $40 s=0 |
i .
$20 - $2a8 $30 i
; $30
$20 1
| 520 s2;0
510 i $w i $10 :
SD + so S0 :
onench d":v" ;‘Ws:: Auoptm ¥TD Actuaks Adopted Amended YD Actuals
: Cumecﬁn:?::s : " : Ta: reales ® Employment Expensas m Administrative Expenses
B Grants/Losns 1PA Cost =.0p b ol
Other Revenues Transfers In ™ Debt Service * Transfers Out aie—

Regional Wastewater Operations and Maintenance (RO} Fund

o The fund balance increase of $10.4 million compared to the amended budget due to the delayed execution
of capital replacement and rehabilitation projects.

Total Revenues Total Expenses Total Reserves
YID Actual to Amended: 45.1% ¥YTD Actual to Amended: 37.0% YTD Actual to Amended
Fund Balance: 128.2%

490
- 590 $82.9 a
g a0 5775 $715 E o0 §7%.0 é s50 $47.2
s s70 = = $70 H

| $40 5363

$E0 $60 $324

550 $50 - 53

340 $35.7

I $40 $30.7

$30 I s30 520

520 - ‘

$10 $10 4

50 $0 - = 50
Adopted Amended  YTD Actuals Adopted Amended  YTD Actuals Adopted  Amended YD Actuals

= Senvice Charges w Recycled Water Sales | 5 gmployment Expenses m Administrative Expense
2| ConneciionFees W Property Tax Operating Expenses W Capital Program
¥ Grants/Loans JPA Cost Reimburseme Debt Sarvi : Out = Fund Balance
:_Other Revenyas « Transters In n ce Transfers Ou

Page 1



Recycled Water (WC) Fund

Attachment A

e The fund balance indicated a decrease of $0.6 million compared to the amended budget due to lower
grants and loan receipts linked to the level of capital spending. The Agency will begin collecting water

comnection fees in January 2016.

$16 -

a St -

512
510
s8
$6
$4
52
50

Total Reserves
¥TD Actual to Amended
Fund Balance: 94.2%

$14.4
I $104 508
Adopted Amencied  YTD Agtuals
" Fund Balance

Total Revenues Total Expenses
¥YTD Actual to Amended: 27.3% ¥TD Actual to Amended: 33.35%
o 540 5379
é $347 $3s7 E | sas
5 535 % $35 i
55 §5
$20 s
515 $15 ; $126
597
$10 $10
$o 50
= Serice:ch #&ggted Arnumyd' " Mra'l;grmk Adopted Amended YTD Actuals
% Connection Fees = Property Tax & Employment Expsnses % Adminlstrative Expenses
® Grants/Loans P4 Cost Reimbursement Operating Expenses ® Capital Program
Other Revenues * Transfers In ™ Debt Service © Transfers Out
Recharge Water (RW) Fund

» The fund balance shows a slight increase of $0.5 million compared to the amended budget due to the
timing of operations and maintenance services.

1
Tatal Revenues Total Expenses i Total Reserves
YTD Actual to Amended: 23.0% YTD Actual to Amended: 22.7% i ¥YTD Actual to Amended
Fund Balance: 117.7%

§50 550 1 40
i sas é s o sa2 ;

$40 $36 $26 540

535 35 334 53.4

$30 I 530

$25 | 525 $30 $25

§20 520

5

$15 51 510

510 508 $10

sos so.s .

500 = : s08 .

Adopted Amended YTD Actuak =
Adopted Amended YTD Actuals Ad d ded Yo "
 Service Charges ® Recyced Water Sakes  Employment Exp B A ive Exp opte £men .
g e nh“::“ B et T % Operating Expenses  Capital Program # Fund Balance
| o oOther Revenues * Transfers In # Debt Service * Transfers Out

Page 2




Non-Reclaimable Wastewater (NRW) Fund

Attachment A

The fund balance indicated an increase of $0.4 million compared to the amended budget due to delay of

capital and administrative expenses.
Total Revenues Total Expenses Total Reserves
¥YTD Actual to Amended: 44.6% ¥TD Actual to Amended: 41.6% ¥TD Actual to Amended
$14 Fund Balance: 109.2%
» 914 E $12.3 . 98
E $12.1 $124 PR i $122 g
s = L 4.8
i S4.4
$10 510 ',
| $4
sa » $29
53
$6 %6 $5.1
54 4 ' 52
52 $2 | $1
S0 50 0
Amended  YTD Actuals Adopted Amended Y70 Actuals Adopted Amended YT Actuals
u Service I:Iurges m Recycled Water Sales = Empioyment Expenses = Administrative Expenses
Connection Fees W Property Tax 5 Operating Expenses o Capltal Program
® GrantsfLoans - JPA Cost Reimbursement N Debt Service ¢ Transfers Out = Fund Batance
Other Revenues Transfers in Total Exp

Administrative Services (GG) Fund

s The fund balance indicated an increase of $4.1 million compared to the amended budget due to lower than
budgeted spending in office & administration, professional fees & services, and capital project.

Total Revenues Total Expenses Total Reserves
YTD Actual to Amended: 59.4% ¥TO Actual to Amended: 31.0% YTD Actual to Amended
Fund Balance: 122.5%
-] $10 530
i 57 i 59 g
8 l 5209 $224
$5.2 552 57 $20 5183
i 36
| .
¥ 431 510
5 : e
l .
. - - §
2
st i 51 * Adopted Amended  YTD Actual
op! 5
Adopted YD Actuak | o
= Service Charges o Recycled Water Sales | 3 Em#ayn!nt Expenses m Administrative Expenses = Fund Balance
= Connection Fees = Property Tax = Operating Expenses W Capital Program
W Grantsfioans JPA Cost Reimb m Debt Service « Transfers Out

Page 3




Water Resources (WW) Fund

Attachment A

¢ The fund balance indicates an increase of $2.5 million compared to the amended budget due to lower
special project spending which are eligible for reimbursements. The amended expense budget includes
$4.0 miltion of O&M and reimbursable project carry forward.

Total Reverues Total Expenses
Total Reserves
YTD Actual to Amended: 21,4% :
YTD Actual to Amended: 22.1% YTD Actual to Amended
5 70 Fund Balance: 213.3%
E w $70
g ] $5.0
460 §55,1 $55.1 = $58.8 s47
E g se0 $54.5 $45
$50 ¢s50 $4.0
535
40
| N =
430 s30 - $25 $2.2
! $20
$20 ¢ $20 $1.6
1 s11.8 $13.0 $15
s10 & | 510 i i 510
$0 b - . $0 i $0D -
Adapted amended YTD Actuak Adopted Amended YTD Actuals Adopted PN s
u Service Charges # Recyded Water Sales - . & Administrative E
& Connection Fees W Property Tax . i Crodes
o Gramtsfloans JPA, Cost Refmbursement Operating Expenses % Capital Program = Fund Balance
Other Revenues * Transfersin & Debt Service Transfers Out

Page 4




{\h‘ it Epive ditilities Agency

| A RELINITIPAL WATER DISTEICT

|. Actual vs. Budget Summary:

Second Quarter Ended December 31, 2015

Exhibit A

% of the Year
Elapsed: 50%

Adopted Amended Second Quarter
Annual Annual Ended % of Amended
Budget Budget 12/31/2015 Amended vs. Actual Budget
Operating Revenues $130,814,725 $131,024,725 $52,720,308 (78,304,417) 40.2%
Non-Operating
(Other Sources of Fund) 91,839,772 91,629,772 31,988,764 {59,641,008) 34.9%
TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES 222,654,497 222,654,497 84,709,072 {137,935 425 C38.0%
Administrative & Operating
Expense (152,929,623) (160,533,917) (51,283,848) 109,250,068 31.9%
CIP Expense (43,886,402) (51,408,476 (13,175,362) 38,233,114 25.6%
Debt Service / Financial
Expense (23,802,656) (23,802,657) (12,408,953} 11,393,704 52.1%
TOTAL USES OF FLINDS {220,618,681) (235,745,050) {76,868,163) 158,876.887 32 6%
Surplus/(Deficit) 2,035,816 i13,000,5%7) 7,840,909 20,931,462 -59.9%
Actual vs. Annnal Budget
For the Quarter
Ended December 31, 2015
$250 r
| E 3200 |
E 450 |
100 |- e
i 31.9%
450 _ZE!T_ PR - _._.s.i._i;..‘.... e
s0 h I e —
Total Funding Sources Administrative & Cperating CIP Expense Debt Service / Finanelal Expense
Expense
# Amended &) 5econd Quarter
Annual Ended
Budget 12/31/2015

Page 1



2. Actual Revenue vs. Budget:

% of the Year
Elapsed: 50%
Adopted Amended Second Quarter
Annual Annual Ended % of Amended
Budget Budget 12/31/2015 Amended vs, Actual Budget
Operating Revenues:
User Charges $67,040,941 $67,250,941 $32,666,590 $34,584,351 48.6%
Recycled Water Sales 11,942,682 11,942,682 6,141,467 5,801,215 51.4%
MWD Water Sales 41,440,829 41,440,829 8,931,023 32,509,806 21.6%
MWD LPP Rebate 2,079,000 2,079,000 1,317,732 761,268 63.4%
Property Tax - OBM 1,792,530 1,792,530 785,684 1,006,846 43.8%
Cost Relmbursement 5,482,843 5,482,843 2,629,186 2,853,657 48.0%
Interest 1,035,900 1,035,900 248,626 TBT,274 24.0%
OPERATIRG REVENUES 130,814,725 131,024,725 52,720,308 78,304,417 40.2%
Non-Operating Revenues;
Property Tax - Debt,
Capital, Reserves 539,364,099 539,364,099 517,253,692 §22,110,407 43.8%
Connection Fees $23,329,423 $23,329,423 $13,124,856 $10,204,567 58.3%
Grants & Loans 21,257,262 21,257,262 787,794 20,469,468 3.7%
Other Revenue 7,888,988 7,678,988 B22,422 6,856,566 10.7%
NON-OPERATING
REVENUES 91,639,772 91,629,772 31,988,764 59,641,008 34 9%
Total Revenues $222,654,497 $222,654,497 $84,709,072 $137,945,425 38.0%
UserCharges, 48.6% User charges were $32.6 million, or 48.6% of the Amended Budget. The category includes equivalent dweiling

unit (EDU} volumetric charges of $24.7 million, $5.3 million Non-Reclaimable wastewater fees paid by ndustrial
and commercial users connected to the brine line system; $2.6 million for water meter service charge to meet
our Readiness-to-Serve obligation from MWD and water use efficiency programs; and for imported potable water
surcharge, and other service charges.

.0 million in pft;iﬁerty tax receipts incuded $15.3 nﬂllf;;';i‘“géneral ad-valorem property tax from the
San Bernardino County and $2.7 million in “pass-through” incremental taxes (RDA). Taxes received from the
county are estimated to be 12% higher compared to taxes received in December of last year. Tax revenue stream
is anticipated to stabilize due to the housing market rebound and increase in the County's property assessed
valuation.

'Ee.éycled Water_'Sales, 51.4% Recycled water actual direct and groundwa“ vater Fécharﬁg salesv\;ereSB‘J ‘million (1 1,;89 AF)-a_r-ldm gZZmlll'ion

(5,997 AF) respectively, for a combined total $6.1 million or 51.4% of the budget, Total year to date deliveries is
17,686 AF compared to the 35,150 AF projected for the fiscal year. A wet winter season may Impact future
deliveries due to reduced demand for recycled water and lmit the recharge deliveries to groundwater basins.

Interest Income, 24.0%

interest Income i $0.3 million or 24,0% of the annual budget, The current low interest rate environment
accounts for low Interest earnings with average sweep and LAIF pooled investments yilelding 0.325% compared to
the budgeted interest rate of 0.50%. The recent increase In the Federal rate from 0% to 0.25% resulted to having
very little impact on the interest rates eaming being offered.

‘MWD Water Sales, 21.6%

‘MWD PP Rebates, 63.4%

Tokak MWD pass-through imported water revenus was $8.9 million or 21.6% of amended budget. The variance is
due to the continuous response to drought condition and public outreach efforts aimed at reducing water. If dry
weather persists, MWD may initiate water supply allocation plan to its member agencies. In addition, if the
formation of an El Nino weather pattern happens, this could result in normal to above normal precipitation which
could further suppress water demand. A total of 15,345 AF of pass through water was delivered at the end of the
second quarter compared to 50,000 AF budgeted for FY 2015/16. The current projection indicates the imported
water sales will go below 50,000 AF, The initiat sales projection of 541.4 million decrease to approximately $29
million, As a result the MWD water purchases will be reduced respectively.

MWD LBP rebate is budgeted at 52,1 rmillion or $154/AF for direct recycled water deliveries up to 17,000 AFY,
excluding the initial 3,500 AFY. Total rebate of $1.3 million or 63,4% of budget, a total of 8,557 AF was applied
for at the end of the second quarter.

Wastewater Connection
Fees, 56.3%

Member agencies reported 513.1 million or 56.3% of the budget. A total of 2,571 new wastewater connections
were reported by member agencies through December compared to the budgeted new EDU connections for FY
2015/16 of 4,330.

Page 2



t grant and loan receipts total $0.8 million for the second quarter or just 3.7% of the annual budget of
$21.2 million. Grants are budgeted at $8.9 million for the Regional Recycled Water Distributfon System, ground
water supply wells and basins, water quality laboratory and drought and water conservation. SRF loan recefpts
are budgeted at $12.3 million for Wineville area and other recycled water projects and the new water quality
laboratory. Grant and loan revenues are cydlical in nature due to capital projects spending trends and the multi-
year funding for large projects.

‘Cost Reimblrsements JPA,
48.0%

Total cost reimbursements were $2.6 million, or 48.0% of the amended budget. Category actual includes
reimbursements of $1.7 million from the Inland Empire Regional Composting Authority {IERCA), $0.6 millicn frem
Chino Basin Desalter Authority (CDA)}, and $0.3 million from Chino Basin Watermaster (CBWM). Total cost
reimbursement budget of $5.5 miklion Includes; $3.4 million from IERCA, $1.4 million from CDA, and $0.7 million
from CBWM,.

O'f‘h'é;_Révenues, 10.7%

Total other revenues were 50,8 million, or 10.7% of the amended hudget. Lower levels of revenues in this
category is due to the majority of reimbursable projects that are still in the earty design phase, Other revenues
include $0.5 million from lease revenue for the RP-5 Solids Handling Facility, $0.3 million in project
reimbursements,

Page 3



3. Actual Cperating and Capital Expense vs. Budget;

% of the Year
Elapsed: 50%
Adopted Amended Second Quarter
Annual Annual Ended % of Amended
Budget Budget 12/31/2015 Amended vs. Actual Budget
Operating Expenses:
Employment 540,609,906 $40,609,906 $20,079,646 $20,530,260 49.4%
Admin & Operating 112,319,117 119,924,011 31,204,202 $88,719,80% 26.0%
OPERATING EXPEMSES $152,929,623 $160,533,917 551,283,848 $109,250,068 31.9%
MNon-Cperating Expenses:
Capital 43,386,402 51,408,476 13,175,362 $38,233,114 25.6%
Debt Service and All Other
Expenses 23,802,656 23,802,657 12,408,952 £11,393,705 52.1%
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES $67,689,058 $75,211,133 $25,584.315 §49,626,819 34 0%
Total Expenses $220,618,681 $235,745,050 $76,868,163 $158,876,887 32.6%
Employment Expense Employment , 49.4%

This category includes hoth wages and benefits. Employment expenses were $20.1 million or approximately
49.4% of the Amended Budget. Higher than anticipated vacancy factor of 12.4% (36 positions) compared to
budgeted vacancy rate of 4% (12 positions) provides savings in wages and benefits. These savings were partially
offset by $3 million of pension costs associated with unfunded liabilities and other post-employment benefits.

Administrative & Operating
Expense

Office and Administrative,26.7%

The favorable variance was due to the inclusion of the GM contingency for $430,000 under this category
(Exclusion of this account will result to 32.3% of budget). Expenses related to conferences and training were
lower than budgeted but are expected to increase when training related courses will be made available and
attended by employees in the coming months. Other unspent items such as contributions, sponsorships,
subscriptions, and advertising are antfcipated to be spent within the fiscal year.

Professional Fees & Services , 28.8%

Variance is attributed to the timing of contracts and services that are anticipated to be executed in the
subsequent months for: {1) contract labor & contract materials for dig alerts, troubleshooting secondary
system evaluation, treatment process improvements, and asset management; (2) deferral of consultant services
to perform analyses; research and studies for Planning & Environmental Compliance Department related to new
water, recycled water, and regional wastewater capital function; earthwork and debris removal at the basins;
and financial services to address taxes and LAFCQ fssues,

Materials & Supplies/Leases/Contribution , 39.4%

The favorable variance was primarily due to staff's ongoing effort to monitor operational equipment usage to
ensure maximum use from supplies, replacement parts and consumables used by treatment plants/facilities such
as pumps, conveyors, process analyzer, mechanical & electrical devices for motor, control panels, and valve
actuators.

Biosolids Recycling , 33.7%

Residual disposal is under budget due to the optimization of the RP-1 centrifuge and the continuous use of the
solar pad at RP-2 to further dry biosolids which helps reduce operating costs. Total tonnage shipped to I[ERCA was
approx. 28,000 tons at $54 per ton accounted for 43% of the annual projected tonnage of 64,600. Total tonnage
hauled was approx. 20,900 tons at $5.60- $6.00 per ton which is lower than the budgeted transportation cost of
$7.67 per ton.

Chemicais , 41.6%

Chemicals through the second quarter were $1.9 million or 41.6% of budget. Favorable variance was due to
sodium hypechlorite's actual price per unit at $0.55 per gallon lower than the budgeted cost of $0.587 per
gaiton coupled with low actual flows. This category s anticipated to increase during the winter months as flows
increase and the metabolism of microorganisms slows down. Ferric chioride’s lower actual cost at $0.18 per
pound compared to budget cost of $0,276 per pound in addition to the reduced amount of raw waste water
treated due to critical agration equipment rehabilitation resulted to lower spending at this category. While most
chemicals were very close to targeted cnsts, others such as the buffers and chemical solutions used for
maintenance instrumentation and calibration are lower than budgeted. The continued monitoring of chemical
usage and process optimization contribute to the overall favorable category variance.

Page 4




MWD Water Purchases , 21.6%

Total MWD pass-through water purchases were $8.9 million or 15,345 AF compared to 50,000 AF budgeted.
Based on the volume year-to-date, the amended will be reduced from $41.4 million to $29.6 million. The MWD
imported water pass-through sales revenue will be reduced respectively.

Utilities , 44.4%

Electricity usage were higher than budgeted due to peak rate at $0.137/kWh incurred between July and
September. Current average rate for imported electricity of 50.119 versus 50.125/kWh budgeted rate. Mid-year
usage was measured at 35,084,267 kWh against annual agency average of 70,000,000 kwh.

Natural gas expense fs low due to the lower gas rate averaging 50.45/therm compared to the budgeted rate of
$0.80/therm and lower usage measured at 446,096 therms compared to annual agency average of 1,200,000
therms.

Fuel Cell is operating half rated capacity and producing electricity lower than the expected output.

Solar energy is slightly lower than the budgeted amount for the second quarter. Electricity generated from solar
power is directly related to the amount of sunlight experienced during the year.

Special and Reimbursable Projects , 7.5% and 43%

The combined special and reimbursable project expenditures were $2.5 million or 8.8% of the Amended Budget.
The favorable variance is mainly due to the Chino Basin Groundwater Wells and Rew Water Pipeline budgeted at
9.0 million or 32% of the amended budget which has been delayed due to the ongelng settlement negotiations
with the Reglonal Board. The table below provides a summary of the major projects and current status.

Financial Expenses

Financial Expense , 51.8%
Total financial expenses were $12.1 million or 51.8% through the second quarter. Actual costs included 56.8

million in principal payments and $5.3 million in interest, interfund loan and other financial administration fee
£xpense.

Capital Expense

Capital Costs , 25.6%

Capital actual expenditures through the second quarter were $13.2 million or 25.6% when compared to the
amended budget of $51.4 millfon. The amended budget includes encumbrances and related budget of $8.0
million of capttal project budget carried forward/reversed from FY 2014/15. Approximately 7.7 million or 15%
of the amended budget has been identified to not be spent in this fiscal year (see details at the board letter).
Spending levels are largely driven by changes in project scope and schedule, construction bid results, regulatory
issues, and external resources associated with such undertakings. Actual cost related to Regional Wastewater
projects were $7.4 million or 56% of actual costs and $4.8 million or 36% of the actual costs were related to
Recycled Water projects. Listed below is a brief status report for some of the major projects currently under
construction.

Summary of major capltal and speclal project expenses and status as of December 31, 2015

Capital Project

Budgeted
Amount
Remaining

Amended YTD
FY 2015/16 Expenditure

EN13016

EN13001

EN13045

EN15008

SCADA Enterprise System 4,200,000 2,622,499 1,577,601

The project wil convert the existing control and workrooms into new server and control rooms at CCWRF, RP-1, RP-4, and RP-5 to
be utliized In the migration of the SCADA systam. The server and control rooms will serve the long-term needs of the facility, and will
provide Operations and Integraled System Seevicas staff with improved faciities to support the operation and maintenance of the
process. The CCWRF portion of the project is currently In construction and estimated to be complete by the end of the sacond
quarter.

San Sovaine Basin Improvements 3,500,000 124,191 3,375,809

It is projected that budget will not be expended this fiscal year since majority of the expense is within construction phase which will
bagin later in the fiscal year. The capital call will be reduced to reflect the major expenses occurring in the following fiscal year.

Winevlile Extenslon Recycled Water Plpeline Segment B 2,506,256 1,471,085 1,035,171
This prolect is near s complstion phase and the remaining budgst for this fiscal year will not be expended.

Water Quality Laboratory 1,700,000 432,307 1,267,693
It is projected that budget will not be expended this fiscal year since construction phase is anticipated to in FY 2016/17.

0O&M & Reimbursable Projects Amended L,

Budgeted
Amount

FY 201516 Expenditure Remaining

EN16021

WR16007

Chino Basln Groundwater 9,000,000 56,046 8,943,964

The project work has been delayed due to the ongoing settlement negotiations with the Regional Board, CDA has Intiated project
management with Michael Baker [nternational, but design and construstion will not bagin until Reglonal Board settiement is
complete, per IEUA's agreement with CDA. The Regional Board is expected to present the proposad setliement o their Board of
Directors in January 2018.

Residential Rebats 314,185 98,783 215,402
Activity & driven by public participation and MWD's invoicing typically occurs 3-6 months after customer has been paid.

Page 5




Exhibit A Detail
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Fiscal Year 2015/16
CONSOLIDATED BUDGET VARIANCE ANALYSIS REFORT
Second Quarter Ended December 31, 2015

Adopted Amended YTD
FY 2015/16 FY 2015/16 %
Annual Annual YTD YTD Budget
Budget Budget Actual Variance Used
OPERATING REVENUES
User Charges $67,040,941 67,250,941 $32,666,590 ($34,584,361) 48.6%
Recycled Water 11,942,682 11,942,682 8,141,467 (5,801,215) 51.4%
MWD Water Sales 41,440,829 41,440,829 8,931,023 (32,509,806) 21.6%
MWD LPP Rebates 2,079,000 2,079,000 1,317,732 (761,268) 63.4%
Property Tax - O&M 1,792,530 1,792,530 785,684 {1,006,846) 43.8%
Cost Reimbursement from JPA 5,482,843 5,482,843 2,629,186 (2,853,657) 48.0%
Interest Revenue 1,035,900 1,035,500 248,626 (787,274) 24.0%
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $130,814,725 $131,024,725 $52,720,308 ($78,304,417) 40.2%
NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Property Tax - Debt, Capital, Reserves $39,364,099 $39,364,099 $17.253,692 (322,110,407} 43.8%
Cannection Fees 23,329,423 23,329,423 13,124,856 (10,204,567} 56.3%
Grants 8,842,419 8,942,419 416,287 (8,526,132) 4.7%
SRF Loan Raceipts 12,314,843 12,314,843 $371,507 {11,943,336) 3.0%
Project Reimbursements 4,994 447 4,901,447 340,909 {4,560,538) 7.0%
Other Revenue 2,894,541 2,777,541 481,513 {2,296,028) 17.3%
TOTAL NON OPERATING REVENUES $91,839,772 $91,629,772 $31,988,764 {$59.641,008) 34.9%
TOTAL REVENUES $222,654,497 $222,654,497 $84,709,072 ($137,945,425) 38.0%
ADMINISTRATIVE and QPERATING EXPENSES
EMPLOYMENT EXPENSES
Wages $22,448,006 $22,448,006 $11,673,519 $10,774,487 52.0%
Benefits 18,161,900 18,161,900 8,406,127 9,755,772 46.3%
TOTAL EMPLOYMENT EXPENSES $40,609,906 $40,609,906 520,079,646 $20,530,260 49.4%
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Office & Administrative $1,281,624 $2,115912 $565,968 $1,549,944 26.7%
Insurance Expenses 775,500 747,425 346,740 400,685 46.4%
Professional Fees & Services 9,240,689 10,578,208 3,051,440 7,526,768 28.8%
O8&M Projecls 22,106,625 27,371,918 2,040,854 25,331,064 7.5%
Relmbursable Projects 100,000 1,030,888 446,895 592,994 43.0%
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES $33,513,738 $41,853,352 $6,451,897 $35,401,455 15.4%

Page 6



Exhibit A Detail
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Fiscal Year 2015/16
CONSOLIDATED BUDGET VARIANCE ANALYSIS REPORT
Second Quarter Ended December 31, 2015

Adopted Amended YTD
FY 2015/16 FY 2015/186 %
Annual Annual YTD YTD Budget
Budget Budget Actual Variance Used
OPERATING EXPENSES
Material & Supplies/Leases $2,798,809 $3,399,871 $1,340,085 $2,059,786 39.4%
Biosolids Recycling 4,358,631 4,282,844 1,444,749 2,838,095 33.7%
Chemicals 4,394,674 4,640,551 1,929,408 2,711,143 41.6%
MWD Water Purchases 41,440,829 41,440,829 8,931,023 32,509,806 21.6%
Operating Feas/RTS Fees/Exp. Alloc. 14,663,144 13,206,572 6,182,226 7,024,346 46.8%
Utllitles 11,149,892 11,099,882 4,924 814 6,175,178 44 4%
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $78,805,979 $78.070,659 $24,752,305 $53,318,354 31.7%
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE
and OPERATING EXPENSES $152,929,623 $160,533,917 $51,283,548 $109,250,068 31.9%
NON-OP, TING EXPENSES
CAPITAL OUTLAY $43,886,402 $51,408,476 $13,175,362 $38,233,114 25.6%
FINANCIAL EXPENSES
Principal, Interest and Financial Expenditure 23,462,656 23,462,657 12,144,394 11,318,263 51.8%
OTHER NON OPERATING EXPENSES 340,000 340,000 264,559 75,441 77.8%
TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES $67,689,058 $75,211,133 $25,584,315 $49,626,818 34.0%
TOTAL EXPENSES $220,618,681 $235,745,050 $76,868,163 $158,876,887 326%
REVENUES IN EXCESS/
(UNDER) EXPENSES $2,035,816 ($13,090,552) $7,840,909 ($20,931,462)
FUND EALANCE SUMMARY
Unaudited Beginning Balance, July 01 $125,635,403 146,104,580 $146,104,580 $0
Surplus/ (Deficit) 2,035,816 (13,090,552) $7,840,909 {20,931,462)
ENDING BALANCE, June 30 $127,671,219 $133,014,028 $153,945,489 $20,931,462

Page 7



610 | ebed

"SWad eun Jl v e Ul

panss| o [IW d2¥ SUL “#0 Apes Agisscd
PUE £ 518] Ui 3J88N Wil sjuswainbal
fiuseyef uieq o sjuswpedap
BuguNosoy pue esuELIH Ujm Buliom

2q fm el ‘e|gepRAR 8L "AIErUGRS 38|
£q pajejdulon aq o} pajeILRs2 S| LPIYM
‘glaefwd juewsaosdw yauked U] pasjoal|

adfiojosd

Juawaldun ‘sjualwennbal
dojaaap !a1ep aljleseq
ysigeis3 'speal §LISL
aulawi] = sjuels epdgyn
103 fyjenb jewp mosiosd

SO[DUBPUNRS) PUB BJSEM ajEUIWIS
pue swelsis pue sassasoud

Anueuns g1 delthéad sauBUY ey JoL 1o} Buppry 600 gaanuduw) 88eU[SNg JWeLIng aUjWeens
Buuayief sjuswalnbel pue jUSLLSESEEE anpeyssg Buompeheiubg LY JUSLUGILBUUS VS MaLl 0} sejdiuyd wewsbeuew UORERNSIWRY
SPBOU ALY Joj pepasU Yeis Ao oN Ve 1114 Asghle aauUBy &8N Ul Saks £ > BuBug  Joj sjueLalnbe) sujuueied uee A|dde o enuguen D pup eouBLd  AHSUBNT SLSLOT Ad L1L
"Ired eua) )l I o78] vl
Penss! 8q |4 -5 L PO Apee Ajqissad
PUE 1) 8] Ul 196N Wl sjuswanbel
Buusyiel ubleq o sjuaupedsp
Buguneosy pUB asueuly i Bupliom
aq I 24 '9|GEBAR 83l ‘Aeruge] aje|
£q pejeidwion eq o} pajewiSe S| UM SRDUBPUNPSY PUE S]9EM BJEUILIS
‘gpaefoud Juswaaosdwi [joufed U) peAlDAul SUOREIPOUI LLa] BLo] Joj pue sLig)sAs pue sassaosold
AuaLlng &) dewpec 20UBUY SU O ddy dojanep :sessesnsd SS8UISNG JUBLIND BUNIBENS
Bupeyel SiUeWAIbas PUR JUSWSSROSE Bjnpeyos Buompeiened [eroueuy s foueby 0} sejdpuud Juswebeusw UORBASU[LPY
SpoGU Bu Jo} pepeeU UElS AeX oN uQ  akog Arenuep T0UT) 95N W SLUEIRAN £ > BuroBug yijs sebus|jsuo sseasy uee f|dde penuguon o pue eauBuld  AURNEND 9L/SLOZAD BL)
“SUD[1d0 UORNO8 BUFGRLISR! tUn
suap Aeiued pue seeonxd Bulliq 8 youdl
10 Juawssasse auy pare(dwc?) ‘suoljde
uopnjos jequsiod Buiiquap: jo ssaocud U|
puB ssaoasd juswebeusw Acuasul SO
10 juBWsEesse el pejedwos ssac0.d
lle13n0 auWesls o) SIUSWSIELS PIBY-d £8IDUBPUNPE) PUB S]BEM SJRLIID
10 UOKEI|ISUCTR] U S48Sh pBUlE] pue suapsanb sy PUE sWig)sAs pue segsesold
ssao0ud mau pajuRsiduw julodeseus AAHN SsS2uppe oy pa(gn S8ALISNG JUSLND BLEJLReNS
pue agopy Buisn aoioau Buuasu)bue Jo anpayas Buomneliejuey sjesyspes.ds Ewapa o) sejdipupd Juswsieusw uonenswiWpY
|eaoxdde pue Bupnos pEyIBIp pejususdw)| oN ug  aLeg Aenuer sauey ash U] SWSIEAR ¢ > Guwdug 10 Jaquunu auy) aahpsy uea Aldde o) snuquon D pue soueuly Auapent 91/5L0Z A4 081
AJSE UDHER! SNH
SeDUEPUNDE] PUN ©)SBM GJBUIWLIS
sestecosd PUB 5UB)SAS PUB sasEEICId
paialdwod Buujweans yGnang dnosb SSaUISNG JUBLNS BLEjWEES
“poules pue pajels ampayos Jiun Jayenb GLOZ  SARBNSIULLDE 2ANSSKS Slf) o) sejdiound Juawebeuslu
Airy =1 Juauniedap 3y pun pjoy uo g oN uo  9loz  Amnuer  urupoop (udy  Jad omy juawadus| ‘0 sune Ag pejepduson 1o Aouaplye s\ seeamU| ues] Adde openuguoy D juswsBeuey AousBy  AuelenDy SLvLOZAd €9
uopisad AlRjaras  s3joUBPUNDE) DUE 2)SEM SjBLIWIS
pJeog 8l Jaj [eruEw puk swesks pue sasssoold
peleidwod Selqeuodsel jo repuamEs s$al|sh JUeLND aljweals
PAUIE]] PUB pajE1S ejnpeyss Juun sepenb Siog [eNuly pUB SN, 0} ss|dpuud Juswabeusiy
Allny s1jucutedap sy iun pjoy uoingd  oN uo  gioz  Aienuer  prupeop wdy  Jad om atiaidw) ‘08 sunr Aq pajsiditosy g pue sjepdn uge] Adde cjenuguony O Juewebeuel AusBy  AusuenDy 61pL0Z A1 Z9
SO[OUBPLNPS] PUE S196M G)BLIW|@
BeuR JuaLieday] puE sWajsks pue sessecod
paisjdwos wewsleusy eaghoexy $85USNG JUSLND SU||LUee.s
*pAURI] PUE pPayB]s #npeyas JRUn Jsuenb 107 S\pJay jooqpusy aunpecod ) gejdpupd jewsbeueiy
AIny 81 jusiLnadap sU LN ployY Lo 1N oN uQ g0z Aeruer  Jrupoop judy  Jed om juatisidu) ‘gg eun £q pejeidwog  Bujslsdo piepues dopasd uge Adde oysnuguop D Juelebeuey AousBy  AueMend SLVIOZAd 18
$9loURPLNDS) PUE S1SEM JJBLIWIS
glajjeT] pJecERaRUILOD pue swaisAs pue sesssaad
pajajdwoa Bussescoud pue Bugum s5allishd JUaLnd auljwealls
‘PAUIRY PUB PAYEIS aInpelyss |oun Jauenh GI0Z o) unpeaoid peZIpIEpUElS 0} se|duld Juewabeusw
AlIny s1jusungiedsp sy} U ploy o ind - oN o g0z Kenuer  yrupoop udy  Jed oM} jusuisjdu) ‘0g sunr A pejediny e juswajdu pue dojeas] ueo] Adde oy enuguoy D Juswabsuey Auely  AueNEnD SHPIOZAd 09
ﬂﬂﬂomﬂ—_uﬁ Touaby
sejoN  ajejdulics snEls  1eep VU o) paubissy I BUF] el 160D Jusuwpmdeq uBld Yepn jBos uojspg  paJnbey wEs al
WIoN SloN ] Bupedey Ad EOD

SHIZ/EET

4 uquxg

g1LozZuERA - Lipniged'AenusrJequsreg:pucy Hodoy

1T wewpedeg]

wawedag Ag podey seandalqo g sjeon sseuisng



aJo Z ebed

‘sjusAe pLsIp
oM} U| pajediogied pue ‘siequuai pejoala
10 4EE [B20] UM Kool Buisiom S[EIoyC

Pojos(s MaUp YoM N84 UoyRAIaSUDD ‘uaibal me
J9JEAA Ulsg DUIYT) pejsoy-ce ul seAnEjUaSId PRIRe seAfeuasaHial
‘8)38q AIPNOIHA B UQ pAnugUes enpeLsg Isgseg &) Ad I Beiuale pue seiUSER [ED0] U WA pee]e pue seluste
9By sBuljsew eio yee ol oN up  eLoz  Auenusp UAILpE)|  JaqusL |8 L 1991 Buppbug  ediysusieial sebuoge ping pajse UM Afenuus jeap D jueweBeusy fousBy  AueLeND GL/YIOZAL 69
Bpew
“sLpuow xpF Llers Womau [gnag jo esn aawgdo
£0BIND0E Jo) BUSgEAN LGB0 0} BnLIGUOD pUe 'sjuawmach Asy
OB leuniBal auy Gulppe pus BIUS O MBI '8|SEQ PAPaaU SB Aoy pue Weuny  pue ssioljod ‘senss| "semagoe fay
Buyeod sbesjoed peoq o) 51 Jduy appeLog lasseg i pueunedsg  pue Buioblo ue uo pejepdn apiroid pUB JSISBWOSAL  SIEJIUNWIWOS ANRSE o) apagam
Buipnjol Uhoas o senujuon Guyepdn oN ug  9log Aenuer UAIREY  SJENY [EwapcT 8lL aq {|w jsge eul fouaBy eyy se anteg & fousby eyj uiEluiew pus sepdn O Juswebeuey fouaby  Auapend SLVLOZAd P9
0202 |BUN penuguos
seM SIN0) e ey o) Juels Buisng
81} pUE ‘{00UDS AIBAT U) uepiED) Ul
s1ediaued 0} s3URAG UBA|G suaM SjoOLRS saAqeqiul
MG INGE (AN UMM SUOM O} SnUQUcs ‘Lpucw & Bupeew ue ‘adjyaseupied [eooj uBnai A9 pue UIRIA ‘uoismw T AoUeBy
swes) dnD JB0E BRI MO “Z Ul snoo} sinpeLas Jesseg [eZusbBlopopemcsse uoBeu awp Ul Aoleby e &1} BoUBAPR JBU) suopezjuelio
9y} 4 0} enuijuo Jybnalp pue Uojesnpl oN uo ploz  Aenuer Y] aue pusy ShipL Ad Ul BuBug o &0l 81 BIEINNUIWSS u| sjedjoed pue Alguep| O wewebzuew fously  AUeNBND SLAPIOZ AL 19
EIERV [PURRE
“gjoslond
aJnjry o} paljdde aq ues ey sUoRBUeLn|dw) UOfENOSUCS
youay syompesH p-dY Jsuenb ejnpeyos 8a0R0B.d 1594 10} soelosd Aoy ejen|eAs 0] SUCISSSS S9uaag pus
i) Buunp pawes suossa | PRIINpUOD uQ  9l0z  AshUer  BUNG UNEUS %06 < JEaAnp| Buobuc IIE 9)EN[EAs PUE MatAay psllgs) sucssejonpuoy 3 Huuueld ‘BuussulBuy  ApapEnD 915102 Ad 91T
220z ANt

Aq aweyswy Jepoys B u) spaloid

slolW sjadwod o} sulisep

SBNAL-U] JO NBY U] 4RSS

‘spelard uBjsep ey nsued Buuesliue

JaweAcdw [eydes aseasl| pus spefoud [Epdss
% .5 = uonoelad |[RISAC WOES enpaLRs %06 = Bujpusds Joj UBjsep elwafBUBW o SPGB $EALISNG PUBjBJIEPUN ajeDs pus
= Buipueds peoslold ‘wigss = 1aRpng A4 uQ  9loZ  AlNUEr  SUOISUNBUS [EldeD Jea) [eosly BupBup  1oefoxd Alenb uBiy epianld o} Bupjey sieeinfiue spiword 3 Builueld '‘Buseoubu3  Auspent 9l/5L0Z A4 SIE
Z20z Anf
£q eleyau Js1oys B Ul spmeloud
alow sysidwea o} sufiisap
2snol-ul Jo nejj LIl 9801AIas
“spsfoly ubisap Jweyneuco Buuaauibus
walascidw] epden @seaul pue spoasford jeydeo
ufiisap enpatog %01 =Jasubug Jao uBisap Juswebeusy o spedse ssausng pusisiapun 2RRg pUe
esnoy uj e sjaajad b Jo 2 % 1E°GE Uo  9I0Z AENUET  SUODIS Uneyg uBizeq esnoH-ul Bupbup  yeafoud Alfenb UGN spisold o} Buwiey siseufiua apwaly 3 Buuueld ‘Buuesifbul  AuepenD 91L/GL0Z Ad ¥IZ
BupsIujiug
NN sbuuen Lopenbel
e 8 Aouey au) um sul U] e pue A1ajes pedinbes Buuogilowl
SOUBUBIIEW pue BuneswBuz Lm s, dOS snpeyos jeLp sasseooud switedep  pue SulsisIuWRR Ag JuewuoIAUS UOQEIIS MY
u) sefugyo uo Buumel) pajonpucs JBlS oN ue 9LoZ Alenuer  UBaUD) USLIEAA BuBup  uo Buwies) Asueby Npuocy WIOM 13)BS B 3jolioud g pug suBul{  Agapent) 9l/sLoZ Ad S£1
sasqeqiL Spaau
'spLag pue spdaouos jo doy Aoy pue AN fouafy alp  Buuue|d uue) Buo) uo preog vnal
uo AE)s 0} suoljeZuRElc IS DUB YINNY a|npeyag a2UBAPE Jey} suogeziuefio 6U) PUE SAREIUIMCD [eucifiay UBRRNSLIWPY
‘OddyD Ul eledinmed of sanJRUcS 4R1S ON ug  alod AIBNUBT  UBBIS) USLIBAA Bupfug ul ajedpied pue Auepl iy 0] 5ajepdn fewn epwold D puUe OUBUl4  AUSHEND  81/GL0Z Ad S5/1
"EaNpeUde LOREDJEA I JC Jnsal $QI0UEPUNP3) PUE S)sBM SELIWE
e se Bujssaooud uj dhyoeg B peauspadxe %4,G6= SeAlaeiqo jans| puE sie)shs pue sessesod
ues sAepljoy eu) Buung euusw Aewn agiales peysjgnd 6,840 SROUJENG JUSUND BLY|WIREL)E
B U] §128JU00 pug BuogEnbe) ssaycund ajnpeyas U el Sussesoxd 0} se(diound JuewebeusLl UORBRSIWPY
g8800id PUE MAIA] 0) SONLQUCS JJEG oN g QIOZ  Aenuer  UeeJo uBLIEpA BuioBug 6lRIGAB LIBIUNK usa? fdde oy snuguos 3 pum ooukell] Ausyend BLSLOZ Ad BLb
LB
sejoN sladwod snjels Ieaj uol o] paubiesy Id™ aur swlL [eog) juaupedeq UBld oML [BOD) voising  pasinbay e Qi
QjoN 0N “shg Bupodey Ad BoD

a 3uqIyx3



610 ¢ aBed

sHedxe JePBll walqns pue
SIOR|CYEYEE BNOLIBA LW
UcheEnRAS pUB BUBE
"Juswdojeaap JUEOD
Py aginca 'ubissp wesboud
‘poucdad pue pelen|eas-a: SUOISESE [BUOREsNDS 8U} Ui 8InS BAREOSIUILpE
a0 0} paall || (808 81 ‘WaveUelRIsd) Jedjc pus susme) pue PUB 'UDjiBLIpIOGS ‘eouBpnl seneA
10 JsBRUBRY SARNOSXT SL] JO JUBLBIRS) YDLIN| ‘SUSIA ope-uc Buipirud £q weuBoaud pup 'uoisiA, ‘ucissly sAoueby
alf Yl LoIsIAN] SuopeladQ) By} BnpayDg Iuefoug o Jequin MoBapes) Buuies-ssop elpjo  eLp BUASIYIE U §jo) Jleih spioydn VOREgEIUIWPY
LA\ oya aAljEIOqE||GD B 84 O] BBM BIU L oN pulysg  gLoe Aenuar uesuueys sefcidwe pus feang 44245102 aunp Buebud Maiwdojaasp eyj U] jsEIY pU EpUESIGPUN LIS eunBus 8§ pue eouelly  ApspEnty 8L/SLOZ Ad 2B
$32N0Say UPlUNH
SIURUSOAL]
|ech EDUBUY PUB UDISSIWU |6l (U 1euo)Ea) pue AausBy poddng o)
Aouaby s yum ubye Jeu sagunuoddo PUE uoissIw Aousby eyl S82uN0s BUjpUN JBLJ0 pue Sjuess
SUEC| 445 PUe JUEID |BIBpad |inpayas s ubije 18u) senunoddo azjwnde pue saxe) Aedosd Jaueag pue
pUE 3j8)S sidpinw papuswWeoay ON uo 8102 AJENUES ng uoser BuipBug  uelb |ejuejod puswwassy o Jdiada) PANURUOD Joj eyedoApY v Buliueld 'Buusewbuz  Apeyend 91/510Z Ad 18}
EWBLSOAU]
‘speau Bujpun} ueo| pue Bupuny jeucibs. pue Aoueby woddne o)
WEIB S10158|p Jejem 'sepuebe Jequiew Weld peeu eyl soefoud  sesunos Bujpun) Jewio puR sued
‘¥l Joj suewnedeq BuuBld oLy ejnpeyss 9ABL JBL) SiUsLpBdep szjwiido pue sexey Auedaud ausng pue
PuB Gulesu|fuT e Uis pejeIcqB|[oD oN ug 910z ABnusr Mgy Ucser Bubug Ui SBIOqE(l0D o 1dieds) panuyuce Jo) MEdoARY v Bujuueid ‘Bupeeuibul  AueHeEnD 9L/SLOZ Ad E8L
EIBoIg
Buifadoay Jajepa LAX 2NLL [e5aps)
Bl} Jopun Jopa] Jo waswpedsq 5N SJUULSIAU|
ey} o} pue Weibold punt Bunjorey s181g |euoiBa. pue Aously Pnddne o)
JBJEAA UBBID BUp 48PUN PIECH |RALOD geaunog Buipuny. Jeylo pue sjuelb
862UN0SEY JSIEAA BIELS G 0] pelllqns ajnpelog BnlisAs) ASIBAID aziwndo pue saxe) Apsdoud 2UBDS pue
8J8M SUCHES|Hdde JUBID Mau Jofep oN [T 171 AenLer NSy UGSE BueBun o) spieae JuRID mal snsng o 1dieosl panuUUco Ky SlEdoApY ¥ Bujuue|d 'GupasuBuz  Aleuent 9L/SLOT Ad Zel
SJuRID
"63400 anpel
o} jqep Bujpuelmno jo  “5jk0d eanped o} igep Buipuelsine
wagjunpoddo Buumonnsed Jo ‘Bupunged 1o Bupmongeed Jo ‘Sujpunis)
BupuBulys Jaj JeBUL [BRHUBUL sjnpayss ‘pelweney jo) seunyodde ‘JeaLaine) Joi sagumyodde UoGRASILIWpY
Buwoyuow pue Buwaiasl Buiob-ug ON ug  gLoz Aenuer Buayn eull BuloBug 19}EW Jopuopy JajlEw Jojuow o] NuQuUe pue ouBUl{ Aleyery) S|/5loZ Ad SBl
pepoddns ‘SuelEInbal
aie seAneniul Wi Gugy  pejepuew Aebe| Yum Adwes pue
PUE WL} HOUS ||B SIneus '8jUaAs Usaseloun ‘suonebige
"S20URIE] aAJeEa) aL) pUe sesnppusdxe o} [2poLl |epueuy ay) Buisn ‘anldas 1q8p '|eydes ‘Bugeiado
‘sanuasal el Bupiebed ‘Loz ssa00ud Bumes s1eiaebpng J8eW 0] Buipuny Justayns
laquisaa Ul pieod o) o} M3YD §HFI07 appays - uedofiey) a8y} Jo Jed SE pajenena  ainsus o} Aojjod aslasal § fousby uclERSIMIpY
Ad 8l pajuesasd pue pejsjdwio) oN ug  9LiE Aenuep Jaer Aenuuy 5102 '0€ euny Q¢ || SjoAS| SRSy 2y} 8)BpdN puB Meinal ‘HIBnUUY Y puB 20UBLJ  ApepenD 9L/GLOZAd €5
uopnyeqns Bupa) yone
20 6Ly o} ss)8|el §t B spUCH HAG0E Heddne o opes efelenco Gupes yans
61} Uo Buney |-y vy ol peulws Jaep B uRWew pue  Woddns o) oped eBereaco qep e
FUE POMBIAS) SORIWIICD JFNG 18N 5LOZ 8{npayeg Yy o) Bujel pao wie]  URILIEW Pue Yy o) Bugel ypes uapens|wpY
Jequienad Ul 1 PIUROU 1SAIBUE 489S ON ug 910z Aisnuer Buayd eull Guicbug  Bucl s fouely ey ejsuiey  uue) Buol s fously oy apEjsulay v pue soUBUL]  ApeNen olL/SL0Z Ad ¥BL
pepoddne sjustelnbel
8J& seAllENiU] U] Buol  pelepuew Aebe] yiam Adwes pue
PUE LLLis] HOUE ||8 fInsLs 'EjusAs Usasaloun 'suonebige
“salolod o} |apall [epueuy ay) Buien ‘anjauas 1gep 'lendes ‘Bugesado
WewebeuEy 1990 puB sAlasay 'Aallod seaacid Buse ejelebpng 8o o} Guipuny JusLns
Wawpuswy jebpng ‘souelipiO (LD enpARS = UeAobeyd Ly jo yed SE pejeneAe  sJnsue o} Adljod aaiesal s Asuaby UoHEASIIWPY
182514 el Buyspdn jo ssecoud ey u| ON uo  9log Arenuep Jaar AEnuuy 5L0Z "0g aunp B4 [l S|8A3] BAKSIY au} 21Bpdn pUB MeIAB) “flenuuy v pue soueuly ApspenD 9LGLOZAd 5
sbujuen Aicye|nties pue
)88 pasnbes Buycquow sbuven Acjambes
“Buju|el} pejejad pue BupASIWPE pue Aejes pedinbes Bupoyuow
Aaiee (B poje|dwios RoUBU|d JB\) ‘SLOZ Snpeyos Aquewuoyaue  pue SuusisiuWps Aq JUeLOLALR UopENS|UWPY
1equisneq] Ul peuuyuoo 1030 Alses  oN uo 9Lz fAenuep  Buaypeu) ButoBugy Yom Jejes & Bjolinlg Yiom Jajie B ajowlald A pUE a0UBUIY  AUSUEND 9L/SLOZ A GRi
sapoN  sjadwon SME)g  JERA yuey o) paubjssy I aur swi |soD) Juslpedag UBc] WOAA  [B99) uolsiANg - pasinbey vElS QI
aloN ajoN ‘sng Bupodayy Ad (809

g 1qmx3



640 y ebeg

suoneiedg
[[ZLTIT
Buwiojo} WuoW Jo
yio) *HAE) 7 L-Sa -
sjdwes 1o jdisosy
[{FTTTETAR T
16 W0 2$3ddN - ‘pepeau
sfep ©B sjsenbal aydwss
0z oBmiaar :9G1d « [eeds pue meenbe)
®1VL sldwes ysn o} puodeey «
‘BUWR Uo SIAAN PUB HAAD Bupmolia) sLp UM [INTH] 28nBeal|eD Ly AfeLeiul
©} papruqgns eep ‘sAep 9| Guibeleae anpeyzs SWIM Y peatudde aie S3WQ punoJsun edwes BUDHOM USUM BIAIRS JoWosnD |OUSIDS pUe
Butjpadel Hg1d “gebie I fupean ON uo g1z Alenuer  ppRAuBalS [BN s)nsed &dUBdwoc) papesu se fE\Q  aARDaue puUs JUsKIWe JeeK - Jouedns ejowosd ‘fgenuuy v Builueld ‘Buussuiful  ANeHEND GLVIOZ A LE
“3|(E|IEAR BLI0DEq
£ay) se sesfjeus larioge) 1500 EHdED
SHIN ejhpelas Jny gelfojouLpay mau pue Bupesade o) JUBUIMEILCD a0uioG puk
10} uopde uoneRoEs gOg bugenjeas oN ug  gLog AIENUE[  PRRAUSQIS) I8N aucN BujoBug wisweldw| pue sjEnjeAg 1500 O} USLIWOD enunuos} Y Buueld ‘BuusawmbBuz  ApelenDd SLAIOZAd 6
AGTRIoqE ]
‘810z Jo pua ey} o} peuue|d
91 LOPEMN|BAB-J]IE GAjsUsyeIdWos ¥
*BupEn|BAs-|es AIBNCNURMED 8| V] UL
‘RICIoE) JaLio pue oefoud peysenbemau
‘seonoead jseq a) Bupuoooe syuawsRipe “Agenuus
AIBSS308U U} YEW PUE LE|] ‘wewdojeasp 2102 Anr
HPNY [ENUUY 81 puUB S40S Wawpedap feuoissajouid 7dep ypne e Aq siapea| AsUeby jo uolekaush
e} .n..mtﬂ:u Bl Malnsl s “Ieak ajhpelss SNONUUOoS Jo SINoY gL0Z B JO UeISSeEsE-]je8 Pau 3yl asedaid pLRe Jajuell
yoke 'lepeyd qv eu Aq paanbas sy aN uQ 810z Alenuer  Jesseg Aupey WEID JO WM Iaquess(] Aq ejepdwo] jonuoD onpus oy uejd ejuaws(du pue doesed g juewslcuep foually  Alepsnty SlL/SLOZ Ad 0L
JuzwaAcK Ul SNonULos elnsUe
0} yoeqpas) Aue apiaud pue uoloun)
el ajenjeAs of aAtas || sseoodd sil L “AgBrue
‘pepiacud 9q |4 poded B pUE UofleZuBhl0 “uawdojaazp 2102 AInr
w1esades 8 Ag pouuaped 6q |14 eIy leuossajn.d #q suepsa| Aouaby jo uoprieued
‘pauuR|d pUE PAJNPELUDE 64 LIED MBlAe] <npeyas SNONURLINS 10 £I0Y a0z slogaun) jdep ypny au ay) asedesd pue Joiew
Jead By} 'pslyLed QB RIAUPNE (B SIU0 oN uo  8loz Awnhuer  Jeseeg AUEY WIS JO WnLIUIW v aqueoed Aq Heldwos [Rweu| ey jo meparieed o ueld B uswajduy pue dojeasq g JueweBeumy Aousby  AuepenD SLIGLOZ A4 LAL
‘810Z Jo pue ey} loj pauuey
S| Uonen[eAa-jjas aasusyaidwon v
‘Bufienjers-i=s Ashohunuon &) 0y sUL
"gleyie) Jelie pue pefud pajsenbaymau
‘seapoeld jeaq o) Bulptodoe sjusugsnpe “AfBNUUE
Alessanau au) SYBW pUe UB|d "aldopsasp 210Z Anr
JRNY JBNULY B} PUB SJOS jualipedap pusissajoid -dap ypne puwislul  Aq siepee) fouaby jo uoneieush
oy} 'SISUBLEY BU) MBIAG) am "1EaA Anpausg SNOMURLIOD J& SMOY gL0Z 3U} J0 JuIWssessEdlor wau su aredsid pue Jojusll
yoea 1apueys gyl syl Aq padjnbel sy oN ug gLz Aenuer  Jassag AUy WGBS JO Winwium g Jaquasag Aq sjdwiod joques pnpucd) O ueld B welseidus pue dojas] g JusweBeusly Aouely  ApsUEND 9L/SLOZ Ad 0L
“Feomped
1884 Jo 1seaiqe Ke18 o] Juswdojersp
[euciesejaxd BRonuUOD puape
AyenBes pue uopeubisep [Bucises,old
Jayby e aney ACEBUR SI0JPNE SaIl) “Ajenuue 9102
I¥ *9log Jedqweaeq £q sjuewaJnbel “Weludojanap al0Z "o8(] Aq auo 'GLOZ “280 21z Aine
uayEaya0 S afdwen of uejd jeuoissajosd Jequuiecedq Aq pora{dwos Aq ougQ = sioppne omp Aig  Ag suepes| fouaby Jo uonBIaUEH
saJly ||y "uogeEayRiao su Jof Buledaid a|npayss apielep,  SNANUGUOS Jo sinoy sUQ '510Z J0qwadsq  Uoheubise( 10}y ewau] JXaU el asedaxd pue JojueLl
e juswpedap alp ul siappne sau iy 9N up  gloz  Amnuer gsayal  jyBia Jo wnuiur v Agj paje|diioo aug peugies euj saenpy o) Us(d b jusLwe|dus pue dojassg g juewebeuepy AousBy  ApepenTy 9L/SL0Z Ad €91
Jpny [elaju]
Jauusl ealaale
pue o} Gumunbieq way puB Ajawp & U) suoleed Bully
sgec0sd weugmioal u| AoueBy eLf) 181588 0] SUORN|DE
ey reldwno o sexe suoneiniay aAwUcdss) Pug sjgpel epwosd
s{npayeg MEloua  § S)Sam jo Jequnu PuR $9|NY [SUoEKd 18y} seapould JUsENNSE) UDpBASIUIWPY
‘syeem p sl efieiens juaund  oN up  eloz  Amenuap ussuuLeyS ebulsAb el YoBI| Bunfup PB}EP||0SUGD Mel B YR pue es|Bejens juswojdw| g pue souBlld  Aueuent 9L/ELOZ AL 88
sajoN ajajdwon SMEls  JEAA lucl o) paubissy 5] aur] ewn| |80 uewpedaq usld Wop  [BeD uoigiaN]  paumbay ues al
aloN N “sng Bupsoday Ad E0D

a nqiyx3g



640 g afed

Waunedsp
S0 8L im Bunpom
“welsAs 4q ss|bejeys Llealjep
HARD BU ebBUEL AQUeiowe Siaw o} pue a0y Juaciaidu)
sjuawencidw) vOvDS HAMSMY dojeasp L) SjuaweAdLN VYOS 9102 eunr Aq uolfe
0} ONURUCS [l PUB 93| WWOS-qnS sjnpovos oBieyosy Joempuncld  eoKUIBE B} Ul BRYs pue| plumyDs) .
809G YVAYDS SRLUOWE]  ON uo ooz Aenged oL all:] 9102 sunp* Aq pestdwon pus pepfoal dojarag \e8q ey} joujeud pus Aguepl O suopesedp  AueenD 9L/GLOZ Ad 502
SPUBLUSR MY SIGELIBA
Ajrruosess pue sa|ddns
MY elqeuBeA Aewnip jo [:1314
“selfsjans fonsp pue abrio)s £]8828.0) JUaWHedep jeeil aunf Ag LISEE OUILD) O3 Jajem
M Uayua dojeaap of yeis Buiuueld BnpaLpg o] s8|S)pns AauEp pue  elol sBIEUSA) ARIPS 0) spoLgaw
puB §d0 LAOg Wi o o] Bunuguoly  ©N ug  9L0z  Aengady Jaase |lig 910z sunr Aq pejaidwo])  868IMS MY Uepum dojerag ML puy 0} yeese pnpuoy  d suogeiadg  Apauent) 9LSL0E Ad 02
‘8d0OS
ANH 2y} OJUl UM 8 |w seibajens
Bupieiedo $SRUL "BANE GIBE WRYNOU
&l Ul B[2oB HAAS) 198 o) |-dY e Aiddng
dn ©6J) PLE YN0\ G4 L] BPUBMER 68N
PaIp jeslll 0} G-dY PUR JHAMDD smol@ ‘SPUBLIGR AN SjqRLEA
AGSIENS JUBLIND el ‘Buljuo JjoAeTE) A[Buctees pue sexddna GLOZ eunr
DEG 941 UIAA "HAAS O LIoANGrIUeD rLOZ '} Jequeseq 4q M siqeues djleumipgo A Je]Es pa{ofosd Jo esn JuoBD
MM 9ZIWXBW puB spuillap ash 15aIp HEIS HARD PUB AR Ag 85292810} JusWBdop jeell aZ|WRdo o} UR|d JueweBeusy
153w &) pajusledw pue padojansp |jnpayss sajjlassely  pedojeAsp sjsBIRJ0) o} salBajens Leagep pue pueLaq yead JelBAA
useq eAey seibajens [euogelad) oN puyeE  BLOZ  ABnaed uoger pue seibalens USHUAL ploz-lequasoN  8BEIOIS pay UsHUMm dojanag  pefohvey jueweidus pus dojesed 0 suogered)  ApeuEND SLPLOZAd ¥R
“Ripedes
uoieLyU| ujseq Yeed LiRIEW 0 Spaefold
Guiuests Juawspdul pue sa|bajens
Buiugefy doyasep 0 aNUBUC I 181
'91 D PUe BLDE Joj pauued BUOI|A PUB sunr Aq uiseg oUyD o Jejem
28p|ed 'Sy '§1DZ PUB SLDL Wi pRUBe ajnpalos ButobuQ pue sBujues ujseq Ybnony  suow ofisyosl Alejes o) spogew
6 LISS] SY0GIE PUN Wg *| Jown) N Ug  eLeZ  Amnged Jaaee g 510Z 8unr Aq paajdiion 8EQU[PESY LISB] LINURN MaU puY of Yoleesal Rnpucy  d suogriedQ  AUSHBNTD SLIGLOZ Ad 90Z
— [T
"9L0Z Aep puncie aseaal puewaq yead SLOEAD §10Z sunp
SPUELWISP I3N Joal|p £ BLINGEI |IM SLOT i 1o 1B Ja) Jejs suoqesado  Ag Jajem pejpfos) jo a8n ueDye
sBuneaw puewap Yead AMespy S510Z youely Ag Yoopnp L Aoy yym sBugaapy azgde o) UB|d Juewsfewey
12q0joQ YBnoag aumf- Wiall penupues anpeyos se|walel  panpsuyos shugsew swabelely puee puBLle Yead JBAN
puewep yeed Buunp sBupsaw Apespn oN uQ gLeZ  Alerugeq uoser juewsbeuep puewag S1OZ ‘D¢ aunp yead Apsam enuquo]  papAasy JusWsidwl pue dojaasq  d suogesedn  AUSUEND SLAPIOZ A 98
"BUIIIG Joaa Juessud pue Jjoalese) By welpedaq
0} MO SONP2J 0} %38q SAHEIS S DEB 00 e Buppom 5102 suhr
L=dd aup 32 Julcd 85 aunssasd U S|oAs) SLOZ 'S £q seiboiens Aleep  Aq 1s1Em pejoAda jo 88N UG
Jioalasel YBiY 1y "pelueLue|dw) uasg youely Aq uewqiedeq pue obBIolE oLy Juaweidil ez|wpde o} ueld uelabeuey
8AEY JjoAlsE 0£6 OU) PUB SdMY 028 SInpeLas &8||leRIBjy £ 3 wenbe. 19U} siusweAnidw| PuBLe(] JEad JHJEAA
L-dJi] WU USamiaq Sjanuod pelBWATY  ON puyed  gi0Z  ABruqed uoshr  juewsescuduy weleis GLOZHEW  VOVOS HMD My domasg  pajokasy Jusweydu) pue dojeasg g suogeiad0  ApepenD SuLvloZ Ad 58
“pejpewal SLOZ AN Ad Jejem jo
PUE POSERPPE I8 $TOUIPEa) JO anjeA ey} pue KoueIsye o3 e
s fousfolep AUy LB M AT palouow ajnpsiyos gseLpeal gjotucad 0} ue|d UoRESIUNWLIOS
AEnonupues 5| sseupesl uogess duing oN ug  gjpzZz  Aerugeq 1aaeaT g gl.6Z sunr ybnowy BuioBug uoiels duwnd ujguEw v Juswejdun pue dojeasy] Q suogesadyy  ApsuBn S1/SL0Z Ad 00
‘LUDSEaS
pueluad yead 910z
40 WEIS I0) JJE)S SUOhRIGd S1.9Z ANy Ao Jelem Jo
‘sasealoll pUBWSP AAY PUE Aoy s eBupas  onjRA Uy pue Aousiaije 84N telBm
uogees Aunel s} Ik am sE [Udy pUNoE |jnpeyss juewabeuspy pusweq ajowaoud g} ueld uogEDUINUILICS
elunse [lw s5UleaLl PUBG] YB9d M oN uQ 3107 Aeniges lanee g 810z eunr Yoy Burbug HBdd ApRom snunueD e juswe|dw) pus dojgAsd O suopetsdq)  AJEUEND 9LS10C A 10T
PEIE0WCs e § WGUBRRL
‘pejusweidw) Buieq Aguauno Alga(|ep 92 WSEq MEU 10T eunr AQ SpeRl $e0Ens
8] dNS 4} PUB §10Z Jaquianag U| anpauos BuioBug pUE  Joj Bpodes dN-UBES HAQD 198 0} Jeem pejadoal io Ayenb
PBLIL elem selRARP A UISBE Zejdad ON uQ  glpz Aeniged dease |Iig 910z sunr £q peyajduio] o} Juans pus sdsdeud ey ancudw oy usKd dojarea A suopuedn  AUBMEND 9LISLOE Ad E0Z
sejoN eje|dwe] BMES  JE3A Ljuol c] paubissy 1M aur] eus] [eog) Jueunredag uBjd oA 1BOS Jolsig  paarnibey s Al
810N ajoN 'sng Bujpodey Ad oD

8 1qx3



60 g abed

SjUelinoop
Bujuueid au) uj peuguopl

S8 SWeiBnid Jejemajgem  SajoUBPUNRAI PUB S158M elRLILE

PUER Je)BM [EuciBal 3y Jo

pUE SWajsAs pue sassesold

8 uqux3

*FOAIBINUL
Buuueld s fousby eu Jo) Hodey uopepuewedw ey poddns SEOUISNG JWUeUns sUjWens
Pedw] [EuswIALT ajewweibog “npayos 2102 o} ABejens Bumgjuued o} sapdiouud Juawabeuew FNBDG pue
yelp ey Guuedad Jusynsuc) oN ug 8LOZ Aisnuep ae BINAS aunr Aq pajsjdwol) a4 0 Aojejnbsl & dojarsg uge] Adde gy shuguen 9 Bujuueld ‘Susecufiuy  Apspent gLISLOZ AL LEL
BUISEY SEUBYIS) [0 BERALOR
WeC eul jo Bupjubed Joj  BaRUBPUNPAI PUB &158M ejBUIL|R
ABejens uue-Suof doaap pue fs pus id
“saijijoe} s, Aously sy Jo) Bulpiued pue ssojioRid Juauns F96USNHY USRS BUIWEENS
wue) Guo oy stesuful Jo sdiod Auny anpayog 2102 sulweans o sejouud ¢} sapdpupd jusiustieuew DS pUE
SN ey} Yy uopesijdde Julad pejenul  ON uQ  sloz  Aensep 267 elnlig sunf Ad pejsidwod aG o) Beusl Ny Sddy uee Adde o) enuguen 0 Bujuue)d ‘ButesulBul  APSpEND 9LIGLOE AJ 06L
AURLEUL eTel 5ol Mo] pUe
"91GZ U] pesshasip 5jURIB 6IB|IS PUE [BIGPSY SIGE|IEAT
84 0] UoEJuIWR{dWI pue Aoljod sapusbe aquaw 10 980 azZjwndo pue ssiddns
‘dy] 50 | eseyd Jo ped 2q |iw 81 Reloud Ui pLBUIpIODD letem euolbay Jooud JuBinaip, o
BAlsUaYRIdWIY "sepUebe Jequaw enpayss ag pue 391 Fiuopd uo paseq wewepduy  eleudoidde sJeuw soaford peidea souslog pue  ajajdwen
i padojanep saibajrns Jajem di| 6 oN uQ Loz Aenuer 887 8lNjAg  Joafoud peyepdn deay SNonupUs pue 21 josfoid dojeasa Jo uopeewsduy ajeiapEosy 0 Buiuueld 'Butesuibugy BaUQ SLPLGE Ad PSI
_..m_m SM_Em preased
usnoelul Ae(ue) dojeas :[1r4
‘el ige qed Jo) CIAMA ©) Hodad weubicud Yosmesey aunp Ay USeq OUUT O JREM
[euy Bujzijaul sYURIE "ejeKdwod .1 11018 enpeLas uoRoy [BUORBPUNOS  eJow afleysel AjalEs a) epOLeL SOURIHS PUB
PUE elHajul MY "SSIPNIS £ sepnjou oN ug 910z Aenuer 237 BNAG sue(d aip dojaed g pZ-eunr QMW 8L ejajdwon MaU pUll 0] Y2IEesed J9npucy g Buluueld ‘Bupeouiiug  Apepent GLFLOZAD 06
Lejd uoneaauis{dw)
'ssadfoud sy ulBag pue
ur Apusuna Y Webald "dIOAL enpeleg ABejeys weiBold MBAR  BL0Z AT Aq Jejem pajakoal pue exens pue
ol papnjoul pue paje|dwod Sdiny ON ug 9107 Alenusr 897 SIS SdAA 40 uogadwo) ¥LOZ-1equadeg paphoay al) eleldlng aiqejod Jo een synN3jSZWpdg 0 Buuueld ‘Buseeubus  AUSLEND SLPIOZAd 4
. uigeq ounD
©) Ul tajea 210w afieysel
Aleyas 0] SpPOLISW Mau
BEMRIQ puy o) uzjd oafoud usiees
Biop L JORIAPE [BIJULDE] YN PERDENLOD Uajpaefu] Lejue) B dogaasp 174
shjjeWweye pesodoud 8 Aoueby pue wesbold uuessey ouUN[r Aq wiseg CUL OJUlJ6TEM
o) UD LOHICO (BRI JjL) L JSJBAA ajhpayas BuinBug Uy [Buogepuncd  QJow eBueloed Ale)es of spoLjal aalsjos pue
BupuLI] Jo UGISIAN] el 0} papucdsay  ON uo  gLoz  Amnuer 837 anig sugid ay) doanag pug g1z auny ybinayl QM 34 ejejdwion Mall pUY o} yoIeasal jonpuay @ Buwubld 'Bupesuifuy  AusuEnd BlL/SLOZ AJ SEL
‘saMAl ueid 1paloud yoreesal
Biop 1] Josiapl [BolULdE] LM PRDBILOD uogoalu; Alejus) dojansa aluz
‘eneulsle posodoid s Aouaby wesBoud UamEase)y aun Aq UISEE OUILYD) OILE JEjEM
alj} Uo uoiido [OILL 1AL UD JSIBAA e{nNpayYs uonoy jeucyepuncd  aow afieyosy K|eles o} SpoLRSW a0uaag pus
Bupjuuq Jo uoisQ 3uy 0} pepUodsey ON uo  glog  Aenuer 287 alnig sue|d ai dojersql 5L0Z-sunr QMK au Ajeidwon mall pull o) Jueesaljonpucy 0 Bulueld ‘Gupesulbug  AuspenD GLVLOT A 06
'gL0Z Aeniqad 910z 2un A4 UE[] Juawabeuely
Ul M&lAB [ELLIS]XS J0) FKB]RAR 8 pInoys J9]BAA UBGU[) ) pUe
UBld YR HRLINIoR 8u) o} S)ipe Bulyew 'pLOZ JeqepQ Ag Uelg seaihossy
Sue Yatum yeyg Ag majaal Jspun & YRic pejeuBeju] oY) 'FLOZ Xequisoed
UL Jequiesag] jo pus B4} 18 PaAjeOs “Hnpeyss TUSWNOOR Afeiens  Aq usld seelisng Aousiowd esn BIUSPS pUB
SR URjd SROUEhG I YBJQ UL ON uo  gloz  Asenuer 697 ARG 64 Jo uopdopy pLOZ-1eqWednd waJbold B peRiIsy 16JBAL S\ 10 e1Bpdn Madwo) g Bujuuslg ‘Bupeeuiiu  AusLenD SLPLOZAd  EL
910z sunr: A9 ue|d juewabeuely
JSIBAA UBCU(] SU} pUE
'r1LOZ $2q0R0 Aq Ueld Seanesey
9102 Aenige. o pue Aq pajajduton 5y pejeibalu] 84 ‘PLOT Jequianag
PINOus Ue|d Yesd pUe [ePo Pesed asf) 8{npaLpg SRWNIOR ueld  Aq uRjd sseuisng Aoueiws asq) BRG P
pus’] pue ajejdwon %62 8 dJNMNeYL 9N ug 5Lz Aenuep as7 sinig e} jo Logdopy gipg-ouUNr  JuswabEUBIY iejBA W) Jelepa ey jo ejEpdn ejejdwog @ Buluue)d ‘Bupeaiiuy  ApepenD GLYLOBZAd L4
"UoJBIN Ul N300 6 pajsadis uondopy 102 J2dojo0 Aq uoiBal suy
*a10Z Alenige-] sewmal Ja} pajenaulo anpayos 10} sa(|ddns Jejem [epuauiapddng sausps ple
6d |# pus payesp Bujeq 51 Podal dyl 9N uQ gLz Aenuep 887 BINAS 1 ey} jo vopaiduag ¥ OZ-1aquese i 8 sysjdison ejenjeas pue Auep] O Buuus|d ‘BuneswBuz  AJeLERD GLIFLOZAS 18
§l0Z unf [
'g10zZ 4o pue Aq pejajdwon £q sejousde Jequew omy AIBAS 93U0 JIDAL
o0 ) Pa|NPayDse JoBQueD [BuciBey ey Bpeyos L Juewesibe aly sjepdn o} PRIUCD 910z ‘| Anr Bumiwbag SoUB[OS puUs .
10 1EpdN BU} UL pepnjoul aq o) Way s oN uo  9loz  Aaenuer 84 awis femdaauiol glog-eunr  efieiemeg puaiBey eyepdn jeBpng [ejuueiq B o) uomsue)] ¥ Buueld 'Bupeeulbu  ALeUenD SLPLOZ A YE
sejoN  ajeldwed smelg  Jesp WUl o) paubissy 1l eur auny |20 JusunJedeq usld Mo 20D uofsia]  paainbay wes al
810N L] ‘sng Bupiodey Ad BoD



610 2 sbag

1o VoIBal oLy Uo sBuRLD
"ol W Insoo of paloadye UORdOPY ale JAWAAN OLDZ 8L ajewie PuR sjyBnosp Jo spedw|
"910Z Aeruge Majael 10§ PAIENDID anpayYas Jo £[B006 Ay aunsue d¥ll a1 sjebw pue ejedyue ouSERG pUe  Bla|dwoD
Bq ||w pue peysip Buleq ) Lodsd Jul ON uc 9oz Algniep 297 BIAAG ‘d] jo uogdopy 10z 18quEed ey} u) saibajeqe doprsg diey jey} saifsens e)eooapy 0 Buuueld ‘Bupeswbug QD SLFIOZ Ad 851
9102 sunp 74 ueEld WeebELEp
1ayepn uBgq 3 pue
‘PLOZ J2quia0 £ LBl savihosey
yalepy UL Inooo o) pepoeskdxe ucldopy paesfey| eys '} 0Z Jeduedaq
‘g 0¥ AJBrIGe ] manal 1o} PayensIR sjnpayog Kuewnacp Ag ue|d asau(shg AUSLT 981 BIUOG pLE
ag ||} pus paye.p Gumeg 8| Jode) 4l N uo  glLoz  Aenusp 887 BIAAG s 40 vogdopy pLOZIOWa0ag _ Uk|d Senosey peyaiBeq| mEAL 84} J0 ejepdn ejeidwoD g Bujuueig ‘SuveeuiBuz  Apoysnl SLEIOZAd 04
ST euwsyeuR AByuRdy U jeAcidde
Jo} pJeog a1y o} ob o) pepoerdxe 91 ueld
9102 AlBruGed U) SIepIoyayes [BLusiXs gj0z sunr £q ue|d uewebzuely
0] pajussald eq o) malaal Japlin §] puE ‘Juawidojeasp [eucbau JRIBAA URGIN 3y pue
pala|dwos Laed Sey Yei us|d sseuisng pue Bujuued fouspyia  'pLOZ 19qIR0 Aq URld SS0IN0SY
INMSYL 90T UN Ul paldope g [Im HNPIYE oan-ialem uj foleBy psiesbell] el ‘p1LOZ Jaquieas(
ue|d [euy 2y ‘uons{duios o467 18 5| ple AAnpelss ay o Buppoase ai apinb o} sjUeUNRoop Aq ugld ssausng fouepwd esM aoualg pue  9)9dwon
anpayos uo s| alepdn JAWAAN GL0Z UL ON ug gLz Aenuep 887 BINAS  SJuewnDop Sjetdwon Bubug Jo leugl B sleald JeIEM B0 jEpdn Eledwo) g Bulueld ‘Bupsaubul 0UD SLPLOT AS LGL
SAIEE08 eL
sped pue ‘uewdinbs ‘sjeuaEw
snydins jo 8sne) pue Juawenaold
ugedB Bup|pn ‘sensgew abEey
*pele(dwos 5| Wey s|UL FL0Z ‘91 SBUIRIC Jo uopenasaud pue ‘Ryjiqelsesne
‘PO uo pueog ey} Aq pedope pus pasiAe apnpelog JejEmesem EuciBiey BOUBUIRID JAIBMBISHAA “d|YSpJemels [RLUBWILOIAUE SOUBDS pUE
aeMm BSUBLIPIC) JSTEMBIEEAA |EUcIBoY 841 oN uo  alez Agnuep 867 AINAG 8l jo uopdopy ¥L0Z~lequesag jevoifey emepdn  ewwosd sweibord foualy minsuz 4 Bujuumid BupeauiBuz  AGUOW SWPIOZAd ¥
uonedijiw pue :uﬁa_
Buuopuow sjufejdwion Gulnp Jegy 5102 |unr
“Aplosa e[npeyos lopo pepeeu Jewe3 'suoiessd(y 8isee &g Jogufileu pook e Bulaq ejowoid aoualog pue
palenpuos BULoiUOW JOPC JHS S-di op uo  gloe fuenuer sy eMAS  seolpoped uuoped BuwoBuD ‘Buuojiuow Jopo ULIGjIB, 0 Ue|d uogeounwwoo Bdojeasg 4 Bullueld ‘BupasupBug  fpeuend SLFLOE A 16
HIPaio |95 104 Seop Jauabe
- paplomal a4 0} Spesk
ueid spom {ifyba 2O suay)
UORINPRI HHE) SIGEEH - 9L0Z
um|d jusweBeusy Afiveug  Anr £q sypess jles o) Kuely au
oU] L Jueispuca usd  mojle of jeamaud Ansiay epew|
‘BL0Z ¥10Z AInp uaponpes HHO dojeasq . 81} Buisn uewesessE sUfle6eq
yasey Aq pejoedxe uopajduar) "sgecnud onpawS BLI|BBeY LO{Se|Ie aijeseq  (HHO) uojss|we seh sznolyuseil SOUSDS pLe
UofiEalyisA Ul uo Buppom s| Wensuag o uo  glog  Aenuer s8] aAAg  ©HD s alsjdwe) gL0Z-Ane  uoEs|we SHO Aaldwog « apya-fousty ue apsidwoyy 3 Buiueld ‘BuveewmBuz  AyeuenD SLYLOZAd 96
AN
au w1 pepioid
suonoelcud pajdope Buuueld JsjEMmelsem eualbsl
al) LW JUDISEUCD suoda) ORI LUB|d JUaWABELBIN Jassy aU)
U8 SsEoBIa) fuanoe BUPINg speRao  Yim Lpmoul paosioud pue renjoe
“sdew SO pue ajnpelps BUj JeL) amnsua UIEJUIEW DU MEIAAl O 10} BjEp {yvd) Hoday ALY BMIGRS pue
spodal Kyapoe Suippng Apjuows pasedaig o ug  SkoZ Aenuer 237 slyfg 0} 83030 Dlpolied BUIOBUC  SyDM Uya siam op enuguod)  Buipling uj sjesGej pue soyuoyy 3 Buluue)d ‘Supeeutiug Apepeny GLirLOZAd  ¥E
oH] PUD S
o4 uj peupuep| st weyd  ZZoz eunr Ag 8N JolBm pepion
uojeuewe|dw; s poddns 9 AdY 000'05 Buiyaead jo [eal
Sl eUl 0} ABeiens Bugyuued s,uoibel ey} jeew oy sweibold
ANEBYPS Jo ABajeng Gumiuag AojenBel pus HUELLINSOR |euciBes [220] j0 uoRBIUB (W) eaUsng pue
"di3d sy} uo Buppiom s| JWEYNsUC) ON uQ  glgz  Aenuep 247 SINAS Jo juawdofaAag GlLoZ-aunr Bujuupid dojoas el Lo saiousBe Jewo Um diopy,  Q  Buluue|d Buleelibuy  AUSUEND SLAPIOZ AL 28
S5[0UBPUNPE) PUE B)SEM SjBUlLle
pue swe)sis pue sevseacud
“usesydde sulseq efleyoal Jo gepAgae SSaLULENG JUALIND SLNjuweells
Hused ay pue Hoded ealnosel anpeyag g0z unp Aq ABejzns W0 e Jo Bumwsed 1oy o} sejdipuud uewebeuesw G0Ud0S pue
[imna aiy BuiZilsug $1jUBYnBUOS  ON u® 9Leg  Aenuer 887 oNjAg Jo uogsidwog giog-eunr  AbBejeys wis) Buo] dopaag uee] Adde oy enuguo O Bujuue|q ‘Bupeswbugy  Apspent) SLL0Z Ad SS
(21D} ueyd 1 1l
[ende2 [enuue auy ojul
uB|d Wewebsuel jessy 3 Aousby
‘810z fuBnidsd dIDAL g u| peppusp! speloud (Ygu)
Ut ujBeq |1 3om dIDAL “dIDAL SLSLAL sjnpeyss 5102 99 Aq oL il uBjd WeweBuRy  LO[JEiqBUSH pue Jusueseday wIUeIOS puR
ouy 0jul poppe aq WA sPaltud dWY - ON uo 9Lz Aenuep o0 SIS  dIDAL o uoysidwad syog-lenige. 1888y 8u eymBaiy) ol pury Aliny pue egeubiely] v Buluueld ‘Bupssuibuz  AUepEND SLYLOZ AL 8Z
SeloN  ejajdwo) SHElS  Jea) puopy o) psubissy ] &U el Jeos Juswuedag UBld WOoM [0S} uosiag  pasnbey wes dl
BION SN 'sng Bumpedey Ad EDD

g naiyx3



640 g abay

7102 -UET Aq SISWIPUSWE enuod
lie idope o) [eob m 8L0Z "qed BuunBag
sdoysIoM AUIUow Ui sspuabe Jaquaw

UM pagsnos)p 94 0} SLOISIAI 19BJJUGD §102 unp 8102 ueruer &q €202
Joj sejdiouud fay Wm 1eys Wel ‘9L0Z Aq sappusbe Jequelu {sway | Huoud) i sujchie 6166 10BOUGD BIAISE
sunr Ag joEJjUos [BuoiBey Ul pepuewse ejhpayos L Juawesdtie spasyU pue seojoiud efRiomeg [euoiBay eyl melial SIUSRS puB
oq o} 3ejdpupd Asjod Jejem pajphosy  ON ug ez Aenuer 23] 8jMhg |ermdenucy 5L0Z-eun eUno Jeew oy sjepd)  PUB 881G O SUCISSMOSIp Sjeiu| v BuuBld ‘Bupeeufus  ApepenD SLFLOZAd 0Z
*gLOzZ YAIBW U] pajpedia sjhpeiog Hoded sujjeseq dojersp g0z sunp Aq woueng pus  ejejdwor)
spunol Jopo Alepmnb spw Aousby oN ug  9Log Alenuer a9 anjig 5L0Z-6UN  pue feans Jope SfRLIPIOGY podau saujjeseq Jopo apsdwio]) 4 Buniueld ‘Suusawbuy 80UQ SEMIOZ AJ 9GS
"sbunosul
29h| W Wod UOOEIDOSSE
pue Alojeqndal ‘SJUBWHIS 'SISR3 Ispe  suchenbed pug seju o) sabuels
‘05 8Ny PUR Z'0L LL BINY AWDVYDS ampayss JB/Ia)EMBISEMLIIEM yBneuwy sseacud eagefsiBal pesodoud pue spuen BuBews BIUBDS pUE
0} spsebos Ul JvOS Y Bupedipged oN uc  gioz Asgnuer 297 SAG 1e00] ) ajedpped BupBuy  §ui oy uogediapled eagay Jo} §jRoOADE O} SHogs pee ] 4 BuuRld 'BuussuBul  AUelENT SLvLOZ AJ 0O}
UE|d J6jsE senlmed
JsjMEISEAN S1adWoD) «
ABajang weJbiold Jeem,
palafaey oy} ai9idwog »
Syepdn
uEld Jejsbly efzeunay
10 uonEUBWSNUA
L) SPLPIoST) «
10z dag « ue|d uawabeuep Jejea Juewsfeusw paysieiem
L0z dog - ueqn L0z @edwosn -  SlgEUE}ENS SloWosd 0 senseall
OZ0Z SUN[* « Ue|d sseujsng Aouepiq agn pue| pue Ayenb Jajem
*g10g eunp SJUsSWNROp GLOZ BUnr « as Jelem ajgdwog « ‘Koustowa ABiaus eweleusw
£d pejeldiion 8q o} JNAN 'S10Z YE ajnpeliag Jples JO UCREUIICOD SLOZ eunr UB]d eamosey Jejem uu0)s “Mueoye eouspg pue  elejdwag
Aq pajejduing aq o} WRld s=aulsng 3NM N uQg  glLpz  Aenuep a3 slMIfg PuE uogadwos ¥102 260~ pejeibieu) gegwoy + Jages 'Aiddns seem eiBaju] Q@ Bujuue)d ‘Bupaauiiug 20U GLPLOE Ad VL
UB|d JSIGEp SRR
Jajameisep) spedwon) -
Aerns wesbald WIBA
PoRAeY oy epekiwen «
eEpdn
uBld Jepseln efieyoay
0 uoneuewajduy
8l B)BUIpI0]) -
$10Z dag « Ue| Juswebeuey 191880 wawsbeuew paysisiEm
10z dag - uBgiN SLOZ s18(dwo] «  ejqeulelsns Sjouwcid o) gaINseEaW
0Z0Z sunp « ue|d sseulsng Asuerilg ash pug| pue AIEnb Jo1em
“YoJER Ul INJ00 & pepeedxe ucydopy SJUSWINDOP 910Z Suni*» Bs( J5leAA Sjadwoes « ‘Aousplye ABisue ‘Wewaleuew
9107 ABNIgE] MBIARI 10} P3JE[NSUS anpayos ples JD UDRBUEN0SD G10Z BUnf - UB|d secunosey 16)BM ULIC)S ‘Aousie SoUdDg pue  ejg|dwon
9 [y pus peyelp Bujeq & Hodas dy| L uc Loz Aenuer 567 BIAAS puB uopsdwoy ¥LOZ 280" pajeifequ| aje|duos « J1aqam 'Kddng Jejem smibeu) ¢ Buluusld ‘Dupesuituz wOuQ SLALOZ Ad P91
PIOC J9qUIe0BQ A9
'g1eflB] UDJISNPBY S50 J8IBM PRJBRUBLL 1BJBMULICE JO 88N [B20] SEBAIIUI
8]B}S Jis\y Bupepoe Ul fJequew puk 'Aouepile 88N JEIEM JOOpING
poddns o) sepugoe EUOHIPPE PPS o} puBdxa ‘Buljiq O)LE 95N JRIEM
alB sWweifiold esey) -uoge|nbal einsseld aleufs)u 'sednjonys spe) aacudwt
SWoY [§)9) [RIUSPISA PUE FISWC]STD ‘Buspnpl 'saunseail Aouampue
adeaspue] {ews 1o} sapeibdn Jejlonue -ga|bajens =8N Jaem yBnoluy) Juewambal
|eguapisey “gloz Buudg ey ul sweibald anpayss *2sn Ja)EMm [BUnibel PpUE 821108 SNOUBA YGNow) Q20T X OZ shslLoe o) sweabosd a%Uepns pue
InAn meul om) Bunaune si Asusby ey oN ug 810z Aenuer 867 BINAS |[EiaA0 SoNpaY plLOZ-lequasa]]  ssM-Jajem [euoiBal sonpay pue slefum mau dopnag O Buwusld 'Buussuibul  Auepeny GLFLOZAd bl
"QAAWARS A4 pe] buieq &1 Holta
"8L0Z J0 pue 3|qejEne aq pjnols sBuipuL siosloud |euciBiay
peJq "peuyal Bumq & Sujepow JgneIPAH 1a\jo 204 uoneligiu Joj
“wesbod 4NO0UHYS WM Uopsuniuen ABejese uue) Buoj dojeas alo0z
Uy 5309f0.d EIqEy JaNoNs BUY BjuES ueld UopeAasUaS Anp A s1oafosd uoRaNAsUSS Ja}
unBog sey Aejea, puk pezjeLy Bujeq “Hnpsues sujbejensmue|d 1BHGEH JaMY BUY ueld LoneBp|y eAsuayRldWo) souelg pUB  wejdwal
aue sjusdoiued I|e Joj SaliAgoE paleac)  ON puijeg  9L0g  Alenuep 207 elnjig oL} jo uohsdwon gigzZ-eunp BYUES au} jo uopajduins peanocy Alleucifes edojeasd 4 Buluueld “Bunesuiiug BOUD SLPLOZ Ad T8l
selon  8jajdwol sNgs  Jee ) oW ol peuBlssy 13 sur] ey [e05 Juauniedes uBjd }op, 209 uolsAl]  paiinbay g Al
N aloN ‘sng Guwoday Ad 1Bog

g iqiyx3



640 ebeg

‘uonebnaasul Jepun 5| g0 G-dd Je seleb
Jeljens jo AyjlarsBe) ey | ‘pedojeaap

"RiHopd Uo pesEq seseeul

wawsjdw) pus yEnt

2202 aun Ag 98N Jejam
10 AdY 000'08 Bwiyoeal jo ol

Buieq 5| Bujure Jay ainpacoad wiej-Bue| ody Jejem peeions aacudus s,uojBal ay} jesl oy stueloud
v "SEID L~dd I8 Bem Buinucyred anpayog pue |-dy I1® SUSaI0S 0} senseew Anuept |euoiBes |2oo] Jo LoRRUSWSdW
am (siwuade ,g/1) eeyeb Jeureys oN uty  olgz Menusr oyeCN Yar  Jejem apkaal lejsu| BuoBug 0} sugjjenjess twajlad el Ue selousbe Jatpo i oM. d suogesadn  Alispent) SL/5L0Z Ad 802
S80]AI9% [EOIISL
"SUIIOW O o} On 8ye} o] pepedy e pue SJBOA BAL AJSAD MBIARI PUE 10T
Bulob-uo s| UCRENEAS BIUNDS UDIRN|RAR Jegulessq Aq s1a8n [BUIsnpLl
upolp apnpul o} Hodsy Bujpuaune BsEUBS [euolBa) J0j SHW| [BI0]
spuswiwooel GOTMAY '§1L0Z IsnBiny ul anpsues sy ‘apisusjep ‘peseq AEULIDS) equepg pue  ajajdwo?
AITANY O Pelighe Bode sy (B2 oN uo  gloz  Aenuep 937 8plAg  [E00] jo uopajdwod GLOZUBH $jkur] |eoo] dojanag ‘[6a|Boy siepdn pue dopneQ o Bujuueld ‘Susesuiliug 20uQ) SLPLOZ Ad 581
"OHEUC “IB1EM PeiAIed U] UeHITY
*siabEUBW Loz puUe 8f[I4 ouny 'oUND puE ANLIES SINPEY O} SNURLCD
A7 Y psjnpeyos ag o pasu siugaaw anpeyes aey] Aq SBOUBUIRIC 10 86149 BU} Joj $EOUBLIUO  PUB | 0Z JBAWeas( AQ eIUBU|pIO eolkfog pue  slajdwon
dn-ojjo ‘e|hipoljos pUIYsq s We Byl ON pueg o9L0z  Aenuer ee] einjig Jo uopdapy ¥ 0Z-IoGWecR Jo uopdope sy a)EPDE Jeusyos Jayem aodwen  Q  Bulueld ‘Bupeewbus 00UD SLVLOZ Ad £51
sejoN oldwia]) SMElS  JBal lucK o] peulissy Id¥ |ur] swl |eo9) jusupeda() UBld ¥oAd 20D Uesiakly  pauinbey wEs al
BloN sloN 'sng Bupodey Ad EOD

g Haiyx3



. uj ‘ no
909'L2$ sigjsuell WSO [ejoL BOSHES Si9jsuel]l W0 1€jeL
‘91/510Z A< Ul SPUN} JUBIDUNSU| Uj pRYNSas pue Jesk se8ULo
[ snowaud ay} JoA0 pasealnu) as) Juuad $,Aunog oulprewsg UeS Bsneasg 90514 2 spULSg m:._um 1ado 0lE6LS 805°1$ SIAG HUCD Jaylo 080129 SL/glZL | coeol
Sa5US3 P SPWIR Bugriad( 0] s801A19G JOBIUOYD JBYIQ LY JaYSURL] i .
‘aaiojdwa AousBy ue Ag pasnea Juapiaoe P —
z olne ue Jo Jnsal e se Asuabe ay) Jsuiebe pajy swiep Aupqge) jeiedas g 000'9Z%$ soignonpaq sousinsui| PESLHS 000'92% Ajensen-aoueinsu] 0LgLLS SLE/LL | 0020l
Aed o] Aiqen - sejquonpad ouURINSU| 0] AJBNSEY) SJUBINSU| WO JB)SURL| 1atanped I
u| Jejsued oL n wotd
1T uopdusseq 1 40§ L Aobern lejsuesy no KioBejen lajsuedl ajeq pung
unowy Jejsuel] Jwy
WTO N0
Jejsued] 19Bpng
91.0Z/S10Z Ad Si9jsuei] uo[siAlgaeiuauniedag-isiu|
Aouehy samn endwg pueu|

=D Hqiyx3a




BIOUSIEN BUGSIYD URJSPUS S0 120

000'02v3  00'0c$  000'00gY TYLOL GNYVYHSD ADNIONILNOD WD

Aouabunuon Wo pung 09

Doo'gs$  ocp'ont  oop'ools
1dag] 1B AousBy uLpm disy Amsodwey Buy Joj see} JeAoo o Jeysuen jeBpng  §I/S/L

000'048  000'0E$ HRUPoOpA Y 080126-00000L-00L2LL-00Z01  Pund ©9
010615-00000L-00}21}-0020L Pund 9 1ebpnq psidopy 91/510Z Ad

000'00L% 0oo'00L$
0o0‘'00PS 0 2 0p0'0OPE KousBupuos WO pund oM
paweysuE.; 15BPNG (240} SEP-0J-IESA PUNJ OY
000'00v$ 000°00F$ 0L061.5-D00L0S00LZLL-0080L  PUnd O webipnq pewdopy gL/51.0Z Ad SLOZ/HL
eouNjeg  wJeykuRl] 1bpng Jcisanboy “oN j08foidAuncaay uopduosag ayeg
AosuaBupuon
[ 1]

Apanay Junosoy £oaBupuod WO 9115102 Ad
fouafiy sann aadwz pueuy

-0 Hqiyx3



[iiTd] DOD'O0K'TS SGEGSYES S6aCa TS fou]) suapeisde Euo@eY |moians
~SSal0M Jojuowy| 3 — — u:uEuun_mulz
————am———————pen B oL e 00000°TS 963'636'5H il Bkl d wOLSEES 38559 TdH B2t
Y} SSAJPPE [||M SPU) PAUBJSURI} 241 "SI PR|NRBLES AYSUISLIC SR URW uBw; oN s34 S3A SL/9z/OT  {eude)
Jaefoud Ay g o Bupnp cu| T £7080N3 000'06kS {ocooTT$) L ono'osss (o000TTS) £00'00LS {aco‘oozs) 000'0ns4 SuiasuucoEpg STTATNI
UFFsaIopn J6 AIBACE|P A4} SERIPPR EZOBONT 03 SZTITNT Wiy Lasis) | SIBN OSN T-dd
“siauenbpesy s AUaBy M 07 Jamaed dnyaeq Ajddns £y yun Aleuoies B ) . I0lRIRUSG
se 3018499 auBus pauisad-aud Supsxe 3yl JO UOIIR|[R15U] PUE YZI|MS Jasue. (oeroTna) oogonze 000'0028 o3 o0'00zs 00000z$ 08 L o dry yarg s1ouenbpeny SS03TNI
JMBLIOIRE UE [C UOPPE ‘WasAs j0.quco 31 4o sUD{IolIpow | Ty 504 S35, sah ST/GT/OT  |eHded QOWOT
a3 03 Jua2R{pe Wa3sAs PIECUDIMS |E11129(3 Buizs|xa By 40 SUOREIIPOL . . v )
239)diwoo o3 ‘SENOTNI 15afold Mau 21830 01 9ZTITN LI} SajsueL] ES0SEN o0000ss {noo‘00zs) oor'ooss voo'oas (00000251 oo000es 05 o00}ones Equhcn_“ﬂ.Msm_r s
“B0G00F 296 005 DOODLETS OOy D0E TS =T
3 aseLping
gD pum Aouslly s Aq PRIRYS-1505 34 1M EINIY L ...2_ (Zs09TNa) on'slg 000’644 [3 ooo'ses 000'5L% ] 0% as AONIL JIEMPURBID 800STAY
JR25I} 5143 Pa3=ORNG AllNuBLI0 10U 5B 3| PENEIRY aflriioby JeYBAL PUROIS IO} SapaE oN WA sah ST/ER/IE (e
WM SIS MBU B Jo BsBpInd ) S0} SOISTARY O} ZGOSTNG Woyj JwjsumL|  S00STAMY 000564 {poo'szs) 000'0LTH o0'sES (Do0‘5£5) 000'cLS3 {oo0'ees) 0000095 JonuaD Siowey ZEDITNI
Inowiny Upeg AQ
2
-syjow Bupioyuow s g moasop|  {zsoaTNa) 95098 ooo'aes se0es o00'0ESs oao'oss 000'009% o ooo‘o0s$ E:_Hg__.h_wsawu; ZZ0ETHM,
Ay} 1oy seoes aanensunupe SulujeLlal JAA0I 0} PUR LRl JRwWwaSeuely & peid = e
aApdepy Ujsed ORI 341 40 Jodas Yedp 21} 213[dWoa a3 WG pue Auady| SepeRidn =N i A SH/SAT  ewded  005OT
AUy Aq peasanbad }inm [eunnippe 1) ZZOETUAM 01 TSO9ENT way sysuell|  ZZOETHM 000°0LTS (oon‘oes) 000°00%$ 000°0£5% (Dones) 000'009% o5 000‘o0g$ |oouo 3Ry TSO9TNA
1nousn) useq AQ
STE LIS SZ6 LIV [T 0199635 9a) uopeniupIPY [TOWNS
qusugsedad|  (TODSTVA) COVUTTS wT'TS DOZ'ELTS 0OVIETS 0TS 0aZ'6ITY 74 4] 0oo'IITS .ﬂ__«..-”“___c; ST0ITS
UOHRISVIIPY SURIE By} U] (11] JOIE. 15y MU Aq 85T BT oN L seh stfefe 1Bden
1) JOYUOW PUE Td M3 E JO sapund 10} STOSTS] ©3 TODSEYS LU0y Jajsuel) SToOTS Fraa ] [ooz‘es) WE'ES 006's% {ooTTs) 00128 (4] 0CE'8S e ——— TOOSTYA
. . ; ; ’ weloid
2 T40y asuao] | - {ozootsl) EZL' 0T 000'ERS EZLYTS 00L65TS O00'ERY 00£'%E5 (00E'25} 000'vBE progqueq s TOOSTE! o . 28 R
d arad
SSAUISNE dVS 40 BN 0B PUY 03 300STS] 00 020 Lol B picr) SECEES {o00'E85) SES'TETS oLo'zves {oo0'ees) ou'szzs o5 eo'szES ool 6z09151
1334 J35N dvS
-waumedsa|  {ED0STva) 00Z'5TYS 00Z°TS QOD'BTTS oo'sLTS 0OZTS 0O0'ATTS L3 0O0'BLTS
SITMOSY [EJUMDUOIALG PUB BuuLR|g BY3 LI Mmoj[E4 1Bk ) AQ on 7Y 7Y SL/ZT [eudey
10} JQUUOWS pUm g wau B Jo as8L2nd JO) STOSTS] 0F TOOSTYS WOy Jaysuw. | ETOSTS1 TZEES {00z T8) s 00T'2s {00z'Ts} 00585 o4 [ [ —— TOOSTYS
ToewIEss[deY
*EDH ©9 YOH Wiod) Jers §1 36 UOIINa|R 43 1o} tijeys jo ssaxyind oozl aid 002§ w ooe'sy i % il i S840 DH pongscy) - sk 535, sifez/or e
pauuejdun puny o3 SO0YTAY PR(01d MU aleald o} POOSTS] WO Jagsuel ] | . B aﬂ i
2009742 €228 {00E'LS) Z0ZES 00L'9Ls {o0e'25) 000YRS [ ooo'res pieoquseq ARG rO0STSL
FET
ssa00ud Bug 1 Bunnp p J0u sem peip spessidn|  (epogTET) oo0'ozs o00'z$ o00'sT$ on0'0zs oo0'z$ 000'8T$ og GO0ETS “_”._.nq auog roodray
ayos e ujinbas JPE]IRAR MoU 51 13 a1 J0 UOISIaA T oN sap SaA ST/S/0T  Bude)  oozOL
¥ *JdWEseINe Xauog aseyaand o} TOOSTAT 03 £009TH] woy myswel)l|  TOOSTH] 000'EES 00a"zs) oD0'SES DDO'EES {oo0°z3) 0O0SES 0% 000'5ES PR — £009181
(O TH LT . Fuwd o 3 cfmp —= o AN Lz;w = T
naudigiang pousspuny [ PTEEESA nipng WIRnAPI Ml | 2atprg dy man ) enal dlsysie e beald 1 Pdinrd = E e T o TR ads  pwny
pakaig JUUY MDN foud somuisy \BTUGY SLSEOZ Ad Sl ] pO Y § {BIGL WD 2 Joud o, pdbpy Hload oy Toul .FV.H—-D._. monbay 10 ey
Jrttuiiy

a nquyxsy

91/STOT Ad SIajsuel ] uoisiva/leiuawedag-sau) :s1adpng 1990)d (610) W seduey)
Kouady sapipn audusy pueuy




TR Jum|

B LILICS e Se GT/ST Ad 03 S3RGR S1E 6620 [SUFPRSR SAMN 104 {zzosTam) 000°00E% 000°00Z% o0o'bors 000'DoES 000'00Z8 000'00TS of ano'doTE R ——-— £00STHM - - - —
Bujpuny [euawRddns yan |jn 84nBI3q L00STUM ©3 TZOSTHM Wox Fysue.L QU
N 1009THM OvL'0BSS (000'00z5) ObLORLS ObL09SS foo0‘00z3) ovL'08Ls (oaz'6T3) ono‘ooss e ZZOSTHM
[ETOSTHM } - . . . Yaeadung
N ssotosa LIV OGF'GITS SIS'6ES SEE'0ns 06E'6TTS STS'6ES sre'eas 0% see'ons g g siymiswodg  STOTRIM
as0(3 0} pue Jaquinu polosd Jeak [e9sy WwaLN3 ayy sujede swstRtia uaLmo|  ETOSTHM TSVETS (T98'6T8) STEEES 6E9709% (romBIs) 005085 05 005'088% s1gnd ___Ma_i._ana._m ETOSTHM N =) sa) ST/6/2T  [oid WRO
9A|9094 D1 310 W FEOGTHM O3 ETOSTHA PUE ELOVTHM W3 Jajsue | HEa0
STOITHM, L% (ps0'sTS) TELELS ove'ted [Laaaed) 005'LL§ o5 005LLS ol9ng '8 sdnpsosuods  EPOVRIM
- / 0015 Adi ua) STEM
-pésy 6q AR $OOGTHA U} 8 JNBA 383png {toosTYM) STT'R0TS 9TL'ESS o00'sYs s2TR0TS BTL'ESS 000°StY o% w00'srs 10035 AddAL LY USRIBD {0 on - o P —
/ST Ad $43 UL FUPISI0 Hi0M 2 0 H00ITUMA 31 HOOSTUM, DM IMREIL)  poqrypy os (ger'es$) eTr'ees aoTes {ezress) £eTEas os €ETESS  [ID0WPS ASAI I UBPIID  POOSTHM
S0V'LES 55 FLITES STTTLO LTS SISEEELIS
papueury paxopy papuauny - paydopy
1a¥png |m e |BnuUy (2] Wilphg 1aloud |mol [Kxey 1aSpng 19foud (8101 [=de)
ETFO0EZS ETLE0E 25 GYBEST IS B BLTLS o) ey [Buariay jeimgns
(OSOSTNI (R E T Y
J TEDTTNG o'etes 0D0'DOES BLO'ESTS 600'0RSS DOO'DSES 000'0ZES 000'02% ooo'oses s OEOSTNI
Bueq| /zzozINg)
U3 P Iy Jayslmt) B J0 PRAGSY JUFUSdOnS ¥ S8 PB.eJue FRM DEDSTNI - o wonsy
104 18BQ oL [PUOBIPPS SLL S U Fa50(D BUISG 40STNI pum ZozTNa] T ke loaciaes) 000565 oo0'oRs (000'0ES) ooty {000'sT) VST | oy dpy uooKe umog T
syafaud oy anp Sujpuad aue Defosd s1y1 Jo sisysuesy 19Epng 10ofosd RIa) YL an s, (7Y ST/RTAT e
‘sopessdn xod ind ., . ” . Suucjuoy Wanpg ¥
10 014 TODEDSTNG TafoleigHs Jo Saseiyd 0-050(2 PUE UDMNAS 2u DEDSTNG T5T'SSTTS {ooo'os1s) AT TS [y {000‘0sTS) BbEOTL'TS o3 GOEDTL'ES e — TEQTING
pURy 03 GEOSTNI O3 FSOSTNE PUB “TEOTTNT ‘TZ0ZTNG sialoud Woy sysuel)
OE0STNI 960'5T% (ooa'orTS) 960'S5TS 000'9TOTS 0000 TSH 000'95T'1S as 000'95T"T$ Sung uolesV T-d4  ZZ0ZENG
~no-aso[> afoud [euy M payeposse Jogel|  (ZE0VINI) 9£0'E5TS aon'oss SLUESTS o00'0zES 000'0rs 000052$ [ 000°05Z$ .wﬂ_w”:_ _zuu GE0STNI
W3l PUE “Joqe| paluawEne UO pasieaal saojoau] Bujig o eed SUGHEHINB oN LY i), SIAT/OL  mKED
|l Jagsuery a1y “Jjedeth adyd WRNEI AJRLUAg YDUI-2 £0'DEDSTNT 1afosdgns ] et ,
U0 PBULGISd oM L3 3oy ARd 0 QEDSTNE OF ZEOVENG Wy Jejemm| OE0STNE XS {o0a'ozs) TEVYLS 0O0'LLY'TS {o00'0L3) 000'L¥S'TS {oo0'0as) 000'429°T% H__uu_”ﬂu wapds LEOFINA
SUOIEIYIPON
S ——— =il {2£ovING) LEL'EBS 000083 IEL%S 000'L6vS 000'08% DOULEYS o 00'LTYS _oﬂoﬂ_ﬂ ““amn..&u.lu LYOETND
341 10§ PA P SUOLIENPOW Sl PUR |03UCD PaL3AS 3L 0 Bop m:a”-.__n oN SaA SaA ST/¥T/aT  |eNdED  0O0GOT
5,"2U] ‘dnoug I £ puny o} o3 FE0b REREEH
1AN.G 1inoq 1RGO PUN 03 LPOETNA 03 LEDVING WOM IS svoerna s {o00%05$) zevveTs on0'zeE TS ooo'oeg) | ooocze'es os o00'228'TS spENumEAS LEOYTNE
uoKI3||oD) JBMIS
forousloy saryy : satumg Wh ey WA cJoug
satipead oot Yonpm padoud | fino} S adpng Datg Ay Palod e sumpy | kg
vanmsEng PRI wipn 12BPAG o2 MK ; al gT/se Sl e clond  1otpmu o s puy
X LY RN ey HALLY OT/SEOE Ad diguay o _...-.m oAy 0L peadogy oL s o .“..H..H.. L} iy
jumnry i e

Q Naqx3

9T/STOT A4 SIASURIL UOIING/|BUBLILIRdRq-52qu) T8PNG 123014 e10. U] saduey)
fouady sapiin audw3 paeju)




——
08168 WL - 3Tueyy 12N

R weloid WeQ - afuel gdl
{00%'2625) e - 3fump gdi
RO'ETE o), pafiid WEO Puv |wkde) o)
B I L
papuswy .oy papuawy pawiopy
3dpng palorg WHO |ENUL 010 3#8png 1ol [MOL WHO J98png peloig jmol WSO
WTLTT DV TEVI0EES TEYIIES T0M] suof :
“G-di 18 5|2A3] B0UAP3A0KS C) ANp = . . . Jaajold -
oI “pDO9TET afold B 01 'seD [RIMEN “AIBEIED WBO el al {oTZ5ES IR0) _ ooo'tes 000°05% [ _ ooo‘oss 000085 o5 05 (13 Suydwes upioxa +009TEN =4 Sak sap ST/osfEr foud WBO
“LOISIIAI0G UAMR| T-dd @Y} 10§ U] ‘3lepiber] JAIELOT, , "
QI PRIUGS SEIA i 243 puny o) P A ——— {sansesey Oy) 000'00KS 00000k [ aoo'ood ono'oors L3 08 o3 uojsIBAUO) IME) T £009Td3 | ©ON =5 sah ST/AT/ZT oM WE0
qeyF
‘uopewqeyes|  (TAOSTE ! i .
Suidid punoifiapun ay}) Juswaddns a1 TDOSTYd o3 LOOSTI Wowy ._u_—mzﬂ._. _“ E_ “d—..qv.nmﬁ han““.“ Nnauh.nm o”“mmm H.HM_ u“o.o.”mm...ﬂm ”M nH-Ho““m Jupd|d puncaBispun LOOSTYd N sap LTy ST/6/TT  [Rud WSO
-spuesB Aq papuny A|eued sdip wesSoud Asoosia|  (080TES d
J123Em pouUEldUn puny 01 TOCTT I Pafoad 03 'seajuag wenuod sio|  /OTTIZS o0Tz'ess o00'0YS or'IT$ TEYITES 000'DYS 898z [ z8v'oETS SR Eg xS TOOT o s 53 ST/9/0T  foid IWBCQ ODEOT
“JogET - S3AAIIS SPISIRD “100W] 1IRIRE0) 50T WIS Wy Jajsue) | (OFOLZS INBO0) =
I6LETFES LELLTYTS BHOPOITE BOOTVE TS (MAR] BeInasay SR | MgNS
(£00STHM) COTYTES SHTYIS 0D0'00ES SETPIES SETPIS 0O0D0ES 000'00Z$ 000°00TS = uw“_uns.__ L009THM
*Pasa|> 9q ARW ZDDSTHM| il i o) 3, f
1B1fL OF ST/CT Ad U] SUjIN200 340M (1€ J0J LOOSTHA OF LO0STHM Walj Jaysue) ) JR— N = A SWE/EL |IBkneD
£009THM wss lsaT'v1g) FL8 S lseT¥7$) 000065 05 000'D8§ swianey ppusppey  LOOSTIM
SBALROU]
weeqa| {zzoSTHM) 00p'o0sS 000'00TY 000°00F5 000'005% 000°00TS on'oors 000'00ES 000'00TS — B009TUM.
s aseq (110) |SHISNPA] PUE ‘RUGIINYIISUL ‘|EDFUILOT SOMIN 03 PappE 9N Fap =B ST/6/TT [0l WB0  OOZOT
1343 Bujpuny Sif W2pdns o3 3005 O3 TTOSTHAR W SEURILL  gongrim ovosvS  {poo'onTs) ove'ouss uv'oavs {wocoors) | or0Ess fosTerest  noo'ooss =t zzostum
{ioa)/o abump swoduepy NIA ﬁnﬂl—lﬂ NN Siont
wiigng Nafug 133png aloeg Raolfu  [1aZipng Pokeg WG Wioag HyunN aldbgy apeg
wouyesar PILRYSUIRI| wipng RPNl da MIN 4L 9T/5T0T WL F3HOM doid  papag aeds  punj
atag [ty say PR RO A dejea o iy | o by L PHO) paEOpY polkud ey s0'g Eﬂﬂwn_. wonbay iy
3 Jcnary

OT/STOT Ad SSaJSUBI] UOISINA/|WUatuyedag-12qu) s1e3png 13a(0.d [B10) W SAEUELY

a nqiyx3 fously saniun andwy pueju|




9102 ‘91 Yysiew

s40}23.11q }O pieog

GL0Z ‘L€ J9quiada@ Papus J331enpP pug
jaoday asueunep }abpng

9L/G1L0C Ad

LOTHESIC HZAVAM TVAIDENNW ¥

Auaby sajif) aiiduig pupjuf /A.




%L.’E ‘IN8’0$ :sueoT @ sjuel «»
'SMON pOO5) OS JON

4V pe18bpng 4 000°0S J8A0 4V GE'GL =
%9’ 1T ‘IN6'8$ :Soles Jajep <
%8°€y ‘W0'8L$ :soxel Ayedold «
pa1ebpng A4V 0GL'GE "SA 8jep 0} Jeak [enjoe 4y 989° L1 =
%Y’ LS ‘WL 9$ :sajeg Jajep pajohoay «
%987 ‘IN9'2c$ :sabiey Jasn
UQ@@U:Q Ng3 mau omm.v "SA SUOIJOBUUO0D NJ3 MU er.N o
069G ._>_ _‘.m_.m_w S99 UOIJOAUUOY) ID)JBMI)ISEBAA

“SMON poo95

j}obpng papuswy 03} paiedwod sjenjoy
s)ybijybiy spung jJo s92.1n0g



%9°GZ ‘N Z'€LS :s1o8loid [ejiden «

“SMON pPO09 OS JON

NE'ES SUBOT JHS =
INE'0$ SUBOT [HVS =
WG '¥$ VOLOZ =
WE'ES V800Z =
%6'Ly ‘W¥'CL$ 92IAI0G JqoQq «

‘soljijiqel| Juswiaile)

Y/ ﬂ papunjun Jo} sjuswAed Aq josyo AjenJed sbuineg
L ‘o1 pelebpng ueyy Jaybly 9%t gL J010e) AoueoeA =

%1 67 ‘NI 02$ :sosuadx3y juswAoldwzy «

“SMON p0o09H

jobpng popusawy o} pasedwod sjen3dy

syybijybiH spung jo sasn



....E.J_r..ml..uf Jt‘r __ : _.
J

IJI.JP ’4"#'

 1giyxg Japun umoys a.e sjooloud jo Bupsy| s|ieyeq =

N1$ Aelewixoidde
10} 10Bpng 198l01d [e10] 8y} pabueyd aaey sjoofoid || =

(M001L$ 19n0) abuey) jabpng joofoid |ejol «

N9 ¥$ Al@rewixoidde
104 ‘a1nso|o 1o} a|qiblje se peynusp! spsfoid G| =

ainso|) jJosloid «»

sajepdn



6'€SIS 0TS sdouefeq punyj Swipuy

I'9%1$ I'9%1$ souefeq puny Suruuidoq
8'LS (T°€1%) (aseaxda(q)/as8a19U] JON [BIOL,
%9'TE 6'9L$ L'SETS Spun,{ Jo sas) [e10L,
%0°8¢€ L'v8$ 9'7CT$ spunyj JO §32IN0§ (810
b e
%0 P € 9'ST$ TSLS asuadxy SuneladQ-uoN
%6'€ 0'CES 9'16$ anusAdy SuneradQ-uoN
unedQ -uoN
b (5628) @.ﬂm%hmm%
%6'T¢€ €158 $'091$ asuadxy SuneradQ
% T0F L'TSS$ 0'TET$ onusAdy Sunerad

dunesad
128png il 128png H 0

papuawy jo papuswy

0/, [ENIDY DU 91/s10T Ad

oouejeg pung pajepljosuod ZO 9L/510C Ad



Aupqisuodsai [pastf
[p0B ssauisngq s,A2uaby ay3 yum Jud3sisuod sj 140daJ sisA|pub a3uDLIDA 12bpnq ay|

= = —E S ey et r.

XL i




INFORMATION
ITEM

4E



U

Inland Empire Utilities Agency

o A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
Date: March 16, 2016
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee (3/9/16)
From: P. Joseph Grindstaff %,
General Manager i\
Submitted by: Kathy Besser
Manager of External Affairs
Subject: Public Outreach and Communication
RECOMMENDATION

This is an informational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.

BACKGROUND

March

April
®
®

May

March 21, IEUA Hosted Special District’s Dinner, Panda Inn - 3223 E. Centrelake Drive,
Ontario, 6:00 p.m. ~ 9:00 p.m.

April 20, IEUA Earth Day Event (Student Day), Chino Creek Park, 9:00 a.m. — 2:00 p.m.
April 21, IEUA Earth Day Event {Community Day), Chino Creek Park, 4:00 p.m. — 7:00
p.m.

April 22, Eagle Canyon Elementary GIES Dedication, 13435 Eagle Canyon Drive, Chino
Hills, 11:30 am. — 1:00 p.m.

May 5, Truman Middle School GIES Dedication, 16224 Mallory Drive, Fontana, 2:00
pm. —3:00 p.m.
May 13-15, MWD Solar Cup Competition, Lake Skinner

May 24, Cortez Elementary School GIES Dedication, 12750 Carissa Ave., Chino, 5:45
p.m.

Outreach/Education - Civic Publications Newspaper Campaign

IEUA staff has been working in collaboration with Civic Publications to develop and
distribute Kick the Habit display ads that focus on irrigation tips during the winter season.



Public Outreach and Communication
March 16, 2016
Page 2

The display ads are linked to the Kick the Habit micro-site, which displays IEUA’s
campaign message, tips and member agency links.

e JEUA sent an email blast to 157,000 households in the IEUA service area on February 24,
2016. The email blast led viewers to the Kick the Habit micro-site.

Media and Quireach

e IEUA staff is working with member agencies to distribute Kick the Habit mirror clings
and vehicle magnets. To date, the city of Chino, city of Ontario, Chino Basin Water
Conservation District, Fontana Water Company, and San Antonio Water Company have
requested and received vehicle magnets and clings. Internally, Facilities Management
has completed placement of vehicle magnets on all Agency vehicles.
Fix a Leak Week print advertisements will run in the Daily Bulletin in March.
Kick the Habit bus advertisements in English and Spanish began on October 5, 2015 for
an initial six month run and will continue to run for another six months.
IEUA staff worked with Tripepi Smith and Associates to develop a movie theater ad that
is currently showing at Victoria Gardens and Ontario Palace. The ad will run through
mid-May. The trailer ad is also running on YouTube and has had over 46,000 views —a
30,000 increase in February alone.
In March, 12 items were posted to Facebook and 19 tweets were sent under the
@IEUAwater Twitter handle.
Staff will begin implementing Friday Foliage as a weekly spot on IEUA’s social media
channels that highlight water efficient California native and drought tolerant plants. It
also features pictures of the plants and information regarding the plant (i.e. good for
slopes, attractive to butterflies, etc.).

Education and Outreach Updates

e Water Discovery Program: 754 Girl Scout troop members, elementary, middle and high
school students have taken part in the park field trip from July 1, 2015 through February
29, 2016. The Busing Mini-Grant program was extended through December 2020.

¢ The GIES Dedication for Cypress Elementary in Fontana was held on February 25. The
principal and assistant principal were given a certificate and framed pictures of their
garden for display. Representatives from Fontana Water Company were in attendance.

o Staff has begun outreaching for IEUA’s “Water is Life” poster contest. Deadline for
submissions is March 3, 2016.

¢ Staff, in cooperation with member agencies, has recruited three teams for MWD’s 2016
Solar Cup Competition to be held May 13-16, 2016. Final team names and contact
information were submitted to MWD on October 1, 2015 for the 2016 program year:
Chino High School (Chino), Chino Hills High School (Chino Hills) and Henry J. Kaiser
High School (Fontana).

e Staff has begun scheduling schools for the Earth Day field trip portion. Currently, 1,244
students are scheduled to attend the student day.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

None.

G:\Board-Rec\2016'16075 Public Qutreach and Communication March 2016.docx



Public Qutreach and Communication
March 16, 2016
Page 3

IMPACT ON BUDGET

The above-mentioned activities arc budgeted in the FY 2015/16 Administrative Service Fund,
External Affairs Services budget.

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16075 Public Qutreach and Communication March 2016.docx



INFORMATION
ITEM

4F



Innovative Federal Strategies..

Comprehensive Government Relations

MEMORANDUM
To: Joe Grindstaff and Kathy Besser, IEUA
From: Letitia White, Jean Denton, and Drew Tatum
Date: February 29, 2016
Re: February Monthly Legislative Update

Appropriations Chairman Takes on Army Corps over “Waters” Rule

House Appropriations Committee Chairman Hal Rogers (R-KY) took aim at the Army Corps of
Engineers for its part in the waters of the United States rule issued by the agency and the
Environmental Protection Agency. “I’'m shooting real bullets here,” Chairman Rogers said at an
Energy-Water subcommittee hearing on the agency’s $4.62 billion fiscal 2017 budget request.
Due to the prevalence of mining in his home state, Rogers specifically took issue with the rule’s
impact on mining permits. “It’s practically impossible to get a permit to mine through your
agency and EPA, and I’m just very chagrined that the Corps of Engineers has kowtowed to the
EPA,” Rogers said. “You’re so afraid of a lawsuit that you’ve let the EPA bully you into doing
whatever they want to do.”

The “waters” rule is still on hold by the U.S. Court of Appeals for the 6th Circuit based in
Cincinnati, Ohio. The three-judge panel put the regulation on hold in October of 2015 when the
majority held that the petitioners (the states who filed suit against the federal government) have
demonstrated a substantial possibility of success on the merits of their claims. On February 22,
the same court ruled against arguments that it did not have proper jurisdiction to review
challenges to the rule. Barring an effort to seek review of this decision — either en banc or with
the Supreme Court — the decision means the 6th Circuit will hear the merits of the challenge to
the waters of the United States rule, which may be good for challengers of the rule based on prior
comments.

While taking aim at the agency’s involvement in the rulemaking process, lawmakers lamented
the administration’s budget request for the agency. The request calls for $4.62 billion in
discretionary appropriations, a drop from the $6 billion enacted in the fiscal year 2016.
Lawmakers believe the request would do little to address a massive backlog of projects at the
agency. Lt. Gen. Thomas-P. Bostick, chief of engineers for the Army Corps, told lawmakers that
completing all the construction projects currently budgeted at the agency would cost $19.7
billion and take nearly 20 years to complete. Acknowledgement of the agency’s lack of resources
was met with incredulity by Energy-Water Chairman Mike Simpson, R-Idaho, who said in his
opening statements that if enacted, the president’s fiscal 2017 request would amount to the
lowest funding level since 2004,

511 C Street, NE » Washington, DC 20002 e 202-347-5990 e Fax 202-347-5941



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC

President Obama Sends Final Budget Request to Congress

President Obama delivered his final budget proposal to Congress on February 9, requesting
$4.15 trillion in spending for fiscal year 2017 that begins on October 1, 2016. The proposal
would boost total spending by 4.9 percent, mainly as a result of increases in mandatory programs
and a rise in interest payments on the national debt. In keeping with the two-year budget deal
struck with Congress in December, the president requested only a slight increase, less than 1
percent, in discretionary spending programs overall.

Constrained by tight caps that keep discretionary spending relatively flat, the White House has
proposed paying for new initiatives by seeking funding that it considers "mandatory." The use of
the "mandatory" label has infuriated Republican appropriators, who view the move as an end-run
around spending limits and their own ability to control funding. Mandatory spending programs,
which usually require separate authorizing legislation, don't count against the spending limits put
in place under last year's bipartisan budget deal. In response, Republicans on the Budget
Committee have looked to cut at least $30 billion from mandatory spending in the fiscal year
2017 budget resolution. House Republican leaders are attempting to woo members of the
conservative Freedom Caucus to support a budget resolution after they announced their

opposition to any framework that allows for spending above the limits set in the Budget Control
Act of 2011.

Obama Designates New National Monuments

President Obama designated three new national monuments in the California desert Thursday,
February 11, expanding federal protection to 1.8 million acres of landscapes in California. The
designation came after Senator Dianne Feinstein (D-CA) introduced a new California Desert
Conservation and Recreation Act to protect the areas that were not included in her 1994 Desert
Protection Act legislation. Unable to move the legislation in Congress, Senator Feinstein decided
to take a two-pronged approach—encouraging the president to act unilaterally with an
Antiquities Act designation while also encouraging Congress to consider her legislation. In an
effort to dissuade the president from acting unilaterally, Representative Paul Cook (R-CA) had
introduced his own legislation in the House that would have covered many of the areas included
in Feinstein’s bill, while protecting some mining interests.

President Obama ultimately decided to move forward after the Department of Interior
participated in a field hearing hosted by Senator Feinstein in late 2015. The three proclamations
designate the Sand to Snow National Monument, Mojave Trails National Monument, and Castle
Mountains National Monument, comprised entirely of existing federal lands. The national
monuments will be managed by the Department of the Interior’s Bureau of Land Management
and National Park Service and by the Department of Agriculture’s Forest Service. The
proclamations direct the agencies to engage the public in comprehensive planning for the
management of these areas, building upon the provisions outlined in the proclamations. The
three designations all honor valid existing rights, and provide for continued use for training
activities of the U.S. military.

Specifically, the Sand to Snow designation states:
“Nothing in this proclamation shall be construed to interfere with the operation or
maintenance, or with the replacement or modification within the existing authorization



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC

boundary, of existing water resource, flood control, utility, pipeline, or
telecommunications facilities that are located within the monument, Existing water
resource, flood control, utility, pipeline, or telecommunications facilities located within
the monument may be expanded, and new facilities may be constructed within the
monument, to the extent consistent with the proper care and management of the objects
identified above. This proclamation does not alter or affect the valid existing water rights

of any party, including the United States. This proclamation does not reserve water as a
matter of Federal law,”

Republicans Promise to Block Supreme Court Nominee

Upon the passing of Associate Supreme Court Justice Antonin Scalia speculation immediately
began around who President Barack Obama might nominate to replace him, After learning of his
passing, Senate Majority Leader Mitch McConnell {(R-KY) indicated he believed that the
president should allow his successor to nominate a replacement. McConnell has reiterated that
Republicans do not plan to hold confirmation hearings before the Senate Judiciary Committee
when the president sends a nomination to the Senate.

Democrats made clear they are prepared to wage war over Senate Majority Leader Mitch
McConnell's refusal to consider any nomination to the court made by President Barack Obama.
"When the hard right doesn't get its way, their immediate reaction is, 'shut it down' — and the
Republican leadership marches in lockstep," Sen. Chuck Schumer (D-NY) said in a statement
Tuesday. Since the majority controls the floor calendar, Democrats could not force a vote against
the will of a united Republican caucus. However, Democrats could use tools at their disposal—
including the filibuster—to make it difficult for Republicans to accomplish anything until they
held a vote on a Supreme Court nominee. While there was initial speculation that Democrats
would hold up the appropriations process, Senate Minority Leader Harry Reid (D-NV) told
reporters that his party would not be an obstructionist party.

QOutlook for March

House Republican Leaders are still holding out hope that they will be able to pass a budget
resolution in March, Conservatives have called for reductions in mandatory spending programs
(Social Security, Medicare, etc.) in the annual budget resolution, which has not been done in

prior years. Appropriators believe that targeting mandatory spending in the budget process sets a
dangerous precedent in future years.

The House will spend the first week of the month voting on a number of bills under a suspension
of the rules, including a reauthorization bill for the Federal Emergency Management Agency.
The Senate is expected to bring the Energy Policy Modernization Act back to the floor early in
March after coming to an agreement on a federal response to the water crisis in Flint, Michigan.
Additionally, Senate Majority Leader Mitch McConnell has teed up consideration of an anti-
opioid bill, the Comprehensive Addiction and Recovery Act of 2015.

Appropriations Committees in the House and Senate will continue the process of crafting FY17
spending bills in March, with some subcommittee markups possibly occurring at the end of the
month.



INFORMATION
ITEM

4G



ﬁ Strategic Public Affairs

February 26, 2016
To: Inland Empire Utilities Agency
From: Michael Boccadoro
President
RE: February Legislative Report
Overview:

February 19 was the bill introduction deadline. Hundreds of bills were introduced, many in “spot”
format and bills must be in print for 30 days before they can be acted on or amended. The
Legislature spent most of February getting their bills ready for introduction. As bills pass the 30-

day mark, policy committees will start to meet to report bills out ahead of the April 22 policy
committee deadline.

The State Water Resources Control Board has approved a resolution implementing a 2012 law
declaring that every human has the right to clean, affordable and accessible water. The primary
objective of the resolution is to provide direction and guidance to the regional boards to ensure
consistency in the manner in which the human right to water is considered in certain board
actions.

Since the beginning of the year more than 500,000 acre-teet of water has been lost due to
biological opinion requirements. That is enough water for over one million families for one
year. Significant legislative concern is developing as that water flows into the ocean when it
could be used to replenish groundwater and fill critically low basins.

The State Water Resources Control Board recently voted to adopt an emergency conservation
regulation that extends mandatory urban conservation through October. There were many requests
for the regulations to be eased in light of heavy early-winter precipitation, but Board members said

they would revisit the regulation in the spring when more complete information is available about
the water year.

During a call to announce a multi-state clean energy initiative, Governor Brown stated his
interest in a carbon tax. Brown noted that there would be significant political hurdles to such a
tax, and no legislative measures have been introduced to implement the tax. A carbon tax is only
one of the many measures that are being discussed as tools to help the state meet its ambitious
greenhouse gas reduction goals.

Among the hundreds of bills introduced in the beginning of February, there were quite a few
dealing with biogas. Several by Assemblymember Das Williams (D- Santa Barbara) look to ease
gas standards and increase funds to help with interconnection costs.

ACWA has received title and summary for its joint proposal to amend Article X of the State
Constitution to create an alternative rate setting process for budget-based rates and stormwater



projects. The coalition is now testing the language in a voter survey and will consider next steps
after evaluating the poll results.

Early winter storms created a strong snowpack up and down the Sierras. Recent warmer
temperatures have caused significant snowmelt and leave many worried if the El Nifio will
continue. Additionally, the recent storms and snow melt have helped to replenish many of
Northern California’s critically low reservoirs. Unfortunately, with the inability to move water to
the southern part of the state, southern reservoirs still remain critically low.

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Status Report - February 2016

Human Right to Water
The State Water Resources Control Board has approved a resolution implementing a 2012 law
declaring that every human has the right to clean, affordable and accessible water. There were

last minute amendments to the resolution that ease the language to ensure it will not spur any
new rules.

The primary objective of the resolution is to provide direction and guidance to the regional
boards to ensure consistency in the manner in which the human right to water is considered in
certain board actions.

Water Loss

As California struggles to recover from record drought conditions, environmental regulations
continue to force hundreds of thousands of acre-feet of precious water to be flushed through the
Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta and out to the ocean. At the same time, State Water Project
contractors have received allocation estimates of only 30 percent.

Since the beginning of the year more than 500,000 acre-feet has been lost due to biclogical
opinion requitements. That is enough water for over one million families for one year.

The amount of water lost has been an increasingly hot topic among regulators and Legislators in
Sacramento. State Water Resources Control Board Chair Felicia Marcus and Senator Fran
Pavley are among those who have questioned if there is anything that can be done to capture that
water and get it into storage or use it to replenish groundwater basins.

With the warm weather continuing, many are also questioning the Army Corps’ 30 year-old
policies to keep certain amounts of capacity available for flood protection. Folsom Reservoir has
been releasing water for the past few weeks which is also being lost due to the pumping
restrictions in the Delta.



Emergency Conservation Regulations Extended
The State Water Resources Control Board recently voted to adopt an emergency conservation
regulation that extends mandatory urban conservation through October.

There were many requests for the regulations to be eased in light of heavy early-winter
precipitation, but Board members said they would revisit the regulation in the spring when more
complete information is available about the water year. Local water agency representatives
called for modifications to recognize local drought resilient supplies and to address on-the-
ground conditions in different parts of the state. For example, requests were made to credit
agencies that have invested in local resilient supplies though projects such as recycling, local
storage, desal of brackish and ocean water and other measures.

Board chair Felicia Marcus noted that regional differences are a factor, and that other
adjustments may be needed after April. But now is not the time, she said, for a major overhaul of
the regulation that has been in place since June 2015.

Carbon Tax

During a call to announce a multi-state clean energy initiative, Governor Brown stated his
interest in a carbon tax. Brown noted that there would be significant political hurdles to such a
tax, and no legislative measures have surfaced to implement such a tax.

The comments from the Governor came after California Air Resources Board Chair Mary
Nichols warned legislators that California cannot meet its long-term GHG-reduction targets if it
does not set a higher price on carbon. Her statement underscores the administration’s desire to
continue a cap and trade program post 2020 and increase the state’s emissions reductions goals.

The last carbon tax bill was introduced in 2014 by then President Pro Tem Steinberg and was
met with significant opposition including Governor Brown.

Biogas Bills
There have been a significant number of bills introduced all taking aim at trying to increase
biogas production in California.

AB 2206 (Williams) aims to address on the gas quality standards for biomethane injection into
common carrier pipelines.

AB 2313 (Williams) targets the $40 million set aside at the CPUC for biomethane
interconnection costs. The author is interested in increasing the funding cap from $1.5 million
per project to $3 million per project.

SB 1043 (Allen) is similar to his SB 687 from last year. The bill would require CARB to look at
ways to increase biogas production in the state. Options still include a biogas procurement
requirement, similar to the electric Renewable Portfolio Standard.

SB 1153 (Cannella) will address possibly rate-basing gas corporation capital investments to
facilitate pipeline biomethane development and injection in California.



SB 1402 (Pavley) would authorize investing from the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (GGRF)
to promote in-state production of low-carbon intensity fuels.

All of these bills are still in draft format and conversations with the authors® offices about what
the final goal of the billss are ongoing, but the topic of biomethane injection is clearly a very hot
topic in the Legislature this year.

Title and Summary Received for ACWA Prop 218 Initiative

The coalition working to make changes to Article X of the constitution to try to mitigate some of
the Prop. 218 hurdles to adopting budget based rates and financing stormwater projects has
received title and summary from the Attorney General’s office for their ballot initiative.

“LOCAL GOVERNMENT. WATER, SEWER, STORMWATER, AND FLOOD
CONTROL SERVICES. FEE STRUCTURES. INITIATIVE CONSTITUTIONAL
AMENDMENT. Establishes alternative process for local government to impose fees for water,
sewer, stormwater, and flood control services, as defined, without voter approval. Authorizes fee
structures that recover reasonable costs of providing service, encourage water conservation and
resource management, and provide fee reductions for low-income households. Requires notice of
and public hearing on proposed fees. Allows fee payers to prevent proposed fee by majority
filing written protests. Prohibits use of fee revenues for other purposes. Requires independent
audit of revenues and expenditures. Summary of estimate by Legislative Analyst and Director of
Finance of fiscal impact on state and local government: Increased local government revenues and
spending for flood control services and stormwater management in the range of low hundreds of
millions of dollars up to more than $1 billion annually, depending on future actions by local
governing boards and voters.”

The coalition has taken this language and is now testing it in a voter survey. Results are expected
at the beginning of March.

In the meantime, they are still working to get a constitutional amendment on the ballot with a
two-thirds vote of the Legislature.

Snow Pack

The early-winter storms that brought the statewide snowpack to above normal levels have
tapered off. With unseasonably warm temperatures, the snow has started to melt and the
snowpack numbers have decreased. Statewide, the snowpack is 91 percent of average to date. In
the northern Sierra, it is 96 percent of the norm; in the central Sierra, 92 percent of average and
in the southern Sierra, 84 percent of the norm.

When it comes to snowpack, the critical date is still looming. April 1 is when snowpack reaches
its peak, and in a typical year that snow provides Californians with roughly a third of their water
supply.

Weather forecasts for the next ten days only predict negligible precipitation in Northern
California watersheds.



Reservoir Conditions

The recent storms have helped replenish critically low reservoirs in Northern California.
Unfortunately, with pumping restrictions in the Delta, the regulators have been unable to move
water into south of delta storage reservoirs and basins. The chart below shows how northern
basins are increasing capacity, while the basis south of the Delta are seeing more moderate or
even negative storage changes.

The following is a chart of water levels at several California reservoirs comparing end of
September 2015 levels to end of February levels:

Reservoir | Percent of Percent of
Capacity Historical Average
Sept. 28 | Feb. 25 | Sept. 28 | Feb. 25
Lake Shasta 35% 59% 59% 82%
Lake Oroville 30% 51% 48% 74%
Folsom Lake 18% 64% 32% 116%
San Luis Reservoir | 20% 47% 42% 50%
Lake Perris 36% 35% 47% 42%
Castaic Lake 36% 32% 45% 32%

Legislative Update

February 19 was the last day for members to introduce new bills for the 2016 year. Hundreds of
bills were introduced before the deadline, a majority of which are in “spot” form. “Spot” bills
are bills that are introduced, but do not have any real operative language. Many of these bills
will be amended after they have been in print for 30 days to add more substantive language in
order to be sct for a policy committee hearing.



INFORMATION
ITEM

4H



TO:

FR:

SU:

A gricultural Resources
635 Maryland Avenue, N.E.

Washington, D.C. 20002-5811
(202) 546-5115

February 26, 2016

Legislative Report

Joe Grindstaff
General Manager, Inland Empire Utility Agency

David M. Weiman

Agricultural Resources
LEGISLATIVE REPRESENTATIVE, IEUA

Legislative Report, February 2016

With the arrival of February, the congressional year finally “got underway.” At the beginning of
the month, all eyes were on the El Nino on the West Coast and on Congress here on the East

Coast.

Snapshet.

In January, the El Nino weather system arrived in California, the West Coast and even
into the Rocky Mountains. After a wet month (above average in some places), the El
Nino rains and snow slowed and then all but came to a halt by the month’s end.

Senator Feinstein formally introduced her long-awaited Drought Bill (S. 2553, The
California Long-Term Provisions for Water Supply and Short-Term Provisions for
Emergency Drought Relief Act).

California remains in drought {month-to-month, this report is unchanging) El Nino rains
and snow notwithstanding. As February came to a close, approximately half the state,
including the San Joaquin Valley, remained in “extreme” or “exceptional” drought
condition (the two highest of five categories)

CASA and ACWA held their annual Washington, DC fly-ins. IEUA was represented by



Director Hall, General Manager Grindstaff and External Affairs Director, Kathy Besser.
The conference meetings were supplemented with meetings with Reps. Norma Torres,
Ken Calvert, Judy Chu, Pete Aguilar, Ed Royce and Rep. Grace Napolitano’s water staff.
IEUA held a policy luncheon with Orange County attended by about 15 House Members
on a bi-partisan basis.

Unexpected Death of Justice Scalia. On February 13, Justice Scalia died while on a
hunting trip in West Texas. The opening on the High Court instantly overwhelmed the
political agenda for the year with Senate Rs insisting that any nominee (yet to be
identified) won’t even get a hearing. The President is making it clear that he will submit
a highly qualified nominee to the Senate (which must Advise and Consent — approve or
reject — the nomination). This unexpected development has the potential to derail the
Senate’s political and legislative agenda for the remainder of 2016.

The primary election “season” is finally underway. Voting began in lowa, moved to
New Hampshire and then South Carolina and Nevada.

White House Water Innovation Conference — IEUA being considered by WH and Office
of Science and Technology Policy for participation.

2016 Agenda — Top Priority

House Speaker Paul Ryan (R-WI) and Senate Majority Leader Mitch McConnell (R-KY)
jointly decided that considering, marking up, passing and then conferencing all 12
funding (appropriations) bills was their top priority (which hasn’t been done in years).

The House-Senate leadership wanted to avoid the need and use of a Continuing
Resolution (CR) or Omnibus bill as has almost routinely occurred in recent years.

House-Senate leadership effort, however, has been stalled by the House Freedom Caucus
— the same 50 or so House Rs who opposed Bochner on just about everything. They are
insisting that the budget agreement reached last Fall be rejected and are calling for
massive cuts in domestic spending accounts. That single internal House disagreement
has prevented Speaker Ryan from presenting a budget (step one in the budget/spending
process) to the House and starting the budget/spending/appropriations process.

Administration Submits Budget

Interior Department Budget submitted to Congress is $13.4 billion, The centerpiece of
the budget is found in several key points:

14 million jobs created during the Obama Administration

More than 70 consecutive months adding new jobs

Unemployment now below 5%

Deficit reduced (annually) by about three-quarters

* ¥ ¥ #*

BuRec Budget request — $1.1 Billion. Overall request for BuRec programs and facilities

2-



in the 17 Western States.

BuRec Request for Title XVI— $21 million (or, about 1.7-1.8% of the overall BuRec
budget request). This is the fifth year of drought. Demand for the program is
overwhelming (evidence by the 100+ projects in California alone identified in the
Feinstein bill and the more than $600 million being advanced by the State for recycling
projects from Prop. 1. BuRec’s dislike of this program is well-known and already is a
point of discussion for Appropriators and other House Members.

Tax Reform Agenda

House R leadership continues to insist that tax reform is 2 major issue to be considered
this congressional session, but it keeps being pushed back and delayed.

It remains a priority, but between on-going primary elections, the death of Justice Scalia,
and the unexpected internal budget fight — it’s been all but impossible for a new Chair
(Rep. Kevin Brady, TX) to both staff up and prepare for tax reform too. This is fast
becoming a 2017 issue legislatively. 2016 will be devoted to on-going “educational”
efforts.

As reported last month, “IEUA, along with ACWA, NWRA along with almost every major
form of infrastructure (water, airports, energy, transportation, hospitals, schools,
libraries, recreation, etc.), have worked with the Municipal Bonds Coalition of America,
headed by Columbia, SC Mayor, Steve Benjamin to protect this tax code provision and
oppose efforts to eliminate or modify it. This is also a high priority for the US
Conference of Mayors and the bond industry in the finance sector.”

The MBCA is actively in the process of changing itself from an informal working group
to a formal legal entity and expects to be even more active in 2016 and beyond.

Water/Weather/Drought

Feinstein Bill Introduced — Fate Unclear

Drought legislation is gridlocked. Serious disagreements exist between some San
Joaquin Valley irrigators (especially those with low water rights) and just about
everybody else.

Senator Feinstein circulated a new bill earlier this year with Senator Boxer. The bill was
finally introduced, but Senator Boxer was not willing to put her name on it.

The bill is still being reviewed — there are unanswered questions about operational
impacts to Southern California.

The bill does something not typically done in legislation. That it, it prescribes
“operational” standards. Usually, bills establish policy, even a detailed set of policies.
Once enacted, the agency, in this case BuRec, then designs an implementation plan —
which includes operational considerations, standards and protocols. By statutorily

8



mandating certain operational standards, the bill has been very atypically complex.
No date for Senate Energy Committee hearings yet.

As reported last month, “of special important to IEUA, there is a provision that will
allow recycling projects, not authorized by Congress to be considered. If enacted, this
would allow the Cucamonga Valley WD project to be considered for funding, BuRec's
current opposition notwithstanding.” This provision is included.

A key addition to the bill — the MWD/LA Sanitation Recycling Project is now identified
in the Feinstein bill.

Appropriations — $100 Million for Drought Relief

E The massive appropriations bill signed into law in December provided for $100 million
drought relief (the provision was requested by Senator Feinstein).

| TEUA has applied for grant pursuant to a BuRec Request for Proposal (RFP).

| IEUA worked with its House delegation (Cook, Aguilar, Torres, Royce, Chu and
Napolitano) to submit a letter to Secretary Jewell urging that a portion of the $100
million be allocated to Title XVI/Water Smart programs.

El Nino

Wi El Nino arrived in January. Rain and snow came. Wet was good and welcomed by all.

[ In February, the El Nino season abruptly came a near-halt by the end of the month. El
Nino stalled.

| All of California, according to the Drought Monitor, remains “in some category of

drought.” Approximately half the entire state, including all of the San Joaquin Valley, is
still in severe or exceptional drought status.

Unanticipated Drought-Related Federal Tax Issue

As previously reported, the “unintended tax penalty” resulting from the Governor’s
Drought Orders (from MWD’s turf rebates) remains unresolved and unclarified.

Clarification from Treasury/IRS is still pending.

Drought Conditions — California. Even with El Nino storms, the Drought Monitor
indicates that all 58 counties remained in various levels of drought.

El Nino. Drought Monitor also reports that westwide, that drought conditions are
lessening in most western states.



Lake Mead. BuRec is projecting that Lake Mead remains at risk (even with storms in
the Rocky Mountains) and 2017 remains highly problematic.

Looking Into March 2016

Primary voting continues with Super Tuesday (12 states and one territory)

On the R side, almost a dozen candidates have now dropped out. The race is down to
Trump, Rubio, Cruz and OH’s Governor, John Kasich. On the D side, it’s a Clinton-
Sanders race. It’s openly speculated that conventions could be deadlocked. If that
happens, all bets are off.

An energy bill, first time in a decade, has been under consideration in the Senate, guided
in a bi-partisan fashion by Senate Energy Committee Chair, Sen. Lisa Murkowski and the
Committee’s ranking D, Sen. Maria Cantwell. The bill was on the Senate floor early in
February but became embroiled in partisan opposition to relief for Flint, Michigan.
Indications are that a solution is emerging and the bill will be finalized soon. The fate of
the energy bill has the potential to impact a Senate water bill. If the energy bill is
blocked, then hope for a bi-partisan Senate water/drought bill goes way down. If it
passes, then hope for a drought bill increases.

Appropriations Committees (even with the uncertainty) are now moving forward with
hearings and budget reviews.

The President is expected to submit a nomination for the Supreme Court.



INFORMATION
ITEM

4]



Date:

To:

From:

Re:

CALIFORNIA STRATEGIES, LLC

February 26, 2016
Inland Empire Utilities Agency
John Withers, Jim Brulte

February Activity Report

Listed below is the California Strategies, LLC monthly activity report. Please feel free to call us

if you have any questions or would like to receive any more information on any of the items

mentioned below.

Met with IEUA Executive staff to review priority issues and to discuss activities for February that Executive
Staff wanted accomplished.

Discussed ways to highlight the customer retum on investment for the building of recharge basins in our
service temitory.

Discussed LAFCQ and made recommendations to staff about upcoming issues. Support and advise on
IEUA/SBYMWD transfer transaction on an as needed basis. Review and comment on Webb Engineering
Plan of Services Scope of Work.

Provided a progress update on the recent filing of a Sphere of Influence amendment filing by the CYWRD.
Continue to monitor statewide water issues including the BDCP, water bond, and drought relief act activate.
Made recommendation regarding the request for money from various state special funds.

Monitor Santa Ana Regional Board agenda and issues of interest to [EUA.

18800 VON KARMAN AVENUE, STE. 190 - IRVINE, CALIFORNIA 92612
TELEPHONE (9949) 252-8990 - FACSIMILE (949) 252-8911
WWW.CALSTRAT.COM




INFORMATION
ITEM

4J



[[1q WYFnoIp € passed Apeal[e dARY ASY} JRT) PAIRISNAI DARY SURII[GNATY SSNOK
BIUIOJITR)) "SUOCISSNOSIP 1SINB[ S UT PIAJOAUT JOU 3IoM ASY) PIBS SABT SSNOL
oy ut sueol[qnday] BIEOJIE.) YSnoy) ‘UONe[SISs] MU IO 3120 0) siowmred
[e19paJ pue “9Je1s [R0] YILM JI0M 0} PINUNUOD SBY SYS e Pres UISISUId,|

"9107 PV suoneudoxddy pajeprosuo) 10V JOHSY 13nox
oy ojut suoisiaoid 1YZnoIp umo Ioy) Jasur 0} pajdwone suedtiqnday] asnoy | Aousdiowy JOJ SUOISIAOLJ
JS]J€ S3WOD OSTE [[Iq 9 ], "BIUIOJITE]) UL SISPJOYYE]S WOL) JIeqpa] [EUOLIPpE une] -Hoys pue Addng
BurAr0091 19)JR ATRnIqo UI UONE[SI39] IYSNOoIp pasnponuIal Urslsuis ] J0jeusg IoJeA\ JOJ SUOISTAOI]
‘[2AS] sopTaItoD 1) Je uororr) Surured jou wone[s189] feuIsuoe 1o YIm WIS -300] eMWIONE)) | UI9ISUIS,] SUWRI(] "UIS €€STS
"L 1 X 10J Spunj [EUCHIPPE p33sanbal ut uol|
9°ZC$ TeuonIppe Ue [enbo 19730301 1) [IVINSIEM PUR JAX (ML |oq 10f
sisonbox suoreudoxdde paytwiqns pue Jjeyaq moA uo SHOHS 0m] UdNeUopuI
seq S41 ‘siueid [IVINSIaIeA Pue JAX 911, 10f 1senbar 1odpnq o
0) puodsar [[is ss315U0)) MOY MOWY [[IA M WM JBY) 1Y “YOIBJA] JO PU o) £q
STI1q 2Anadsar oy <dn Juryrew 1reys Lewr saapuoaqns suoneudoiddy o,
"[PAS[ PIIVEUD 9 A S} 2A0QE UOT[IIUK
" £$ pue jsaubax 91 X 4 371 940G€ 000°GES UOIIIW €T (LAVINSIIEM
[OAS] PaIORUL 9T A Y} MO[3q UOI[[ru
8'1$ Mq sonbaz 91 X, SU) 2A0qE UOH[IW G 1§ WOH[M $*[T$ :TAX SLL
:swrerdord uoreAIasuoo
pure SUI[2A031 1ajeM I0] S[9A9] Surpuny Sumoro] oY) pajsenbar yuapisard oy, SOTOUBY
pore[sy pue Juswido[aaa(] | IOpUBXO[Y JEWE] UdS T8
9107 ‘6 ATeniqa,] uo pases[al sem ssa13uo)) 03 1sanbax 103pnq s Juopisarg o], | I9jeA\ pue A810ud £1 A juosdung oy doy |/~ WH
"910T 1824 [0S Wl S)UeId [ YVINSIIEM PUe [AX SPILL 10 0TI
9°7T$ Sunedo[[B SeA I1 JBY) PAOUNOUNE UOBWR[ONY JO neaIng Y, :2epd )44
"SI0,
pue “03k0y ‘ouryjodeN ‘gD Sf00)) ‘IB[MIY 19119 24} 01 wo pIuTIs ssa18U0))
30 SIQUISIA Fummo([og oy, ‘s)oofoxd [IVINSIEM PUe [AX S[IL, 10]
JOT[PI WBNOIP WINSIM,, 01 PIJEOOf[e ASUOUI AJOASD I0LIU] 93 JO Jusunredo(]
o) 18U} JS© 0} §SOIBU0)) JO SIGQUISIA YiIm LIOTJS Ue papeayreads ST
S29)1WUIO))
'910Z ‘0¢ Ioquuaydag ySnomy surr yorgm ‘Tedx [eosL oY1 Jo pus [ 9107 9oV suoneudoxddy suonjeudoiddy
o1 y3nomy) serouade [eIapa] [[e spuny 10y suoneudorddy pajepijosuc)) sy, PAYEpI[0SUO)) ojeuag pue asnof] | 6207 A'H
snje)g/Alenimng Alemmng X0/pue N Josuodg | Iaqump g

2upIfiusiy Jo uoyvisisay wiapay




"910A SI0JRULS UayMm 1oddns mesnIediq SA13991
0} pajoadxa st 1 Inq ‘opeusy oy ul dn usYe) U0 10U SBY UONB[SIZA] S,

U1l ut pouaddeq seq se no

Sm3Ferp wory wonenyIs Y JuaA1d [[IM I1 JBY] PUSIUOD A} ‘UONRUIUIEIUOD
I5Tem 91Ny JuaAdxd 10U [[IM TOHR[SISO] MOU O} Jef) Jrupe SIoyne s,[[iq

I} ST\ "SISWINSTOD PUe ‘S3J8)s ‘sonImn ‘Aousge oY) USIMISq UOHEITUNUITION
aaoxdurr o weyd € 218310 0] pUR S[SA] PIIEPURT JAOGE ISII ISjBM

Sun[uLIp U1 pes] JO SUONENUAOUC) UsYM orjqnd oy} AJII0U 0} £5uaFy UONINOI]
[elusmuONIAT, o) saxmnbai uone|si3ay ay [, “ULSTYOIIA “JUI],] UT SISLIO Jojem

o 01 puodsar o} ssexduo)) Aq peaordde 1s1y oy S1 [1q S, “197em SunjuLIp 10V SSoUdIBMY (-9
noy) ul proy wog JaFuep moqe sqnd oyl AJnou 0} AyHoyine s Aousdy souerdmo)) poacidwy | woidn pasg “doy 7 (IN
UOI}93101J [EIUSWILIOXATE SY} AJLE[O 0} uone[si3a] paaoidde seq ssnoH oYL | 10V Iojem Subuqojes | -(D 9PID Ued 4y | OLVPIH
oI\ UT JOO[J oY) 0] WmidX 0}
uonR[sIS9] oY) MO[[E [[IM 18] JUAUIRLSE ue 9ARY AJTf) SAIT[A] SIBIDOWI(] pue
suesrpqndsy] “sAe[op [empas0id pasned weSYoIA “WUI],] Ul SISLID I31eM 1) 0}
PoIR[OI SUSWIPULIE I2)Je ATeniqa,] Ul J0o[f ay) wioxy pafmd sem uone[sids] sq,
"Kouorogye A310u2 uo ysnd
e se [[om se ‘pus o Supepdn ‘Sururen qol ‘puny UOLRAIISTUOD [RIDPIJ UleHl
oy Surzuogne ‘Sumyruuad suipodid sed fexmeu :aImonnseIul pue s[ony [ISsof
uo peasul [Jiq Y], ‘T[1q wesnrediq AN © 12 pIwire SSNIANOE ISYI0 Pue Yoeanno
s3urjeaw ‘suonerjo8au Jo SUCU JO NS B SB JWRD PUL SIRIDOW(] pue S10T
sueonqnday yioq wox sonuoud Lorjod Jo Ioqumu 8 SSPNIOUL [[1q Y, "STBIA JO 19V UOnRZIUISPON
312 ur [1q Lorod wroe1 A310uD proiq ISITY S) SULIIPISUOD ST 9JeUSg YL, £Lor104 431007 DISMONINJA] BST'T WIS Z10Z'S
"SSAIBUOD) [ 1 Y} JO PUL U
21035( ASNOF] Y} AIM [[Iq B S0UIJUOD 0} HOLJS Uk UL SBUIS 9y} UL UOHe[SIS|
148noIp paoNPONUIL SBT ULSUI,] IOJRUIS “OA0qR PSUOHUIW SY "IIBUS
o) Ul G1QZ 1990100 AJFed U oy sem SuLIeo] SoNIIWO;) SALR(SIZT 1SIL 10T IO VY
Aumoag poo,] UBdLISWY
"9SNOT] 3} Passed pue JAIB M UISISOM oepe[eA prae( d3] | 868CUH

"SIOQUIEYD 0M] U] US3M]S( PAOUISIU0D 3q UED JBY} UOIJR[SITO] SaA0W 3]eUdS
oy Tnun passed aq wreo Jeq) uone[sSo] Ao 1) S1 31 9A0jeq Aoy pue ‘Ieo ST}




INFORMATION
ITEM

4K



"SRl Ul S[qBISA002I 1S0D I} 1M Apnjs
) ayeMapun 03 sasuadxa oy} 0} nquuod A[deuontodoid 03 vruroyI[R))
ur sourjadid Isrmres wowwod Sunerado uonelodroo sed yoes armboi
PInoMm [[1q aY; ‘Apmys o1} s1e[duwios pue ayeurspun o} s9a13e ASo[ouyas],
PUE 22US[S UO [IOUNO0Y) BIUIOJE) oy I "souredid sed rorireo

UOUIUIOS oJui P2jaafur 9q ued JI 210J2q 2UBYISWIOL] JOJ UCISSIWIO)
sanm(] dTjqngd 91 Aq pajdope suornesijoads SUBXO[Is murxew

pue onjea Furresy wmwrurw 0] Juryejar sansst 91y100ds uoneiodiod

sed pue [euo0Idar o) SurzAeue Apnis € 9)9[dwos pue oyeropun

01 A3o[ouyda], pUB J0UIIOG UO [IOUNOY) BIUIONI[R) o) 1sanbal pnom

oreasar :sourodid Iorired
UOUIIOD OJUl Uonoa[ur
PUE GOTIDSUUOIIAUL
JoUR)OWIOTY

SWeNIA | 9077 9V

-Kyred srqrsuodsar oy \mw Jo pasodstp Arradoad pue parsa0osl

ST JeY) [eLIOYEUr po3Ieyosip A[[e u:m oy Jo punod 10 uo[ed A19A9

10J paonpa1 aq Leuad [raro syt eyl anmbax pjnom [fI1q 94 [, "p8reydssip
Teusyewr gunnyjod jo punod 10 woy[es yoes 10J ([$ UBY} SI0W j0U

Jo Aeuad [1A1 [euonIppe Ue asodwll p[nom [[Iq SIYT "2Iels 2} JO Siojem
21} OJUI S[BTIdJBW “@oﬁqmmmuc HQ%O Io syuejn[jod snowea sa3reyosip oym
uostad e uo 00 sz$ Jo LAeuad 1A wnuixew e sasodwr me| Jua1my)

Sour,] ‘uonn[oJ Ioem

QuAYT | TH8I AV

'ZT0T ‘[ ATenuer o) 3)ep ey} PUXS PMOM [[Iq STY], JSIJ SMII0
IQASYOIUM £ T0T ‘1 EEE% [Hun 10 pandxa sey AouagdIauwn Jo 3jels Iy}
[nun 2AneIado suremnal uondwiaxs sIq) %ﬁﬂ sapracid yOHD "Step uread
B U0 JOUIDA0L) 9Y) Aq powure[oold sem AoUeFIouId Jo 2je)s & yormgm

10§ suompuoo Jydnoap sunednmm Jo osodmd oyl 10] usyelopun pue
‘paredurm A0 are spoeduir UOTIONIISUOD O] 2I9UM PUR m:ﬁmn_ma QAIISUDS
10 spuejjom 109448 Jou s30p 3o9foxd oﬁm J1_quoatystuapdal Iajempunols
pare[al1 A[Ioamp pue ‘Aem Jo sIYSL BUnISIXS UIYImM aImjonnseryul

patera A10a11p pue auljadid 191em poafoAddl m% uorsuedxs 10 UOTIONIISUOI
oy} Jo Sunsisuos §1o9foxd syuswarmbar sit woxy sidwexs vOHD

saurjadid 191eM PA[OADRI

:nopdwaxa oy Aend)
[EJUUIUOIIATH BHLIOFITET)

SIIEIN | 6FL1 °V |

"SMe[ SUNSIXa IOYIO SUTRIUOD [[Iq

ST ], "Sasn JOOPINO PUB JOCPUI JOJ SWIaIsAs IsemAerd yrep jo zouﬁumu
pue ‘uoriR[[eISUI ‘UOIIONIISU0D Y} J0] sprepuels 3uip[ing [eaoxdde

10J Jmuqus pie Jdope 03 ‘9[99 Suryewajnl mv.a%gﬁ SuIp[mq TerUUdLN
1xXau 2y} 18 ‘quamdofoas Alrunwo)) pue Fuisnol jo weudredeq

a3 axnbar pinom q mu.m_ﬁ "SIOYSEMYSIP pue SYUIS Uagojy won
SWIOD RV Io1eMI]SeM PATJIdads © se  Jo)emArIS jxep, JUuljep pnom

Io1eMARID
yre( spiepuels Surppng

LAredoW | 8€L1 GV

‘Teueo Jexeydirad B JO UOTIONISTOD

o) Surzuoyine 9104 € 0} Iotid sisAeue A1[1qISeS] OTWIOU002 paqLIosard
& 9)o[dmion 0] 29I SISA[eUY JANR[SEHoT o) 2Iinbdl pnom pue ‘£ 10T
‘1 Arenue( 191J¢ I0 U0 BIUIOJI[E)) JO SISJOA Y] AQ WO P3SJOA SATIRTIIUT

ue Aq pozuoyne Afssardxa sso[un ‘pauryop se ‘[eues [eioydiad & Jo
uoyonNsuoo 9y Jiqigold pinom [[iq oﬁm B2 wrnbrof UeG-0JUIWIRIORS
oy ur Juswageuew pooyy pue ‘Ayenb 1ojem ‘A7ddns 1o1eMm 01 Sumye[ax
sureidord ss)sTurpe 0) serousSe ojels snoueA saImbal me[ usLM))

eues rexoyduad :eypoq
umbeor reG-oUAUIRIIES

wewddy | €IL1 9V

snjels/AIemung

T ATewmng Yojpue iy,

Josuodg | 1equny g

Yo 4| O} UGHDISIBIT VIS



9SO0Y) pPIpUaIXa sey 31 [[JUN SI3IATSS 10 SIMONISEHUL I9]eMI)SeM 10
SOOIAIDS JO JINJONIISEIJUL Iojem FuruLl % PUNXS 0} 1PWISIP B 10 )0 ®©
Surzioyne wWoly UOSSIANIod uoneniroy Asusde [eoo] & 1qiyoid pinom

Ioyem SunuLIp
”HﬁuEEo>ow Tex0]

AIOM

£181 dS

‘Burpuny Jo sadrnos [enuajod

pue sed o[qemauaI Jo asn pue juswdo[2Adp piter unm 0} SIatLeq
AJIUOPI pue SHJOUS(q [EIUSTHOIIATS J021Ip sopiaold sed s[qemoudl

Jo 9sn pue uononpold oy} 2msu 0} ‘SFury) 19Y}0 Juowe ‘pieoq

a1e1s oy axmbai pjnom ‘Surop os uUr ‘pue ‘paUIfop SB “SEE 9]qeMoudI
Jo asn pue uononpoid s[qeurelsns oYy asearour Apurdyuds o1 sarorjod
1dope pue 15pISUOD 0] predyg SIVIMOSY 1Ty 2elg oY) a1mbar pnom

OUEYawoIq
pue sedolq :sed s[qemousy

WV

Ev01 .mmJ

‘sasodind [erojouaq I0J ‘pauIIap SB ‘MO[J [entue oe s Aroey Yl

JO 98naI1 04(G 3SEI] 1B 9ASIYOE 0] [[BNO UB3D0 Ue [SNOI[) SULSIeYISIp

AI[ToR] JusUmyeaI) Jojemalsem e axmbal pinom ‘97z ‘| Arenuef

910J9q 10 U0 ‘I[Iq ST, "osn [BIOIJAUIq IOYMNJ JOJ I2]eMm ST} 9[04I

01 sonmunyioddo 9A1193]F3 -1509 oY) JO JY3I| UL JSJeM JO IS S[qBUOSBIIUN
pue djsem e s1 ‘suorsiaoid s,[[1q 971 ym souerduwrod ur 3daoxa ‘s|[epno

UL300 WO Iajemdiserm Pajea) Jo S31eqosip a1y Jeq) 2Ie[dop Pliom

I9eM Po[oAdaI
JUSUNRIN IARMISEM

81aqz1104

€971 €S

"Sme[ SUTISIXD

I9)0 pue SUOISIAOId Paje[al IS0 SUreluod [[iq STY], "Xel Walo[eA

Pe 9104 946G B KAS] 0] 101ISIP [eIRads 10 ‘AJunoo pue A0 ‘AjUnod

‘£110 ® QzpoyINe pnom pue ‘sjustuannboy potjioads syeew uonisodord
oy} J1 ‘ojqeoridde se “JomsIp [eroads 10 ‘Ajunod pue A0 “Ajunoo

‘119 3y Jo sigjea oy JO 9,66 Aq paaordde st yeql ‘ammjonrserul
PAJe[al pue SARI[IoR] JUSWIIESN} ISJRMULIO)S PUB ‘SIMJONIISRIUT PIIB[oI
pue saniroey Suionpord 1a1em omnﬁcmaou 2INIONIISEIIUI PIjR[al pue
sonyioej Suronpoid Jojem a[qeiod ‘OINIONIISBITUT POJe[dl PuR SITIIOR]
UdTjesl) 12jemalsem Jo Jusweoe[dal 10 ‘uoneN[Iqeyal ‘UOToNnISuoddl
“UonONIISU0d Y} vﬁm 0] PaLMOUL SSOUPIIQIPUI PIPUOQ IDIALIIS

0} 10INsIp [erdads 10 “AJunoo pue A110 ‘ATumnoo ‘A0 e Aq pasoduar

o1eI © 10J JUY] 9] 9y 0} uondaoxs [euonippe Ue 33e3Id PNOM

[eacxdde

I9J0A 2INIONISBIJUI pue
SOMI[I0E] Iayem :Suroueul
JUSTILIDAOS [e007]

woofg]

__8VOV

0507 £q jusreamnba aprxoIp ToqIes JO SUO) LIS T UL

$59] Jo 108re) suoissimo rentue eyded 1od e JUIAdTYOR 10 0GQT AQ S[2A9]
0661 MO[9G 9%G6 01 2508 Sosed asnoquadld Jo SUOISSIWD ) FUIdnpal
IS 0} JUTUIOD O3 mn::.? spuounuxdA0g [euoneuqns Isy1ogdo) S3unq
YOTgM ‘NON T F9pU[) §,UMOIg IOWIIAOL) UT YLIOJ 138 S[e08 oyl }osur

01 SISIO pUE ‘SIOUITE JJE)S ‘SJUSWUIIA0T [220] 1M JIOM 3} SNUHUOD
pInom Jeyl uole[SIS] 10BUS O} amle[sI3a] U] JO JUSUL SU) 31BIS PINOM

a8uey) srewWI[D

suppy

20LT 9Y

"s[e08 perJroads Joquny 0] ‘pauryop se ‘sed [eimea

mnmaoaou JO asn pue uoi}dnpoid 9J8ISUI 3} ISBAIIUI 0] SI13INBNS
10 £9o1enS © Sjen[eAd pue APn)s 0} pIeoq 3iels 9y} armbal %?95 nq
su[L, ‘sosed osnoyuadrd Jumrwe s20Imos Junendsar pue SULIOINON
10] ojqisuodsar Aouade ajels 93 Se preog $IIIN0SY Iry 21el§ 24
SIYSI[qEIS? 90T JO 19V SUOHN[Og SUIIBAy [BqO[D BIUION[ED SY [

ser) [BINJeN [qemaudy]

SUIBI[ILAM

grec dv




-sme| Sunsixo 1970 pue suorsiaoxd

POIR[OL I9YI0 SUTRIUOd [[Iq ST], oW oIe SUOMIPUOO palyisads

$S9[UN ‘SAUTUNTIUIOD POSEIUBAPESIP 9SOY) 0} SIDAISS ISOY} PUXD

0] JuawIaRISE Uk OJUI PAIAUD SBY I0 ‘Paryroads se ‘odusnijul Jo 219yds
)1 0] Juaoe(pe 10 UMM SONIUNUIWOD Pa8BIUBADRSIP [[B 0} SIIIAISS

SSOIAIZS IO

QIONNSEIUT 12eMIISem
'S3O1AISS 1O SIMONLSBIUT




INFORMATION
ITEM

4L



LIWULSIC YAV TVEIDINOW V

Buueewibus jo Jafguei.Andaq Bultoy Aouaby sayp( aiiawi3 pupyuj

91L0¢ YoIEN
sajepdn 109loid jJuswabeue)

uoI3onJIsuo’) pue buiieauibuz

)




uonels dwnd pd S5-d3 B LDRUSIO BAYM TVEIDINNW ¥ .d

Aouaby SN s puDjd /

uolewJojul 1809 1ebpng Jayjeb pue swe) 8doos SZiUS)| =
'SJUI0d SNO0-
uona|dwod 1elueys josloid (S8llIAoY JusLn) =
0,7 .919|dwo) Juadlod =
(uBiIseq) 910z 1oqweAoN :uonejdwo) pajedionuy =
seinpe} doo| Buidid pue senssi 26ins SS2IPPY =
2doog MaN =
SA|BA
pue Buidid j981s yum Buidid DA Buiisixe jje Jo Juswaoe|day  «
uBisep Aqg palinbai se waysAs Buidid szisdn =
syosuayog Buidid Jsyem psejokoal Bunsixe sjeulw||s/eienjeA]  «
MJOAA JO 8d0OS  «
W £°1$ 1ebpng 108loid [el0) =
Qg Juejnsuo) Buuesuibu3

NRENIET el

auljadid Jo)ep\ pajoAdsy G-dY — €70 LN



LDRIESIC HIAVM TVAIDINITIN ¥ ,d

Aouaby S| a3 PUDIU| _,

Z "ON INEA SAEA Ldv(]

UOIONAISUOD 810|duIo]) =

|[eaoidde uejd umopinys =

JUI0 SNO0- =

04,0¢ 9)ejdwo) Jusdled =

9107 Yoiep :uofjejdwo oequod =
saAleA Bn|d Jo Juswainoold =
M3IAB) [epIgNS =

SOlJIAIJOY JUBLIND =

SOAJEA POZIOS INOY 80B|day HNIOAA JO 8d00S =

M 0Z1$ 1ebpng josloid [ejoL =

M 08¢ Joequo) usln) =

. uononnsuo) elslied JOjJoRIUOD

.

Juswaoe|day
aAleA Bnid s14vad L-dY -2909LN3




ARSI ¥3IVM WHIDINDW ¥

Kouaby saiffir) a4jdurz peiop| fd 4

10}0py MOjd O WeIsAS Had mainal Lousby =«

_ U104 Sho04

0,¢ 9)e|dwo) Jusoisd

/1027 JoquenoN :uonsjdwo) 1oenuo)
19)9WMO}} D WA)sAs Jo Juawaoejdoy «

2d0oog MBN =

Had @y) Buuedaid st DNY =
:SOIIAIIOY JuBLInD

Jajow moj} D walsAg 4o} ssedAq
[EISUI pue ‘Wa)sAsS Wnas ¢ Juejd L-dY epelbdn ‘Ajjioe}
syJompeay pajelousiap opesbdn NIopA Jo adoog

N 6°01$ 1ebpng 109l01d [el0L

M $Z/$ Joesjuo) uaungd

SRR IAUS BUBMEAL DY HJUE)NSUOD Bulesulbu3

e [ 1 _m_ - '] ;! T —y—

sopelbdn Alepuodas

pue Alewld s)iompesH L-dd — 6107 LN3



LHEASIC WALYM IVAIDINNW ¥ J

as&%%/ a|NP3aYos 8y} UlBjulRl\ =

ublsaq %0¢ =

Had maney =

‘JUI0d Sno04

0,01 :819jdwo) juassled

/10Z aunp :uone|dwo) joejuo)
sjuawaoe|dal aueiquai [Bued Uolelay =

2doog MaN =

ddd eyl oZijeui4{ =

:SI)IAIOY JUB.LINY

suiseg

uonesay -4y ey} 1e siejewmol) pue sg4A/sdund

uinyey Jonbi paxipy (9) Xis ||eISuj HUOAA Jo 9dodg

W t$ 1ebpng 108foud |ejoL

S ’ M SZ#$ 10RAJUOD JUBLIND

3 SRR ISIPAA Sifips-iue)nsuo)) buLisaulbug

ubisaq (¢ — uiseg uopeiay

uin}ay Jonbi paxiN L-dH — ¥209LN3



hu_uhm_ngw«.(;..(ﬁ-u_z:!(
|leved Bupsix3 9 Kouaby sagiipn andwg pudjy) /.d

opee. ;.

Buiwwesboud ygyos =
SHULIBd JUSWIYOBOIOUT PUE JOJJUOD dIel] =
‘JUI0d SN20H =
0,GG :9)9|dwoD Juadied =
910z 2unp :uoa|dwo) Penuo) =
Y swa) pes| buol Jo JuswaindOld =
P e 'SOIJAIOY JUBLIND =
=" | uone)s Buuslew ay) spelbdn
pue sojeb api|s |98)s ssajulels pajenioe dLjo9|e
pajelado Ajojowal 91y} |[ejsu] HJOAA JO 8d0ooS =
N £$ 1ebpng 1000id [EJOL =
M §GGS JoeUOD JuUBLIND =
___Besyg ‘4 "I -JojoesjuO]).

SjuswaAoduW|

2Jn)onJ}S uoIsiaAI Jie|dJuUoN — 8LOE LN



IMRASHT ¥AVM TVEEDHINNW ¥ d

L Aouaby sauan wadug pupjuj /

uoneoso j98fold pesodold

JONO| UONONJSUQD) =
a)isuo salapeqg =
:JUI0d SN204 =
%,GG :9)9|dwo) Jusdiad =
910Z Iudy :uonajdwo) pajedionuy =
leaosdde Auoyiny all4 Asjjep oulyD buiuieqo =
ubisea %001 =
'SOIIIAOY JUBLND =
aJemyos buideys peoj jo uoneibajul pue
abelo)s Alapeq AMM00S 10 uoie|eIsu| HJOAA Jo @doog  «
0$ :1o6png joeloid 10| =
@%Ewm._m,q mmmso_:n_ JOMOd) JoBJUOD JUBLINYD =
vmom_m_ ;JUB}NSU0D mc:mmc_mcm_ )

e

abeio)g AbBlaug g-dy



AJAESHA MILYAM TWAIDINNW ¥

19A0Q) pUE BlEl g Kouaby SHIAN MHGULF PUDH] /.i

S|OYUBH UQJ| ISBD MBN JO Uae||Bjsu|

- syoam (Z) om Ajo1ewixoidde 10) 8NURUOD [[IM MIOA =
(91/8/Z uebeg) oUEUQ Ul SUOHE20] (€) 2244} Ul oM JUDIN =
‘JUI04 SO0

0,99 :9j9|dwo) Jusdied

910z yolep :uonajdwo) uoionjsuod

(euejuod g ‘oulyd ‘olEIIQ)
- sjea4]s Al UIYIM SIA0D puk sawiedj uodl jsed Bujoelday] =

e e bl e :SONIAIOY JUSLND

e D RREE

e S sejoyuew pabewep

Bunsixe Joj SI9A0D pue awel) soejday HJOAA JO 2dodg

” W L$ :196png josloid [ejo)

L% M G6G$ JoRAUOD JUBLNYD
e LHOUONISUOD sIsauss) [JooeJUOD

.
= P BTy T

sapelbdn ajoyue walsAs

MEN/U0RO8|0D — 970G LN 8 S¥0S LN



INFORMATION
ITEM

4M



910¢ Y=21oW
Buijsaw siopaliq Jo pipoeg yN3|

LOTALASIA BALVM TVAIDINNW V

A>uaby saninn aadui3 puojuj ,

QLOT UdJel
21epdn [enuUW-ILSS
193BAA Po[2Ad9Y




@ FON —l_UL.mE LOIHASIA ¥AIVAA TVEIINAW VY - -
Sunoo sierr=saiq o pJeod YNl 9j0t ouaby sapupn aidii3 pupjuy ,AU

Kbede) pY A4V 000°€ *xouddy -

dn-Heis My ulseq za[daQq SMO|lY -
SPPoTOoIsSPt -

Kyoede) AlpAlRQ €4Y paseanu] -

sauswaaoldw jeyde) 919|dwo) -

€dY 01 UOISUDIXT D[|IADUIAN =

auljadid 3|[IAUIAA -323[04d MY




0 —. O N F—Uh U<< AABASIA HALYM TVEIDINNW ¥

Buleew siojpaui] Jo pivog vN3| 9j0€ Fouaby sapjipn aaidusg puoiuj ’.U

Apede)
MY AdY 000°9-000‘F *xouddy

uononJsuod JealL

plemy R pid 910z Anr/eunf
gLoz Atenugaq udisap %58 -
suiseg € Jaddn 031 suljpdid

Q uonels duwing S auieAas ues

QUIRASS UBeS -103l01d MY



9 10¢ Y2iow LDRLLSIO HILYM TVEEINAW V

Buyssyy siopaiq 40 pIoog VNIl 940 AouabBy Sopfip idiug puoyul ,l.
9LOT ||e4 :uona|dwod pajewnsy —
s199[0.44 uondafodd 931N 3 0£9L pue AL 0€9L =

00T‘L~ 009 Q10T JaquideaQ uSisaq aulpdid apisisAl/pI PN oLeluQ Jo A1
0oL Q10T JoquiadaQ ugisaq a.d UOISUIX] MY duljased
000°‘L Q10T JoquIada( uBisaqg a.d |edaje] edeN
Ajiqerey gLOT Jaquiadag uBisag a.d suledid |12fAN0 [9|jeled L-dY
Ajjiqeiey gL0T JoquiadaQ ugisaQg 244 UORIE[[E3SU[ DA[A SUUIRISNS DINSSDUd
Alqeiey Q10T Jaquada( ugisaqg a.d yrauaog auiedid MY S-dY
Aunqeay gL0T JoquId3Q ugisag 244 sapel8dn sd g5tl 1-dY
000‘9 - 000‘F £10T Joawwng ugisaQ sjuswanosdl| uiseg auUIBPASS UES
(Adv) S1ed smels auepN p2foad

Jyauag 1afoad uopyejdwon pajewnsy

9L0T JOWWNS Ul pJeMy 4O uoledljloN Sulpudd —
_uonewloju] yoI) [euonippe pajsanbai peog a3e3s —
- | s109[014 juedn L dodd =

s1oaloid MY



9LOT YdJew
Buiyeswyy s103d=241Q Jo pleod YN 3l

0006  OTH'EE GT'gE  6LECE

[66'G  obgoL €6S€L  6iF0L
Soz'zt o0g%tz 6%9‘%t otbgile
oLSLAd SiPL AL PLELAL EL-TLAS

| —

9J0&
06167 Ptgo‘tr G9T'ce
¥€o'q gro'g gotl
9%S%‘oz  9%9‘gL  £S0‘QL
oL

Zl-lL A4 L-OL A4 60 A4

_ m||_
-
E _.

]

1DRILSIA YILYM TVIDINDIN ¥

Aouaby sanififl aHdui3 pubjuf ’d

6ot P1010
196C UMD ©
gbo‘ol g e

£61C1L
otEe
€QLLL

Sko‘glL
41+
LOE‘EL

60 30 Lo
-LOAA

-80Ad -90Ad

000G

000‘0l

000‘GL

000°0T

000'GT

1994-2.0y

000‘0€
000°GE

oco‘ob

000‘SPH

GL0T Joaquwiada ysnoJayy)

puewag MY SL/PLAA




AR
Bunsaw siopaui( 4o pirog vNI|
£66°S
G09
T6E‘S
LES
6911
obe
LEO‘L
QGE‘l
ogb
0LS

gL/St A4
(3224-2140y)
uonedo||y 234823y

9409

LOIMLSIA 3LV TVIIDENNW ¥

Aouaby sanypn sajduw3 puojuy ,.U

:paSieyday Junowly [ejol

:uo1edOo||Y S, ASOr
00l
ol

T

Gy
61
T4
6

G0l

(%)

2J1EYS BlEY O.1d

|ejoL
pueldn
oneuQ
dledjuow
BURIUO
AMAD
S|liH ouIyd
oulyd

(S1oT Joaquiadaq ysnouyy)
SUOREDO[IY dMD MY




INFORMATION
ITEM

4N



\? __
k Inland Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: March 16, 2016
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Audit Committee (03/09/2016)
From: Teresa V. Velarde
Manager of Internal Audit
Subject: Internal Audit Department Status Report for March 2016
RECOMMENDATION

This is an information item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.

BACKGROUND

The Audit Committee Charter requires that a written status report be prepared and submitted each
quarter. The Internal Audit Department Status Report includes a summary of significant internal and
external audit activities for the reporting period. Attached is the Status Report for March 2016.

The Status Report is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility,
Workplace Environment and Business Practices by describing IA’s progress in providing
independent evaluations of Agency financial and - operational activities. ‘and suggestmg
recommendations for improvements.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

On September 16, 2015, the Board of Directors approved the Annual Audit Plan for Fiscal Year
2014/15.

On December 16, 2015, the Board of Directors reconfirmed the approved Audit Committee and -
the Internal Audit Charter.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

None.

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16068 Board letter - IAD Qtrly Status MAR2016.docx



Page 1 of 4
Internal Audit Department
Status Report for March 2016

Projects Completed This Period

Project: Regional Contract Review — Follow up: Communication, Collections & Centralization

Scope:
To continue to report the results of the Regional Contract review and pursue region-wide agreement and

settlement of findings in conjunction with the renegotiation of the Regional Contract

Report to Regional Technical Committee and other efforts COMPLETE
Internal Audit staff provided the Final Report - Regional Contract Review to the Regional Technical
Committee as a “Receive and File” item for the January 2016 meeting.

Internal Audit continues to be involved in discussions with outside counsel and representatives from
Planning and Environmental Resources and from Finance and Accounting to discuss findings from the
Regional Contract Review and potential coilecticn strategies and related issues.

Reports related to the Regional Contract Review include:
Final Report-Regional Contract Review Complete  December 2015

City of Chino Hills Complete  June 2015
Cucamonga Valley Water District Complete  March 2015

City of Chino Complete = Decemnber 2014
City of Fontana Complete  December 2014
City of Montclair Complete  September 2014
City of Upland Complete  September 2014
City of Ontario Complete  September 2015
Review of the Ten-year Forecast Complete  June 2014
Comparable Agency Survey Report Complete  June 2014
Survey of Comparative Information Complete  September 2014

Project: Request for Proposal for External Financial Audit Services

Scope:
To secure a professional services accounting firm to perform the annual financial audit and single audit of
IEUA to ensure compliance with all regulatory requirements and the Agency’s Financial Ordinance.

Status: COMPLETE

The current contract for External Financial Audit Services expired on December 31, 2015. In accordance
with preferred practices and good internal controls it is in the best interests of the Agency to request
proposals from capable certified public accounting firms for the external financial audit services contract.
The current financial auditors, White Nelson Diehl Evans, have been the Agency's external auditors since
2011. The Internal Audit Department has worked closely with the Contracts and Procurement Department
to coordinate and complete the RFP process to qualified firms. |IA ensured that a knowledgeable evaluation
panel reviewed the 11 written proposals that were received and interviewed the top 6 finalists. " The
recommendation for approval of the new audit firm, is being provided to the Audit Committee at this meeting
and to the Board. The item is under separate cover in this Agenda.




Page 2 of 4
Internal Audit Department
Status Report for March 2016

Project: Filing of the Annual Financlal Statements and Single Audit Report
Scope: Submit the required audited financial reports to the requesting reporting authorities

Status: COMPLETE
Completed the required filing with the State Controller's Office, the San Bernardino Auditor-Controller and

the State Water Resources Control Board. Upon notified of additional required filing, IA will assist and
comply with any filing requirements.

On-going Projects

Audit: Master and Rotating Contracts Audit

Scope: To evaluate the Agency's Master and Rotating Contracts to ensure these follow the required
Agency policies and procedures and ensure controls exist that enforce proper contracting and procurement
for transactions.

Status: IN PROGRESS

IA has obtained listings of all Master Service contracts managed by the Engineering and Construction
Management Department and all Master Contracts administered by the Contracts and Procurement
Department. 1A has also obtained a listing of all 43 contractors prequalified by the Engineering and
Construction Management Department for Capital Projects less than $2,000,000. And, IA has obtained
example contracts for each of the trade and service categories.

lA has begun reviewing and selecting information in SAP to examine contract activity and has held kick-off
meetings with both the Engineering and Construction Management Department and the Contracts and
Procurement Department to undertake a walkthrough of current policies, practices and procedures. A will
perform surveys, prepare flowcharts of processes, and additional interviews and inquiries of Agency
personal in relation to the areas of the audit as part of the anticipated fieldwork, as well as testing
transactions to verify their compliance with contract terms and Agency policies and procedures. The
anticipated date for completion is June 2016.

Audit: Follow up Review - Information Technology Equipment — ISS

Scope:

Follow-up evaluation of 11 of the 18 outstanding recommendations provided in the Information Technology
{IT)} Equipment audit reports dated August 21, 2012 and November 14, 2012. The 10 recommendations
are the primary responsibility of the 1SS department.

Status: COMPLETED

1A met with Integrated Systems Services (ISS} and various other Agency departments to discuss the
outstanding recommendations with the assigned representatives. Of the 18 outstanding recommendations
that require follow-up evaluation, |1A has completed the evaluation of 11 of them. Of these, 9 have been
implemented and 2 recommendations are still in Progress. The 7 remaining recommendations are the
primary responsibility of the Finance and Accounting Department (FAD) and will be evaluated separately
and reported on in a separate report. No new additional findings or recommendations were noted.

See the report under the separate item in the Audit Committee Agenda




Page 3 of 4
Internal Audit Department
Status Report for March 2016

Audit: Follow up Review: Information Technology Equipment — FAD

Scope:

IA is in the progress of performing a foliow-up evaluation to determine the status of 7 outstanding
recommendations provided in the Information Technology {IT) Equipment audit reports dated August 21,
2012 and November 14, 2012. The 7 recommendations are the primary responsibility of the Finance and
Accounting Department (FAD).

Status: IN PROGRESS

There are 7 recommendations that require follow-up evaluation. 1A is currently in the planning phase of
this project. 1A plans to meet with FAD to discuss the outstanding recommendations with the assigned
representatives. The 7 recommendations require follow-up procedures be performed to verify if corrective
actions have been implemented.

IA will report on the status of the remaining outstanding recommendations and the anticipated date for
completion is June 2016.

Project: Management Requests

Scope:

Assist Agency Management with requests for analysis, evaluations and verification of information, assist
with the interpretation of policies and procedures, and/or providing review and feedback on new policies or
procedures. These services are provided according to the IA Charter, the Annual Audit Plan, and best
practices.

The management request projects are shori-term projects, typically fasting no more than 60 — 75 hours
each where IAD determines it has the necessary staff, skills and resources to provide assistance without
having to delay/defer scheduled audits and priority projects. The scope of each review is agreed upon
between the department manager requesting the evaluation/review/analysis/assistance and the Manager
of IA and when deemed appropriate by Executive Management.

During this quarter, |A was working on the following “Management Requests™
» Continue to be involved with possible coltection of the identified uncollected Connection Fees.
« Assist and work with the Planning and Environmental Resources Department on the Water
Connection process as well as the Waste Water process for centralizing billing at IEUA.
Review and comment on draft updates to Fiscal Ordinance and Budget Amendments Policy
Discuss Cybersecurity topics

Assist departments with interpretation of Agency’s Procurement Ordinance, Ethics Policy and other
Agency Policies

Internal Audit Department

Internal Audit Department Staffing:
The Internal Audit Department is staffed as follows:

e 1 Manager of Internal Audit
s 2 Full-time Senior Internal Auditors



Page 4 of 4
Internal Audit Department
Status Report for March 2016

Internal Audit Staff Professional Development Activities:

As required by the international Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, auditors should
continue to enhance their knowledge, skills, and other competencies through continuing professional
development.

During the past quarter, [A staff has continued to stay abreast of industry developments through review of
industry periodicals. One staff member attended an all-day conference on Trends in Governmental Audit,
and the two staff attended a half-day seminar on Fraud and Root Cause Analysis. The Manager of A
attended a 2-day Leadership Academy session titled Leadership with a New Perspective. All three 1A
members are preparing for the third exam of the 3-part Cerlified Internal Auditor (CIA) certification
examination. The ClA is the only globally-recognized certification for internal audit professionals and is the
highest certification that can be attained by an internal auditor. One Senior Auditor is a Certified Public
Accountant {(CPA). One Senior Auditor is a Certified Government Audit Professional (CGAP).

Future Audit Committee Meetings:
¢  Wednesday, June 8, 2016 — Regularly Scheduled Audit Committee Meeting
» Wednesday, September 14, 2016 — Regularly Scheduled Audit Committee Meeting
e Wednesday, December 14, 2016 — Regularly Scheduled Audit Committee Meeting



INFORMATION
ITEM

40



N
H Inland Empire Utilities Agency
s A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: March 16, 2016
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Audit Committee (03/09/16)
From: Teresa V. Velande
Manager of Internal Audit
Subject: Follow-Up Review ~ Information Technology Equipment — ISS
RECOMMENDATION

This is an informational item for the Board of Directors.

BACKGROUND

Internal Audit (IA) has completed the Follow-Up evaluation of the outstanding recommendations
for Information Technology (IT) Equipment according to the Fiscal Year 2014/15 Annual Audit
Plan. The IA Department Charter requires that IA perform follow-up evaluations to determine the
progress made to implement the recommendations provided in previous audits. The follow-up
audit evaluated the outstanding recommendations related to the following reports:

* Information Technology Equipment Audit, dated August 21, 2012; and
* Information Technology Equipment Audit Follow-up Audit, dated November 14, 2012

In August 2012, a total of 22 recommendations were provided to ensure internal controls over IT
equipment are in place and ensure physical control and accountability of IT equipment. At the
request of the Audit Committee, in November of 2012, IA performed a follow-up review to assess
the implementation status of the original 22. The follow-up review found that 6 recommendations
were implemented. Additionally, IA identified 2 new recommendations. Bringing the total of
open recommendations to 18.

The recommendations provided IT Equipment Audit involved various Agency departments
including Integrated Systems Services (ISS), Human Resources (HR), Contracts and Facilities
Services (CFS), and Finance and Accounting (FAD).

This follow-up review found that of the 18 outstanding recommendations, 9 recommendations are
now implemented and the remaining are in progress of being implementcd. The report attached
provides the details of the observations and audit procedures employed.



IT Equipment Audit - Follow-up Audit Report
March 16, 2016
Page 2 of 3

Below is a brief summary of the changes identified:

¢ ISS documented Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) to document procedures for the
purchase, inventory, retirement, reporting, storage and security of IT equipment.

 ISS developed a database/tracking system to account for all the Agency’s IT equipment,
which has been fully populated and accessible by Agency staff as required.

® ISS developed a tracking mechanism to identify spare IT equipment that is available and in
storage, but not currently in use.

¢ ISS developed an annual self-verification and confirmation/auditing process for employees to
verify, confirm, and electronically sign off on all IT equipment assigned to them.

® ISS implemented various security measures at the Agency’s Headquarters and plant sites to
ensure [T equipment are protected from unauthorized access, loss, damage or theft.

e ISS should continuously evaluate the methods applied for tracking IT equipment to ensure
controls are in place and risks are mitigated. As the Agency and technology advances, the
processes in place should match the needs of the Agency and ensure these are the most effective
methods to compliment the goals of the organization.

e ISS, along with CFS, considered a broader range of disposal options for functional and
useful IT equipment that was retired from the Agency, including donations to the San
Bernardino Superintendent of Schools.

» CFS developed an Agency-wide Policy (A-89) on the Procurement Card (P-card) Program.
The policy is in the process of being revised to include additional language on the purchases
of services related to online/cloud-based services using the Agency’s P-card.

Of the 18 outstanding recommendations, IA noted that 9 are implemented, 2 are in progress, and
7 are deferred to the FAD. IA will work closely with the FAD to determine the current status of
the 7 recommendations deferred to the department and assess the implementation status. IA will
report on the recommendations in a separate report.

The Follow-Up review of the outstanding recommendations for IT Equipment is consistent with
the Agency’s Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment and Business
Practices.

Refer to the attached report for additional details of the findings and recommendations.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

On September 16, 2015, the Board of Directors approved the Annual Audit Plan for Fiscal Year
2014/15.



IT Equipment Audit - Follow-up Audit Report
March 16, 2016
Page 3 of 3

On December 16, 2015, the Board of Directors reconfirmed the approved Audit Committee and
the Internal Audit Charter.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

None.

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16070 Board Letter -Follow up IT Equipment - ISS.docx



\ 6075 Kimbali Ave » GChino. CA §1708
Al PO Box 8020 + Chmo Hills CA 91709
. TEL (809) 993-1600 + FAX (904) 507-8675

H = 1 WAVYW.IDLA.0rg

DATE: February 29, 2016

TO: Joe Grindstaff
General Manager

FROM: Teresa V. Velarde

Manager of Internal Audit

SUBJECT: Follow-Up Review — Information Technology Equipment - ISS

Audit Authorit
The follow-up audit was performed under the authority provided by the Inland Empire

Utilities Agency (IEUA or Agency) Board of Directors. The Internal Audit (JA) Department's
Charter and the Annual Audit Plan require that IA follow up on the status of audit
recommendations to determine if corrective actions have been taken. 1A completed a
follow-up review of the Integrated Systems Services (ISS) functions for the outstanding
recommendations related to the following audit reports:

* Information Technology Equipment Audit, dated August 21, 2012, and
» Information Technology Equipment Follow-up Audit, dated November 14, 2012.

Audit Objective and Scope
The purpose of this follow-up review was to evaluate the corrective actions implemented

for each of the outstanding recommendations remaining from the Information Technology
(IT) Equipment Audits. Additionally, the objective was to determine if altemate controls
have been implemented to mitigate any risks originally identified and determine if there
are any new risk areas that require attention.

Audit Technigues
Audit technigues included:

* Discussions with Agency staff

¢ Review of ordinances, policies, and procedures

¢ Review and analysis of ISS records

+ Physical observation of IT server rooms and storage areas

Water Smart — Thinking in Terms of Tomorrow

Terry Catlin Michael E. Camacho Steven J. Elie Jasmin A. Hall Gene Koopman P.Joseph Grindstaff
President Vice Prsident Secratary/Treasurer Director Direclor General Manager



information Technology
Follow-Up Audit
February 29, 2016
Page 2 of 24

Audit Results — Executive Summary
Of the 11 recommendations, IA found that nine (9) recommendations have been

implemented and two (2) are in progress. Seven (7) outstanding recommendations have
been deferred to FAD and will be reported on in a separate report. The attached report
provides details of the findings and recommendations.

Below is a brief summary of the changes identified:

ISS documented Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) to document procedures
for the purchase, inventory, retirement, reporting, storage and security of IT
equipment.

ISS developed a database/tracking system to account for all the Agency’s IT
equipment, which has been fully populated and accessible by Agency staff as
required.

ISS developed a tracking mechanism to identify spare IT equipment that is
available and in storage, but not currently in use.

ISS developed an annual self-verification and confirmation/auditing process for
employees to verify, confirm, and electronically sign off on all IT equipment
assigned to them.

ISS implemented various security measures at the Agency's Headquarters and
plant sites to ensure IT equipment are protected from unauthorized access, loss,
damage or theft.

ISS should continuously evaluate the methods applied for tracking IT equipment
to ensure controls are in place and risks are mitigated. As the Agency and
technology advances, the processes in place should match the needs of the
Agency and ensure these are the most effective methods to compliment the goals
of the organization.

ISS, along with Contracts and Facilities Services (CFS), has considered a broader
range of disposal options for functional and useful IT equipment that was retired
from the Agency, including donations to the San Bernardino Superintendent of
Schools.

CFS developed an Agency-wide Policy (A-89) on the Procurement Card (P-card)
Program which is currently in the approval process. The policy has been revised
to include additional language on the purchases of services related to online/cloud-
based services using the Agency’s P-card.



Information Technology
Follow-Up Audit
February 29, 2016
Page 3 of 24

Discussions with Management
We provided the results of this follow-up review to Mr. Kenneth Tuliau, Manager of

Maintenance and Mr. David Malm, Deputy Manager of ISS on February 23, 2016, prior
to finalizing this report for their review and comments.

Acknowledgements
We would like to extend our appreciation to 1SS, CSF, Human Resources and FAD staff
for their cooperation during this follow-up review.

Written Response to Internal Audit
As required by the IA Charter, |A will continue to follow up until full implementation of all
outstanding recommendations and/or compensating controls has been implemented.

No new recommendations were provided in this report. No response Is required.

TV:sn



Information Technology
Follow-Up Audit Report
February 29, 2016
Page 4 of 24

Background

The Integrated System Services (ISS) department is responsible for the day-to-day
operations and maintenance of the Agency's Information Technology (IT) network
infrastructure and operating systems at the Headquarters buildings and the various plant
sites.

The original IT Equipment Audit report issued in August 2012 provided a total of 22
reccmmendations to ensure internal controls over IT equipment are in place and ensure
the physical control and accountability of IT equipment.

In November 2012, at the request of the Audit Committee, Internal Audit (1A) performed
a follow-up evaluation to assess the implementation status of the original 22
recommendations. In the IT Equipment Follow-up audit report issued November 2012,
of the original 22 recommendations, 1A found six (6) recommendations were
implemented, five (5) were in progress, and eleven (11) required additional time for full
implementation. Additionally, A identified two (2) new recommendations which were
provided in the IT Equipment Follow-up Audit Report. After the second follow up review,
18 recommendations remained outstanding.

This second follow-up provides an update on eleven (11) recommendations. The other
seven (7) recommendations are primarily the responsibility of the Finance and Accounting
Department (FAD) and have been deferred to a separate audit report planned for
completion in June 2016. Attachment 4 provides a to-date status of all the
recommendations issued since 2012.

For additional background information, IA refers readers to each of the respective IT
Equipment audit reports, which were received and filed by the Board of Directors at the
time of issuing the original reports. These reports can be accessed through AIM, or can
be requested from the Manager of Internal Audit.

At the time of the original and follow-up audit reports, the department responsible for the
accounting records and data in the Agency'’s financial system (SAP) was called Fiscal
Management Department (FMD), while the department responsible for the Agency’s
acquisition of goods and services was called Contracts and Procurement Department
(CAP). The departments have been renamed to Finance and Accounting Department
(FAD} and Contract and Facilities Services (CFS). The report makes reference to all of
the following: “FMD”, FAD", “CAP” and/or “CFS”.



[nformation Technology
Follow-Up Audit
February 29, 2016
Page 5 of 24

Equipment Accountability and Tracking {Recommendation 3-7)

The original August 2012 audit report identified:

Three different inventory mechanisms were used to track IT equipment

Purchases could not always be identified in ISS records

Purchases could not always be identified in SAP asset listings

ISS Assets Inventory database was incomplete and inconsistent

Some equipment was not tracked by 1SS

Equipment was not assigned to individuals or departments

No method was in place to determine whether spare IT equipment items are available
No periodic inventory was performed of equipment

Database/Lists were found to be incomplete and missing key identifying information, and
some Agency equipment that should be tracked was not accounted for

Several purchases and existing equipment were not tracked

Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for the management of IT equipment were not
documented.

Shortly after the first review, ISS created the Technology Asset List (TAL), a database
that is used to manage information on IT equipment. The purpose of the TAL is to track
larger value IT equipment. It has the capability to track “workstations” by employee and/or
department manager and includes identifying details such as make/model/serial number
for equipment assigned.

Based on |A's review, the TAL is an effective tool for tracking IT equipment and addresses
the risks identified in the original report. However, IA noted in the follow up report that
the effectiveness of the TAL is dependent on the accuracy and completeness of the
information contained in the database, along with the effectiveness of the processes
established to maintain the TAL.

Recommendation 3:

ISS implement appropriate tracking systems that include relevant information on
IT purchases (i.e., serial numbers, etc.), are updated timely and are complete and
accurate. ISS should establish procedures to enter, modify, and delete information
in the tracking systems that address areas such as timeliness for updates,
responsibilities for maintaining the systems, and the types of items included in the
tracking system.

Status: In Progress

Since the first follow-up audit, 1SS has fully implemented the use of the TAL to track and
manage IT equipment. The previous inventory tracking systems are no longer utilized
since the TAL has superseded those and ISS staff is responsible for updating the
information recorded in the TAL.



Information Technology
Follow-Up Audit
February 29, 2016
Page 6 of 24

[A reviewed the procedures that have been established for the management of IT
equipment and discussed the process with ISS. |A noted the following:

e ISS has documented a Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) titied: Managing
Technology Assets (Doc Number: OPS-1SS-001). The SOP provides procedures
for the purchase, inventory, retirement, reporting, storage and security of IT
equipment. Having documented procedures serves as an added control and
reference guide to ensure processes are performed consistently and uniformly.

* ISS noted that there is inaccurate information on the TAL and they are in
discussions with an outside vendor to determine options to improve accuracy.

IA recommends ISS consider the following additional controls to more accurately track IT
equipment (these added controls would satisfy concerns originally identified in
Recommendations #3, #4, and #5):

Timely update of the TAL:
» Upon initial assignment of equipment to new employees or new issuances to
current employees,

e Upon transfers and employee department/location changes of the equipment,

* Upon employee separation to reflect that
o The equipment has been either reassigned or assigned to the department
manager and/or equipment is no longer assigned to the employee, and
o verify that equipment was recovered, and

» When ISS staff needs spare equipment and parts from the storage room or places
additional items into the storage room.

Additionally, 1SS should continuously consider opportunities to improve the current
inventory process and the methods relied upon. For example, related to the TAL and
useful metrics, as described under Recommendation #4.

|A will continue to follow up on this recommendation until full implementation.

Recommendation 4:

ISS, in conjunction with Human Resources, should establish procedures to assign
equipment to individuals or department managers through the use of hand receipts
or another documented method that secures employee signatures. The procedures
should address matters such as initial assignment to individuals, transfer of
equipment or personnel to different departments, and procedures when an
employee terminates.



Information Technology
Follow-Up Audit
February 29, 2016
Page 7 of 24

Status: Implemented

Human Resources (HR) relies on ISS for issuance and monitoring of IT assets. HR relies
on the department managers to coordinate the collection of |IT equipment when
employees terminate Agency service. When an employee separates from Agency
service, HR provides the department managers with a checklist to verify all Agency issued
materials are collected or returned: |IEUA Return of Agency-Issued Keys/Tools/Materials
and [.D. Badge/FOB. As a result of this IT follow-up review, HR updated the form to
include a reminder to Managers/Supervisors to review the TAL for IT items that were
assigned to the separating employee. '

ISS is the department with primary responsibility for tracking assignment, transfers,
recovery and disposals of IT equipment. 1SS has taken several steps to address this
recommendation and while this recommendation is now considered implemented, tighter
controls should be adopted to address initial assignment to individuals, transfer of
equipment or personnel to different departments, and procedures when an employee
terminates to ensure full accountability and tracking of equipment, as discussed in
Recommendation #3 above (considered In Progress).

Annually, ISS requires all employees complete a self-verification process which serves
as an annual inventory to verify the IT assets assigned to them. Starting with FY 2014,
the ISS department emailed all Agency staff a hyperlink that takes users to a list of their
assigned technology assets. Staff are responsible to verify, confirm, and electronically
sign off on the list of IT equipment assigned to them. The IT asset self-verification process
is conducted annually and has been performed at the end of the fiscal year for the last
two years. This process is meant to place the responsibility for the physical inventory on
Agency employees.

According to ISS, the self-verification process has been successful and helps ensure the
information maintained in the TAL is up-to-date and accurate. Additionally, the process
does not take up resources and time from [SS staff. ISS stated that the challenges with
this confirmation process are, it occurs only once a year, requires continuous email
reminders to staff, and at times there is employee unresponsiveness.

IA identified the following where there are opportunities for improvement to the current
process:

» Itwas not possible to quantify the response rate for the annual verification process
because the information is not captured through this process. It would beneficial
to measure response rate as an indicator of the proportion of IT assets that are
verified and those that are not.

» The information maintained in the TAL is not static and constantly changes as
updates are made to the database. ISS can only provide a current snap-shot of
assets assigned to employees, but cannot go back in time to obtain past



information Technology
Follow-Up Audit
February 29, 2016
Page 8 of 24

assignments, transfers and movements. This information would be useful to track
equipment, if for example, it is lost or stolen.

o Toimprove the TAL's usefulness, and measure whether the annual self-evaluation
inventory process is achieving its intended purpose, ISS should consider finding a
method to gather the following information:

o Total number of employees assigned IT assets/equipment

o Number of email notifications sent out to remind employees of the self-
verification

o Number of employees that did not respond at all or the actual response rate

o IT equipment verified

o IT equipment not verified

As noted above, this recommendation is now considered implemented, however, tighter
controls should be adopted to address initial assignment to individuals, transfer of
equipment or personnel to different departments, and procedures when an employee
terminates and to ensure full accountability and tracking of equipment, as discussed
under Recommendation #3 (considered In Progress).

Recommendation 5:

ISS should develop a method for identifying parts and equipment on hand that are
available, such as in storage, but not currently in use.

Status: Implemented
No longer applicable

For this recommendation, risks and controls originally identified and recommended during
the first audit will be reviewed under Recommendation #3. Recommendation #5 is no
longer applicable because it only addresses one element of the tracking system, whereas
Recommendation #3 addresses the entire comprehensive tracking system as a whole.
IA has considered these recommendations to be similar and therefore, in an effort of
simplicity, all concerns will be discussed under only one recommendation (#3).

ISS has taken several steps since the prior audits to address this recommendation
including, developing a mechanism to track and account for spare [T equipment. Whiie
this recommendation is now considered implemented, tighter controls should be adopted
to address timeliness, accuracy, and completeness of the information documented in the
TAL to ensure full accountability and tracking of all IT equipment, to maintain the TAL as
current as possible and to perform periodic inventories of assets. The controls and risks
identified as part of this recommendation will also be addressed and reviewed in greater
detail as part of Recommendation # 3, which is considered In Progress.

The discussion below summarizes the observations during this evaluation. These
observations are rolled up into Recommendation #3:



Information Technology
Follow-Up Audit
February 29, 2016
Page 9 of 24

For this 2016 follow up review, IA judgmentally selected a sample of 20 IT assets from
the TAL with a status of “In Storage” located at the Headquarters and various plant sites
to test the accuracy and existence of the assets as noted in the TAL. In addition, IA also
selected 20 assets while at the ISS Storage Rooms at Headquarters and the plant sites
to verify completeness and accuracy of the information in the TAL.

Based on the results of IA’s test work, it appears the information listed in the TAL is not
always up-to-date and the processes described in the written SOP are not consistently
applied. 1SS noted that in each of the ISS Storage Rooms there is a workstation that is
connected to the network and staff is required to update the TAL when equipment is
moved in and out of the Storage Room as noted in the departments SOP. The
information in the TAL should be kept current, otherwise it can result in loss of staff time
looking for assets in the wrong location, already in use, or retired. In the prior follow up
review, [A noted that the effectiveness of the TAL is dependent on the accuracy and
completeness of the information contained in the database, along with the effectiveness
of the processes established to maintain the TAL.

Attachment 1 to this audit report has a table that provides the exceptions of our testing
results. The following is a summary of what we noted:

Items selected from the TAL to verify with physical assets:

Of the 20 items selected:
+ Seven assets were not physically accounted for in the storage area indicated on the TAL.
= Two assets had already been retired, but the status in the TAL was not updated.

Items selected from the Storage Rooms to verify with the TAL:
Of the 20 items selected:
» One asset in the IS Work Room is a hub (fixed asset), but the information per the TAL
indicated it was a workstation (Productivity tool).
* One asset was located in the RP-5/DCS Storage room, but the status information per the
TAL noted the asset was in use.
» One asset was located at RP-1 Storage Room (Maintenance Building - Mezzanine area),
but the status information per the TAL noted the asset was located at RP-5 Storage room.

Although ISS has taken corrective action to address the original recommendation by
developing the TAL to track and account for spare IT equipment that is available and
located in storage areas, it is not always up-to-date or accurate and may not be reliable
to users. However, this recommendation only addresses one component of the overall T
inventory system, while Recommendation #3 above concerns the entire system.
Therefore going forward, the controls concerned with this recommendation will be
addressed as part of Recommendation #3, which requires additional time for full
implementation.



Information Technology
Follow-Up Audit
February 29, 2016
Page 10 of 24

Recommendation 6:

ISS should establish procedures to perform periodic inventories of equipment
under its responsibility, to include, at a minimum, all items with inventory tags in
the ISS Assets Inventory database and all PCs/laptops.

Status: Implemented

ISS has developed procedures to regularly inventory IT assets assigned to employees,
which is documented in the department SOP: Managing Technology Assets. For the two
categories of Technology Assets, the following was noted:

» Employee Assets (Productivity assets) — are technology assets routinely used

by staff. Examples include: PC’s, laptops, monitors, printers, etc.

ISS has established an annual self-verification and confirmation process for IT
Productivity assets (as described earlier in this report under Recommendation #
4). This self-audit process puts responsibility and accountability of the IT assets,
along with the accuracy of the information in the TAL upon staff.

» Fixed Assets — are technology assets installed at the various Agency locations,
including headquarters and plant sites. These assets are not assigned to
individual staff members. Examples include: programmable logic controllers
(PLCs), in computing or input/output (1/O), uninterruptible power supply (UPS),
control processor, network switches, microwave radios, servers, routers, etc.

As of December 2, 2015, the TAL had over 7,000 fixed IT assets, as shown:

i Total Yumber | Estimatad

Asset Type Examples of Asset Subtype i of Fixed Asset Vziue
i Asgais per TAL
Network Switches, UPS, Servers, Microwave/
Infrastructure/Other Wireless il $9,278,500
Power related Power Supply, PLC Chassis, UPS, etc. 894 $4,470,000

/O, PLC, Communication Card,

Process Control Hardyvare Ethernet Interface, efc. 4,276 $21,358,000
Process Control Local Control Panel, Remote /0O Panel, !

Panel/Hub Remote Terminal Unit Panel, etc. 286 $1,430,000
Total of Fixed Assets as of December 2, 2015 | 7,027 $36,536,500

As noted above, ISS developed the TAL on AIM to use as a tracking system for the
Agency’s IT equipment (Employee and Fixed Assets). Even though this tracking system
was implemented and meant to track and monitor both the Productivity and the Fixed
Assets, ISS has determined that utilizing the TAL may not be the most effective inventory
method and have been evaluating other tracking and inventory systems.



Information Technology
Follow-Up Audit
February 29, 2016
Page 11 of 24

The 1SS department has a significant number of IT fixed assets under its responsibilities
that support the Agency's day-to-day operations, which are located at the treatment
plants. The assets include items such as all equipment related to the Agency’s SCADA
system, large technology parts and small pieces within the larger parts. Based on our
review, there is limited risk to the safeguarding and accountability of such large fixed
assets. It would seem highly unlikely for a large system computer part to go missing. If
a piece goes missing, the Agency’s system will not function appropriately and 1SS wouid
be able to identify this immediately. Although the risk of theft or loss is minimal, it is still
necessary to track all equipment.

ISS has encountered several challenges in continuously maintaining the information in
the TAL, along with attempting to conducted periodic inventory of those IT fixed assets.
The challenges with the annual inventory are determining what part is an individual asset
versus what combined parts should be classified as one whole asset, while ensuring the
process is efficient and effective in addrassing controls and risks.

As part of addressing this recommendation, ISS has been researching various options to
determine the most efficient and effective method to track and inventory IT fixed assets.
As an organization, the Agency has evolved, the business needs have changed, and will
continue to change. With the high quantity and dollar amount the Agency has invested
in its IT Equipment, the risks and controls should be continuously reassessed,
reevaluated and monitored. 1SS is challenged with keeping up with the technology needs,
while ensuring those assets are controlled and safeguarded. As a result, ISS has noted
they have initiated discussions with outside consultants with expertise In this area.
Additionally, 1SS is also working with a Cybersecurity Consultant on another project
related to the business network and safeguarding IT assets will be reviewed at some
level.

Overall, ISS has noted that there are areas of their operations that can be improved, for
example, continuing with cleaning out and purging the storage rooms of unnecessary or
old technology, additions of new assets that come online, timely updates of information
in the TAL related to terminations and equipment information. ISS plans to address these
areas with external consultants as an effort to tighten controls and mitigate risks.

Based on IA’s review, ISS has implemented processes to track and inventory IT
equipment assigned to users and the annual verification process is conducted. This
process will continue to evolve as the Agency moves forward and technology advances.
ISS is challenged with solidifying similar controls for IT fixed assets. Because ISS is
working to determine the best options and already discussing with outside consultants to
address these areas, IA will reevaluate the risks in the future as part of its annual Risk
Assessment and/or address any concerns there may be.



Information Technology
Follow-Up Audit
February 29, 2016
Page 12 of 24

Procurement Card (P-Card) Purchases

Recommendation 8:

CAP review and ensure consistency in the requirements between CAP SOP CPP-
07001, the draft Agency policy on the Procurement Card Program, and individual
cardholder use agreements.

Status: Implemented

The August 2012 audit report noted the following the observations related to P-cards:

P-card purchase limits were inconsistent among various Agency documents

Purchases were made for some items that were unallowable

P-card purchase logs did not always provide detailed information of the purchase.
Purchases sometimes exceeded the cardholder’s user agreement limits (per transaction
limit and monthly limit)

IA reviewed the most current Procurement Ordinance, Agency Policy A-89 Procurement
Card Program (Revision No: 1, and Effective: January 26, 2016), CAP SOP (CAP-0012,
Version Number: 001, Version date: August 15, 2013), and the individual P-cardholder
agreements to verify if the per transaction and monthly limits are consistent.

P-card Limits

Type of Document Per Transaction: Monthly Limit:
Procurement Ordinance No. 101 (Section 3.7) $5,000 None
(less than or equal to)

A-89 Procurement Card Program (Number 5.8) Established per Cardholder Agreement
CAP SOP (CAP-0012) Established per Cardholder Agreement
Individual Cardholder Agreement $1,500 $20,000

In the original audit, each of the documents described above, had different dollar
amounts, making it confusing and inconsistent for users to understand their limits and
authorized amounts. It appears that although the Agency Procurement Ordinance has
higher dollar limits available, the individual cardholder agreements document the
maximum spending limits that the cardholders must adhere to and this may be different
depending on the needs and approvals for each individual cardholder. |A determines that
this provides clarity on the P-card limits.

For P-card purchase activity for the ISS Department, refer to Attachment 2.



information Technology
Follow-Up Audit
February 29, 2016
Page 13 of 24

Physical Security

Recommendation 11:
ISS should ensure that all server and storage areas are properly secured at all

times, and that only ISS staff with a specific need are provided access to these
areas.

Status: Impiemented

Recommendation 12:
ISS should ensure storage areas are clean and organized, dispose of trash, identify

old equipment that is no longer needed, and properly dispose of unneeded,
obsolete equipment.

Status: Implemented

Recommendation 13:
ISS should establish procedures to ensure all equipment over established
thresholds have an inventory tag.

Status: Implemented

During the original audit, IA noted the following observations/risks related to physical
security:

Storage and server areas were not properly secured

Storage area unorganized, with old equipment and trash in storage area

Items without inventory tags that should be tagged

Non-IT items in storage area

Other observations noted that put IT equipment at risk of damage or loss

Unsecured equipment - risk for loss, theft, or use without proper authorization
Disorganized/Unorganized storage areas - risk of theft or loss of equipment

Non-IT items in the ISS storage room - risk that non-authorized personnel will need to
access the storage area putting the Agency IT equipment at risk for loss or theft

Since the original audits in 2012, [SS has implemented the following:

» Tagged all IT equipment hardware with a value of at least $1,000 (capitalization
threshold) and recorded in the TAL. Other assets such as workstations (PC's),
laptops, monitors, tablets, printers, and many more have also been tagged and
included on the TAL for tracking purposes.

» Cleaned, organized and secured server rooms and storage areas at IEUA’s
Headquarters Building A and B, RP-1 (1SS Trailer and Mezzanine), and CCWRF.
Signage showing “Authorized Access Only” was posted.



Information Technology
Follow-Up Audit
February 29, 2016
Page 14 of 24

» Documented SOP: Managing Technology Assets (Doc Number: OPS-ISS-001).
The SOP documents the procedures for the purchase, inventory, retirement,
reporting, and storage and security of IT equipment.

IA reviewed access rights to the ISS server rooms and storage areas as of November 16,
2015. Attachment 3 shows the number of individuals with access to each of the I1SS
Server Rooms and Storage areas, which according to ISS is reasonable. In addition, it
is possible to obtain an access activity log by location. While additional controls have
been implemented to secure storage areas, IA suggests that ISS continuously monitor
access to ensure only those individuals that require access to the ISS Server
Rooms and Storage Rooms have access. Any individuals that do not need access
should be deactivated immediately.

Based on this review, it appears ISS has taken the necessary steps to implement
additional security measures to ensure IT equipment is protected from unauthorized
access, loss, damage or theft.

Disposal of Equipment

Recommendation 14:

ISS work with CAP to establish appropriate procedures that consider a broader
range of disposal options for used IT equipment such as offering equipment to a
wider range of charity organizations/schools, or consider reselling the equipment

to recover some costs. Additionally, disposals should be clearly communicated to
FMD promptly.

Status: Implemented

The August 2012 audit report noted the following:

« Disposal procedures did not consider donations and/or resale of functional and usable IT
equipment

* CAP department was infrequently involved in the disposal process of IT equipment

* Notification method to FMD for disposed items was not effective

The following table provides a breakdown of the recent disposals:

Retired IT Equipment"! Between 2012 and January 21, 2016

Status per TAL Asset Type Number of Assets
Retired Workstation 22
Retired/CAP Monitor (52), Printer (8), Workstation (97) 157

. Mobile Hot Spot/Jet Pack (1), Monitor {107), Printer (20),
Refired/E-Waste | Scanner (2), Tablet (2), and Workstation (113) 245
Total Amount of Disposed IT equipment 424

{1) = Excludes A/V Equipment, Auto Rental Card, and Smartphones



Information Technology
Follow-Up Audit
February 29, 2016
Page 15 of 24

According to ISS SOP (Doc Number OPS-ISS-001), section 5 Retired Equipment, any {T
equipment that is deemed to be no longer useful to the Agency due to lack of technical
support, old technology, or failed components wiil be “Retired” and either e-wasted or
forwarded to CFS. E-wasted assets are reformatted or destroyed and kept aside for pick
up or delivered to RP1 Warehouse Recycling Container, while retired IT equipment that
is still functioning is forwarded to CFS for final disposition.

After 2012, both ISS and CFS have considered various options to dispose of functioning
IT equipment, including donations or resell. Per CSF, no retired IT assets have been
resold since the original audit was completed, only donated. In order to ensure IT assets
are donated in an equitable manner within IEUA’s service area and surrounding regions,
CFS determined that any retired and functioning [T assets are first offered to the San
Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools (SBCSS), instead of individual schools, for
donation. By providing the donations to the SBCSS, the organization can best determine
how to allocate the IT equipment according to their needs. Based on the feedback
received from SBCSS, the donated IT equipment is appreciated and went directly to the
classrooms for student use. For any IT assets that were offered to SBCSS, but declined,
ISS e-wasted those assets.

IA reviewed documentation that supported recent donations by the Agency:

Month Type of Assets Public Agency
June 2015 Printer and cables Local School
May 2014 Personal Computers and Printers S

Superintendent of Schools
Monitors, Desktops, Laptop San Bernardino County
heumay201d Computers and miscellaneous items | Superintendent of Schools

December 2013 | Monitor and Printer Habitat for Humanity

San Bernardino County

October 2013 Computers and various Peripherals Superintendent of Schools

As of October 13, 2015, the Agency contracted with PCTronics to erase/reformat and e-
waste any IT equipment tagged for retirement. As part of the services provided, the
vendor provides supporting documentation to confirm the e-waste. The new Agency
process for disposals will be done through PCTronics because both ISS and CFS
consider it more efficient. Therefore, because the recommendation was addressed, 1A
considers this recommendation to be implemented and no further action is required.



Information Technology
Follow-Up Audit
February 29, 2016
Page 16 of 24

Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs)

Recommendation 21:

ISS should document Standard Operating Procedures to address the many
functions of the department such as the Assets Inventory database, tagging new
purchases, assigning account information to purchases, assigning property to
individuals or departments, reconciliation of ISS and SAP records, spare part
availability and tracking, and access to ISS storage areas.

Status: Implemented

The original audit report noted that SOPs were lacking for many ISS functions, including:

Updating ISS Assets inventory database

Procedures for tagging new purchases with unique inventory tags

Identification of a purchase with O&M funds and association with a capital project
Tracking equipment not in the 1SS Assets Inventory database

Assignment of property to individuals or departments

Reconciliation of ISS and SAP asset records

Spare part availability and tracking

Disposal of equipment other than PCs/laptops

Access to |SS storage areas

The purpose of SOPs is to ensure there are documented processes during staff
absences, staffing changes, and cross-training. Having written procedures serves as an
added control and reference guide to ensure functions are performed consistently.
Without SOPs, there is the risk that procedures will be incorrectly applied or not reflect
current business practices.

For the 2016 follow-up evaluation, |A inquired about the status of SOPs. 1SS has a
documented SOP titled: Managing Technology Assets (DOC Number OPS-ISS-001). IA
reviewed the SOP and it contains the majority of the processes listed in the original
recommendation, other than the reconciliation of ISS and SAP records.

According to ISS, there is currently no existing practice to reconcile the ISS information
in the TAL to the Agency’s financial system (SAP). ISS stated an email notification
process has been put into place to notify FAD of IT assets that have been retired. At this
time, IA was not able to validate this email notification process on the retirement of IT
equipment and if SAP records are updated with this information accordingly.

Without reconciliations of [SS’s Technology Asset Records to the SAP records, the
accuracy and completeness of both records is at risk. To validate the information
recorded, |A suggests ISS work with FAD to adopt a practice of periodic reconciliations
of ISS records to the Agency’s financial system, or develop a feasible and/or alternative



Information Technology
Follow-Up Audit
February 29, 2016
Page 17 of 24

method to verify the accuracy, existence, and completeness of the financial information
for the Agency’s [T equipment.

Based on [A’'s follow-up review, 1SS has taken steps to address the original
recommendation to document SOPs. The reconciliation of 1SS and SAP records is
specifically addressed under Recommendation # 7 in this report. IA plans to continue to
work with ISS and FAD on full implementation of Recommendation #7. Therefore, IA has
determined Recommendation #21 to be fully implemented and no further work is required.

Procurement Card (P-card)
New Recommendation 1 (from November 2012 Follow-Up audit report):

ISS should ensure that any services procured with P-cards are expressly
authorized by the Manager of CAP, CFO, AGM or GM prior to committing to
services.

Status: In Progress

In the August 2012 original audit report, IA identified observations related to the use of P-
cards by ISS and those observations can be found under Recommendation # 8 in this
report.

During the November 2012 follow-up and as a result of IA's audit work, ISS obtained
authorization via email from the Manager of CAP to purchase Microsoft technical support
and iPad data services using the P-card. Thus, |IA provided a new recommendation in
the follow-up audit report regarding the purchase of services on the P-card.

IA noted that all purchases of “new services” using the P-card should include the required
authorization before the purchase is made.

Additional language has been added fo A-89 that allows for the purchase of services
related to technology based applications, software, licenses, technical support and data
services, application/cloud-based services etc.; however, the revised Policy is still in the
review process. Once the policy has been finalized and is available to ali employees, this
recommendation will be considered Implemented.



Information Technology
Follow-Up Audit Report
February 29, 2016
Page 18 of 24

Attachment 1
Table — Exceptions

IA selected assets from the TAL with a status of “In Storage” to test the accuracy and
existence of the assets as listed per the TAL. The exceptions found in our testing were:

l Assets selected from the TAL:

Facili ISS Ta Located in Sforage Room

per TAL | StatusperTAL |  Type of Asset Number or with 1SS
HQ-B In Storage Monitor B1Z02944 No — Asset not found
RP-1 In Storage Laptop PAC08390 No — Asset not found
RP-1 In Storage Router PAC07590 No — Asset not found
RP-1 In Storage Controller Processor | PAC09631 No — Asset not found
RP-1 In Storage Power Supply PACO7173 No — Asset not found
RP-1 In Storage PLC PAC07815 No - Asset not found

CCWRF In Storage 10 Slot /O Chassis | PAC00086 No — Asset not found
HQ-A In Storage Workstation/Laptop BIZ00076 No — Asset Retired
HQ-B In Storage Workstation/Laptop BIZ01056 No — Asset Retired

IA selected assets at the Headquarters and various plan sites to verify completeness and
accuracy of the information in the TAL:

Assets selected from the ISS Storage Room:

= : Type of ISS Tag Located on | Information accurate

Raciity Lt Asset Number the TAL per TAL
No — Asset Type does

HQ-A IS Work room Hub BIZ00977 Yes I

HQ-B R s Power Supply | PAC04214 Yes No — Status Incorrect
DCS Storage Lab
- | Maintenance Building | Control Logix
RP-1 | —Mezzanine Storage | 10 Slots PAC10726 Yes No - Location Incorrect
Room Chassis




Information Technology
Follow-Up Audit Report
February 29, 2016
Page 19 of 24

Attachment 2

Below is a table of the 1SS department P-card activity for July 1, 2014 to January 31,
2016:

Fiscal Number of P-card | Total Dollar
Year Transactions Amount
2014/15 462 $ 110,470
201516 130 $ 26,728

Totals 592 $ 137,199

{1) =Only covers 7 months.

In the limited review performed of P-card transactions for Fiscal Year 2014/15 to January
2016, IA noted there were no individual transactions that exceeded the $1,500 per
transaction limit and there were no cardholders that exceeded the monthly limit of
$20,000.

IA conducted a brief review to ensure that purchase activity did not exceed aliowable
limits and did not find instances where the new policy limits were exceeded.



Information Technology
Follow-Up Audit
February 29, 2016

Page 20 of 24
Attachment 3
Table — Access to ISS Server Rooms and Storage Areas
Estimated
Security Number of
Facility Location Measures Individuals with access individuals
in Place with
access
HQ-A Server Room F%I?gir;?ess, Agency employees (62}, Quisida Agency employees (38) 100
ISWork | FOB , ' .
HQ-A Rooomr Sig?\g?ess' Agency employees (62), Outside Agency employees (14) 76
HQ-B/ FOB . .
RP-5 Server Room Sig?::;ass Agency employees (62}, Outside Agency employees (24) 86
HQ-B/ FOB access .
RP-5 DCS Lab and Signage Agency employees (62), Outside Agency employeas (25) 87
HO-B/ DCS St K ] .
RP-5 Roor:r(%ge ey;cl;:es Agency employees {62), Ouiside Agency employees (25) 87
. Cipher Lock,
cowrp | Meintenance | o 0o | 1SS staff (12) and Maintenance Staff (approximately 1-2) 14
Building
and Key
. Cipher Lock,
RP-1 Me‘z'\zrzgme Signage, ISS staff (12} and Maintenance Staff {(approximately 1-2) 14
and Key
RP-1 ISS Trailer Cipher Lock, | I1SS staff (12} and Other Staff (approximately 8 more or 20+
Key less)
Administration .
RP-1 Lab Buliding Cipher Lock, ISS staff {12) and Maintenance Staff (approximately 1-2) 14
Key :
{Gold Room})
RP-4 Server Room Ciph:;lgock. ISS staff (12) and Maintenance Staff {(approximately 1-2) 14
RP-4 Trailer Ciph;;'fc"' ISS staff (7) 7

Note: Agency Employees include Board of Directors, Executives, Managers/Officials, HR, Safety, and ISS/BIS Staff, while Outslde
Agency employees Include Contractors (various).
(1) =DCS Storage Room is located next to the DCS Lab. Accessible only via key, which is kept in a locked cabinet inside the DCS

Lab. Individuals with access to the DCS Lab wili be able to access DCS Storage Room.

ISS is currently working with a Cybersecurity Consultant to perform an assessment of the
Agency’s business network. As part of this process, the Cybersecurity Consultant will
evaluate security and accessibllity by staff of the Agency’s Server rooms located at
Headquarters bullding A and B.




avi o
palajag

‘spJooal juswdinba gg| pue sjesse dys JO suoljeljiouodal
aipoled uuoped o} ssinpaocord ysigelsa o) Jayebol lom pinoys Qvd pue SS|

‘sdojdel/snd ||e pue eseqelep AJojusau]
sjessy SS 8y} w sbej Alojusaul YUm swejl e ‘wnwiuiw e je ‘apnjaul o} ‘Aijigisuodsal
s Jopun juaiwdinbe Jo ssucjuaaul aipouad wiopad 0} saunpadsold ysigelse pjnoys SS|

‘@sn Ul Ajueung Jou g ‘abelos ul se yans ‘s|qe|eAe
24 Jey) puey uo juswdinbs pue sued BuiAmuapl 10) pouyiawl e doj@Asp pInoys SS|

‘sajeu|uLs) eeAojdus e usym sainpasold pue sjuslupedsp Jusiayip o} [puucsiad 1o
juswudinba Jo Jojsuen ‘s|enplAlput o} Juswub|sse [eniul se yons siajew ssalppe pinoys
sainpasoud 3y ‘saanjeubis asAojdwe $81n29s Jey) poylaw pajuswnoacp Jayjoue

1o sjdiasal puey Jo asnh ayj ybnouayy sisbeuew juswpedsp Jo sjenpiaipul o) Juswdinba
ubisse 0] saunpasosd Ysi|ge)ss pjnoys 'seainossy UewhH Yiiam uonduniuos ul 'gg|

"wa}sAs Bupjoel} U} Ul pepnoul swayl Jo sadA) ayl pue ‘swa)sAs ay) bujliejlew
lo} saiuuqisuocdsal ‘sejepdn Joj sssuUllSW]} SE Yons seale Ssalppe leyl swsAs
Buijoel} 9y} Ul UORELLIOIUI BBjep PUR ‘Ajpow ‘I1Sjud o) sainpeocold ysijgejse pjnoys SSi
‘gjeinsoe pue 9j9)dwos aie pue Ajlaw peyepdn aie ‘(*9)e ‘siequinu [euas “a1) seseyaind
1] uO uoljeuuLoul JUEARISI apnjoul Jey; swalsAs Bupoel; syeudosdde juswsdw S|

(ANir4
pauswajdu)

‘usijeuo
BuiAjjuspl Alessasau JSUC puUBR Jaguunu [BLSS aU] YIm SpJodal Jasse 4yS Ul jgeljijuapl
ale pjoyseJyl uoneziendes ay} 1@aw jeuyl saseyaind ||B Jeyl ainsua o} UcHBuLIou
Alessaoau ay} J|e ulelqo o} siebeuepy slold pue siebeuely juswpedaq ypm yJom Qyd

(41114
pajuawe|dw]

‘Juawdinba ayj jo Yeuyi Jo ss0| jo
Sl pUE SN|EA Jg||Op Y} SB U2ns sI0JoB) jsi uo peseq 'swdinba || jo sadA) Jualayip
3oeJ] 0) SpPOYlew 2|qelns auluusjep ‘sjuawpedsp JSYI0 YUm UolBUIpICOD W ‘S|

paju

aLuajdu

JON

s801b0.4
-

padlajaq

pajucwe)duwy)

UOIEpUAWIWIOIeY

20)

SUOI}ePUALILLIOIY JO SNJe)s

Z102 ‘1z ¥3snBny pajep ‘Jueswdinbg 1|

¥ Juswyseny

2 Jo | 9bed

9102 ‘62 Aenigad
Hoday ¥pny dn-mojjed
ABojouyosa] uornewlioju|




Loz
pajuswajdw)

Joulosd paysige)se ou s1 a1ey) J1 usas seseyaind asay) Buisuadxs ploae pue Aojjod
Bununoooe ay} yum aoueplooe Ul pazijeydes ale $3$00 auj einsus o} sjosfoid |eydes
0} payuapl ale pjoysaly) uoneziendes ey Bu@aw saseyaind jeu) einsua pinoys S|

9l

avd o)
paugjag

-pazijeyded jou ale pjoysaiy} uojeziendes
oy} Buneew jou swey jey} ainsua o} pue pezjended ale ploysalyy uonezieydes
ay) Bunesw swe) [ Jey} =unsua o) pamojo} Apudisisuod si juswdinba || Joj
Aoijod uonezipendes pajels sy} Jey) 2Insua o} s[osuod sjenbape Juawejdu pinoys a4

Sl

“Apdwold g4 03 paesiunwod AJes|o ag pjnoys s|esodsip ‘Alleuolippy §)sod
awos Janodal 0) Juawdinba ayy Buljessl Japisuoo Jo ‘sjooyos/suonezivebio Ajieyo
Jo abuel Jopm & 0} Juswdinbe Buuayo se yons juawdinba || pesn 4o} suondo |esodsip
jo aBue. Jepeo.q B Japisuoo jey) sainpasold ajeudoidde ysi|gelss 0} Jy0 Yim Yiom S|

¥l

‘Be) A1ojusaul ue sAeY
sploysady} paysiqelss Jeao Juswdinba jje ainsus 0} saunpasold ysiqelse pinoys S5|

€l

Juswdinba
a)ojosqo ‘pepesuun jo ssodsip Auedoid pue ‘papsau Jebuo| ou s jey} juswdinba
pjo Aiuepi ‘ysel} jo asods|p ‘paziuebio pue ues|d aie seale abeio)s ainsus pjnoys S|

‘sEale 959U} 0] $S99%e popinoid ale pasu Jyrads e Yum yels s Ajuo jey) pue
‘sawl] ||e Je painoes Apadoid ale seale obelols pue Jaaies B Jey) ainsua pjinoys S|

cl

3

Zhoz
pajuswssjdwy

‘paceld aq |IM WaY 2y} aiaym
uoljeso| ay) Jospue ‘eseyaind ayy Jo Jasn paufisse ay) BulApuep! ‘sweu s Jojsanbal
ey} Bunuawnoop Aq ‘eseyoind ayy Apsnl Alues|2 sboj aunsus pinoys siepjoypied §g|

ol

Zioz
pajuawajduwy

‘sjuswaalbe asn Japjoyples
[ENPIAIPUI Yim 2ouUe|dwios aInsua pinoys pied-d Y} ymw seseyaind Bupjew yels gg)

-sjuswiaalbe ash Japjoyplea
[enpiaipul pue ‘welfiold pie) juswaindold @y) uo Asijod Asusby yesp 2yl ‘L0020
-ddD d0S dyD usamieq suswelinbai ay) ul ASUSJSISUCD einsus pue msirRl dyD

¥z J0 7T dbed

910¢ ‘62 Aenigad
¥pny dn-mojjod
ABojouyoa | uolewloju|




sjejol

avd o
pasiejeq

“Sllo] Uoiezioyiny
ainso| 1oeloid jo Buissesoid pue ‘sployseuy) uonezijejdes pajels yium soue|dwoo
‘uoljeLIou| Jesse dys ey Bunejdwos 1o} sainpecold se yons sjosse [elded dn Buyes
JO SUONDUN) BY) SSAIPPE 0} $AINPa0.d BuijesedQ plepuelg juswndop pinoys av4

r44

-seale oDElI0)S §g] 0) §SS908 pue
‘Bunyoel) pue Ajiqepieae Jed aleds ‘splodal Jy¥S pue SS] Jo uohel|ouoddl ‘slualuyedsp
10 sjenpinpul 0} Apedoud Buubisse ‘seseydind O} UOEWICHL JUNOSJE Buubisse | g
‘soseysind mau Buibbe] ‘eseqejep AIOJUaAU] s)}essy SU) SB YONS juswpedsp ay
40 suoljouny AueLU ay) ssalppe 0} §8.npacold BuljeiedQ piepuB)g JUSWINJOP pInoys §gi

av4 o)
pauseq

-aunsop Buwuinbai sefoid uo sisbeuew juswyedsp

Jayio ypwm dn-mojioy aipouad Ajpui) 2insus o} sjoJjuod [eusajul juswajdun pinoys gy Oc

av4 o
pauisgeq

“ULIO}
ay) Bugejdwos uo suoponysul pue uopejdwos sedoid Jo eouepodull 8y} uo slabeuey
108(01d 0} Buluieny spiaoid osje pinoys Q4 "uonsidwoo Jedoid loy Jebeuely 1ealold
8y} 0} SWIoH uoilezuoyiny ainsojd josiold 9jedwosul Jo 198.100u] UINAI pinoys gvd

6l

cloe
pajuawa|du|

‘paysiige)se Buiaq josse ay) YIm pajeloosse

s}s09 Josfoud Ajuo apnjdul SeN(eA JossE jeu] aInsus o} sjoJuod Juswsidwl pinoys av4 el

avi o
padiejeq

‘pazieydes
ale Aaijod uonezieydes sy} Ag pamojje swa)l asoy; Ajuo jey) Buinsua pue paje|dwod

ale 4yS Ul spjay eep |& jeyy Buunsue se yons ‘eje|dwod pue 2jeinddE aB dvS L4

Ul peysi|qelse splode. Jesse Jey} einsue o} sjoJjuod ajenbape jusaidw) pinoys dvd

2 Jo £ abed

9102 ‘62 Aeniged
Jipny dn-mojjo4
ABojouyoa | uoljeulIoj|




S[EoL

0 } i 0
o) ‘pafojdwa s1 juawee)3 Bugunodoe Jedoid ay} ainsua o] s}so2 Buisuad|| alemyos
vmw..“uw a 10 uopeziendes ay} pue ‘goo'ly uey) ssa| Bupseo Juswdinbe Jeindwos |essyduad pue Z
siendwos Jo uonezijeldes sy} UC SIoJipne [eulexe ey} woy asuepinb yoas pinoys gv4
, *s201A9s 0] Bunpwwod o} toud WO 1o WOV ‘04D ‘dvD Jo Jebieuey
X 8y} Aq pezuouyine A|ssaldxa ale spIed-d Yim paindoid $aa1a1as AUE Jey) 3INSUS pInoys SSi }
pajueweldul] | ssesBoigd | peuejeq pejuewisidwy | ~ .. .. . . uojvpuswuwiodey . . . C#

suQnepuawWiluoday Jo snies

Z1L0Z ‘v JequiaaoN pajep pny dn mojjod Juswdinbg 1|

2 10 7 obed

9102 ‘6¢ Arenige4
upny dn-mojjo4
ABojouyoa] uonewlou|




AGENCY
REPRESENTATIVES’

REPORTS



SAN Y

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING
TUESDAY, MARCH 15,2016 — 9:30 A.M.

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Thomas P. Evans, Chair)

ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Membets of the public may address the Commission on items within the jurisdiction of the Commission; however, no action
may be taken on an item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by Government Code
§54954.2(b).

CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters listed on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and non-controversial and will be acted upon by the
Commission by one motion as listed below.

A. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: MARCH 1, 2016
Recommendation: Approve as posted.

B. TREASURER’S REPORT — FEBRUARY 2016
Recommendation: Approve as posted,

NEW BUSINESS
A. SAWPA STRATEGIC REVIEW — ROUNDTABLE PROJECTS (CM#2016.21)

Presenter: Mark Norton
Recommendation: Receive and file this presentation about the SAWPA Roundtable Projects.

INFORMATIONAL REPORTS

Recommendation: Receive and file the following oral/written reports/updates.

A. CASH TRANSACTIONS REPORT — JANUARY 2016
Presenter: Karen Witliams

B. INTER-FUND BORROWING — JANUARY 2016 (CM#2016.19)

Presenter: Karen Williams




SAWPA Commission
Regular Meeting Agenda
March 15, 2016

Page 2

C. PERFORMANCE INDICATORS/FINANCIAL REPORTING ~ JANUARY 2016
(CM#2016.20)

Presenter: Karen Williams
D. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

STATE LEGISLATIVE REPORT
Presenter: Celeste Cantii

F. SAWPA GENERAL MANAGERS MEETING NOTES
¢ March 8, 2016

G. CHAIR'S COMMENTS/REPORT

COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS

L COMMISSIONERS’ REQUEST FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

7. CLOSED SESSION

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION — PURSUANT TO
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957
Title: Executive Counsel

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — ANTICIPATED LITIGATION — SIGNIFICANT
EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION
54956.%d)(2)

Company Name: Spiniello

C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION — PURSUANT
TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(d)(2)
Number of Potential Cases: One

8. ADJOURNMENT

PLEASE NOTE;

Americans with Disabilities Act: Meeting rooms are wheelchair accessible. If you require any special disability related accommodations to participate in
this meeting, please contact (951) 354-4220 or kberry@sawpa.org. 48-hour notification prior to the meeting will enable staff to make reasonable
arrangements to ensure accessibility for this mecting. Requests should specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested.
Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Commission after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection during

normal business hours at the SAWPA office, 11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, and available at www.sawpn.org, subject to staff"s ability to post
documents prior to the meeting.

Declaration of Posting
L, Kelly Berry, Clerk of the Board of the Santa Ane Watershed Project Authority declare that on Wednesday, March 9, 2016, a copy of this apenda has been
uploaded tp the SBAWPA website at www,sawpa.ors and posted in SAWPA’s office at 11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, California.

s/

Kelly Berry, CMC




SAWPA Commission
Regular Meeting Agenda
March 15, 2016

Page 3

2016 - SAWPA Commission Meetings/Events

First and Third Tuesday of the Month
(NOTE: Unless otherwise noted, all Commission Workshops/Meetings begin at 9:30 a.m., and are held at SAWPA.)

January February

1/5/16  Commission Workshop 2/2/16  Commission Workshop-OCSD Factiitles Toor
1/19/16 _ Regular Commission Meeting 2/16/16  Regular Commission Meeting
March April

3/1/16 Commission Workshop 4/5/16 Commission Workshop

3/15/16 _ Regular Commission Meeting 4/19/16  Regular Commission Meeting
May June

5/3/16 Commission Workshop 6/7/16 Commission Workshop

5/3 — 5/6/16 ACWA Spring Conference, Monterey 6/21/16  Regular Commission Meeting
5/17/16 _ Regular Commission Meeting

July August

7/5/16 Commission Workshop 8/2/16 Commission Workshop

7/19/16 _ Regular Commission Meeting 8/16/16  Regular Commission Meeting
September October

9/6/16 Commission Workshop 10/4/16 ~ Commission Workshop

9/20/16 _ Regular Commission Meeting 10/18/16 Regular Commission Meeting
November December

11/1/16  Commission Workshop 12/6/16 ~ Commission Workshop

11/29 —12/2/16 ACWA Fall Conference, Anaheim
11/15/16 Regular Commission Meeting

12/20/16

Regular Commission Meeting




AGENCY
REPRESENTATIVES’
REPORTS

5B



—~

MWL) ?;T fr ]

i
J

“H THE METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT ,\ CrE A
' OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA ) -3
REVISION 2
Tuesday, M;rah 8, 2016
. Meetlng Schedule
Regular Board Meeting - .
7:00-8:00 a.m. Rm. 1-101 Dirs. Computer
. Training
March 8, 2016 8:00 a.m. Rm, 24145 L&C
10:00 a.m. Rm. 2-456 RP&AM
1:00am. | Rm. 24145 OP&T
‘ =y 12:00 p.m. Board Room Board Meetl
72:60 p.m. — Board Room E —

MWD Headquarters Building . 700 N. Alameda Street - L.os Angeles, CA 90012

1. Call to Order

(a) Invocation: Silvia Lanza, Engineer, Engineering Services Group

(b) Pledge of Allegiance: Director Donald Galleano

2. Roll Call

3. Determination of 2 Quorum

4. Opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters within the
Board'’s jurisdiction. (As required by Gov. Code § 54954.3(a)

PUBLIC HEARING

1. Public hearing to consider suspending the tax rate limitations in Section 124.5 of the
Metropolitan Water District Act to maintain the ad valorem tax rate

2. Comments on proposed water rates and charges for calendar years 2017 and 2018 to
meet revenue requirements

REVISED: Date of Notice: March 4, 2016



Board Mseting Agenda March 8, 2016
Page 2

5. OTHER MATTERS

A. Approval of the Minutes of the Meeting for February 9, 2016. (A copy has
been mailed to each Director)

Any additions, corrections, or omissions

B. Report on Directors' events attended at Metropolitan expense for month of
February

C. Approve committee assignments

D. Chairman's Monthly Activity Report

6. DEPARTMENT HEADS' REPORTS

A General Manager's summary of Metropolitan's activities for the month of
February

B. General Counsel's summary of Legal Department activities for the month
of February

C. General Auditor's summary of activities for the month of February

D. Ethics Officer’s summary of activities for the month of February

7. CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS — ACTION

7-1 Appropriate $620,000; and authorize: (1) design to rehabilitate a blow-off
structure on the Orange County Feeder; and (2) increase of $200,000 to
an existing agreement with Dudek, for a new not-to-exceed total of
$485,000 (Approp. 15377). (E&O)

REVISED: Date of Notice: March 4, 2016



Board Meeting Agenda

March 8, 2016
Page 3

Recommendation:
Option #1:

Certify that the Final EIR has been completed in compilance with CEQA and

the State CEQA Guidelines; certify that the Board has reviewed and

considered the information presented In the Final EIR; certify that the Final

EIR reflects the Board’s Independent Judgment and analysis; adopt the

Findings of Fact and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program; and

a. Appropriate $620,000;

b. Authorize final design to rehabilitate a blow-off structure on the Orange
County Feeder; and

¢. Authorize Increase of $200,000 to an agreement with Dudek, for a new
not-to-exceed total of $485,000.

7-2 Appropriate $840,000; and authorize preliminary investigations to
rehabilitate the auxiliary power systems at the Colorado River Aqueduct
pumping plants (Approp. 15384). (E&O)

Recommendation:

Option #1:

Adopt the CEQA determination that the proposed action Is categorlcally
exempt, and

a. Appropriate $840,000; and
b. Authorize preliminary Investigations to rehabilitate the auxillary power
systems at the Colorado River Aqueduct pumping plants.

7-3 Approve revised final terms for the Bard Water District land management
and seasonal fallowing pilot program. (WP&S)

Recommendation:
Optlon #1:

Adopt the CEQA determination that the proposed actlon was previously
determined to be categorically exempt and not subject to CEQA, and that no
further environmental analysls or documentation Is required, and authorize
the revised final terms for the pilot program agreement with Bard Water
District and the land management and seasonal fallowing agreements with
farmers of farmland in the Bard Unit.

(END OF CONSENT CALENDAR)

REVISED: Date of Notice: March 4, 2016



Board Meeting Agenda March 8, 2016
Page 4

8. OTHER BOARD ITEMS — ACTION

8-1 Adopt Master Subordinate Resolution authorizing the issuance of
subordinate water revenue bonds and other forms of indebtedness; and
adopt the First Supplemental Subordinate Resolution to the Master
Subordinate Resolution authorizing the issuance of subordinate water
revenue refunding bonds. (F&I)

Recommendatlon:

Option #1:

Adopt the CEQA determination that the proposed action Is not defined as a
project and Is not subject to CEQA, and

a. Adopt the Master Subordinate Resolution authorizing the issuance of
subordinate water revenue bonds to finance any legal purpose of the
District and providing the terms and conditions for the issuance of said
bonds, as contained in Attachment 1 to the board letter; and

b. Adopt the First Supplemental Subordinate Resolution to the Master
Subordinate Resolution authorizing the Issuance of subordinate water
revenue refunding bonds, providing the terms and conditions of such
bonds and authorizing the approval of other related documents, as
contalned in Aftachment 2 to the board letter,

8-2 Adopt Short-Term Revenue Certificate Resolution authorizing the sale and
issuance of up to $400 million of short-term revenue certificates and
providing for credit facllities and trust agreements. (F&l)

Recommendation:
Option #1:

Adopt the CEQA determination that the proposed action Is not defined as a
project and Is not subject to CEQA, and adopt the Short-Term Certificates
Resolution authorizing the sale and issuance from time to time of up to
$400 million of short-term revenue certificates and providing for credit

facilities and trust agreements, as contalned In Attachment 1 to the board
letter.

8-3 Adopt resolution supporting Metropolitan’s application for funding from the
State Water Resources Control Board’s Water Recycling Funding
Program, and for acceptance of potential funding; and authorize two
agreements for Metropolitan’s potential regional recycled water supply
program: (1) agreement with MWH Americas, Inc., in an amount not to
exceed $1.2 million for design of the demonstration-scale recycled water
treatment plant; and (2) agreement with Black & Veatch Corporation, Inc.
in an amount not to exceed $1.9 miilion to conduct feasibility studies of the
recycled water delivery system (Approps. 11002 and 15483). (E&O)

REVISED: Date of Notice: March 4, 2016



Board Meeting Agenda March 8, 2016
Page 5

Recommeandation:
Option #1;

Adopt the CEQA determination that the proposed actions are not defined as
a project and/or are statutorily and categorically exempt, and

a. Adopt a resolution supporting Metropolitan's application to SWRCB's
Water Recycling Funding Program, and authorize the General Manager to
accept potentlal grant funding or low Interest ioans, and to enter into an
agreement with SWRCB in a form approved by the General Counsel;

b. Authorize agreement with MWH Americas, Inc. in an amount not to

exceed $1.2 million for design of the demonstration-gcale recycled water
treatment plant; and

c. Authorize agreement with Black & Veatch Corparatlon, Inc. In an amount

not to exceed $1.9 million to conduct Inltlal feasibliity studies of the
recycled water delivery system.

Revised 8-4 Approve entering into memorandum of agreements with Metropolitan’s
four bargaining units for a three-year $1,200,000 incentive payment
program for employees assigned to the Iron Mountain, Eagle Mountain
and Hinds Pumping Plants. (OP&T)

Added Recommendation:
Option #1:

Adopt the CEQA determination that the proposed actions are not defined as
a project and are not subject to CEQA, and authorize the General Manager to
enter Into memorandums of agreement in excess of $250,000 with
Metropolitan’s four bargaining units to implement a three-year, $1,200,000

incentive payment program for Remote Location employees according to the
provision outlined In the board letter.

8-5 Ratify and amend the Executive Committee appropriation of $18 million to
$13.9 miillion; and ratify General Manager's award of a $9.15 million
construction contract to J. F. Shea Consfruction, Inc. for urgent

prestressed concrete cylinder pipe repairs on the Sepulveda Feeder
(Approp. 15496).

REVISED: Date of Notice: March 4, 2016



Board Meeting Agenda
Page 6

Subject Revised 8-6

March 8, 2016

Recommendation:
Option #1:

Adopt the CEQA determination that the proposed action was previously
determined to be statutorily exempt and that no further environmental
analysls or documentation Is required, and

a. Ratify the prior action of the Executive Committee;

b. Appropriate $13.9 million; and

c. Ratlfy the Generai Manager's award of a $9.15 million contract to
J. F. Shea Construction, Inc. for urgent PCCP repairs on the Sepulveda
Feeder,

Authorize entering into an agreement to purchase orto-acquire-an-option
te-purehase property from Deita Wetlands Properties in Contra Costa,
San Joaquin, and Solano Counties. (RP&AM)

[Conference with real property negotiators; Property Is approximately 20,369.80
acres, Identified as Contra Costa County Assessor's Parcel Nos. 026-060-003-6,
026-060-007-7, 026-060-008-5, 026-060-015-0, 026-060-016-8, 026-060-017-6, 026-
060-018-4, 026-060-019-2, 026-070-001-8, 026-070-006-7, 026-070-010-9, 026-070-
011-7, 026-070-012-5, 026-070-013-3, 028-080-004-0, 026-080-005-7, 026-080-006-5,
026-080-007-3, 026-080-008-1, 026-080-009-9; 023-040-026-9, 023-040-027-7, 023-
050-001-9, 023-050-002-7, 023-070-011-4, 023-070-012-2, 623-080-010-4, 023-080-
011-2, 023-090-001-1, 023-090-003-7, 023-090-004-5, 023-100-001-9, 023-100-002-7,
023-100-004-3, 023-100-007-6, 023-100-008-4; San Joaquin County Assessor's
Parcel Nos. 129-050-01, 129-050-02, 129-050-03, 129-050-04, 129-050-05, 129-050-
06, 129-050-07, 129-050-08, 129-050-09, 129-050-11, 129-050-12, 129-050-13, 129-
050-14, 129-050-15, 129-050-16, 129-050-17, 129-050-18, 129-050-19, 129-050-24,
129-050-25, 129-050-26, 129-050-27, 129-050-28, 129-050-52, 129-050-54, 129-050-55,
129-050-586, 129-050-60, 069-030-08, 069-030-09, 069-030-10, 069-030-11, 069-030-19,
069-030-20, 069-030-21, 069-030-22, 069-030-23, 069-030-24, 069-030-26, 069-030-27,
069-030-28, 069-030-29, 069-030-30, 069-030-31, 069-030-32, 069-030-33, 069-030-34,
069-030-35, 069-030-36, 069-030-37, 069-030-38, 069-030-39, 068-030-42, 069-030-44,
069-100-01, 069-100-02, 069-100-03, 069-100-04, 069-100-05, 0688-100-08, 069-100-09,
069-100-10, 069-100-11; and Solano County Assessor's Parcal No. 090-060-010;
agency negotlators: Jeff Kightlinger, Stephen Arakawa, and Bryan Otake;
negotiating parfles: Metropolitan and Delta Wetlands Propertles; under
negoliation: price and terms; to be heard In closed session pursuant to Gov. Code
Section 54956.8])

9. BOARD INFORMATION ITEMS

9-1

8-2

Options for leasing Metropolitan-owned lands in the Palo Verde valley.

(WP&S)

Proposed revenue requirements for fiscal years 2016/17 and 2017/18 and
proposed water rates and charges for calendar years 2017 and 2018 to
meet revenue requirements. (F&!)

REVISED: Date of Notice: March 4, 2016



Board Meeting Agenda March 8, 2016
Page 7

10. FOLLOW-UP ITEMS

None

11. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

12. ADJOURNMENT

NOTE: At the discretion of the Board, all items appearing on this agenda and all committee agendas, whether or not
expressly listed for action, may be deliberated and may be subject to action by the Board.

Each agenda item with a committee designation will be considered and a recommendation may be made by one or
more committees prior to consideration and final action by the full Board of Directors. The committee designation
appears in parentheses at the end of the description of the agenda item e.g., (E&O, F&I). Committes agendas may
be obtained from the Board Executive Secretary.

Writings relating to open sesslon agenda items distributed to Directars less than 72 hours prior to a regular meeting
are avallable for public inspection at Metropolitan's Headquarters Building and on Metropolitan's Wab site
hitp://imww.mwdh20.com.

Requests for a disability related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to

attend or participate in a meeting should be made to the Board Executive Secretary in advance of the meeting to
ensure availability of the requested service or accommodation.

REVISED: Date of Notice: March 4, 2016



AGENCY
REPRESENTATIVES’
REPORTS

5C



i !\'_'r\

\.\ 5 inland Empire Utilities Agency
y A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee Meeting

AGENDA
Thursday, March 3, 2016
4:30 p.m.

Location

Iniand Empire Utilities Agency
6075 Kimball Avenue

Chino, CA 91710

Call to Order and Roll Call
Pledge of Allegiance

Public Comment

1. Technica! Committee Report — Ryan Shaw (Oral)

2. Approval of Minutes

A. Minutes of November 4, 2015 Joint IEUA Board and Policy Committee
Workshop

3. Action items
A. Recycled Water Policy Principles (Written)

4. Informational ltems
A. Regional Contract Amendment

5. Receive and File

RP-1/RP-5 Predesign Report

JCS8D Recycled Water Term Sheet
Mid-Year Building Activity Update

Recycled Water Distribution — Operations Summary
Energy Management Plan

Recycled Water Semi-Annual Update
Organics Diversion Feasibility Study

Septic Area Analysis

IEUA Storage Agreement

El Nino Preparation

Regional Contract Audit Notification Process

ARETIOMMOO® P



Special Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee Meeting Agenda
March 3, 2016
Page 2 of 2

6. Other Business
A. IEUA General Manager's Update
B. Committee Member Requested Agenda Items for Next Meeting
C. Committee Member Comments
D. Next Meeting — Aprii 7, 2016

7. Adjournment

DECLARATION OF POSTING

I, Laura Mantilla, Executive Assistant of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, A Municipal Water District,
hereby certify that a copy of this agenda has been posted by 5:30 p.m. in the foyer at the Agency's main
office, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, CA on Monday, February 29, 2018.

Laura Mantilla




AGENCY
REPRESENTATIVES’
REPORTS

5D



CALL TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

PUBLIC COMMENTS

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
WATERMASTER BOARD MEETING
11:00 a.m. — February 25, 2016
WITH
Mr. Steve Elle — Chair
Mr. James Curatalo — Vice-Chair
At The Offices Of
Chino Basin Watermaster
9641 San Bernardino Road
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730

AGENDA

AGENDA - ADDITIONS/REORDER

CONSENT CALENDAR

Note: AIll matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial and will be acted upon by one motion in the form listed below. There will be
no separate discussion on these items prior to voting unless any members, staff, or the
public requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for

separate action.

A. MINUTES

1. Minutes of the Watermaster Board Meeting held January 28, 2016

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS

rall ol L

December 31, 2015

5. Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period July 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015

Cash Disbursements for the month of December 2015
Watermaster VISA Check Detail for the month of December 2015

Combining Schedule for the Period July 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period December 1, 2015 through

C. WATER TRANSACTION

The purchase of 500.000 acre-feet of water from San Antonio Water Company by Cucamonga
Valley Water District. This purchase is made from San Antonio Water Company’s storage

Account. Date of application: September 8, 2015

BUSINESS ITEMS
A. MID-YEAR REVIEW OF FISCAL YEAR 2015/16 (Information Only)
Receive and file the Mid-Year Review Report for the period of July 1, 2015 through

December 31, 2015 as presented.



Agenda Watermaster Board Meeting February 25, 2016

. REPORTS/UPDATES
A. LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT
1. Motion re 2015 Safe Yisld Reset Agreement
2. Non-Ag Pool Request for Entry of Order re Filing and Service

B. CFO REPORT
None

C. ENGINEERING REPORT
1. MZ3 Water Levels (Follow-Up on Director Galleano’s Request)

D. GM REPORT
1. Basin Boundary Modification Update
2. Business Plan Update
3. Overlying Non-Agricultural Pool Available Water Per Restated Judgment Exhibit “G"
4

. Achlevement of Hydraulic Centrol in Chino Basin
5. Other

IV. INFORMATION
1. Cash Disbursements for January 2016

V. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS

VI. OTHER BUSINESS

VIi. CONFIDENTIAL SESSION - POSSIBLE ACTION

Pursuant to Article 2.6 of the Watermaster Rules & Regulations, a Confidential Session may be held
during the Watermaster committee meeting for the purpose of discussion and possible action.

VIil. FUTURE MEETINGS AT WATERMASTER
2/23/16 Tue 9:00a.m. Groundwater Recharge Coordinating Committee (GRCC at CBWCD)
2/25/16 Thu 11:00a.m. Watermaster Board
3/10/18 Thu 9:00 a.m. Appropriative Pool
3/10/16 Thu 11:00 a.m. Non-Agricultural Pool
3/10/16 Thu  1:30 p.m. Agricultural Pool
3/17116 Thu 8:00a.m. Appropriative Pool Strategic Planning (Confidential Session Only)
3/17/16 Thu 9:00 a.m. Advisory Committee
3/17/16 Thu 9:30a.m. Recharge Investigations and Projects Committee (RIPCom)
3/24/16 Thu 11:00a.m. Watermaster Board

ADJOURNMENT



GENERAL
MANAGER’S
REPORT



(\ Inland Empire Utilities Agency

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: March 16, 2016

To: The Honorable Board of Directors

From: P. Joseph Grindstaff, General Manag

Subject: General Manager’s Report Regarding Agercy Activities

PLANNING & ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

Drought Summary - Member Agencies versus State Board requirement.

Water Tracker

Ageﬁcy Target Cumulative Savings Monthly Savings {lan
3 Savings (Jun-Dec 2015} 2016)
Chino 24% 21% 17%
Chino Hills 28% 29% 21%
VWD | 32% 7% 20%
FWC 28% 29% 19%
MVWD 24% 27% 18%
Ontarla 24% 21% - 19%
Upland 36% | 39% 32%

Regional Plant influent flows during the month of January was consistent with the flow received
during the previous months. Agency-wide average daily influent flow for the month of January

2016 was approximately 49.3 million gallons per day.

[EUA Regional influent Elows




General Manager’s Report Regarding Agency Activities
March 16, 2016
Page 2 of 12

The National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit limit for Agency-wide 12-
month flow-weighted running average of Total Inorganic Nitrogen (TIN) is 8 mg/L.. The value for
January 2016 TIN was 5.7 mg/L.

The 12-month running average for TDS from the Agency’s treatment plants was on an incline, and
reached 534 mg/L; January’s 12-month average had slightly decreased to 515 mg/L. The increase
in salinity can be attributed to a combination of conservation efforts, which caused an increase to
the wastewater strength received at the treatment plants, as well as increased salinity from the State
Water Project. If the TDS trend continues to increase, the Agency will have to plan for added
treatment in order to meet NPDES permit requirement of 550 mg/L, and in the long term to meet
salinity objectives for the Chino Basin.

In January 2016, IEUA staff met with Regional Board staff to discuss the feasibility of an extended
averaging period for TDS. The Regional Board staff determined that in order to proceed, [IEUA would
need to amend the Basin Plan to reflect the change from 12-month to the requested 10-year period.
They recommended that IEUA re-evaluate the maximum benefit program since it has been over ten
years since it has been in place.

Agency-Wide Efflupnt TDS - 12-Month Running Average

460 | |
| |
Ei — L - - il it . Lcl = ] | L™

Feb-15  Mar-15  AprlS  May-15  JundS  Jub15 Aug-l5  Sep-l5 MR 15 Nowi5 Per 17 janel6

Tl R ewshpmeing ovor o == NPRFS Ponnie fhant - 550002

The recently adopted NPDES permit incorporated effluent limits for dioxins (including dioxin-tike
compounds known as PCDD/PCDF congeners). In November and December 2015, IEUA self-
reported exceedances of the average monthly (0.014 pg/L) and maximum daily (0.028 pg/L) limits.
After some research, IJEUA presented the Regional Board with a toxicity equivalency quotient
(TEQ) calculation that took into account lab results that fell below minimum levels/reporting limits
of the lab method to be calculated as zeroes and bioaccumulation in fish flesh. The Regional Board
is currently looking into our proposal and preliminary findings are favorable.



General Manager’s Report Regarding Agency Activities
March 16, 2016
Page 3 of 12

On December 9, 2015, Inland BioEnergy (IBE) source tested the flare at RP-5 Solids Handling
Facility (RP-5 SHF) as required by the South Coast Air Quality Management District (AQMD)
permit. Since the results indicated that the NOx emissions were above the limit, IEUA filed a
petition for an emergency variance and for a short variance on February 12, 2016 to seek relief from
the AQMD Board to allow operating the flare in violation of AQMD rules without penalty, while
taking appropriate steps to be in compliance. The hearing for the short variance has been scheduled
for March 9, 2016. If the Board grants the variance, AQMD can still issue a Notice of Violation to
the facility for the days prior to March 9, 2016.

OPERATIONS UPDATE

January 2016, Regional Plant sodium hypochlorite consumption averaged 129 gallons per million
gallons of treated flows.

IERCF UPDATE

Operational Comments — Facility throughput for February averaged approximately 96% of
permitted capacity at an average of 429 tons per day of biosolids and 160 tons per day of amendments
(based on a 29-day month). The facility is operating well with no violations or lost time incidents.

Facility Throughput

POTW Wet Tons Wet Tons
Month Year to Date
LACSD 6,892.14 14,103.65
IEUA 5,542.21 10,782.72
OCSD 0 0
Total 12,434.35 24,886.37

Compost Sales — Sales were flat in February reflecting typical winter agricultural use. April is
expected to be similar depending on weather. Compost inventory in the storage facility is at
approximately 20,000 cubic yards.

Monthly Sales Summary February 2016

Month | Product S::]&: $ff\(,"%]) Total $
February | Premium | 10,512,12 | $2.74 | $28,818.39
Base 1,906.74 | $0.06 $107.76
Total 12,418.86 | $2.33 | 528,926.15




General Manager’s Report Regarding Agency Activities
March 16, 2016
Page 4 of 12

YTD Sales Summary through February 2016

Month Total Cyds | Total Cyds Total § Total $
2015/2016 | 2014/2015 | 2015/2016 | 2014/2015
July 21,389.25 | 23,882.49 | $34,657.16 | $39,474.57
August 16,919.04 | 25,689.52 | $30,461.07 | $27,575.69
September | 16,750.02 | 33,184.26 | $24,655.71 | $37,732.49
October 27,394.30 | 31,487.37 | $33,401.74 | $31,552.56
November | 29,056.62 | 22,348.31 | $25,280.90 | $32,957.02
December | 17,586.64 | 18,272.61 | $28,476.77 | $23,528.45
January 14,298.49 | 14,388.67 | $22,085.28 | $38,227.06
February 12,418.86 | 15,105.97 | $28,926.15 | $37,979.47
Total 155,813.22 | 184,359.20 | $227,944.78 | $269,027.31
Average | 19,476.65 | 23,044.90 | $28,493.10 | $33,628.41

GROUNDWATER RECHARGE

During February 2016, recycled water recharge totaled 1,321 acre-feet. There was no imported water
delivered. The capture of dry weather creek flows totaled 20 acre-feet, There was one rain event
during this period that generated a total of approximately 455 acre-feet of captured storm water. A
detailed summary of the Chino Basin Groundwater Recharge Operations can be found at

http://www.ieua.org/category/reports/ groundwater-recharge-reports.

Total Groundwater Recharge

4a

A0 E ivamsts

? EL0 i Ll

e l mresgn i

L 3000 L an e

£ ame T

AT N, S iy SBN==S ]|
205

Ly | o
Lupn
new fo
LFL L

I

250
e L




General Manager’s Report Regarding Agency Activities
March 16, 2016
Page 5 of 12

Total Groundwater Recharge (continued)

0000 - ; ; T : -
w000 |- Lk T g i : S
7 1600 | | —Fra0s t ‘[__w_______ £ : !
i —FY 2015/16 t | ! I
14,000 ———— : : ==
- e e o R T
2000 e e _: —
o D PR N Gl e
3 o SN RPN SR SR S
D oo o O i ] : i .
i i i i
" 5 i |
o x o % 1 182 w0 m M ™ " 3 aes
Deye Ento Fiscal Yaar
Recycled Water Delivered to Groundwater Recharge
oo -
. [==-THTrrr .
33 e - =LA M A g
T M S YL Bt
W‘ - i Y B
Te0m ' g [ A il
{ i
2
o
ot l | 2 - i J . .
ki | ‘mr-m @ m ]:ﬁ
3 : II|
o . o - = |
arsawlics lidteaty Lomuary Mtk gt iy ”

uwog -

—r—r- ey
1300 irmtafe T T B o et
1280 s [ i . . e ‘
iLm - e k onrea




General Manager’s Report Regarding Agency Activities
March 16, 2016
Page 6 of 12

RW Distribution

During February 2016, 51% (25.7 MGD) of IEUA recycled water supply (50.0 MGD) was delivered
into the distribution system for both direct use customers (16.5 MGD) and groundwater recharge (9.2
MGD). Plant discharge to creeks feeding the Santa Ana River averaged 19.7 MGD.

IEUA RECYCLED WATER DISTRIBUTION ~ FEBRUARY 2016
= n e - ' __ -: — o T‘_;:_I :

e 1

JTOTAL ALL PLANTS
Influent: 50.7 MGD

RW Supply: 50.0 MGD
Delivered: 257 MGD
Percent Dalivered: 51%

F 3. Wi
RP-4

Influent: 9.4 MGD

RW Supply. 85 MGD

Percent d 1 94%

" AT T T b
R . T

Influsnt: 24.6 MGD
RW Supply. 26.6 MGD
Delivered: _ 155 MGD
Percent Delvered. 58%

Influent: 59 MGD Sroundwatar Rechacge
RW 5upply: 5.4 MGD Storm/Local Runoff. 05.3 MGD

Imported Water (MWD): 0.0MGD

o T et ! - Total: 14.5MGD
R N 215l : b : = E—raeovrae

RP-5

Infiuent: 108 MGD

AW Supply: 95 MGD
Parcent Deliverad: 0.04% .

*

Lreek Discharzes

Prado Park {(001): 4.7 MGD
RP-1(002): 6.9 MGD
RP-5{003) 5.5MGD

CCWRE (004} 2.6 MGD
Total: 19.7 MGD

e : SR



Gencral Manager’s Report Regarding Agency Activities
March 16, 2016
Page 7 0of 12

ENGINEERING & CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PROJECT STATUS SUMMARY

Engineering and Construction Management’s FY15/16 budget is $52,981,235. As of February 26%,
staff has projected to spend $24,519,471 during FY15/16 of which $16,084,372 has been spent. The
following chart summarizes the Engincering and Construction Management FY Budget status update.

%0 — . .

B

TYCP Current FY budget Mid Year Adj Capital Call FY Expenditures
DGG{102) wNC({105] &RC{109) mRO(108) «RM{202) wWRW [103) wWC{106)

Currently, twelve projects have over $500,000 of FY budget that will not be expended this FY.
These twelve projects represent $18,860,201 of the variance between the current FY budget and the
Mid-year adjusted FY projections. The reasons for their FY variances are as follows:

ENOBOZ5__ Winevile Ext Recy Wir Pipsliine Seg A 1,140,000 2185364 The project finished uricier budget.

EN11031  RP-5 Flow Equalization and Effiuent 150,000 1,266,264 26 The project scope was modifled fo meet Agency operating requirements causing a
Monitoring schedule deiey. Contract modifications are complete and the project has
restarted.
EN13001  San Savaine Basin improvements 25-0,000 3,5-00,000 3,250,000 A majority of the expenses are construction related which is scheduled to begin

later int the fiscal year. The capital call was reduced to reflect major construction
- expenses occurring in the following fiscal year.

EN13016  SCADA Enterprise System 3,000,000 4,200,000 1,200,000  Project is progressing with less than anticipated manpower and with minimal
charge orders. Contract negotiation resulted in $400,000 of savings. Additicnally,
work on Phass 2 requiras upfront as-builting prior to design causing an
unanticipated delay in the achedule.

EN13045 Winevilla R Extansion Segment B 1,761,100 2,606,256 745.15‘5 The project is nearly completion and will finish under budget.
""ENT3048  RP-1930-Zone RW Pump Statien Load 231,800 1,000,000 788,200 An extensive enaiysia of the RP-1 existing load was required prior ta isunching the
Anglysis design. The majority of the budget (design and construction) will be consumed in
FY16/17.
EN15043  SBCFCD Recycled Water Easement £00 567,268 566,798 San Bemardino County has not completed the appraisal report reviews.
EN15C44  SBCFCD NRW Easement £00 514,930 514,430  San Bernardino County has not completed the appraisal report reviews.
EN16018  RC Emergency O&M Projects FY 1516 25,000 600,000 575,000  Laess than anticipated number of emeargencies have occurred during the fiscal
— yedr.
EN18021  Chino Basin Graundwater Supply Wells 1,060,000 2,000,000 7.940,000  The project work has been delayed due to the ongoing setilement negctiaticns
and Raw Water Pipelines with the Regional Board. CDA has initiated project management with Michaal

Baker International, but design and construction will not bagin untii Regional

Board settement |s compiste, per IEUA's agreement with CDA. The Regicnal

Board was expected to present the proposed settiement to their Board of

Diractors in January 2018. However, this has not happenad therefora the delay

. has been extended,

EN16024  RP-1 Mixed Liguor Retun Pumps 500,000 1,000,000 500,000  The project evaiuation period was extendad based on review of project

expectations and Stakeholder requirements. This reduced the funding needed for

this year and moved expenditures into FY 16/17.

EN1E028  RP-1 Expansion PDR 300,000 4,000,000 700,00  Criginal Budget assumed 50450 Cost Split between RP-1 & RP-5. Actual cost
spiit is 20/8C. Remaining $850,000 will be transferred to EN16028.

5,418,900 27,279,101 18,860,201




General Manager’s Report Regarding Agency Activities
March 16, 2016
Page 8 of 12

Active Projects in Design

23 Active Project in Design

Currantly In Bid &
Awerd (FY15/%6), 3

Fy17/:8, T

0-2 Moenths Bid &

FY16/17, 11 Award (FY15/18), 7

3-4 Months Bid &
Award [FY15/16), 2

3 Project Currently in Bid & Award

ENI14047.00 GWR and RW SCADA Control Upgrades o ENIG6068.00 Main Office Permit Office
EN15008.00 Water Quality Laboratory

7 Prajects (-2 Months Bid & Award

EN16G51.00 RP-1 Utility Water Flow Meter o ENI6047.00 HQ Parking Lot FY15/16
EN13001.00 San Sevaine Basin Improvements o  ENI16049.00 Conference Rooms Audio Visual Upgrades
EN16055.00 Headquarters Back Up Generator »  ENI6132.00 Magnolia Channel Spillway

EN14012.01 RP-2 Drying Beds Rehab Tractor and Compost
Aerator




00F'¥T
00T's
00z's

UCRANASUCD AISEY "M
UOPIN.OSUDY RIIDMD

OT'6TO9TNI
T1STOTNS

) B Ul JBIBM I0H T-dY
323 UoUUED JIIEM TTON UOOBET T-dY

310z/1/2
gT0z/E L

BZ0-OL
900-0L

9707 AIONIqa,] Ul papIDmyy Sjoal0A] AouI3IotL]

/N

990°91€$ :Areniqa] w perodos yIom 1oj syuswiAed 19RMI0D TONONNSTOD [RI0], e

10619 GeE'Ls . 9OYOTETT  PIE'TLFET SE9'BISYE
910z/5T/E ator/sf¢ %6058 %00 0 LGY'6T 000021 LSP'6T 000’0 T s3|NEA SA|RA ¥ Ul SBAjeA 3n|d DLIUSD3R BULSIG JO JUSWSIE(da] 7§ ALLS( wawadeidsy anjep Bnjd SIvd T4 O0PL909TN ST
g . ; . . . . : sjuswasoidw| N i
groe/ezfe  STOZ/TEfCL WEV'LE %000 0 £64°G62 809°E8S €559 000'559 juawsaaed pue sjoi3ue3 aroidw) spiacsd ‘Suidid sed 1aisaBip ay3 en(esd 3 Uojn|en) waishs San JasaBicl T-dy 00'GSOSTNE  #T
) . | . r . " Juawases s N3l . | N
oT0z/T€/0T  9T0T/L1/0T %EG'ZS %o 0 Z26'BPT sTrLzs STS'B0T 000'065'T i34 8 [14 18Y3 JUEY PRINS B JO UORIN LSS B BINSUA 1 KIAITS Pl uoE||RISH| JuB] SHING -S4 MY "M OE9T  00°SS05TN3 €T
at0z/et/r STOZ/0EM 9%/9°68 woe 0 i1 4:r44 000°05E TPE'B0E 9RO'IEK “53joYU BW Waishs UGRRR](93 MUN €T Jleday 9T/9T Ad sepeiddn Gpoyueiy YN 00°OYVOSTN 2T
= . . ’ 3 oT/51 .

910Z/5f¥ 9TOZ/CE/Y %77'88 %000 0 [47:1 OvETIS B0T'TSY 000'0Z9 SIBADD PUT SRUIRY I[OYURLL Wa3sAs UO[IOR]|G0 JoMBS pir SoR|dalfileday 1 S99 235N SjoyuE WarsAS UopAB|iED DO'SPOSTNI 1T

9102/8/¥ aruz/sfa HET'EL %Ir'0  TI8T BERTHE 052686 STT'9Er 000'0eT'T 1-dy@ suonnjos spiaoid 1g sWRNsAS SWAH SBp|q [ouas | 0@ :3enjeag § ON Byod-sluswiaAoIdW| JVAH pim-AdusBy  OO'ZEOSINA 0T
; . . s . PR sapesdn . .
9Taz/ez/a stoz/se/s WIZ'SE %000 o vesel, o vesTL 0 21yje.3 50 0} saxoq ||hd FuNSxa AJPEU! 3§ SI3A0D S[OYUEL Pa3E J|}Je] ||BISU| Ynea 3do Jogq soieg Y elpIEwag uRs LO'OEOSTNA 6
9T0z/9T/7 10Z/08f9 %3586 %000 0 ¥Z1'E6 87E60T BES'EPT 000°09T aunsopus Bugledj) i punos ai pang puk udiseq senseap UORESAIN ISION 0ZHD  OU'REOVING &

. " . r wioped ~ . —

9T0Z/ST/L gtoz/etfL %ES"69 %000 O 910'8e 0 698'8¢ 0 A3ueE 4o uoRE]E3SUL A dOYOO) 10} SIIESS [|E15U) 8 S3EaLIgE) ‘uSisaq SS90y JO0Y SA4 JOIUBD JOMOd -DDW p-dd  TO'9SOETNI L
GTOLf6EIT sT0¢/0%f6 WGLEG %000 0 a6 TSY XY IBY Y46'865 000°009°E TdY 32 SWAISAS DIEY MIU OM] AU 4o dnLIEls i UolRASUOD ‘aunzoud “UBisag sjuslIACIduI| wWNsAS BUeld TdY  O00'SYOEIN 9
STOZ/ET/IT  ST0Z/%tfo %7896 %69'T  TEE0ST EGL'BIST  9STOUST  0ZREOL'0T  OOE0BE'IT sSourUSUNdde paIBOsSE BY1 § dMY ,OF JO 53| g [jeIsul £3UaWBag ojsuang MY 9|MSUIM,  00'SPOSING S
aTez/ot/s 910zfeTiL %006 %000 D 0OE'BET PIR'EOT'T  EES'ISE S60°0E0'E SU9J05 Jeq 308|dal PUR JYUMDD @ WaIsAs [01U0D JOPO siw pinby| sae|day suawaAc dw| 3NJoN.IS UCISIDAD JIB[AU  O0'BTOETNd ¥
9TeZ/Y1/E oroz/stfe WLYLL %/L'0  TOE'ET 566'08L'C7  00S'I6TY  TTO'BLIY SH0°20¥0T SO131[(DE} JO [0J3LI0D MOWD SB|qeuS Jeiy Washs YIVDS RonnsuoafuBisag wayshs aspdimul ¥avIS  00'9TOSING €
9Tee/LT/a S10¢/08/8 %91°Z6 %oon 0 799'11E 1529 109'e8p 80T°068 OYIUEY I SNRAY JSEF UO Td ANY YUl 9€ JO 41 00T J0 Uoie03y uopesajsy JMH 1 DEIT anuanyise OPTOZING T
ST /e STOZ/TE/CT %LELE %TZ'0f  LOY'D6T Z£6'868 0 £09'0Z6 0 Salj1e[D Adelulid AUl UIYLM }Iom qeyat pauinbal 3y Jo uonentnua) ford qeyay STOZ Jaljuepy Alewiig T4y SO'EZOBON T

UOTPNLISUO,) U] S107104d 24110

130 69884
910T 91 Yore
semIANOY Aouady SurpreSoy poday s JodeuriAl [RISUSL)



0 Ybe2L ‘paplacd 2JaM SUSLIWOI UFISap pue sBUIMEID 3|ING-58 L3IM PaMS|AS SEM UOIEIO| UORIIULSI 3y, TS-05-6t-MEAD UUED MY OMAD +T'ZOTOTMD
0 Yo gL ST/t UL LEIS || 3o=foad a3 yewp pajedialiue 51 3] "J0WNfM TZ T Uo Hunaaw uoaaud B papEnpUed DlBUD 4O ALID SYL 13leig S 15 YIKs oL END Jo A1D ETC0TOTMD
b %bO'TL ‘papiArald BIaM SIUBWMWOI Ufisap pue sBuimelp 1|INg-S2 YUM PSMBIAS] SEM UDI1E30] LUOI1I5ULoD 34| SI-MHAD UUOD MY UMAD ZTZ0T9TMD
4] %1789 JUEYNSUOD L)} O} PEPIACID 3ISM SIMFLLIOD PUE PIMAIAGL 21aM sUEld Bupiaauldua ay|. S|IH outy;) Ul 2d 008 1 IdARY UHT TTZOT9TAD
65T %69E" L ‘pamalaal 2iam sueld BudaauiBua ay B-E£8-Z8-MUD UUGD MY oUlD 0T'Z0T9TAD
o S%9EL ‘pamaiasa auam suejd Supssuldus ayl T8-MYD UUO) ARY oUly) 60°2019TMD
et HIEY,, “P3INISUOD 30 [[14 61 J0Y M3U ¥ “JUEYNSUGD BY] 0] PSPIACIH FIaM SIUSLILIOD PuE pasmelasl s1am sueld SupasuiBus ayL O8-AYD UUCD ARY OUIYD SOCOTITMY
k114 %9529 "papianad SI8M SJUIWICY UEISSp puk SBUIMBIP 1|NG-SE Y1M PRM3|AS) SEM UOI1EDD| LIO|158ULIBD SUL LP-MUAD UULOD MY UMD LO'TOTITAD
1T HAETL *uoIRayIIou uopaadsulfuoanLIsuoda.d Joy BujlEAy Panss] sEM Jjwied VN3] YL SHMUAD UUSD M QAN SOZOTHTAD
8i5 %96’ ‘PETILIGNS SEM IDURINSU] JO S1EJYNI 5,J0)0R.0UCD BY) Jo} 1sanbad e pue paulis sem Jejiuw oy F-AMEAD UUO) MY OMAD PO ZOTITAMD
64T ROS'ET *pausis siam siejAw pue suondadxa oU YUM Usyel sem uSisap (euly pasiaal ayl T-MEAD UUED MY A SOTOTIIMD
T8 HLE'LE “uonaadsul JO UOREALI0U S[R30 0} BUILIEAL 9T /Z UO P3NSS] SeM WIS UDIRINISUOI Y 29-MYO 1§ /9-MHUL) SULOD AR oUBUD ZOCOTSTAD
05 %6865 uonoadsu) Joj UOREINOU SAB321 03 BRI, “Z/7 UO panss) sem J|LLIad Uo[1HnI1su00 v EP-MUAD ULOD MY ARAD I0ZOT9TAMD
b u %000 *6/T vo p|ay sem H uodaid v 1afoud Q5 1§ S1auRl ouEuD Jo KD TOST09TAD
T %0T'8 mainal A3ELUB) 5,37%SM 01 INP “jSL0D 1oy pasIUARPE UDSY 30U SEU 5] SAI353 0E-) UUCy Sy oy TOE0D9TALY

WL VEY

$13A00 YNJ| YUM Peoe|d 2l alam SIBA0D Sjeyuew Aleiodwal ayy

T dnoup 513 03 SUUo) 33y OUED TOE009TALY

. joalodg BidiisoUIBU IIUIO

Z1Jo 01 98ed
910T ‘91 YoTeN

SaNIANOY Aousfy Surpreday poday s Jofeuriy [ISUSD



General Manager’s Report Regarding Agency Activities
March 16, 2016
Page 11 of 12

GRANTS ADMINISTRATION UPDATE

Board Activities

Since the last General Manager’s report, Grants Administration has processed the following Chino
Basin Regional Financing Authority (CBRFA) item:

e Adoption of Resolution No. 2016-1, Approving and Adopting the Initial Study, Mitigated
Negative Declaration and Addendum of the Recycled Water Service Expansion Program
as CEQA-Responsible Agency.

This item was requested by the State Water Board as an additional requirement for the design and
construction of the Joint IEUA-JCSD Regional Water Recycling Program, which was approved
by both the CBRFA Board and IEUA Board on November 18, 2015.

Since the last General Manager’s report, Grants Administration has processed the following IEUA
Board item:

o Adoption of Resolution Nos. 2016-3-1 and 2016-3-2, authorizing the General Manager to
execute a Financial Assistance Agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board
(SWRCB) for a Planning Grant application through the Small Community Wastewater
Grant Program; and dedicating certain revenues in connection with the Small Community
Wastewater Grant Program and associated State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan financing.

Grant/Loan Opportunities and Applications
The Agency’s Grant Administration group is continuing to pursue additional federal and state grant
opportunities as they become available to offset project costs, including:

State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB)

Continued review and application development of Proposition 1 Storm Water Grant Program
which includes grant opportunities for both planning and implementation. This funding will be
used for the regions RMPU Projects. Multiple projects will be included in the implementation
application due in July.

Staff review of Proposition 1 Groundwater Grant Program application guidelines which became
available for public review. These funds will be allocated to eligible projects to support the Water
Quality, Supply and Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014 through groundwater sustainability
and projects that clean up the contamination of groundwater that serves or has served as a source
of drinking water. A pre-application was submitted in November 2015.

Staff submitted a grant application on February 11, 2016 in the amount of $500,000, for a study
regarding the feasibility of providing sewer service to septic tank users within the Inland Empire
Utilities Agency (IEUA) service area. The study will develop a plan of implementation for the
conversion of septic users in the service area to the local city/agency sewer system. The primary
goal of the feasibility study is to provide targeted service based on the most benefit to be evaluated



General Manager’s Report Regarding Agency Activities
March 16,2016
Page 12 of 12

on cost effectiveness, potential to mitigate the impact of groundwater contamination, and
validation of available sewer capacity.

California Department of Water Resources (DWR)

Staff review and summary of the Agricultural Water Use Efficiency Grants- This grant opportunity
is designed for projects that contribute toward the implementation of the California Water Action
Plan to make conservation a way of life and to achieve or exceed water management planning or
water use efficiency targets.

United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR)

Review and summary of the WaterSMART: Drought Contingency Planning Grants FY 2016-To
support drought planning by promoting collaborative efforts between multiple stakeholders
including agricultural, municipal and environmental sectors. USBR seeks to support the leverage
of funds and resources by cost sharing.

WateReuse Foundation

A pre-application was submitted on February 8, 2016, in the amount of $100,000, for the Tailored
Collaboration Research Program. The project will evaluate groundwater recharge injection of
tertiary treated recycled water in unsaturated zones, as compared to surface recharge.

Grant Reimbursements and Reporting Activities
The following is a status update on several existing contracts for various grants and loans:

o SAWPA/DWR High Visibility Turf Removal and Retrofit — Invoicing is complete for
costs through January 31, 2016 for $807,564.

e SWRCB New Main Water Quality Laboratory — Invoicing is complete for the remaining
preliminary budget through January 31, 2016 for $473,647.

e USBR/CDA Wells 1,2,3 — Invoicing is complete for costs through January 31, 2016 for
$3,899.55.

e SWRCB Wineville Project No. C-06-5318-110/3849-030 Amendment No. 3 has been
signed and is in process for full execution with SWRCB. Modifications include a project
completion date extension to 6/30/2017 and a newly negotiated budget approval that
reduces the SRF loan amount by $4 million due to the availability of grant funding.

e Quarterly Progress Reports were successfully submitted for SAWPA agreements
including: Wineville, Interregional Landscape Water Demand Reduction Program/Turf
Removal, San Sevaine Basin Improvement, Regional Residential Landscape Retrofit, and
Lower Day Basin Improvement.

o Interregional Landscape Water Demand Reduction Program-Institutional and HOA Turf
Removal project was completed and invoiced. Pre and post photos were submitted to
demonstrate the successful completion of the project.



	Agenda Page 1
	Agenda Page 2
	Agenda Page 3
	Agenda Page 4
	Agenda Page 5
	Agenda Page 6
	Agenda Page 7
	Action 3A
	Action 3B
	Action 3C
	Info 4C
	Info 4D
	Info 4E
	Info 4F
	Info 4G
	Info 4H
	Info 4I
	Info 4J
	Info 4K
	Info 4L
	Info 4M
	Info 4N
	Info 4O
	Agency Reports 5A
	Agency Reports 5B
	Agency Report 5C
	Agency Report 5D
	GM Reports

